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All references herein to “we”, “us”, “our” or “CenturyLink” refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its consddited subsidiaries, including, for
all references to dates or periods on or after JuIY2009 (except as otherwise stated herein), EmBarporation and its subsidiaries, which we
acquired on July 1, 2009. In addition, “accesselfi mean telephone lines that connect homes onkgsks to the public switched telephone
network; “competitive local exchange carriers,” 8&€LECs,” mean telecommunications providers that pete in a particular local service area
with the ILEC by providing local voice or other s&es, frequently by using the ILEC’s network; “FO@eans the Federal Communications
Commission; “incumbent local exchange carrier,” 8LEC,” means a traditional telecommunications pider that, prior to the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, had the exclusgie and responsibility for providing local telecamnications services in its local service
area; “LEC” means any local exchange carrier; “Na&emeans the Notes to the Financial Statementsided in Item 8 of this Annual Report or
Form 1(-K; “SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchangen@iission; “Universal Service Fund,” or “USF,” refercollectively to federal
funds established primarily to promote the availié#piof telecommunications services to all conswsrarreasonable and affordable rates; ¢
“Voice Over Internet Protocol,” or “VolP,” means aapplication that enables broadband Internet sulimms to engage in two-way voice
communication similar to our traditional voice s&ms.



PART I
ltem 1. Business

On July 1, 2009, we acquired Embarq Corporation (“Enbarg”) in a transaction that substantially expanda the size and scope of
our business, and on April 1, 2011 we expect to agige Qwest Communications International Inc. (“Qweg”) in a transaction that will
similarly impact the size and scope of our businesDue to the significant size of Embarq, direct amparisons of our recent results of
operations or operating data to periods prior to Jly 1, 2009 are less meaningful than usual becausest of the variances are due to the
Embarq acquisition. Similarly, due to the signifi@ant size of Qwest, direct comparisons of our futureesults and data for periods following
the upcoming anticipated closing date of the Qwestcquisition to prior periods will be less meaningfuthan usual for similar reasons. For
additional information on our Embarq acquisition, see “ — Embarq acquisition” below, and for additiond information on our pending
Qwest acquisition, see “ — Pending acquisition of est” below.

General. CenturyLink, together with its subsidiariesan integrated communications company engagedaghnin providing a broad
array of communications services, including voiogernet, data and video services. We strive tmtaan our customer relationships by, among
other things, bundling our service offerings toyide a complete offering of integrated communiaatigervices. We primarily conduct our
operations in 33 states located within the contialddnited States.

At December 31, 2010, our incumbent local exchdetpphone subsidiaries operated approximately @libmtelephone access lines in 33
states, with over 75% of these lines located imiéiég North Carolina, Missouri, Nevada, Ohio, Wissmm, Virginia, Texas, Pennsylvania, and
Alabama. According to published sources, we areeatly the fourth largest local exchange telephoompany in the United States based on the
number of access lines served.

We also provide fiber transport, wholesale commaindns services, competitive local exchange caseevice, security monitoring and
other communications, professional and businessrimdtion services in certain local and regionalkats.

For information on the amount of revenue deriveabyyvarious lines of services, see “Operationsrviges” below and Item 7 of this
annual report. The financial information includadhis Item 1 should be read in conjunction wihgd is qualified by reference to, our
consolidated financial statements and notes théndtem 8 and “Management’s Discussion and AnalydiFinancial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7 of this annual report.

Pending acquisition of Qwest On April 21, 2010, we entered into a definitive egmnent to acquire Qwest in a tax-free stock-focksto
transaction. Under the terms of the agreement,sDstereholders will receive 0.1664 CenturyLinkrekdor each share of Qwest common stock
they own at closing. CenturyLink shareholderseaqgected to own approximately 50.5% and Qwest sladdlers are expected to own
approximately 49.5% of the combined company atiefpsAs of December 31, 2010, Qwest had outstandpproximately (i) 1.764 billion
shares of common stock and (ii) $11.947 billionoofg-term debt.

While we have received most of the necessary apsdrom state public service commissions, comtetf the transaction is still subject
to the receipt of approvals from the Federal Comigations Commission and several other state pgiligcice commissions, as well as other
customary closing conditions. Subject to thesalitmmms, we anticipate closing this transactionAqril 1, 2011. During the process of securing
the required state regulatory approvals, we hawentitted to spend an aggregate of approximately $dillibn in capital expenditures over a five-
year period to expand our broadband deployment.aktieipate making additional complementary broadbeommitments as part of the FCC
approval process to expand broadband deploymehei@west fourteen state region. If the mergeeagent is terminated under certain
circumstances, we may be obligated to pay Qwestnaination fee of $350 million.

See Item 1A, Risk Factors, for additional informaticoncerning the pending acquisition of Qwestdifidnal information about Qwest is
included in documents filed by it with the SEC.eS®&/here to find additional information” below.

The foregoing description of the pending Qwest raeig not complete, and is qualified in its entirby reference to our Current Reports
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 22 and Apriv 22010, including the exhibits thereto.

Embarq acquisition. On July 1, 2009, we acquired Embarq, which was sgtifrom Sprint Nextel Corporation in 2006, anccigrently &
wholly-owned subsidiary of CenturyLink. As a resofl this merger transaction, each outstandingeshBEmbarg common stock was converted
into 1.37 shares of CenturyLink common stock, weiish paid in lieu of fractional shares. In additio delivering the aggregate merger
consideration valued at $6.1 billion, we also asstiapproximately $5.1 billion of Embarq’s indebteds upon the consummation of the
transaction. As of the acquisition date, Embargexapproximately 5.4 million access lines andrillion high-speed Internet customers loca
in 18 states.

See Item 1A, Risk Factors, for additional informaticoncerning the acquisition of Embarg. Additlonéormation about Embarq is
included elsewhere herein and in documents thmaegitiously filed with the SEC. See “Where to fimdditional information” below.

Other recently completed acquisitions On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the aatsling stock of Madison River Communications
(“Madison River”) for approximately $322 million sh. In connection with the acquisition, we als@gl of Madison Rivers existing indebted
(including accrued interest), which approximate@3illion. At the time of this acquisition, Madis River operated approximately 164,(



predominantly rural access lines in four states.

In June 2005, we acquired fiber assets in 16 melitap markets from KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. fguproximately $75.5 million cash,
which has enabled us to offer broadband and cotiyeetbcal exchange services to customers in themdets. During 2008, we sold the assets
in six of these markets in two separate transastion
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We also acquired approximately 660,000, 490,000&&@J000 telephone access lines in transactionpleted in 1997, 2000 and 2002,
respectively, each of which substantially expanol@doperations. The 2002 acquisition of telephaceess lines was funded primarily from
proceeds received from the sale of substantiallgfalur wireless operations in August 2002. ldliéidn, in 2003 we acquired fiber transport
assets in the central United States that enabléal significantly expand our wholesale data tramspervices.

We continually evaluate the possibility of acquiriadditional communications assets in exchangedsh, securities or other properties,
and at any given time may be engaged in discussionegotiations regarding additional acquisitiolige generally do not announce our
acquisitions or dispositions until we have enténdéd a preliminary or definitive agreement. Altlgbuour primary focus will continue to be on
acquiring interests that are proximate to our priige or that serve a customer base large enouglsfto operate efficiently, we may also acquire
other communications interests and these acquisittould have a material impact upon us.

Where to find additional information We make available all of our filings with the SE@c{uding Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K) on our
website (www.centurylink.com) as soon as reasonptaygticable after we complete such filings wite 82C. These documents may also be
obtained from the SEC’s website_at www.sec.go¥ou may obtain copies of Embarq’s previous §brwith the SEC from our website or the
SEC’s website. You may obtain copies of Qwest'€Sitings from Qwest's website or the SEC’s wehsite

We also make available on our website our Corpdeateernance Guidelines, our corporate ethics angpiance program and the charters
of our audit, compensation, risk evaluation, anchimating and corporate governance committees. Wéunnish printed copies of these
materials free of charge upon the request of aaye$tolder. If a provision of our corporate ettaosl compliance program is amended, other than
by a technical, administrative or other non-suktstaremendment, or a waiver under this prograntasi@d to a director or executive officer, we
will post notice of such amendment or waiver onwabsite or disclose the amendment or waiver iepant on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC. Only our board of directors, or an authorizeshmittee of the board, may consider a waiverufamrporate ethics and compliance program
for a director or executive officer.

In connection with filing this annual report, odrief executive officer and chief financial officerade the certifications regarding our
financial disclosures required under the SarbandeyQAct of 2002, and the Ad'related regulations. In addition, during 2010 chief executiv:
officer certified to the New York Stock Exchangathe was unaware of any violation by us of the Nark Stock Exchange’s corporate
governance listing standards.

Industry information . Unless otherwise indicated, information contdiirethis annual report and other documents fikedi®under the
federal securities laws concerning our views arketations regarding the communications industeybased on estimates made by us using date
from industry sources, and on assumptions madesltipased on our management’s knowledge and experieitike markets in which we operate
and the communications industry generally. Wedvelithese estimates and assumptions are accumitthasdate made; however, this
information may prove to be inaccurate becausarihot always be verified with certainty. You shibbk aware that we have not independently
verified data from industry or other third-partyusces and cannot guarantee its accuracy or complete Our estimates and assumptions involve
risks and uncertainties and are subject to chaagedon various factors, including those discusséeém 1A of this annual report.
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Other . As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately 2Dg&@ployees, of which approximately 6,600 were mensiof 45 different
bargaining units represented by the Internatiomatti®rhood of Electrical Workers and the Communmicest Workers of America. As of
December 31, 2010, five of the union contracts tbptesent approximately 1,600 employees had ekpi@vever, employees continue to
perform their work activities while contract negutons continue. An additional 14 union contraegzresenting approximately 2,500 employees
are scheduled to expire in 2011. We believe thlations with our employees continue to be genegbd. Over the last several years, we
announced reductions of our workforce primarily duéi) progress made on our integration effortsrfrecent acquisitions (including the recel
completed Embarq acquisition); (ii) increased cotitipe pressures and the loss of access linesthediast several years, and (iii) the elimination
of certain customer service personnel due to retiva# volumes.

We were incorporated under Louisiana law in 1968eive as a holding company for several telephormganies acquired over the
previous 15 to 20 years. Our principal executiviice$ are located at 100 CenturyLink Drive, Monrbeuisiana 71203 and our telephone number
is (318) 388-9000.

OPERATIONS

According to published sources, our acquisitioeofbarg on July 1, 2009 positioned us as the fdartiest local exchange telephone
company in the United States, based on the app#eigign6.5 million access lines we served at Decerhe2010, all of which are digitally
switched.

Before the Embarg acquisition, (i) CenturyLink pided local exchange telephone services to predartiineural areas and small to mid-
size cities in 25 states and (ii) Embarq providezhl exchange telephone services to a wide vaofetyarkets in 18 states, including Las Vegas,
Nevada, and the suburbs of Orlando, Florida andragéwther large U.S. cities. At the time of tlog@isition, the average population densit



CenturyLink’s and Embarq’s local exchange markeds @5 and 94 persons per square mile, respectiydliough the services provided
by each company prior to the acquisition were ari#lly similar, the merger resulted in severgbartant changes to our operations, including:

° providing services to an expanded number of deqsmpulated markets, which tend to afford conswsraarcess to a greater range of
competitive communications products than less dememdets and exposes the incumbent telephone sguxawider to higher levels
service terminations
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. reducing the percentage of our total revenuerddrirom governmental support programs, which tgibycfocus on disbursing
payments to companies operating in less de-populated area

° expanding and reconfiguring our operating regimniscorporate the Embarq service areas in oalprdvide day-to-day decision
making at the regional level as opposed to En’s prior operating model which operated under a mergralized structure; ar

° offering certain services, such as inmate payplsengces, that CenturyLink did not historically pide.

If and when we complete our pending Qwest acqaoisitit will result in material changes to our oginas, including changes similar to
those listed above and changes in our mix of prodnd service offerings.

The following table lists information (rounded ttetnearest thousand lines) regarding our access dis of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009.

December 31, 210 December 31, 200
Number of Percent o Number of Percent o
State access line access line access line access line
Florida 1,234,00! 19% 1,352,00! 19%
North Caroling 910,00( 14 997,00( 14
Missouri 516,00( 8 548,00( 8
Nevads 463,00( 7 523,00( 7
Ohio 354,00( 5 388,00( 5
Wisconsin (1) 326,00( 5 343,00( 5
Virginia 315,00( 5 334,00( 5
Texas 286,00( 4 303,00( 4
Pennsylvanii 252,00( 4 271,00( 4
Alabama 237,00( 4 254,00( 4
Washingtor 189,00( 3 200,00( 3
Indiana 172,00( 3 186,00( 3
Arkansas 170,00( 3 182,00( 3
Tennesse 162,00( 2 176,00( 2
Minnesots 133,00( 2 144,00( 2
New Jerse) 130,00( 2 145,00( 2
Oregon 102,00¢( 2 109,00( 2
All other states (2 553,00( 8 584,00( 8
6,504,00! 10C% 7,039,00! 10C%

(1) As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, approxiat8|000 and 45,000, respectively, of these linesevowned and operated by our 89%-
owned affiliate.
(2) Includes all of the remaining 16 states in whichoperate, each of which has less than 100,000 sitices servec

The following table summarizes certain infotioa related to our customer base, operating reegand capital expenditures for the past
five years. The 2010 and 2009 information inclutfesimpact of the Embarqg operations we acquiredubyi 1, 2009. Periods subsequent to April
30, 2007 include the impact of the Madison Riverparties we acquired on April 30, 2007.
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Year ended or as of December
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands

Access lines 6,504,00! 7,039,001 2,025,001 2,135,00! 2,094,00!
% Residentia 67% 68 73 73 74
% Busines: 33% 32 27 27 26

Internet customer 2,410,001 2,259,00! 683,00( 623,00( 459,00(
% High-speed Internet servit 99% 99 94 89 80
% Dial-up service 1% 1 6 11 20

Operating revenue $ 7,041,53. 4,974,23! 2,599,74 2,656,24. 2,447,73I

Capital expenditure $ 863,76¢ 754,54+ 286,81 326,04! 314,07:

As discussed further below, during the last sewsals (exclusive of acquisitions and certain necurring favorable adjustments), we h
experienced declines in our voice and network acomgenues primarily due to declines in access Jimgrastate access rates, minutes of use, and
federal support fund payments. In an attempt tiigate these declines, we plan to, among othegghicontinue to (i) promote long-term
relationships with our customers through bundlihgqtegrated services, (ii) provide new serviceshsas video and other additional services that
may become available in the future due to advamceschnology, wireless spectrum sales by the F@@rovements in our infrastructure, or
agency or reselling arrangements with other casri@r) provide our special access, broadband@edium services to a higher percentage of our
customers, (iv) pursue acquisitions of additior@hmunications properties if available at attracfiviees, (v) increase usage of our networks and
(vi) market our products and services to new custamSee “Services” and “Regulation and Compefitfor additional information.

Services
We derive revenue from providing (i) local exchamgel long distance voice telephone services, &iia dervices, including high-speed

Internet services, as well as special access anat@iline services, (iii) wholesale local netwacess services, and (iv) other related services (a
more fully described below). The following tabldleets the percentage of operating revenues defiosd each of these services:

2010 2009 2008
Voice 44.€% 43.€ 40.1
Data 27.1 24.Z 20.Z
Network acces 15.2 18.¢€ 25.C
Other 13.C 13.€ 14.7
100.(% 100.( 100.(

Voice. We offer local calling service to residential angsiness customers within our local service argaserally for a fixed monthly
charge. While we have achieved significant priailegegulation over time, the maximum amount thatam® charge a customer for local calling
services is still largely governed by state anagfatiregulatory authorities and by our competitdfge offer a number of enhanced voice services
(such as call forwarding, caller identificationnéerence calling, voicemail, selective call ringiaugd call waiting) to our local exchange custon
for an additional monthly fee. At December 31, @0dpproximately 68% of both our business and esgidl customers subscribed to one or n
enhanced services. We also offer long distanagcgarto our customers based on either usage sugnot to flat-rate calling plans. We anticipate
that most of our long distance service will conérta be provided as part of an integrated bundie wiir other service offerings, including our
local exchange telephone service offering.
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Total access lines declined 535,000 (7.6%) duritpZompared to a decline of 380,000 during 2088l@eling access lines we acquired
from Embarg on July 1, 2009 but including accesedilost in Embarqg’s markets following such acdigis). We believe these declines in the
number of access lines were primarily due to tispldcement of traditional wireline telephone seggiby other competitive services and recent
economic conditions. Over the last few years,reaently-acquired Embarg markets have experieniggtehrates of access line losses than our
incumbent markets due principally to such markeiad more densely-populated and competitive. Basedur current retention initiatives, we
estimate that our access line loss will be betw88b and 7.5% in 2011 (excluding access lines aeduipon consummation of the pending
Qwest acquisition and access lines lost in Qwestskets following such acquisition).

Data. We derive our data revenues primarily from monthly recurragirges for providing (i) high-speed Internet asce=vices, which
is also referred to as “broadband” data servigedéita transmission services over special cirauits private lines, which we market to business
customers who require dedicated equipment to tradarge amounts of data between sites, and (ijched digital television services. At
December 31, 2010, approximately 92% of our acliess were broadband-enabled and we provided higled Internet access services to
approximately 2.4 million customers. During 200@ added approximately 158,000 high-speed Inteastomers.

We offer a range of data services to businesseg,distance carriers, wireless carriers and CLEQsr special access data service consists
of providing dedicated circuits connecting otherieas’ networks to their customers’ locations, eléss carriers’ cell towers to mobile switching
centers, or business customers to our networkhoditjh the traffic handled through special accesitittas may include voice as well as data, we
report revenues associated with special accesatasealenue



In late 2005, we began providing switched tdigielevision service through our own facilitiesa limited number of our operating
markets. Currently, we provide these servicesa@iosse, Wisconsin; Columbia, Missouri; Jeffersdy, ®lissouri; Las Vegas, Nevada and Fort
Myers, Florida. The access lines that we senthése markets represent less than 20% of ouraotass lines at December 31, 2010. We incur a
sizable amount of start-up costs when we launctswitched digital television service to new markéefge expect to launch this service to
additional markets in the near future. Shoulddhstomer acceptance rate not meet expected lewtie gtart-up costs exceed our current
projections, our results of operations may be naoheersely impacted in the future than our currepeetations.

Network access We derive our network access revenues primanilgnf(i) providing wholesale services to variousrieas and customers
in connection with the use of our facilities toginate and terminate their interstate and intrastatce transmissions; (ii) receiving universal
support funds which allows us to recover a portbour costs under federal and state cost recaweghanisms (as described further below under
the heading “Regulation and Competition Relatingnttumbent Local Exchange Operations”), (iii) redeg reciprocal compensation from
CLECs and wireless service providers for termirgathreir calls on our networks and (iv) offeringteém network facilities and related services to
CLECs. Our revenues for switched access servigpsrdl primarily on the level of call volumes.
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Substantially all of our interstate network acces®nues are based on tariffed access chargesipessby the FCC. Certain of our
intrastate network access revenues are derivedghraccess charges that we bill to intrastate thstgnce carriers and other LEC customers.
Such intrastate network access charges are badediffed access charges, which are subject te ségfulatory commission approval.
Additionally, certain of our intrastate network ass revenues, along with intrastate and intra-LAIécal Access and Transport Areas) long
distance revenues, are derived through revenuighamrangements with other LECs.

Pursuant to the Telecommunications Act of 1996pifer certain network facilities to CLEC’s on a aés or unbundled basis and allow
them to collocate certain of their equipment in central offices. The FCC sets general guidelfoegricing of resale, unbundled network
elements and collocation agreements, while the séaulatory authorities approve the actual pratesged.

Other. We derive our “other revenues” principally by gioviding fiber transport, CLEC and security moniihg services, (ii) leasing,
selling, installing and maintaining customer presrtislecommunications equipment and wiring, (iipyading payphone services primarily within
our local service territories and at various statd county correctional facilities around the cownfiv) participating in the publication of local
telephone directories, which allows us to shaneugnues generated by the sale of yellow pageelated advertising to businesses, (v) providing
network database services and (vi) offering our sewices described below under the heading “Rdemduct Developments”. We also provide
printing, direct mail services and cable televissemvices.

We sell fiber capacity to other carriers and busses over a network that encompassed, at Decerhp2®B0, approximately 13,900 miles
of fiber in the central United States. We beganfilner transport business during 2001 and expaiitdggdacquiring various fiber transport assets
in 2003 and 2007, which enabled us to expand ber fietwork business and further reduce our rediamcthird-party transport providers.

During 2008, we paid an aggregate of approximé®&K9 million for 69 licenses in the FCC’s auctidri760 megahertz wireless
spectrum. Our plan has been to use the spectral@vielop wireless voice and data service capadsliti our markets, built upon LTE (Long-
Term Evolution) technology. The LTE network deptognt plans of larger wireless carriers are drivimgst vendor activity, including the
availability of handsets and other end-user deviddserefore, we are monitoring their deploymeffore$ to help shape our plans for moving
forward.

From time to time, we also make investments in otoenmunications companies.

For further information on regulatory, technolodiand competitive changes that could impact oueneres, see “Regulation and
Competition” under this Item 1 below and “Risk Fastand Cautionary Statements” under Item 1A belBar more information on the financial
contributions of our various services, see Itenf this annual report.
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Recent Product Developments

In late 2010, we signed an agency agreement wiRHTQITV that allows us to offer its satellite teléwois service to our residential custon
throughout our 33-state service area. Between 28@39ate 2010, we had a similar arrangement wiBHDNetwork Corporation to offer similar
services.

Pursuant to a five-year agency agreementMgttizon Wireless entered into in late 2010, we ptamarket, sell and bill for Verizon
wireless voice services under its brand name, pifyn® customers who buy these services as paatlmindle including one or more of our other
products and services. Subject to several exagptige are prohibited under the agreement frome(i)ng any other wireless services in Verizon
Wireless’ markets on behalf of a third party angddghgaging in certain other competitive activities

Federal Financing Programs
Some of our telephone subsidiaries receive long-ferancing from the Rural Utilities Service, a ésdl agency that has historically

provided long-term financing to telephone companielatively attractive interest rates. For &ddal information regarding our financings, see
our consolidated financial statements includedeéml8 herein.



Sales and Marketing

Following our acquisition of Embarqg on July 1, 200& began using the trade name “CenturyLink.” fdfenally changed our legal name
to “CenturyLink, Inc.” in May 2010 upon approval thfe name change by our shareholders. In additiensatellite television service is offered
on a co-branded basis under the “DIRECTV” namer $itched digital television service offering ishded under the name “PRISM”. The
wireless service that we plan to offer under oweray agreement with Verizon Wireless will be magkietinder the Verizon brand name.
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We maintain local offices in most of the larger plapion centers within our service territories. €8h offices provide sales and customer
support services in the community. We also relyoncall center personnel to promote sales ofisesvthat meet the needs of our
customers. Our strategy is to enhance our comratioits services by offering comprehensive bundiihgervices and deploying new
technologies to build upon the strong reputatiorewgy in our markets and to further enhance custdoyalty.

Our consumer marketing approach emphasizes custonested sales, marketing and service with a lpcesence. We market our
products and services primarily through direct saépresentatives, local retail stores, telemargetind third parties. We support our distribution
with direct mail, bill inserts, newspaper advertgsiwebsite promotions, public relations activie®l sponsorship of community events. Our
business marketing approach includes a commitnoetieliver communications solutions that meet exgsind future business customer needs
through bundles of services and integrated senfiegings, focusing on comprehensive customer comoations solutions for small businesse
large enterprise customers.

Network Architecture

Most of our products and services are providedgusiir telecommunications network, which consistgsamfe and data switches, copper
cables, fibemptic broadband cables and other equipment. Quai kExchange carrier networks also include ceoffale hosts and remote sites,
with advanced digital switches and operating witksed software. Our outside plant consistsanfsport and distribution delivery networks
connecting each of our host central offices toreunote central offices, and ultimately to our custes. As of December 31, 2010, we maintained
over 595,000 miles of copper plant and approxinyat8,000 miles of fiber optic plant in our localolange networks. Our fiber optic cable is the
primary transport technology between our host amdate central offices and interconnection pointhwther incumbent carriers. Most of our
long distance service is provided through resellimangements with other long distance carrierh thie balance being provided directly through
CenturyLink’s own switches and network equipmentll of our satellite television and wireless voiservice is provided by other carriers under
agency agreements.

In our markets, high-speed Interretabled technologies are being deployed to prasigigficant broadband capacity to our customerse
continue to expand and enhance the capabilitiesiohetwork to offer high-speed Internet servicentwre customers. At the end of 2010,
approximately 92% of our access lines were capafybeoviding high-speed Internet service to ourtomers.

We also maintain networks in connection with pravigfiber transport and CLEC services.

Rapid and significant changes in technology aresetqa in the communications industry. Our futurecgess will depend, in part, on our
ability to anticipate and adapt to technologicamges.

Regulation and Competition Relating to Incumbent Laal Exchange Operations

General. Traditionally, LECs operated as regulated monopdiiaving the exclusive right and responsibilitptovide local telephone
services in their franchised service territori€nsequently, most of our intrastate telephoneaijmers have been regulated extensively by va
state regulatory agencies (generally called puddiwice commissions or public utility commissioagjl our interstate operations have been
regulated by the FCC under the Communications A@®84. As we discuss in greater detail belowspgs of the Telecommunications Act of
1996, coupled with state legislative and regulatoityatives and technological changes, fundaméntdtered the telephone industry by generally
reducing the regulation of ILECs and creating astamitial increase in the number of competitors.amecipate that these trends toward reduced
regulation and increased competition will continue.
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The following description discusses some of theamisdustry regulations that affect our traditiotelephone operations, but numerous
other regulations not discussed below could algmirthus. Some legislation and regulations areeatisr the subject of judicial proceedings,
legislative hearings and administrative proceedimbich could substantially change the manner inclwlthe communications industry operates
and the amount of revenue we receive for our sesvidNeither the outcome of these proceedingsthedr potential impact on us, can be predicted
at this time. The impact of regulatory changethincommunications industry could have a substadntigact on our operations. See Item 1A of
this annual report below.

State regulation In recent years, most states have substantediyced their regulation of ILECs. Nonethelesstestegulatory
commissions generally continue to regulate thellseevice rates and intrastate access chargess@#dl.and continue to grant and revoke
certifications authorizing companies to provide coumications services. State commissions tradilipmegulated pricing through “rate of return”
regulation that focused on authorized levels ohieais by LECs. Only a few states (representingallsportion of our access lines) continue to
regulate us in this manner. In most of our statesare generally regulated under various formetefnative regulation that typically limit our
ability to increase rates for local services, lalieve us from the requirement to meet certainiagatests. In a few states, we have recently
gained pricing freedom for the majority of retagices except for the most basic of services, sscstandzlone basic residential service. In n
of the states in which we operate, we have gaimiethg flexibility for certain enhanced calling séres, such as caller identification, and for
bundled services that include local voice serviState commissions periodically conduct proceedingsview the rates that we charge other
telecommunications providers for using our netwarrkeselling our service, and those proceedinggesuit in reductions in our revenu



As an ILEC, we generally face “carrier of last i@sobligations which include an ongoing requirerhemprovide service to all prospective
and current customers in our service territories wdguest service and are willing to pay ratesqguitesd in our tariffs. In competitively-bid
situations, such as newly-constructed housing dgveénts or multi-tenant dwellings, this may constita competitive disadvantage to us if
competitors can choose to focus on low-risk prbfgacustomers and withhold service from high-riglprofitable customers. Strict adherence to
carrier of last resort requirements may force usotastruct facilities with a low likelihood of pdisie economic return. In certain cases, we seek to
mitigate these risks by receiving regulatory appide use less costly alternative technologiesh siscfixed wireless, or by sharing network
construction costs with our customers. In addjtefew of our states provide relief from thesdgdtions under certain specific circumstances,
and in certain areas our costs to build and maimtatwork infrastructure are partially offset bypeents from universal service programs.
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We are responding to carrier complaints, lagjisn or generic investigations regarding ourastate switched access rate levels in
several of our states. In particular, certain ldiggance providers have begun to dispute existitegcarrier compensation rates payable to us and
other ILECs with respect to VolP traffic or to re@uto pay such rates, based on the contentiomattifiéd switched access charges should not
apply to VolP originated and terminated trafficlthdugh outcomes cannot be determined at this timeehelieve our intrastate switched access
rate levels are appropriate and we plan to vigdyodsfend them. If we are required to reduce otrastate switched access rates as a result of an
of these initiatives, we will seek to recover dagd switched access revenues from state univaasate funds or other services. However, the
amount of such recovery, if any, is not assured.

Under state law, our telephone operating subseliare typically governed by laws and regulatitvas (i) regulate the purchase and sale of
LECs, (ii) prescribe depreciation rates and cerg@icounting procedures, (iii) require LECs to pdavservice under publicly-filed tariffs setting
forth the terms, conditions and prices of regulaedices, (iv) limit LECs’ ability to borrow andtblish asset liens (v) regulate transactions
between LECs and their affiliates, and (vi) impwaeous other service standards.

For a discussion of legislative, regulatory andhtextogical changes that have introduced competitiomthe local exchange industry, see
“Developments Affecting Competition.”

Federal regulation. Our telephone subsidiaries are required to comwily the Communications Act of 1934, which reqgsites to offer
services at just and reasonable rates and on seonirdinatory terms, as well as the Telecommunicatiact of 1996, which amended the
Communications Act to promote competition.

The FCC regulates interstate services provideduoytedephone subsidiaries primarily by regulating interstate access charges that we bill
to long distance companies, other communicationgpemies and end users for use of our network imection with the origination and
termination of interstate voice and data transmoissi Additionally, the FCC has prescribed certaies and regulations for telephone companies,
including a uniform system of accounts and rulgmarding the separation of costs between jurisdistiand, ultimately, between interstate
services. In addition, the FCC has responsibiititymaintaining and administering the federal Un$& Service Fund, or USF. LECs must obtain
FCC approval to use certain radio frequenciesp erainsfer control of any such licenses. The F&@ins the right to revoke these licenses if a
carrier materially violates relevant legal requiemnts.

The FCC requires price-cap regulation of interstateess rates for the Regional Bell Operating Carigsaand permits it for all other
LECs. Under price-cap regulation, limits imposedaotompany'’s interstate rates are adjusted pegabgio reflect inflation, productivity
improvement and changes in certain non-controllabkts. On July 1, 2009, we converted substayt@lliof our remaining rate-of-return study
areas to price cap regulation. In addition, altha&f properties we acquired from Embarq operateupdce- cap regulation.

The FCC is currently reviewing the rates and teamder which ILECs provide special access serviddge FCC is also reviewing requests
by some other carriers to order reductions in sorradl ILECS’ rates for special access servicass Uincertain whether or how the FCC might
order changes in how special access services guéated, or in the rates ILECs are able to chaogéhfem. If the FCC were to adopt significant
changes in regulations affecting special accessceasr, the proceeding could have an impact on oawigion and pricing of special access
services.
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Beginning in 2003, the FCC initiated a series afdor intercarrier compensation proceedings desitmetkate a uniform mechanism to be
used by the entire telecommunications industrnpfyments between carriers originating, terminatorgzarrying telecommunications traffic. In
connection therewith, the FCC has received inteilmacompensation proposals from several industoyigs, and solicited public comments on a
variety of topics related to access charges amddatrier compensation. Most recently, on Febr8a3011, the FCC sought comments from the
public on proposals designed to lower intercac@mpensation rates. The ultimate outcome of th€'s@tercarrier compensation proceedings
could change the way we receive compensation feoml remit compensation to, other carriers, ourwes®t customers and the USF. As discussec
further in Item 1A of this annual report, thesemfs could substantially reduce the amount of reeenve receive with respect to various
services.

As part of the American Recovery and Reinvestrdentof 2009 (the “Recovery Act”), in early 2010tk CC released its National
Broadband Plan, which is the FCC’s framework toad@y a comprehensive plan over the next decaderé@dband deployment, intercarrier
compensation reform and regulatory reform initiesisuch as reformation of the USF high cost sugpod. As originally proposed, the Plan is
likely to reduce our USF support and network accegenues over a reasonable transition periodceSieleasing the Plan, the FCC has
undertaken various studies and solicited publicirgm a variety of issues, including its proposaldplace the current legacy USF high cost
support fund with a new fund to support the prauisof broadband services in areas that are unsenedderserved. Our markets that meet the
unserved or underserved criteria may be recipiehtsSF to advance broadband deployment. The Blarbiueprint at this time and is subjec



change as a result of public input, Congressioct#bm or further regulatory action. Given the rilaly early stages of the FCC’s
proceedings, we cannot predict the ultimate outcnarecan we be assured that such Plan will not hawaterial adverse effect on us or our
industry in the future.

The Recovery Act also includes certain broadbaitfives that are intended to accelerate broadla@pioyment across the United States.
The Recovery Act approved $7.2 billion in fundimy broadband stimulus projects across the UnitateSto be administered by two
governmental agencies. The programs implementetétwo agencies are expected to provide gramtdcams to applicants for construction of
certain broadband infrastructure, provision of @i@rbroadband services, and support of certaindiba@ad adoption initiatives. This program has
attracted a wide range of applicants includingestatnunicipalities, start-up companies and consodi We have not applied for funding under
the Recovery Act programs. The participation difeotparties in these programs could increase catigpein selected areas, which may increase
our marketing costs and decrease our revenuess$e freas. We cannot at this time estimate thadttpese programs may have on our
operations.
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For several years, we have been working with otheriers to develop proposals that would advanéeesusal broadband deployment while
reforming intercarrier compensation and universavise funding at the same time and we plan toinaatthese efforts. We cannot predict what
part, if any, of these proposals will ultimately &gopted.

Our operations and those of all communications&aralso may be impacted by legislation and regramposing new or greater
obligations on us. The most likely areas of impaclude regulations or laws related to bolstetimgneland security, increasing disaster recovery
requirements, minimizing environmental impacts,arting privacy, or addressing other issues thaa@nhpur business, including the
Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Aot} laws governing local number portability andtooeer proprietary network information
requirements. These laws and regulations may asuseincur additional costs and could impactahility to compete effectively.

Universal service support fund and related matterd number of our telephone subsidiaries recoveoréion of their costs from the fede
USF and from similar state “universal support” magisms, which receive their funding from fees cledrtp interexchange carriers and
LECs. Disbursements from these programs tradiliphave focused principally on allowing LECs seryismall communities and rural areas to
provide communications services on terms and aepnieasonably comparable to those available ianuabeas. However, use of universal sel
funding for other social policy goals continuegitow and to exert pressure on the size of the &mithe contribution rate.

During 2010, we received approximately $430.6 will(which includes a full year of receipts relate@ur Embarq properties acquired
July 1, 2009) of receipts from federal and state@ensal service programs as compared to $384.9omiih 2009 (which only includes a half year
of receipts related to our Embarq properties). hSarmounts represented approximately 6.1% and 7f@86r®2010 and 2009 total operating
revenues, respectively. A significant portion af payments have varied over time based on ouageerost to serve customers compared to
national cost averages. Under the USF High Cosplmrogram, which is the USF’s principal prograanfrwhich we received $109.3 million in
2010, our payments from the USF will decrease fifonal average costs per loop increase at a raggrthan our average cost per
loop. Excluding the effects of the additional sienths of receipts recorded in 2010 as compar@8@d due to the July 1, 2009 Embarq
acquisition, our revenues from the USF High Cosip.program decreased in 2010 compared to 2009anWapate that such revenues will
continue to decline in 2011. See Items 1A and thigfannual report for more information.

Federal USF programs have undergone substantinfjesasince 1997, and are expected to experience changes in the coming
years. Since May 2001, the FCC has administesegkisting universal service support programs dioalrtelephone companies based on
embedded, or historical, costs. The FCC, in A20i0, proposed to replace the USF with a broadb@ondnect America” fund that would
modernize the current “voice only” funding mechamiand direct funding away from local voice serviteadvance broadband deployment in
areas unserved or underserved by broadband comatioms, and in February 2011 sought public commeagarding creating this new
broadband fund.
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Universal service funds available to ILECs are ently available to local competitors that (i) cBrtihey will serve all customers in a study
area, (ii) offer nine core services, and (iii) dfyaas an “eligible telecommunications carrier.”irdless and other competitive service providers
continue to seek to qualify to receive USF fundsaigh funding for these carriers is undergoingnmt This trend, coupled with changes in
usage of telecommunications services, has placesissbn the funding mechanism of the USF, whiculigect to annual caps on
disbursements. As a result of these developmtres is no assurance that sufficient funds wilklailable to provide funding to all eligible
telecommunications carriers.

Over the past few years, each of the FCC, &l Service Administrative Company (“USAC”) areftain Congressional committees
has initiated wide-ranging reviews of the admirigtn of the federal USF. As part of this process, along with a number of other USF
recipients, have undergone a number of USF audi@thave also received requests for information fthenFCC'’s Office of Inspector General
(“OIG”) and Congressional committees. In additionJuly 2008 we received a subpoena from the @ifuesting a broad range of information
regarding our depreciation rates and methodolagiiese 2000, and in July 2009 we received a secobgogna requesting information about our
participation in the Eate program for Wisconsin schools and librariessi2004. The OIG has not identified to us anyifigassues with respe
to our participation in the USF program and all WSAudits are finalized with no material issued régmbregarding our participation in the USF
program. During 2010, USAC moved from the audigeiss to a Payment Quality Assessment (“PQA”) mnogrWe continue to receive and
respond to these PQAs and to date no materialdssame been identified. While we believe our pgstition is in compliance with FCC rules and
in accordance with accepted industry practicescavaot predict with certainty the timing or outcoafdhese various reviews.

In 2004, the FCC mandated changes in the admiti@straf the universal service programs that templgrauspended the disbursement of
funds under the U¢'s E-rate program (for service to Schools and Librarieal, more significantly, created uncertainty rdgay whether thes



administrative changes could similarly delay th&bdrsement of funds to ILECs from the Universalvi®erHigh Cost Loop support
program. Congress has passed bills in recent geaming successive one-year exemptions frometleral law that impacted therkte program
including a bill extending the exemption throughcBmber 31, 2011. Although we expect funding frbie program to continue, we cannot
assure you that the lack of a definitive resolutiéhis issue will not delay or impede the dislemment of funds in the future.

Several states in which we operate have establigteddown universal service programs. In 2010 reeeived support totaling
approximately $118.9 million from various stateuersal service programs (or approximately 27.6%uwftotal federal and state support
payments), with the largest amounts received ire$ekouisiana and Kansas. Several states havethegaplemented and expanded state
universal service programs and several are cuyrestiewing their state universal service fund parmgs, which could change the support we
receive.
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Some of our telephone subsidiaries operate insstelbere traditional cost recovery mechanisms, dinlyirate structures, are under
evaluation or have been modified. See “ State Retigml.” There can be no assurance that thesesstaltecontinue to provide for cost recovery at
current levels.

Developments affecting competitianOver the past decade, fundamental technologieglilatory and legislative changes have
significantly impacted the communications industird we expect these changes will continue. Pifiynas a result of regulatory and
technological changes, competition has been intredand encouraged in each sector of the commianisahdustry in recent years. As a result,
we increasingly face competition from other comneation service providers, as further describedveelo

Wireless telephone services increasingly constagignificant source of competition with ILEC siees, especially since wireless carriers
have begun to compete effectively on the basigioépvith more traditional telephone services. aAgsult, some customers have chosen to
completely forego use of traditional wireline pha®vice and instead rely solely on wireless serfic voice services. This trend is more
pronounced among residential customers, which cis@Bi7% of our access line customers. We antieighas trend will continue, particularly if
wireless service providers continue to expand tb@herage areas, reduce their rates, improve thltyof their services, and offer enhanced new
services. Substantially all of our access lingaugrs are currently capable of receiving wirelmwices from at least one competitive service
provider. We believe that our new agency agreeméhtVerizon Wireless may assist us in retainingtomers by enabling us to offer Verizon
Wireless service as part of our service bundleschiological and regulatory developments in wiekErvices, personal communications
services, digital microwave, satellite, coaxialleaffiber optics, local multipoint distribution séces, WiFi, and other wired and wireless
technologies are expected to further permit theeliment of alternatives to traditional landlinevéees. Moreover, the growing prevalence of
electronic mail, text messaging, social networkiggg similar digital communications continues tduee the demand for traditional landline vc
services.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996, which obligdtgsCs to permit competitors to interconnect tHailities to the ILECS network an
to take various other steps that are designedamgte competition, imposes several duties on arClift receives a specific request from ano
entity which seeks to connect with or provide sasiusing the ILEC’s network. In addition, eacE@.is obligated to (i) negotiate
interconnection agreements in good faith, (ii) pdevnondiscriminatory “unbundled” access to allextp of the ILEC’s network, (iii) offer resale
of its telecommunications services at wholesalesrand (iv) permit competitors, on terms and camubt (including rates) that are just, reasonable
and nondiscriminatory, to collocate their physiglant on the ILEC’s property, or provide virtualllogation if physical collocation is not
practicable. Current FCC rules require ILECs @skea network element only in those situations hempeting carriers genuinely would be
impaired without access to such network elememis vehere the unbundling would not interfere with ttevelopment of facilities-based
competition.
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As a result of these regulatory, consumer and @olgical developments, ILECs also face competifiom CLECs, particularly in densely
populated areas. CLECs provide competing sentfoesigh reselling the ILECs’ local services, thrbugse of the ILECs’ unbundled network
elements or through their own facilities.

As noted above, wireless and other competitiveisesyproviders have been increasingly aggressigeeafing and obtaining USF support
funds. This support is likely to encourage addiglocompetitors to enter our high-cost service sarea

Technological developments have led to the devedoprof new services that compete with traditioh&lC services. Technological
improvements have enabled cable television compaaiprovide traditional circuit-switched teleph@evice over their cable networks, and
several national cable companies have aggresgiesued this opportunity. As of December 31, 2@id pelieve that approximately 70% of our
access lines faced competition from cable voiceroffs.

Improvements in the quality of VolP service hawe $everal cable, Internet, data and other commtiaisacompanies, as well as start-up
companies, to substantially increase their offexio§VolP service to business and residential ensts. VolP providers frequently offer features
that cannot readily be provided by traditional ILE£&hd may price their services at or below thogmgrcurrently charged for traditional local and
long distance telephone services for several reasoduding lower operating costs and regulatalyamtages. Although over the past several
years the FCC has increasingly subjected portibMotP operations to federal regulation, VoIP seed currently operate under fewer regulatory
constraints than LEC services. For all these megsge cannot assure you that VolP providers waillsuccessfully compete for our customers.

In December 2010, the FCC adopted an order impdsieigvork neutrality” rules that it believes wiltgserve the openness of the
Internet. The rules apply to all providers of diite broadband Internet access services, andlgssar extent, providers of wireless broadband
Internet access services. The rules do not appgbydviders of applications, content or other sssi The order provides that (i) wireli



broadband providers may not block lawful traffippéications, services or non-harmful devices, stibije reasonable network management
practices, (ii) wireless broadband providers matylhock lawful websites and competing voice anceaidelephony services, subject to reasonable
network management practices, (iii) wireline broalth providers may not engage in “unreasonableidigtation,” and (iv) all wireline or
wireless broadband providers must disclose thewaord management practices, performance and coniahéeems. The order indicates that
broadband providers can price their services baragsage, subject to continued FCC oversight. éssy the order is not overturned, amended
or stayed by the U.S. Congress or the courts, Weveethe impact of the order on us may dependaith @0 how the order is implemented by the
FCC and interpreted by the courts.
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Our industry has witnessed an increase in displiest the intercarrier compensation rules appleédbarious categories of traffic
exchanged between carriers. These disputes ajecttdreview by the FCC, state commissions adéra courts. Rulings in such proceedings,
whether or not we are a party, may influence oynosxre to disputes about our wholesale chargesaaitms against us for prior wholesale
billings. We cannot assure you that regulatorgaarrt rulings on such issues will not have a matexilverse effect on us or our industry.

Similar to us, many cable, technology or other camitations companies that previously offered atlahirange of services are now
offering diversified bundles of services, eithemotigh their own networks, reselling arrangementgiot ventures. As such, a growing number of
companies are competing to serve the communicatieeds of the same customer base. Such actiwitiiesontinue to place downward pressure
on the demand for our access lines and the prifirmgir services.

In addition to facing direct competition from thgs@viders described above, ILECs increasingly famapetition from alternate
communication systems constructed by long distaaceers, large customers or alternative accesdarsn These systems are capable of
originating or terminating calls without use of & Cs’ networks or switching services. Other pui@ sources of competition include non-
carrier systems that are capable of bypassing ILIBCal networks, either partially or completelfprough various means, including the provision
of special access or independent switching sendndshe concentration of telecommunications tadfi a few of the ILECs’ access lines. We
anticipate that all these trends will continue &at to decreased use of our networks.

Significant competitive factors in the local telgple industry include pricing, packaging of serviaad features, quality and convenienc
service and meeting customer needs such as sietpbfiling and timely response to service calls.

As the telephone industry increasingly experieromaspetition, the size and resources of each regpemtmpetitor may increasingly
influence its prospects. Some companies currg@mtyiding or planning to provide competitive comraation services have substantially greater
financial and marketing resources than we do or anger or more diverse networks than ours. Iritaag many of them are not subject to the
same regulatory constraints we are. Consequesttiye competitors may be able to charge lower pfaebeir products and services, develop
and expand their communications and network infoastire more quickly, adapt more swiftly to neweonerging technologies and changes in
customer requirements and devote greater resotard¢be marketing and sale of their products andises than we can.

Competition can harm us by causing us to lose ouests, or by causing us to lower prices or increasecapital or operating expenses to
retain customers. Competing communications sesyi&ech as wireless, VolP, electronic mail, texssaging and optional calling services, can
also reduce usage of our network and thereby deemar network access revenues. Competition cancaluse customers to reduce either usage
of our services or switch to less profitable seggicand could impede our ability to diversify imi@w lines of business dominated by incumbent
providers.
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We anticipate that the traditional operations ofdsBwill continue to be impacted by changes in ratjoh, technology, and consumer
preferences affecting the ability of LECs to attraied retain customers and the capability of wagleompanies, CLECs, cable television
companies, VolP providers, electric utilities artdess to provide competitive LEC services. Comjmmtitelating to traditional LEC services has
thus far affected large urban areas to a greatenethan less dense areas.

Exclusive of acquisitions, we expect our operatexgenues in 2011 to decline as we continue to éxpes downward pressure primarily
due to continued access line losses, reduced waiveervice funding and lower network access reeenuWe expect such declines to be partially
offset primarily due to increased demand for oghhkspeed Internet service offering and specialscservices.

Regulation and Competition Relating to Other Operaions

Long Distance Operations We offer intra-LATA, intrastate and interstatamdj distance voice services. State public semaremissions
generally regulate intra-LATA toll calls within treame LATA and inter-LATA toll calls between difeart LATAs located in the same
state. Federal regulators have jurisdiction omtarstate toll calls. Recent state regulatory gearhave increased competition to provide intra-
LATA toll services in our local exchange marke@ompetition for intrastate and interstate longatise services has been intense for several
years, and focuses primarily on price and pricilegng, and secondarily on customer service, reitstihd communications quality. Our principal
competitors for providing long distance servicedude wireless companies offering attractively-pdcalling plans, as well as large national
carriers, regional phone companies, cable compameéslial-around resellers. Technological sultstitis, including VolP, text messaging and
electronic mail, have further reduced demand faditional long distance voice services. To cousateth competition, we now offer unlimited
long distance calling plans.

Data Operations In connection with our data business, we fagepetition from Internet service providers, satelibmpanies and cable
companies which use wired or wireless technoloiaxffer high-speed broadband services. As of Bdwsr 31, 2010, we believe approximately
85% of our local exchange markets were overlapyechble systems offering data services competitiitle ours. Many of these competitors
offer content or other features that we cannot matdMoreover, many of these providers have tradilly been subject to less rigorous regula



scrutiny than our subsidiaries, a trend that wasntly reaffirmed when the FCC issued in Decemi®di02'network neutrality” rules that
regulate mobile broadband operators less rigorahsiy our wireline providers. Additionally, thedfral broadband stimulus programs discussed
above could result in greater competition in sofeur markets. During 2006, all of CenturyLink’'scaREmbarq’s operating companies elected to
either deregulate or detariff their high-speedrmé¢ services, which decreased regulatory oversigitincreased our retail pricing flexibility.
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Fiber Transport Operations When our fiber transport networks are used twigle intrastate telecommunications services, wsetmu
comply with state requirements for telecommuniggiatilities, including state tariffing requirementTo the extent our facilities are used to
provide interstate communications, we are subgéderal regulation as a non-dominant commone&ar®©ur primary competitors in the fiber
transport industry are from other communicationsmpanies, some of whom operate networks and haveness much larger than ours. Over
last few years, several large communications comegamve merged and have implemented strategtearsfer a significant portion of their
voice and data traffic from our fiber network t@ihnetworks. We expect this trend to continue@apanies seek opportunities to reduce their
transport-related costs. In addition, new IP-basadices may enable new entrants to transportadqteces lower than we currently offer.

CLEC Operations. Competitive local exchange carriers are sulifecertain reporting and other regulatory requireteémposed by the
FCC and state public service commissions, althahghiegree of regulation is much less substafi#al that imposed on ILECs operating in the
same markets. Local governments also frequendglyire competitive local exchange carriers to obliaenses or franchises regulating the use of
rights-ofway necessary to install and operate their netwohk®ach of our limited number of CLEC markets, face competition from the ILE!
which traditionally has long-standing relationshipih its customers. Over time, we may also famegetition from one or more other CLECs, or
from other communications providers who can proidmparable services.

Other Operations Similar to our CLEC business, we may be requicedbtain licenses or franchises to enter new starfor our switche
digital television and wireless broadband serviedsch could delay our rollout of these offering3oth the video and wireless broadband mar
have been highly competitive in recent years. driipular, television service providers have relgenad to compete against Internet video
services, some of which are free. This developroeuld constrain our ability to attract and retpatying customers for our switched digital
television service offering. In reselling Veriz@ireless services, we compete with national anéreg wireless carriers, as well as other sales
agents and resellers.

Environmental Compliance

As discussed in greater detail in Item 3 of thisyAal Report on Form 10-K, several decades ago baersubsidiaries acquired entities
that may have owned or operated seven former “neatuifed gas” plant sites that may require envirartaleemediation. From time to time we
may incur other environmental compliance and reatémh expenses, mainly resulting from the ownerstipther prior industrial sites or the
operation of vehicle fleets or power supplies for communications equipment. Although we cannot¢sssvith certainty the impact of any future
compliance and remediation obligations, we do mdiele that future environmental compliance ande@iation expenditures will have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or resolt operations.
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Patents, Trademarks and Licenses

We own several patents, patent applications, tnatees, service marks and trademarks in the U@8udimg our “CenturyLink” and
“PRISM” brand names. Our services often use ttallectual property of others, including licensedftware. We occasionally license our
intellectual property to others.

We have incurred claims in the past, and may irfuhge incur claims alleging that we infringe dwetintellectual property of others. Thi
claims can be time-consuming and costly to deferidivert management resources. If these claimsaccessful, we could be forced to pay
significant damages or stop selling certain prosiactservices.

Seasonality

Overall, our business is not significantly impacbgdseasonality. However, in our Florida markets typically experience increased
demand for new service orders in the late fall hernd a decline in access lines in the early gprianths due to seasonal population trends. In
certain of our other markets servicing collegesrversities, we experience increased demand fosewices while school is in
session. Additionally, from time to time weathetated problems have resulted in increased coséeptir our network and respond to service
calls in some of our markets. The amount and gnahthe costs are subject to the weather patterasy given year, but have generally been
highest during the third quarter and have beerne@l damage from severe storms, including hurgsatropical storms and tornadoes in our
markets along the lower Atlantic and Gulf of Meximmastlines.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS OR MATTERS

In recent years, our board of directors has appte@gious stock repurchase programs under whichave repurchased approximately
$401.0 million, $186.7 million, $437.5 million, K8 billion and $503.9 million of our shares undeparate repurchase programs approved in
February 2004, February 2005, May 2005, Februa®g2thd August 2007, respectively. For additionfdrimation, see “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” included in Item 7 of this annual report

In June 2008, our board of directors increasedjaarterly cash dividend rate from $.0675 to $.70gbare and in February 2010 our board
further increased our quarterly dividend to $.726 ghare. See “Risk Factors” below for additianfdrmation regarding our current dividend
practice.
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For additional information concerning our businasd properties, see Items 2 and 7 elsewhere hamdthe Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes 2, 3, 5, 6 and 18 thereforsletin Iltem 8 elsewhere herein.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

RISK FACTORS AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS
Risk Factors

Any of the following risks could materially and aatgely affect our business, financial conditiorsutes of operations, liquidity or
prospects. The risks described below are nottiherisks facing us. Please be aware that additideks and uncertainties not currently know
or that we currently deem to be immaterial coukbahaterially and adversely affect our businessaijoms.

Risks Related to Our Busine:

If we continue to experience access line lossesilsinto the past several years, our revenues, eags and cash flows may be adversely
impacted.

Our business generates a substantial portion ofvsnues by delivering voice and data services aveess lines. We have experienced
substantial access line losses over the past $gaenas due to a number of factors, including iasexl competition and wireless and broadband
substitution. We expect to continue to experiesmess line losses in our markets for the foresedature. Our inability to retain access lines
could adversely impact our revenues, earnings asl ffow from operations.

We face competition, which we expect to intensifidavhich may reduce market share and lower profits.

As a result of various technological, regulatorg ather changes, the telecommunications industsyoleaome increasingly
competitive. We face competition from (i) wireldstephone services, which is expected to incraaseireless providers continue to expand and
improve their network coverage and offer enhanesdices, (ii) cable television operators, (iii) OCE, (iv) VolP and broadband service
providers, (v) alternative networks or non-carggstems designed to reduce demand for our switdrirgcess services and (vi) resellers, sales
agents and facilitiebased providers that either use their own networksase parts of our networks. Over time, we ekpeface additional loci
exchange competition from electric utilities, skiielcommunications providers and municipalitidhe recent proliferation of companies offering
integrated service offerings has intensified coripetin Internet, long distance and data servioeskets, and we expect that competition will
further intensify in these markets.
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Our competitive position could be weakened in thtare by strategic alliances or consolidation wittiie communications industry or the
development of new technologies. Our ability to pete successfully will depend on how well we markat products and services and on our
ability to anticipate and respond to various coritietand technological factors affecting the inlysincluding changes in regulation (which v
affect us differently from our competitors), chasge consumer preferences or demographics, andyekan the product offerings or pricing
strategies of our competitors.

Some of our current and potential competitors ff@roa more comprehensive range of communicatioadyxrts and services, (i) have
market presence, engineering and technical capabjland financial and other resources substingjedater than ours, (iii) own larger and more
diverse networks, (iv) conduct operations or raegital at a lower cost than us, (v) are subjetde regulation, (vi) offer greater online content
services or (vii) have substantially stronger braathes. Consequently, these competitors may berleeftiipped to charge lower prices for their
products and services, to provide more attractfferiogs, to develop and expand their communicatiand network infrastructures more quickly,
to adapt more swiftly to new or emerging technatsgind changes in customer requirements, and tdelgreater resources to the marketing and
sale of their products and services.

Competition could adversely impact us in severafsyincluding (i) the loss of customers and masketre, (ii) the possibility of customers
reducing their usage of our services or shiftintess profitable services, (iii) reduced traffic mmr networks, (iv) our need to expend substantial
time or money on new capital improvement proje@tspur need to lower prices or increase markegingenses to remain competitive and (vi)
inability to diversify by successfully offering neggvoducts or services.

Changes in technology could harm us.

The communications industry is experiencing sigaifit technological changes, particularly in theaaref VolP, data and video
transmission and electronic and wireless commuioicst The growing prevalence of electronic mad ather non-voice communications
continues to reduce demand for many of our prodaitsservices. Other changes in technology caddlrin the development of additional
products or services that compete with or dispthose offered by ILECs, or that enable currentamstrs to reduce or bypass use of our
networks. Some of our competitors may enjoy neltveatvantages that will enable them to provide sewvthat have a greater market acceptance
than ours. Technological change could also requsr® expend capital or other resources in exaessrrently contemplated levels, or to forego
the development or provision of products or sewittet others can provide more efficiently. Wergarpredict with certainty which technologi
changes will provide the greatest threat to ourpetitive position. We may not be able to obtaimely access to new technology on satisfactory
terms or incorporate new technology into our systéma cost effective manner, or at all. If weraindevelop new products to keep pace with
technological advances, or if such products aremié¢ly embraced by our customers, we could be el impacted



26
We cannot assure you that our diversification effewill be successful.

The telephone industry has recently experienceeching in access lines and intrastate minutes @fwhkich, coupled with the other
changes resulting from competitive, technological eegulatory developments, could materially adelgraffect our core business and future
prospects. As explained in greater detail elsewvirethis Annual Report on Form XQ-our access lines (excluding the effect of actjoiss) have
decreased over the last several years, and we tekpetrend to continue. We have also earnedressork access revenues in recent years d
reductions in access rates and minutes of usadlhadue to the displacement of minutes of useMigless, electronic mail, text messaging,
arbitrage and other optional calling services). hMgbeve that our access rates and minutes of Useontinue to decline, although the magnitude
of such decrease is uncertain.

Recently, we broadened the scope of our servicdlbatby offering satellite television provided byRECTV and wireless voice services
provided by Verizon Wireless. As noted in furtletail below, our reliance on other companies &ed hetworks to provide these services could
constrain our flexibility and limit the profitabili of these new offerings. We also provide faigititbased digital video services to select markets
and may initiate other new service or product afigs in the future. We anticipate that these néferimgs will generate lower profit margins than
many of our traditional services. Moreover, ouwwrg@oduct or service offerings could be constraibgdntellectual property rights held by othe
or could subject us to the risk of infringementrmis brought against us by others. For these amet oeasons, we cannot assure you that our
recent or future diversification efforts will becagssful.

Future deterioration in our financial performanoeld adversely impact our credit ratings, our @istapital and our access to the capital
markets.

Our ability to attract more customers or expand oservices may be constrained.

To partially offset the loss of revenues from daiclg access lines, we have relied over the pagtrabyears upon growth in the numbe
customers subscribing to our long distance, broadlbend enhanced telephone service offerings. Aeea@sing numbers of our existing
potential customers have subscribed to these saraicer the past several years, the growth raderimevenues derived therefrom has slowed.
expect this trend to continue as we increasindiyrate our markets with these services.

Weakness in the economy and capital markets mayeasily affect our future results of operations.

To date, we have not been materially impacted bgkwesses in the credit markets over the past fansybowever, these weaknesses may
negatively impact our operations in the futurevierall borrowing rates increase. In additionhig economy and credit markets continue to rel
weak, it may impact our ability to collect our re@bles. This weakness may also cause our cussoimeeduce or terminate their receipt of
service offerings from us. Economic weakness caldd negatively affect our vendors. We cannotligtevith certainty the impact to us of any
further weakness in the overall economy and creditkets.
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We are also exposed to market risk from chang#seitfiair value of our pension plan assets. Shoutdactual return on plan assets be
significantly lower than our anticipated returny met periodic pension expense and our requireld castribution to our pension plan will increi
future periods. Such events would negatively inhpaic results of operations and cash flow.

We may not be able to continue to grow through atitions.

We have traditionally sought growth largely throwgguisitions of properties similar to those cutiseoperated by us, such as those that
we acquired from Embarg in 2009 and those thatawe fagreed to acquire from Qwest. However, noraase can be given that additional
properties will in the future be available for phase on terms attractive to us, particularly ifthee burdened by regulations, pricing plans or
competitive pressures that are new or differenhftbose historically applicable to our incumberdgarties. Moreover, no assurance can be ¢
that we will be able to arrange additional finamgcon terms acceptable to us or to obtain timelgfadand state governmental approvals on terms
acceptable to us, or at all.

Our future results will suffer if we do not effeately adjust to changes in our business, and wiltther suffer if we do not effectively
manage our expanded operations.

The above-described changes in our industry haaaepla higher premium on marketing, technolog&agjineering and provisioning
skills. Our acquisition of Embarg also signifidgnthanged the composition of our markets and pecbchix, and completion of the pending Qw
merger would result in similar changes. Our futswecess depends, in part, on our ability to netoair staff to acquire or strengthen skills
necessary to address these changes, and, whessaggeo attract and retain new personnel thagsssthese skills.

Following our pending acquisition of Qwest, we ntaytinue to expand our operations through additianquisitions, other strategic
transactions, and new product and service offerisgse of which could involve complex technicalgieeering, and operational challenges. Our
future success depends, in part, upon our abditpanage our expansion opportunities, which pobstantial challenges for us to integrate new
operations into our existing business in an efficend timely manner, to successfully monitor opemations, costs, regulatory compliance and
service quality, and to maintain other necessasrival controls. We cannot assure you that ouaesjon or acquisition opportunities will be
successful, or that we will realize our expectedrafing efficiencies, cost savings, revenue enlrarats, synergies or other benefits.

Our relationships with other communications compas are material to our operations and expose us taumber of risks.



We originate and terminate calls for long distacagiers and other interexchange carriers ovenetworks in exchange for access charges
that represent a significant portion of our revenukthese carriers go bankrupt or experiencetsaltial financial difficulties, or are otherwise
unable to or unwilling to pay our access chargasjmability to timely collect access charges frttrem could have a negative effect on our
business and results of operations.

28

In addition, certain of our operations carry a ffigant amount of voice and data traffic for larg@mmunications companies. As these
larger communications companies consolidate ormcplaeir networks, it is possible that they coulthsfer a significant portion of this traffic
from our fiber network to their networks, which ¢dihave a negative effect on our business andteegstibperations.

We rely on certain reseller and sales agency aeraegts with other companies to provide some o§éneices that we sell to our
customers. If we fail to extend or renegotiatestharrangements as they expire from time to timéthese other companies fail to fulfill their
contractual obligations, we may have difficultyding alternative arrangements. In addition, assalker or sales agent, we do not control the
availability, retail price, design, function, quglireliability, customer service or branding oé#le products and services, nor do we directly ob
all of the marketing and promotion of these produstd services. To the extent that these other abniap make decisions that negatively impact
our ability to market and sell our products and/eess, our business plans and reputation couldebatively impacted.

Network disruptions or system failures could advelsaffect our operating results and financial coitihn.

To be successful, we will need to continue provgdiur customers with a high capacity, reliable aadure network. Some of the risk
our network and infrastructure include:

» breaches of security, including sabotage, tampgedagputer viruses and bre-ins

* power losses or physical damage, whether causéidehyadverse weather conditions (including thdescribed immediately below),
terrorism or otherwis

e capacity limitations
- software and hardware defects or malfunctions,
« other disruptions that are beyond our cont

Disruptions or system failures may cause interoungtiin service or reduced capacity for custom#érservice is not restored in a timely
manner, agreements with our customers or senviégmlatds set by state regulatory commissions cdaligaie us to provide credits or other
remedies. If network security is breached, comfi@e information of our customers or others cobddliost or misappropriated, and we may be
required to expend additional resources modifyiatywork security to remediate vulnerabilities. Tdueurrence of any disruption or system fai
may result in a loss of business, increase expedaasage our reputation, subject us to additioeglilatory scrutiny or expose us to litigation and
possible financial losses, any of which could haweaterial adverse effect on our results of openatand financial condition.
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We face hurricane and other natural disaster riskshich can disrupt our operations and cause us heur substantial additional capite
costs.

A substantial number of our access lines are ldcaté&lorida, Alabama, Louisiana, Texas, North diaeg and South Carolina, and our
operations there are subject to the risks assalcvaith severe tropical storms, hurricanes and @oea, including downed telephone lines, power-
outages, damaged or destroyed property and equtparehwork interruptions.

Although we maintain property and casualty insueaoe our plant (excluding our outside plant) ang mmader certain circumstances be
able to seek recovery of some additional costationcreased rates, only a portion of our addi@osts directly related to such hurricanes and
natural disasters have historically been recoverable cannot predict whether we will continue taabée to obtain insurance for hazard-related
damages or, if obtainable and carried, whetheritisisrance will be adequate to cover our losseadttition, we expect any insurance of this
nature to be subject to substantial deductiblestapdovide for premium adjustments based on clafmy future hazard-related costs and work
interruptions could adversely affect our operatiand our financial condition.

Any failure or inadequacy of our information techrogy infrastructure could harm our business.

The capacity, reliability and security of our imtat information technology hardware and softwafeastructure (including our billing
systems) are important to the operation of ouresurbusiness, which would suffer in the event aftay failures. Likewise, our ability to expand
and update our information technology infrastruetior response to our growth and changing needspsritant to the continued implementatior
our new service offering initiatives. Our inabjliio expand or upgrade our technology infrastriectiould have adverse consequences, which
could include the delayed implementation of newiserofferings, increased acquisition integratiosts, service or billing interruptions, and the
diversion of development resources.

We rely on a limited number of key suppliers andchders to operate our business.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers and eenfbr equipment and services relating to our pétvinfrastructure. Our local
exchange carrier networks consist of central offind remote sites, all with advanced digital swachlf any of these suppliers experie



interruptions or other problems delivering or seing these network components on a timely basispparations could suffer
significantly. To the extent that proprietary taoctlogy of a supplier is an integral component aof metwork, we may have limited flexibility to
purchase key network components from alternatiypléers. In addition, we rely on a limited numleérsoftware vendors to support our business
management systems. In the event it becomes ra@gdssseek alternative suppliers and vendors, &g Ine unable to obtain satisfactory
replacement supplies or services on economicaligi@ive terms, on a timely basis, or at all, whichuld increase costs or cause disruptions in oul
services.
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We may not own or have a license to use all tectogyl that may be necessary to expand our productiifigs, either of which could
adversely affect our business and profitability.

From time to time, we may need to obtain the rightise certain patents or other intellectual priypeom third parties to be able to offer
new products and services. If we cannot licensgtlogrwise obtain rights to use any required tetdgyfrom a third party on reasonable terms,
our ability to offer new products and servicesJuning IP-based offerings, may be restricted, nradee costly or delayed. Our inability to
implement IP-based or other new offerings on a-effstctive basis could impair our ability to sucsfedly meet increasing competition from
companies offering voice or integrated communicetiservices. Our inability to deploy new techn@sgsould also prevent us from successfully
diversifying, modifying or bundling our service effngs and result in accelerated loss of access lmd revenues or otherwise adversely affect
our business and profitability.

Portions of our property, plant and equipment arecited on property owned by third parties.

Over the past few years, certain utilities, coofreea and municipalities in certain of the statesvhich we operate have requested
significant rate increases for attaching our ptartheir facilities. To the extent that these #ediare successful in increasing the amount we pay
for these attachments, our future operating costsnerease.

In addition, we rely on rights-aftay, collocation agreements and other authorizatgranted by governmental bodies and other thirtigs
to locate our cable, conduit and other network apint on their respective properties. If any eSthauthorizations terminate or lapse, our
operations could be adversely affected.

We depend on key members of our senior managemesunt

Our success depends largely on the skills, expegiand performance of a limited number of senificeffs. Competition for senior
management in our industry is intense and we mag hficulty retaining our current senior officess attracting new ones in the event of
terminations or resignations. For a discussiosimilar retention concerns relating to the Embaggger and the pending Qwest merger, please
see the risks described below under the heading8sks Related to our Acquisition of Embarqg on JLJ2009” and “ — Risks Relating to Our
Pending Acquisition of Qwest.”

We could be affected by certain changes in laborttaes.

A substantial number of our employees are memterar@us bargaining units represented by two défe unions. From time to time, our
labor agreements with these unions lapse, and pieatfy negotiate the terms of new agreements. céfmot predict the outcome of these
negotiations. We may be unable to reach new agretsnand union employees may engage in strikek slowdowns or other labor actions,
which could materially disrupt our ability to prald services. In addition, new labor agreementsimagse significant new costs on us, which
could impair our financial condition or resultsagerations in the future. To the extent they cionb@nefit provisions, these agreements also limit
our flexibility to change benefits in responsertdustry or competitive changes. In particular, gbet-employment benefits provided under these
agreements cause us to incur costs not faced by ofayur competitors, which could ultimately hind=rr competitive position.
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Risks Relating to Our Pending Acquisition of Qwe

Our ability to complete the Qwest merger is subjixthe receipt of consents and approvals from gowveent entities, which may impose
conditions that could have an adverse effect onarcould cause us to abandon the merger.

We are unable to complete the merger until we vecapprovals from the FCC and various state govemah entities. In deciding whether
to grant some of these approvals, the relevantrgovental entity will make a determination of wheatt@mong other things, the merger is in the
public interest. Regulatory entities may imposeaie requirements or obligations as conditionstfi@ir approval or in connection with their
review.

The Qwest merger agreement may require us to acoagitions from these regulators that could aclgrnpact the combined company
without us having the right to refuse to closererger on the basis of those regulatory conditidhg can provide no assurance that we will
obtain the necessary approvals or that any reqaaditions will not materially adversely effect falowing the merger. In addition, we can
provide no assurance that these conditions wilkrestlt in the abandonment of the merger.

Failure to complete the Qwest merger could negalvenpact us.

If the merger is not completed, our ongoing busiaesmay be adversely affected and we will be sultijeseveral risks, including t
following:



e breaches of security, including sabotage, tampedomputer viruses and bre-ins

« power losses or physical damage, whether causéidebyadverse weather conditions (including thdescribed immediately below),
terrorism or otherwis

e capacity limitations
» software and hardware defects or malfunctions,
< other disruptions that are beyond our con!
in each case, without realizing any of the benefitsaving the merger completed.

The Qwest merger agreement contains provisions ttatld discourage a potential acquirer of Centurylk or could result in any
proposal being at a lower price than it might otheise be

The merger agreement contains “no shop” provisthasrestrict our ability to solicit, encouragegifaate or discuss thirgharty proposals 1
acquire all or a significant part of CenturyLinKhis and other provisions in the Qwest merger agsesd could discourage a potential acquirer
might have an interest in acquiring all or a siguwifit part of CenturyLink from considering or prepwy that acquisition, or might result in a
potential acquirer proposing to pay a lower prizantit might otherwise have proposed to pay.
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The pendency of the Qwest merger could adverselgcifour business and operations.

In connection with the pending Qwest merger, sofreuo customers or vendors may delay or defer d@tss which could negatively
impact our revenues, earnings, cash flows and esgzemegardless of whether the merger is compled@dilarly, our current and prospective
employees may experience uncertainty about theirduoles with the combined company following therger, which may materially adversely
affect our ability to attract and retain key penselnduring the pendency of the merger. In addjtéhre to operating covenants in the merger
agreement, we may be unable, during the pendenityeaherger, to pursue strategic transactions, ntakke significant capital projects, undertake
certain significant financing transactions and persther actions that are not in the ordinary ecofdusiness, even if such actions would prove
beneficial.

We expect to incur substantial expenses relateths Qwest merger.

We expect to incur substantial expenses in cormeetith completing the Qwest merger and integra@vgest’s business, operations,
networks, systems, technologies, policies and phaws of Qwest with ours. There are a large nurobsystems that must be integrated,
including billing, management information, purchmgsiaccounting and finance, sales, payroll and fitspnéixed asset, lease administration and
regulatory compliance. While we have assumeddteartain level of transaction and integration erges will be incurred, there are a number of
factors beyond our control that could affect thiatamount or the timing of our integration expens®any of the expenses that will be incurred,
by their nature, are difficult to estimate acculsatd the present time. Moreover, we expect to mamce these integration initiatives before we
have completed a similar integration of our bussneih the business of Embarq, acquired in 2009¢kvbould cause both of these integration
initiatives to be delayed or rendered more costlglisruptive than would otherwise be the case. ubese factors, we expect the transaction
integration expenses associated with the Qwestenéogexceed in the near term our anticipated pasger integration savings resulting from the
elimination of duplicative expenses and the reéilimaof economies of scale, many of which cannoati@ined until several months or years after
the merger. As a result of these expenses, wecekpéake charges against our earnings beforeafiadthe completion of the merger. The
charges taken after the merger are expected tgbicant, although the aggregate amount and tinghsuch charges are uncertain at present.

Following the Qwest merger, the combined companyynh& unable to integrate successfully our businassl Qwest’s business and
realize the anticipated benefits of the merger.

The Qwest merger involves the combination of twmpanies which currently operate as independenipabimpanies. The combined
company will be required to devote significant mgeraent attention and resources to integrating tisinbss practices and operations of
CenturyLink and Qwest. We may encounter difficutie the integration process, including the followi
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¢ the inability to successfully combine our imess and Qwest’s business in a manner that petimeitsombined company to achieve
the cost savings and operating synergies anticigateesult from the merger, either due to techgiclal challenges, personnel
shortages, strikes or otherwise, any of which waaklilt in the anticipated benefits of the mergerbeing realized partly or wholly
in the time frame currently anticipated or at

» lost sales as a result of customers of eitheretiwo companies deciding not to do business wighctimbined compan'

* the complexities associated with managingctirabined businesses out of several different ionatand integrating personnel from
the two companies, while at the same time atterggtirprovide consistent, high quality products aadrices under a unified cultu

« the additional complexities of combining te@mpanies with different histories, regulatory riesiobns, markets and customer bases,



and initiating this process before we have fullynpteted the integration of our operations with #tho§ Embarq
« the failure to retain key employees of either @& tivo companies, some of whom could be criticahtegrating the companie
« potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen insexhexpenses or regulatory conditions associatidtiaé merger; an

« performance shortfalls at one or both oftthe companies as a result of the diversion of mamamt’s attention caused by
completing the merger and integrating the comp? operations

For all these reasons, you should be aware ti@pissible that the integration process couldltésthe distraction of the combined
company’s management, the disruption of the conthamenpany’s ongoing business or inconsistenci¢isércombined company’s products,
services, standards, controls, procedures andigsliany of which could adversely affect our apitii maintain relationships with customers,
vendors and employees or to achieve the anticigaedfits of the merger, or could otherwise advugrafect our business and financial results.

The Qwest merger will change the profile of our Eleexchange markets to include more large urban ase with which we have limited
operating experience.

Prior to the Embarg acquisition, we provided lomathange telephone services to predominantly ewegs and small to mid-size
cities. Although Embarq’s local exchange marketdude Las Vegas, Nevada and suburbs of Orlandsewetral other large U.S. cities, we have
operated these more dense markets only since ndi@l-2Qwest’'s markets include Phoenix, Arizona, BenColorado, Minneapolis — St. Paul,
Minnesota, Seattle, Washington, Salt Lake City hJend Portland, Oregon. Compared to our legaakets, these urban markets, on average,
are substantially denser and have experiencedegraetess line losses in recent years. While Weueeour strategies and operating models
developed serving rural and smaller markets caoezsstully be applied to larger markets, we carasstire you of this. Our business, financial
performance and prospects could be harmed if auetistrategies or operating models cannot beesisfally applied to larger markets following
the merger, or are required to be changed or aberlio adjust to differences in these larger market

34
Following the Qwest merger, we may be unable taietkey employees.

Our success after the merger will depend in pashugur ability to retain key Qwest and CenturyLatkployees. Key employees may
depart either before or after the merger becausssoés relating to the uncertainty and difficudfyintegration or a desire not to remain with us
following the merger. Accordingly, no assurance ba given that we will be able to retain key ergples to the same extent that we or Qwest
have been able to in the past.

Following the Qwest merger, we will conduct brandijror rebranding initiatives that are likely to invee substantial costs and may not
favorably received by customel

Prior to the merger, each of us will each contittuenarket our respective products and servicegubi@ “CenturyLink” and “Qwestbrand
names and logos. Following the merger, our Boafdiectors has approved “CenturyLink” as the naamé brand for the combined
company. As a result, we expect to incur subsahoéipital and other costs in rebranding the Cghiok name in those markets that previously
used the Qwest name. The failure of any of theisiatives could adversely affect our ability tdratt and retain customers after the merger,
resulting in reduced revenues.

Any adverse outcome of the KPNQwest litigation dn@r material litigation of Qwest or CenturyLink add have a material adverse
impact on our financial condition and operating retts following the Qwest merger.

As described in further detail in Qwest'’s repoitiscf with the SEC, the pending KPNQwest litigatignesents material and significant risks
to Qwest, and, following the merger, to the combdinempany. In the aggregate, the plaintiffs in ¢hemtters have sought billions of dollars in
damages.

There are other material proceedings pending ag@wsst and CenturyLink, as described in their eetipe reports filed with the
SEC. Depending on their outcome, any of thesearsatiould have a material adverse effect on trenfiial position or operating results of Qw:
CenturyLink or, following the merger, the combinezmpany. We can give you no assurances as tonihect of these matters on our operating
results or financial condition.
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Counterparties to certain significant agreementstiviQwest may exercise contractual rights to termieguch agreements following the
Qwest merger.

Qwest is a party to certain agreements that gigethunterparty a right to terminate the agreemdtviing a “change in control” of
Qwest. Under most such agreements, the Qwest m&iljeonstitute a change in control of Qwest dhdrefore the counterparty may terminate
the agreement upon the closing of the merger. Qmassagreements subject to such termination gomgswith significant customers, major
suppliers and service providers. In addition,aiarQwest customer contracts, including those wfigtte or federal government agencies, allow the
customer to terminate the contract at any timeémvenience, which would allow the customer to taate its contract before, at or after the
closing of the merger. Any such counterparty meguest modifications of their respective agreemasia condition to their agreement not to
terminate. There is no assurance that such agréeml not be terminated, that any such termiagiwill not result in a material adverse efft



or that any modifications of such agreements tadat@rmination will not result in a material adversffect.
We may be unable to obtain security clearances segy to perform certain Qwest government contracts

Certain Qwest legal entities and officers have ggcalearances required for Qwest’s performanceustomer contracts with various
government entities. Following the merger, it nh@necessary for us to obtain comparable secudafyrances. If we or our officers are unable to
qualify for such security clearances, we may noale to continue to perform such contracts.

We cannot assure you whether, when or in what amtauwe will be able to use Qwest’s net operatingé&ssfollowing the Qwest merger.

As of December 31, 2010, Qwest had $5.6 billioneifoperating losses, or NOLs, which for federabme tax purposes can be used to
offset future taxable income, subject to certaimtiitions under Section 382 of the Internal Reve@iade and related regulations. Our ability to
use these NOLs following the Qwest merger may biaéu limited by Section 382 if Qwest is deemednaergo an ownership change as a result
of the merger or we are deemed to undergo an owipecthange following the merger, either of whiclulcbpotentially restrict use of a material
portion of the NOLs. Determining the limitationsder Section 382 is technical and highly complé&s.a result, we cannot assure you that we
will be able to use the NOLs after the merger mmdamounts we project.

The pending Qwest merger raises other risks.

For information on other risks raised by the pegddwest merger, please see (i) the risks deschbkxv under the heading “— Other
Risks” and (ii) the joint proxy statement — prospsdiled by us with the SEC on July 19, 2010.
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Risks Related to our Acquisition of Embarq on July 2009
We have not yet fully integrated Embarqg’s operat®imto our operations, which involves several risks

We continue to incur substantial expenses in cdiorewith integrating the business, operationsywoeks, systems, technologies, policies
and procedures of Embarqg with ours, which will ikeesult in us continuing to take significant chy@s against earnings in future quarters. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to succtgsfiilegrate our legacy business with Embarq’sihess, or that we will be able to retain key
employees affected by the Embarg merger. For imboemation on these risks, please see (i) thefaskors included in Item 1A of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ9 and (ii) the risks described above undeh#aling “— Risks Relating to Our Pending
Acquisition of Qwest” that discuss the costs andeutainties associated with integrating Qwest'srafiens into ours.

In connection with completing the Embarg merger, waunched branding initiatives that may not be faxably received by customers.

Upon completion of the Embarg merger, we changedrand name to CenturyLink. We have incurred &uiigl capital and operating
costs in re-branding our products and serviceerds no assurance that we will be able to achiewee recognition or status under our new
brand that is comparable to the recognition anistareviously enjoyed. The failure of these atities could adversely affect our ability to atti
and retain customers after the merger, resultingdiuced revenues.

In connection with approving the Embarq merger, tlederal Communications Commission imposed conditdhat could increase our
future capital costs and limit our operating flexility.

In connection with approving the Embarq merger,RB€ issued a publicly-available order that impoasetdmprehensive set of conditions
on our operations over periods ranging from onitee years following the closing date. Among othéngs, these conditions commit us (i) to
make broadband service available to all of ourdesgiial and single line business customers withiad years of the closing, (ii) to meet various
targets regarding the speed of our broadband ssnand (iii) to enhance the wholesale serviceldaneour legacy markets to match the service
levels in Embarq’s markets. Although most of theseamitments largely correspond to our businesdegies, they could increase our overall
future capital or operating costs or limit our flaikty to deploy capital in response to changingriket conditions.

In connection with completing the Embarg merger, vassumed various contingent liabilities and a simbinderfunded pension plan of
Embarq, which could negatively impact our futurenncial position or performance

Upon consummating the merger, Embarqg became oullyvtvned subsidiary and remains responsible fbofits pre-closing contingent
liabilities, including Embarq’s previously-disclabéax sharing, retiree benefit litigation and enomimental risks. Embarq also remains responsible
for benefits under its existing qualified defineshlefit pension plan, which as of December 31, 2049 in an underfunded position. If any of
these matters give rise to material liabilities; consolidated operating results or financial positvill be negatively affected. Additional
information regarding these risks is availableijitéms 3 and 8 of this Annual Report on Form 1@ (ii) the periodic reports filed by Embarq
with the SEC through the date of the merger.
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Risks Related to Our Regulatory Environme
Our revenues could be materially reduced or our exges materially increased by changes in stateemlefal regulations.

The majority of our revenues are substantially deleat upon regulations which, if changed, couldlteéa material revenue
reductions. Laws and regulations applicable tang our competitors have been and are likely tdilcoe to be subject to ongoing changes



court challenges, which could also affect our ficiahperformance.

Risk of loss or reduction of network access charggenues or support fund paymentsA significant portion of our revenues is derived
from switched or special access charge revenuésaitbgaid to us by other carriers based largelsates set by federal and state regulatory
bodies. Interexchange carriers have filed comgdamvarious forums requesting reductions in aigeas rates. In addition, several long distance
providers have begun disputing amounts owed tousdrrying VolP traffic, or refusing to pay suam@unts. Several state public service
commissions are investigating intrastate access matd the ultimate outcome and impact of suclsiigetions are uncertain.

The FCC regulates tariffs for interstate switchedess, special access and subscriber line chaiyye§which are components of our
revenue. The FCC has been considering compreleerefiorm of its intercarrier compensation rulesdeveral years, including proposals
included in its recently-released National BroadbBian that, as proposed, are likely to reduce otwccess payments. Any reform eventually
adopted by the FCC will likely involve significaohanges in the current access charge system afdipatentially result in a significant decrease
or elimination of access charges altogether. Htitexh, we could be harmed if carriers that useanaess services become financially distress
bypass our networks, either due to changes in a¢igalor other factors. Action or inaction by thR€C on intercarrier compensation could lead to
disputes with other carriers that delay or prewenfrom collecting the full amount of our estabéidraccess charges.

The FCC and Congress may take actions that woydddtrour video programming access and pricing, wbauld adversely affect our
ability to continue to expand our video business aar competitive position in our existing video nkets.

We receive revenues from the USF, and, to a lesdent, intrastate support funds. These goverrahenbgrams are reviewed and
amended from time to time, and we cannot provide@sce that they will not be changed or impaateal mmanner adverse to us. Over the past
few years, high cost support fund payments to perating subsidiaries have decreased due to ireseéashe nationwide average cost per loop
factor used to determine payments to program peatits, as well as declines in the overall sizthefhigh cost support fund. In addition, the
number of eligible telecommunications carriers ingog support payments from this program has inseglasubstantially in recent years, which,
coupled with other factors, has placed additioimarfcial pressure on the amount of money thatad@we to provide support payments to all
eligible recipients, including us. For severalngeshe FCC and others have considered comprelerefiorms of the federal USF contribution i
distribution rules. In April 2010, the FCC propddge replace the USF with a broadband “Connect Aeca&fund, the impact of which on us is
currently unclear.
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The FCC’s National Broadband Plan released on M&6;l2010 seeks comprehensive changes in fedarahaaications regulations and
programs that could, among other things, reduadiminate USF and access revenues for our locdlange companies. We cannot predict the
ultimate outcome of this plan or provide any asscea that its implementation will not have a mafeailverse effect on our business, operating
results or financial condition.

Risks posed by state regulationsWe are also subject to the authority of statell&gry commissions which have the power to regulat
intrastate rates and services, including locaktate long-distance and network access servicesleftertain circumstances, our ILECs could be
ordered to reduce rates or could experience rdiections following the lapse of regulatory plansreatly in effect. Our business could also be
materially adversely affected by the adoption of/h&ws, policies and regulations or changes totimgsstate regulations. In particular, we car
assure you that we will succeed in obtaining omtaaining all requisite state regulatory approvalsdur operations without the imposition of
adverse conditions on our business that imposeiaddi costs or limit our revenues.

Risks posed by costs of regulatory complianc&egulations continue to create significant comrpde costs for us. Challenges to our
tariffs by regulators or third parties or delaybtaining certifications and regulatory approvasild cause us to incur substantial legal and
administrative expenses, and, if successful, shalenges could adversely affect the rates thaamgeable to charge our customers. Our business
also may be impacted by legislation and regulatigmosing new or greater obligations related to k&iions or laws related to bolstering homel
security, increasing disaster recovery requirementsimizing environmental impacts, enhancing peiveor addressing other issues that impact
our business, including the Communications Assgstdor Law Enforcement Act (which requires commatiwns carriers to ensure that their
equipment, facilities, and services are able tdifate authorized electronic surveillance), anddagoverning local number portability and
customer proprietary network information requiretseriWe expect our compliance costs to increafgufe laws or regulations continue to
increase our obligations to assist other governai@gencies.

Regulatory changes in the communications industryudd adversely affect our business by facilitatiggeater competition against us.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 fundamentallgirdred the communications industry, and resulteddreased competition among
service providers. This Act and the FCC’s impletmanregulations remain subject to judicial reviemd additional rulemakings, thus making it
difficult to predict what effect the legislation Niltimately have on us and our competitors. Salveegulatory and judicial proceedings
addressing communications issues have recenthuded, are underway or may soon be commenced. dMerecertain communities nationwide
have expressed an interest in establishing munitgfegphone utilities that would compete for cusesm Finally, we could be adversely affected
by programs or initiatives recently undertaken mn@ress or the FCC, including (i) the federal bl stimulus projects authorized by
Congress in 2009; (ii) the FCC’s above-describetiadal Broadband Plan; (iii) new “network neutrglitules and; (iv) the proposed broadband
“Connect America” replacement support fund.
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We are subject to significant regulations that litrur flexibility.

As a diversified full service ILEC, we have traditally been subject to significant regulation thaés not apply to many of our
competitors. For instance, unlike many of our cetitprs, we are subject to federal mandates toesfaailities, file and justify tariffs, maintain
certain accounts and file reports, and state reqents that obligate us to offer service to afjible customers in our service territories, requis



to maintain service standards and limit our abiiitychange tariffs in a timely manner. This regolaimposes substantial compliance costs
on us and restricts our ability to change ratesptapete and to respond rapidly to changing ingiusinditions. Although newer alternative for
of regulation permit us greater freedoms in sevetates in which we operate, they nonethelessailpicnpose caps on the rates that we can
charge our customers. As our business becomemsaisiagly competitive, regulatory disparities betwas and our competitors could impede our
ability to compete. Litigation and different objiees among federal and state regulators couldenaacertainty and impede our ability to resp
to new regulations. Moreover, changes in tax laagulations or policies could increase our taggaparticularly if state regulators continue to
search for additional revenue sources to addredgdishortfalls. We are unable to predict therifactions of the various regulatory bodies that
govern us, but such actions could materially afteatbusiness.

We are subject to franchising requirements that ddumpede our expansion opportunities.

We may be required to obtain from municipal auttiesioperating franchises to install or expandiifees. Some of these franchises may
require us to pay franchise fees. These frandpigiquirements generally apply to our fiber tramspod CLEC operations, and to our emerging
switched digital television and wireless broadbhndinesses. These requirements could delay uganding our operations or increase the costs
of providing these services.

We will be exposed to risks arising out of receagislation affecting U.S. public companies, includj risks relating to evaluations of
controls required by Section 404 of the Sarbanesh&xAct.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatirgptporate governance and public disclosure, diofuthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiaciict, and related regulations implemented bySB€, the New York Stock Exchange
and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board,increasing legal and financial compliance castsmaking some activities more time
consuming. Any future failure to successfully iongly complete annual assessments of our inteor@tals required by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act could subject us to sanctionsvastigation by regulatory authorities. Any swtion could adversely affect our financial
results or investors’ confidence in us, and coaldse our stock price to fall. If we fail to maimt&ffective controls and procedures, we may be
unable to provide financial information in a timelgd reliable manner, which could in certain insemlimit our ability to borrow or raise capital.
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Our current or prior operations could subject us t@abilities under laws governing the environmertealth and safety.

Our operations are subject to a variety of envirental, safety, health and other governmental re¢iguis. WWe monitor our compliance w
federal, state and local regulations governinguthes discharge and disposal of hazardous and emvéotally sensitive materials. Although we
believe that we are in compliance with these rerig, the current or prior use, discharge or dispof these materials by us or companies we
have acquired could expose us to claims or actlwaiscould have a material adverse effect on osiness, financial condition and operating
results.

For a more thorough discussion of the regulat@syeds that may affect our business, see Item li©Atimual Report on Form 10-K.
Other Risks
We have a substantial amount of indebtedness ang/meed to incur more in the future.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness, wduiald have material adverse consequences fonclsding (i) hindering our ability to
adjust to changing market, industry or economicaddions, (ii) limiting our ability to access themital markets to refinance maturing debt or to
fund acquisitions or emerging businesses, (iiijtiimy the amount of free cash flow available fotufte operations, acquisitions, dividends, stock
repurchases or other uses, (iv) making us moreevabie to economic or industry downturns, includimgrest rate increases, and (v) placing t
a competitive disadvantage to those of our compstihat have less indebtedness.

As a result of assuming Qwest’s indebtedness imectipn with the pending Qwest merger, we will rmeamore leveraged. This could
reduce our credit ratings and thereby raise oumong costs.

In connection with executing our business stragefpowing the Qwest merger, we expect to contitiuevaluate the possibility of
acquiring additional communications assets and ngagirategic investments, and we may elect to fiadnture acquisitions by incurring
additional indebtedness. Moreover, to respondtopetitive challenges, we may be required to rsidestantial additional capital to finance new
product or service offerings. Other events thatarrently unforeseen, such as higher than exgeetsh contributions to our benefit plans or
significant payments arising out of the mattersaésed in Items 1A or 3 of this annual report, dalso require us to obtain additional financing
or investigate other methods to generate cash.ability to arrange additional financing will degban, among other factors, our financial
position and performance, as well as prevailingkataconditions and other factors beyond our contWde cannot assure you that we will be able
to obtain additional financing on terms acceptablas or at all. If we are able to obtain addiéibfinancing, our credit ratings could be adversely
affected, which could further raise our borrowirggts and further limit our future access to cagital our ability to satisfy our debt obligations.
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Adverse changes in the value of assets or obligaiassociated with our employee benefit plans caudgatively impact our financial
results or financial position.

We maintain one or more qualified pension plans,-goalified pension plans and post-retirement kepkfns, several of which are
currently underfunded. Adverse changes in intewass or market conditions, among other assumptowl factors, could cause a signific



increase in the benefit obligations under thesagta a significant decrease in the value of pksets. With respect to our qualified
pension plans, adverse changes could require eantoibute a material amount of cash to the plarsald accelerate the timing of any required
cash payments. The process of calculating beolglijations is complex. The amount of requiredtdbntions to these plans in future years will
depend on earnings on investments, prevailing distates, changes in the plans and funding lawsegulations. Any future material cash
contributions could have a negative impact on marfcial results or financial position.

We have a significant amount of goodwill and othietangible assets on our balance sheet. If our gedll or other intangible assets
become impaired, we may be required to record asigant charge to earnings and reduce our stocklkers’ equity.

Under generally accepted accounting principlegyngible assets are reviewed for impairment on anarbasis or more frequently
whenever events or circumstances indicate thatitying value may not be recoverable. If ournigifle assets are determined to be impaired in
the future, we may be required to record a sigaificnon-cash charge to earnings during the pémiadich the impairment is determined.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to contirpaying dividends at the current rate.

Based on current circumstances, we plan to continuesurrent dividend practices. However, you $tidne aware that these practices
subject to change for reasons that may includecétiye following factors:

« we may not have enough cash to pay such dividénego changes in our cash requirements, capiealdipg plans, cash flows or
financial position:

« decisions on whether, when and in which an®tmmake any future distributions will remairadittimes entirely at the discretion of
our board of directors, which reserves the righthtange our dividend practices at any time andufigrreason

« the effects of regulatory reform, including any ees to intercarrier compensation, Universal Serffignd or special access rul
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e our desire to maintain or improve the credit ragiog our senior dek

¢ the amount of dividends that we may distrbiat our shareholders is subject to restrictiordenhouisiana law and is limited by
restricted payment and leverage covenants in aditcfacilities and, potentially, the terms of doyure indebtedness that we may
incur; and

¢ the amount of dividends that our subsidianey distribute to CenturyLink is subject to redfans imposed by state law, restrictions
that have been or may be imposed by state regslata@onnection with obtaining necessary approf@lshe Embarq merger and
pending Qwest merger, and restrictions imposedbydrms of credit facilities applicable to certaubsidiaries and, potentially, the
terms of any future indebtedness that these swavgdimay incut

Our Board of Directors is free to change or suspmuirddividend practices at any time. Our commaarsholders should be aware that 1
have no contractual or other legal right to dividen

Our current dividend practices could limit our alify to pursue growth opportunities .

The current practice of our Board of Directors &y jan annual $2.90 per common share dividend tefatintention to distribute to our
shareholders a substantial portion of our free fagh As a result, we may not retain a sufficiamiount of cash to finance a material expansion
of our business in the future. In addition, ouiligbto pursue any material expansion of our basi through acquisitions or increased capital
spending, will depend more than it otherwise wauricour ability to obtain third party financing. VWeannot assure you that such financing will be
available to us at all, or at an acceptable cost.

As a holding company, we rely on payments from ayerating companies to meet our obligations.

As a holding company, substantially all of our im@and operating cash flow is dependent upon ttrérggs of our subsidiaries and their
distribution of those earnings to us in the formdidends, loans or other payments. As a resudtrely upon our subsidiaries to generate the
funds necessary to meet our obligations, includirgpayment of amounts owed under our long-tern. d&oir subsidiaries are separate and
distinct legal entities and have no obligation &y pny amounts owed by us or, subject to limiteckpiions for tax-sharing purposes, to make any
funds available to us to repay our obligations, tvbeby dividends, loans or other payments. Ceméur subsidiaries may be restricted under
loan agreements or regulatory orders from tranisigifunds to us, including certain restrictionstba amount of dividends that may be paid to
us. Moreover, our rights to receive assets ofamsidiary upon its liquidation or reorganizatioifl e effectively subordinated to the claims of
creditors of that subsidiary, including trade ctedi. The notes to our consolidated financialestegnts included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K describe these matters in additionalideta
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If conditions or assumptions differ from the judgmeés, assumptions or estimates used in our critiegcounting policies, the accuracy
our financial statements and related disclosureutibe affected.

The preparation of financial statements and reldiedosures in conformity with U.S. generally guiesl accounting principles requires us
to make judgments, assumptions and estimatesffieat the amounts reported in our consolidatedrfaial statements and accompanying
notes. For a discussion of our critical accounpinficies, se¢Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond &esults o



Operations — Critical Accounting Policies and Esties” in Item 7 of this annual report. If futuneeats or assumptions differ significantly
from the judgments, assumptions and estimatesrigritical accounting policies, these events ouag#tions could have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements and related assecks.

Taxing authorities may determine we owe additiortiakes relating to various matters, which could adsely affect our financial results.

As a significant taxpayer, we are subject to freqaand regular audits and examinations by the haleRevenue Service, as well as state
and local tax authorities. These tax audits aradrémations may result in tax liabilities that diffeaterially from those that we have recorded in
our consolidated financial statements. Becauseltireate outcomes of these matters are uncemagrgan give no assurance as to whether an
adverse result from one or more of them will hawveaterial effect on our financial results.

Our agreements and organizational documents and laggble law could limit another party’s ability tacquire us.

Our articles of incorporation provide for a clagsifboard of directors, which limits the ability @f insurgent to rapidly replace the
board. In addition, a number of other provisiamsir agreements and organizational documents amoius provisions of applicable law may
delay, defer or prevent a future takeover of Ceyttimk unless the takeover is approved by our BadrBirectors. This could deprive our
shareholders of any related takeover premium.

We face other risks.

The list of risks above is not exhaustive, and gbould be aware that we face various other risksudised in this or other reports, proxy
statements or documents filed by us with the SEC.

Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Stéements

This report and other documents filed by us underféderal securities laws include, and future oralritten statements or press releases
by us and our management may include, certain fahaoking statements relating to CenturyLink or €5ty the operations of either such
company or our pending acquisition of Qwest, inglgdvithout limitation statements with respect ten@uryLink’s or Qwest’s anticipated future
operating and financial performance, financial posiand liquidity, tax position, contingent liaitiies, growth opportunities and growth rates,
acquisition and divestiture opportunities, mergeresgies, business prospects, regulatory and catiwpeatutlook, investment and expenditure
plans, investment results, financing opportuniéied sources (including the impact of financinganfinancial position, financial performance
credit ratings), pricing plans, strategic altermesi, business strategies, and other similar statsnoé expectations or objectives or accompanying
statements of assumptions that are highlighted drglsvsuch as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intendgfans,” “believes,” “projects,” “seeks,”
“estimates,” “hopes,” “likely,” “should,” “could,’and “may,” and variations thereof and similar esgiens. Such forward-looking statements are
based upon our judgment and assumptions as ofaieesdch statements are made concerning futuréogenvents and events, many of which are
outside of our control. These forward-looking staénts, and the assumptions upon which such statemee based, are inherently speculative
and are subject to uncertainties that could caus@atual results to differ materially from suchtstments. Anticipated events may not occur and
the actual results or performance of CenturyLinkerest may differ materially from those anticipatedtimated or projected if one or more of
these risks or uncertainties materialize, or ifenhdng assumptions prove incorrect. Factors toafd impact the actual results of CenturyLink or
Qwest include but are not limited to:
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« the extent, timing, success and overall effectsonfipetition from wireless carriers, VolP and breedd providers, CLECs, cable
television companies and others, including withouitation the risks that these competitors mayebféss expensive or more
innovative products and servict

e the risks inherent in rapid technologicalmpe, including without limitation the risk that neechnologies will displace our products
and services

« the effects of ongoing changes in the regulatiothefcommunications industry, including without iiation (i) increased competitic
resulting from regulatory changes, (ii) the finat@ome of various federal, state and local regwaitutiatives, disputes and
proceedings that could impact our competitive pmsjtrevenues, compliance costs, capital experaditar prospects, (iii) the effect
of the National Broadband Plan, (iv) the reductorelimination of revenues received from the fetlef@iversal Service Fund or
other current or future federal and state suppagiams designed to compensate communications agoagpaperating in high-cost
markets, (v) changes in the regulatory treatmemadP traffic, and (vi) changes in the regulatidrspecial acces:

e our ability to effectively adjust to changaghe communications industry and changes in dmposition of our markets and product
mix caused by the Embarq merger and the pendingsQwerger

« the possibility that the anticipated benefiiten the Embarg merger cannot be fully realized timely manner or at all, or that
integrating Embar's operations into ours will be more difficult, digtive or costly than anticipate
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e our ability to (i) successfully complete qending acquisition of Qwest, including timely rigtef the required regulatory approvals
for the merger free of detrimental conditions, &fjdimely realize the anticipated benefits of thansaction, including our ability
after the closing to use the net operating los§€yax@st in the amounts projecte

e our ability to effectively manage our expamsopportunities, including without limitation oability to (i) effectively integrate



newly-acquired or newly-developed businesses intcoperations, (ii) attract and retain technolofjinganagerial and other key
personnel, (iii) achieve projected growth, reveand cost savings targets from the Embarq acquisitial the pending Qwest
acquisition within the timeframes anticipated, &)l otherwise monitor our operations, costs, ragaly compliance, and service
quality and maintain other necessary internal adsit

possible changes in the demand for, or pyicf) our products and services, including withlimitation reduced demand for our
traditional telephone or access services causeptdater use of wireless, electronic mail or Integmmmunications, or other facto

our ability to successfully introduce new gt or service offerings on a timely and cost-@ffee basis, including without limitation
our ability to (i) successfully roll out our newd@o and broadband services, (ii) expand succegsfull full array of service offering
to new or acquired markets and (iii) offer bundéedvice packages on terms attractive to our custt

our continued access to credit markets oorfe terms, including our continued access tarfoing in amounts, and on terms and
conditions, necessary to support our operationgeifimtance existing indebtedness when it becomes

our ability to collect receivables from financiatlpubled communications compani
the inability of third parties to discharge theimemitments to us

the outcome of pending litigation in whichr@aryLink, Embarq or Qwest is involved, includiftetKPNQwest litigation matters in
which plaintiffs have sought, in the aggregatdijdsik of dollars in damages from Qwe

our ability to pay a $2.90 per common shaveddnd annually, which may be affected by charigesur cash requirements, capital
spending plans, cash flows or financial positi

unanticipated increases in our capital expendift
our ability to successfully negotiate collectivedaining agreements on reasonable terms withouwk stoppages
our ownership of or access to technology that nedressary for us to operate or expand our biss
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regulatory limits on our ability to change the psdor telephone services in response to indusanges

impediments to our ability to expand throwdtractively priced acquisitions, whether causeddgulatory limits, financing
constraints, a decrease in the pool of attractivget companies, or competition for acquisitiomsrfrother interested buyel

uncertainties relating to the implementatdmur business strategies, including the possibkd to make abrupt and potentially
disruptive changes in our business strategiesaubanges in competition, regulation, technologggdpct acceptance or other
factors;
the lack of assurance that we can compete effégtagainst bette-capitalized competitor:
the impact of equipment failure, including potehtiatwork disruptions
declines in the value of our business that resutior-cash earnings charges for goodwill impairmi
general worldwide economic conditions and relateceutainties
the effects of adverse weather on our customepsaprerties
other risks referenced in this report and from timéme in our other filings with the SE:
the effects of more general factors, including withlimitation:
» changes in general industry and market conditionasgrowth rate:
» changes in labor conditions, including workforceels and labor cos
» changes in interest rates or other general natioggional or local economic conditio

« changes in legislation, regulation or public policycluding changes that increase our tax

* increases in capital, operating, medical, pensicadministrative costs, or the impact of new bussnepportunities requirir
significant uj-front investment:

» changes in our relationships with vendors, or #ikiffe of these vendors to provide competitive piaid on a timely bas

» failures in our internal controls that could resunltnaccurate public disclosures or fre



» changes in our debt ratin
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« unfavorable outcomes of regulatory proceedingsimwestigations, including rate proceedings andatactits
» losses or unfavorable returns on our investmengghiar communications compan
» delays in the construction of our netwo

» changes in accounting policies, assumptions, astisnor practices adopted voluntarily or as requiegenerally accepted
accounting principles

For additional information, see the risk factostdd above in this report and the description oftausiness included as Item 1 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Due to these uncetiggnwe cannot assure you that our anticipateatsewill occur, that our judgments or
assumptions will prove correct, or that unforesgewvelopments will not occur. Accordingly, you astioned not to place undue reliance upon
any of our forward-looking statements, which spealy as of the date made. Additional risks thatonerently deem immaterial or that are not
presently known to us could also cause our actasllts to differ materially from our expected résulWe undertake no obligation to update or
revise any of our forward-looking statements foy esason, whether as a result of new informatiatyré events or developments, changed
circumstances, or otherwise.

Any information about our intentions containedhistannual report is a statement of our intentessf the date of this document and is
based upon, among other things, the regulatorysing, competitive, economic and market conditias®f such date, as well as various of our
assumptions at such time. We may change our intentat any time and without notice, based upgnciianges in such factors, in our
assumptions or otherwise.

Investors should also be aware that while we deagabus times, communicate with securities analyisis against our policy to disclose to
them selectively any material non-public informatiar other confidential information. Accordingipvestors should not assume that we agree

with any statement or report issued by an anatysspective of the content of the statement orntepbo the extent that reports issued by
securities analysts contain any projections, fastscar opinions, such reports are not our respditgib

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
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Item 2. Properties.
Our properties consist principally of telephone$incentral office equipment, and land and builsliredated to telephone operations. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, our gross propertgf plad equipment of approximately $16.3 billion &id.6 billion, respectively, consisted o

following:

December 31

2010 2009

Cable and wirt 50.2% 52.:
Central office 31.1 29.€
General suppol 13.5 12.C
Fiber transpor 2.3 2.2
Construction in progres 1.7 2.8
Other 1.2 1.1

100.(% 100.(

“Cable and wire” facilities consist primarily of bad cable and aerial cable, poles, wire, conduit drops used in providing local and long
distance services. “Central office” consists priflgeof switching equipment, circuit equipment aredated facilities. “General support” consists
primarily of land, buildings, tools, furnishingsxtures, motor vehicles and work equipment. “Fitransport” consists of network assets and
equipment to provide fiber transport services. ri§ouction in progress” includes property of theeffping categories that has not been placed in
service because it is still under construction.

The properties of certain of our telephone subsigiaare subject to mortgages securing the defticdf companies. We own substantially
all of the central office buildings, local adminitive buildings, warehouses, and storage fadglitised in our telephone operations.

For further information on the location and typeoof properties, see the descriptions of our omaratin Item 1 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Over 60 years ago, one of our indirect subsidiaf@entel Corporation, acquired entities that mayehawned or operated seven former
plant sites that produced “manufactured gas” uadaocess widely used through the mid-1900s. Ceaatebeen a subsidiary of Embarq since
being spun-off in 2006 from Sprint Nextel, whiclgaged Centel in 1993. None of these plant sitescarrently owned or operated by either
Sprint Nextel, Embarq or their subsidiaries. Oméhsites, Embarg and the current landowners arkirgpwith the Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA”) pursuant to administrative conserders. Remediation expenditures pursuant to tersrare not expected to be material. On
five sites, including the three sites where the E®#volved, Centel has entered into agreemerntts @ther potentially responsible parties to share
remediation costs. Further, Sprint Nextel has abjteendemnify Embarq for most of any eventual iligparising from all seven of these
sites. Based upon current circumstances, we dexpect this issue to have a material adverse itrgraour results of operations or financial
condition.

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarqg Coration, et al, filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statéestri@t Court for the
District of Kansas (Civil Action No. 07-CV-2602),gaioup of retirees filed a putative class actiomdait challenging the decision to make certain
modifications to Embarq’s retiree benefits prograyaserally effective January 1, 2008 (which reglitea $300 million reduction to the liability
for retiree benefits at the time of the modificagd. Defendants include Embarq, certain of its Biepkans, its Employee Benefits Committee and
the individual plan administrator of certain of litsnefits plans. Additional defendants include Sgxextel and certain of its benefit
plans. Recently, the Court certified a class atage of plaintiffs’ claims, but rejected class tification as to other claims. Embarq and other
defendants continue to vigorously contest thesensland charges. Given that this litigation i#f Bt discovery, it is premature to estimate the
impact this lawsuit could have to our results oéigtion or financial condition. In 2009, a rulimgEmbarq’s favor was entered in an arbitration
proceeding filed by 15 former Centel executivesnikirly challenging the benefits changes.

In April 2010, a series of lawsuits were filed haseholders of Qwest Communications International in Colorado state and federal
courts and in Delaware federal court, alleging thaest’s officers and directors breached theirdidty duties by failing to maximize the value to
be received by Qwest’s stockholders in connectidh @enturyLink’s recently announced acquisition of Qwest. Cehfinkywas also hamed as
defendant in most of the lawsuits. On July 16,®Qke parties entered into a memorandum of uraledsig reflecting the terms of their
agreement-in-principle for a settlement of allloé tlaims asserted in these actions. Pursuanistagheement, defendants included additional
disclosures in the final joint proxy statement-pctus dated July 19, 2010, in response to allegatind claims asserted in certain of the
complaints. At a hearing in late February 2012, @&ourt gave final approval to this settlement, alhtawsuits challenging the transaction will be
dismissed with prejudice effective March 17, 201¥e do not expect the settlement to have a matdiatrse impact to our results of operations
or financial condition.

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fited lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Nektelecover terminating access charges
for VolIP traffic owed under various interconnectagreements and tariffs which presently approxir&@ million. The lawsuits allege that
Sprint Nextel has breached contracts, violatedfsadnd violated the Federal Communications Acfdiling to pay these charges. One lawsuit,
filed on behalf of all legacy Embarqg operating gesi, was tried in federal court in Virginia in Augf 2010 and a ruling is expected in the first
quarter of 2011. The other lawsuit, filed on bébékll legacy CenturyLink operating entities pending in federal court in Louisiana. In that
case, the Court recently dismissed certain of Gghtnk’s claims, referred other claims to the FG@d stayed the litigation for 12 months. We
have not recorded a reserve related to these lesvsui
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From time to time, we are involved in other prodagd incidental to our business, including admmaiste hearings of state public utility
commissions relating primarily to rate making, ant relating to employee claims, various tax issaesasional grievance hearings before labor
regulatory agencies and miscellaneous third partyactions. The outcome of these other procgsdmnot predictable. However, based on
current circumstances, we do not believe that tti@ate resolution of these other proceedingsraftasidering available insurance coverage and
current levels of reserves, will have a materialeade effect on our financial position, result®pérations or cash flows.

Item 4. [Reserved]
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stokholder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange (“NYSE”and is traded under the symbol CTL. The followtiable sets 1
the high and low sales prices, along with the aqubrdividends, for each of the quarters indicated.

Sales price: Dividend per
High Low common shat

2010:
First quarte! $ 37.0C 32.9¢ 728

Second quarte $ 36.7¢ 14.1¢€ (1) 72t



Third quartel $ 40.0( 32.92 72t
Fourth quarte $ 46.8 39.1¢ 72t
2009:

First quarte! $ 29.2: 23.41 .7C
Second quarte $ 33.62 25.2¢ .7C
Third quartel $ 34.0( 28.9( .7C
Fourth quarte $ 37.1¢ 32.2¢ .70

(1) During the widelypublicized temporary market disruption that occdroa the afternoon of May 6, 2010, our common stocknentarily trad
low as $14.16 in markets other than the NYSE. dpening and closing prices of our common stock @y &, 2010, were $34.48 and $33.52,
respectively.

Common stock dividends during 2010 and 2009 weie @ach quarter.

In June 2008, our board of directors increasedjaarterly cash dividend rate from $.0675 to $.70gb&re. In February 2010, our boar
directors further increased our quarterly cashddind rate to $.725 per share.

As described in greater detail in Item 1A of thisnial Report on Form 1RK; the declaration and payment of dividends idatdiscretion
our Board of Directors, and will depend upon ougficial results, cash requirements, future prospaud other factors deemed relevant by the
of Directors.

As of February 28, 2011, there were approximatélf)30 stockholders of record of our common sto&k.of February 28, 2011, the clos
stock price of our common stock was $41.18.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, wwithheld 50,823 shares of stock at an average pfi§d3.07 per share to pay taxes due upon tha
restricted stock for certain of our employees indber, November and December 2010.
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For information regarding shares of our commonlstaghorized for issuance under our equity comp@salans, see ltem 12.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents certailested consolidated financial data as of and fehes the years ended in the five-year period ended
December 31, 2010. The results of operationse&imbarqg properties are included herein subsedaétstJuly 1, 2009 acquisition date.

The selected consolidated financial data shownvb@&alerived from our audited consolidated finahstatements. These historical rest.
not necessarily indicative of results that you e&pect for any future period. You should read tdta in conjunction with ManagemesiDiscuss
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpierations and our full consolidated financialetaénts and notes thereto contained elsew
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Selected Income Statement Data

Year ended December &
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars, except per share amouland shares expressed in thousal

Operating revenues $ 7,041,53 4,974,23! 2,599,74 2,656,24. 2,447,73
Operating income $ 2,059,94. 1,233,10: 721,35. 793,07¢ 665,53
Net income attributable to CenturyLink, Ir $ 947,70! 647,21 365,73: 418,37( 370,02
Basic earnings per share $ 3.1% 3.28 3.5¢ 3.7¢ 3.1F
Diluted earnings per share $ 3.1% 3.2t 3.52 3.71 3.07
Dividends per common share $ 2.9C 2.8C 2.167¢ .2€ 2E

Average basic shares outstanding 300,61¢ 198,81: 102,26¢ 109,36( 116,67




Average diluted shares outstanding 301,29° 199,05° 102,56( 112,78 121,99(

Selected Balance Sheet Data

December 31
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands

Net property, plant anequipmen $ 8,754,47 9,097,13! 2,895,89: 3,108,371 3,109,27
Goodwill $ 10,260,64 10,251,75 4,015,67. 4,010,91 3,431,13
Total asset $ 22,038,09 22,562,72 8,254,19! 8,184,55 7,441,00
Long-term debt, including current portion and $hor

term deb $ 7,327,58 7,753,71 3,314,52 3,014,25! 2,590,86.
Stockholders' equit $ 9,647,15 9,466,79! 3,167,80: 3,415,811 3,198,96.

The following table presents certain selected clids@d operating data as of the following dates:

December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Telephone access lines | 6,504,00! 7,039,00! 2,025,00! 2,135,00! 2,094,00!
High-speed Internet customers (1) 2,394,00! 2,236,00! 641,00( 555,00( 369,00(
1) In connection with our Embarqg acquisitiorduly 2009, we acquired approximately 5.4 millielephone access lines and 1.5 million high-

speed Internet customers. In connection with oadigbn River acquisition in April 2007, we acquiggproximately 164,000 telephone access
lines and 57,000 high-speed Internet customers.

See Items 1 and 2 in Part | and Items 7 and 8 @ékemnherein for additional information.
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

All references to “Notes” in this Item 7 refer tioet Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements @regduin Iltem 8 of this annual report.

OVERVIEW

On July 1, 2009, we acquired Embarq Corporatiom(Barg”) in a transaction that substantially expahtte size and scope of our
business. The results of operations of Embarinateded in our consolidated results of operatibaginning July 1, 2009. Due to the significant
size of Embarq, direct comparisons of our resuligperations for the year ended December 31, 2@h&ch includes a full year of results of
operations from our Embarq properties) and Decer@be009 (which only includes a half year of résof operations from our Embarq
properties) with prior periods are less meaningfah usual since most of the significant periodrgeriod variances are caused by the Embarq
acquisition. We discuss below certain trends Webelieve are significant, even if they are natessarily material to the combined company.

We are an integrated communications company priynanigaged in providing a broad array of commuiicet services to customers in 33
states, including local and long distance voiceglebale network access, special access, high-dpeedet access, other data services, and video
services. In certain local and regional markets algo provide fiber transport, competitive locattleange carrier, security monitoring, and other
communications, professional and business infoonatervices. We operate approximately 6.5 milioness lines and serve approximately 2.4
million broadband customers, based on operating aabf December 31, 2010. For additional infoifomadn our revenue sources, see
Note 20. For additional information on our acqtinsi of Embarq, see Note

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 20®%®curred a significant amount of one-time exsnshe vast majority of which are
directly attributable to our acquisition of Embangd our pending acquisition of Qwest Communicatiotsrnational Inc. (“Qwest”). In 2010, we
also recognized a $20.9 million reduction to opgatpéxpenses related to a curtailment gain uporiréezing of benefit accruals for noepresen
employees under our defined benefit pension pl&ee Note 12 for additional information. Such t¢inge expenses are summarized in the table
below.
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Year ended December &
Description 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands




Cost of services and product:

Integration related costs associated withamguisition of Embar $ 36,57 -
Severance costs and accelerated recognitishasEbased compensation and pension costs due to woe

reductions 13,70: 5,70«
Curtailment gain related to changes in oumgef benefit pension ple (5,895 -

Selling, general and administrative
Integration related costs associated withamguisition of Embar: 54,94 86,37
Severance costs and accelerated recognitishasEbased compensation and pension costs due to woe

reductions 16,49( 114,46:
Transaction and other costs associated witlpending acquisition of Qwe 22,26¢ -
Curtailment gain related to changes in oumaef benefit pension ple (15,019 -
Transaction related costs associated withaoguisition of Embarq, including investment banied legal

fees - 47,15¢
Settlement and curtailment loss related tte@eexecutive retirement pla - 17,83¢

Interest expense
Credit associated with certain debt extingoishts - (11,119

Other income (expense

Net charge associated with certain debt extgigments - 71,96¢
Charge incurred in connection with terminating $800 million bridge facility - 8,00(
$ 123,06: 340,37:

Based on current plans and information, we expeitdur approximately $80-90 million of additionadn-recurring integration related
operating expenses associated with our Embarq sitiquiin 2011 and $400-500 million of non-recugimansaction and integration related
operating expenses associated with our Qwest dtignisn 2011, although actual amounts could vagynsicantly.

In addition, due to executive compensation limitas pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code, a pooficthe lump sum distributions relat
to the termination of an executive retirement pteade in the first quarter of 2009 is reflected as-deductible for income tax purposes and thus
increased our effective income tax rate. Certaémgar-related costs incurred during 2010 and 20820 non-deductible for income tax
purposes and similarly increased our effective inedax rate. In 2009, such increase in our effedtix rate was partially offset by a $7.0 million
reduction to our deferred tax asset valuation adioge associated with state net operating lossfoawsgrds. In addition, in 2009 and 2008, we
recognized net after-tax benefits of approxima$$.7 million and $12.8 million, respectively, paniy related to the recognition of previously
unrecognized tax benefits. See Note 13 and “IncbaxeExpense” below for additional information.
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Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accountirdgative July 1, 2009, we recorded a one-time, oash extraordinary gain that aggrec
approximately $218.6 million before income tax exge and noncontrolling interests ($136.0 millioteafax and noncontrolling interests). Se
16 for additional information.

During the last several years (exclusive of actjoiss and certain non-recurring favorable adjustisienve have experienced revenue
declines in our voice and network access reventiemply due to declines in access lines, intra&statcess rates, minutes of use, and federal
support fund payments. In an attempt to mitighese declines, we plan to, among other thinggrdinote long-term relationships with our
customers through bundling of integrated servi@i@grovide new services, such as video and o#lukelitional services that may become available
in the future due to advances in technology, weelgpectrum sales by the FCC or improvements imdéwastructure, or agency or reselling
arrangements with other carriers, (iii) provide special access, broadband and premium servi@higgher percentage of our customers, (iv)
pursue acquisitions of additional communicatiorgpprties if available at attractive prices, (v)remse usage of our networks and (vi) market our
products and services to new customers.

In addition to historical information, this managent’s discussion and analysis includes certain frdvMooking statements that are based
on current expectations only, and are subject tmeber of risks, uncertainties and assumptions,ynwdinwvhich are beyond our control. Actual
events and results may differ materially from thastcipated, estimated or projected if one or mof¢hese risks or uncertainties materialize, or
if underlying assumptions prove incorrect. Facttirat could affect actual results include but am# hmited to: the timing, success and overall
effects of competition from a wide variety of cotitipe providers; the risks inherent in rapid tediogical change; the effects of ongoing changes
in the regulation of the communications industncliding those arising out of the FGproposed rules regarding intercarrier compensatémd
the Universal Service Fund and the FCC'’s relatedi¢éoof Proposed Rulemaking released on FebruaBg08.1); our ability to effectively adjust
to changes in the communications industry and charig the composition of our markets and produeteaiised by our recent acquisitions; our
ability to successfully integrate Embarq into opeaations, including the possibility that the aigited benefits from the Embarq merger cannot
be fully realized in a timely manner or at all, that integrating Embarqg’s operations into ours viakk more difficult, disruptive or costly than
anticipated; our ability to successfully completg pending acquisition of Qwest, including timedgeiving all regulatory approvals and realizi
the anticipated benefits of the transaction; ouiligbto effectively manage our expansion opportiesi including retaining and hiring key
personnel; possible changes in the demand forrioiny of, our products and services; our ability successfully introduce new product
service offerings on a timely and cost-effectiveidiaour continued access to credit markets onravie terms; our ability to collect our
receivables from financially troubled communicasa@ompanies; our ability to pay a $2.90 per commsloare dividend annually, which may be
affected by changes in our cash requirements, abgitending plans, cash flows or financial positiananticipated increases in our capital
expenditures; our ability to successfully negotieddective bargaining agreements on reasonabletewithout work stoppages; the effects of
adverse weather; other risks referenced from tionénte in this report or other of our filings withe Securities and Exchange Commission, or
SEC; and the effects of more general factors sgothanges in interest rates, in tax rates, in acting policies or practices, in operatin



medical, pension or administrative costs, in gehararket, labor or economic conditions, or in ldgifon, regulation or public policy.
These and other uncertainties related to our bussneur pending acquisition of Qwest and our JUW§acquisition of Embarq are described in
greater detail in Item 1A of this report, as updatnd supplemented by our subsequent SEC reparisshould be aware that new factors n
emerge from time to time and it is not possibleufato identify all such factors nor can we predie impact of each such factor on the business
or the extent to which any one or more factors eeyse actual results to differ from those refledtedny forward-looking statements. You are
further cautioned not to place undue reliance oesthforwarelooking statements, which speak only as of the dathis report. We undertake no
obligation to update any of our forward-looking t&ments for any reason.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net income attributable to CenturyLink, Inc. forl0was $947.7 million, compared to $647.2 milliarridg 2009 and $365.7 million
during 2008. Net income before extraordinary itgas $947.7 million, $511.3 million and $365.7 naiflifor the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively. Diluted earningsspare for 2010 was $3.13 compared to $3.23 in 2009$3.52 in 2008. Diluted earnings per
share before extraordinary item for 2009 was $2.3&. mentioned in the “Overview” section above,ineurred a significant amount of one-time
expenses in 2010 and 2009 related principally toagquisition of Embarq and our pending acquisitb@west. The increase in the number of
average shares outstanding in 2010 and 2009 isaghnattributable to the common stock issued inrection with our acquisition of Embarg on
July 1, 2009 (such shares are included for a fegiryin 2010 and a half year in 2009).

Year ended December & 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars, except per share amounts, and shar s in
thousands

Operating incom $ 2,059,94 1,233,10. 721,35:

Interest expens (557,479 (370,41, (202,21")

Other income (expens 29,61¢ (48,179 42,25

Income tax expense (582,95)) (301,88)) (194,35)

Income before noncontrolling interests and

extraordinary iten 949,13« 512,63: 367,03(

Noncontrolling interest (1,429) (1,377) (1,29¢)

Net income before extraordinary ite 947,70! 511,25« 365,73.

Extraordinary item, net of income tax expense ar

noncontrolling interests - 135,95 -

Net income attributable to CenturyLink, I. $ 947,70! 647,21’ 365,73.

Basic earnings per shs

Before extraordinary ite| $ 3.1¢ 2.5¢ 3.5

Extraordinary iten $ - .68 -

Basic earnings per shz $ 3.1¢ 3.2t 3.5¢
Diluted earnings per sha

Before extraordinary itel $ 3.1: 2.5t 3.52

Extraordinary iten $ = .68 -

Diluted earnings per she $ 3.1¢ 3.2¢ 3.52
Average basic shares outstanding 300,61¢ 198,81: 102,26¢
Average diluted shares outstanding 301,29° 199,05 102,56(

Operating income increased $826.8 million in 2006 tb a $2.067 billion increase in operating rewsnand a $1.240 billion increase in
operating expenses. Operating income increaset. B5dillion in 2009 due to a $2.374 billion increas operating revenues and a $1.863 billion
increase in operating expenses. Such increasgeeiating revenues, operating expenses and opgeiatiome in 2010 and 2009 were
substantially due to our July 1, 2009 acquisitibEmbarq.
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As mentioned in Note 16, we discontinued the apfibn of regulatory accounting effective July 10920 As a result of such
discontinuance, since the third quarter of 200Shasxe eliminated all intercompany transactions wéiulated affiliates that previously were not
eliminated under the application of regulatory acting. This has caused our revenues and operatingnses to be lower by equivalent amounts
(approximately $104 million) for the year ended Beber 31, 2010 as compared to the year ended Dece&hp2009. Similarly, our revenues
and operating expenses for 2009 are lower than B@@proximately $108 million due to the mid-ye@continuance of regulatory accounting.

OPERATING REVENUES

Year ended December & 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Voice $ 3,137,92 2,168,48! 1,043,38



Data 1,908,90. 1,202,28: 524,19.

Network acces 1,079,67! 927,90! 651,03
Other 915,03: 675,57( 381,12¢
Operating revenues $ 7,041,53 4,974,23! 2,599,74

Beginning in 2010, we have reclassified revenueegged from subscriber line charges to “Voice’emyes from “Network access”
revenues to better align our presentation of seehmues with others in our industry and we havkided revenues generated from our fiber
transport, CLEC and security monitoring operation®Other” revenues. Prior periods have been ddjuto reflect the new presentation.

Voice revenues.We derive voice revenues by providing local exgeatelephone services and retail long distancgcssrto customers ir
service areas. The $969.4 million increase ineo@venues is primarily due to $1.047 billion oflidnal revenues attributable to the Embarq
properties acquired July 1, 2009. The remaining.&million decrease is primarily due to (i) a $8/illion decrease due to a 6.2% decline in the
average number of access lines in our legacy Cgrink markets; (ii) a $13.7 million decrease in trm calling feature revenues primarily due
continued migration of customers to bundled serwiterings at a lower rate; (ii) an $11.1 millioeduction in long distance revenues due prin
to a decrease in minutes of use; and (vi) a $9lllomreduction due to the elimination of all intempany transactions due to the above-described
discontinuance of regulatory accounting.

The $1.125 billion increase in voice revenues iG23 primarily due to $1.199 billion of revenuésibutable to the Embarq properties
acquired July 1, 2009. The remaining $73.9 millitatrease is primarily due to (i) a $42.0 milliecoease due to a 6.6% decline in the average
number of access lines in our incumbent marka)sa $14.5 million decrease in custom calling feattevenues primarily due to the continued
migration of customers to bundled service offeriaga lower effective rate and (iii) an $8.1 mifliceduction due to the elimination of all
intercompany transactions due to the discontinuafcegulatory accounting.

Total access lines declined 535,000 during 2010paoed to a decline of 380,000 during 2009 (exclgdiocess lines we acquired from
Embarg on July 1, 2009 but including access linssih Embarg’s markets following such acquisitiohye believe the decline in the number of
access lines during 2010 is primarily due to thepldicement of traditional wireline telephone segiby other competitive services and recent
economic conditions. Based on our current retaentidiatives, we estimate that our access lins loil be between 7.0% and 7.5% in 2011
(exclusive of the impact of access line loss inghaperties we expect to acquire from Qwest in 2011
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Data revenues We derive our data revenues primarily by pravidhigh-speed Internet access services and datmission services over
special circuits and private lines. Data reverinereased $706.6 million in 2010 due to $735.1iomllof additional revenues attributable to
Embarg. Excluding Embarq, data revenues decrekz®& million due to a $52.9 million reduction doethe elimination of all intercompany
transactions due to the discontinuance of regulaocounting. The remaining $24.4 million incre@sprimarily attributable to an increase in |
related revenues principally due to growth in thenber of DSL customers and an increase in specia&ss revenues due to increased demand for
such services.

Data revenues increased $678.1 million in 2009td#%689.8 million of revenues attributable to EntbaExcluding Embarq, data revenues
decreased $11.7 million due to a $51.4 million rtidun due to the elimination of all intercompangrtsactions resulting from the discontinuance
of regulatory accounting. Such decrease was figrtiiset by a $38.5 million increase in DSL-reddtrevenues primarily due to growth in the
number of DSL customers in our incumbent markets.

Network access revenuedVe derive our network access revenues primandlsnf(i) providing services to various carriers andtomers in
connection with the use of our facilities to origie and terminate their interstate and intrastaigevtransmissions; (ii) receiving universal suppor
funds which allows us to recover a portion of oosts under federal and state cost recovery mecahan(§i) receiving reciprocal compensation
from competitive local exchange carriers and wasglservice providers for terminating their callsg div) offering certain network facilities and
related services to CLECs. Substantially all of interstate network access revenues are basetiffied access charges prescribed by the
FCC. Certain of our intrastate network accessmegs are derived through access charges that e bitrastate long distance carriers and other
LEC customers.
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Network access revenues increased $151.8 milli@®i® and $276.9 million in 2009 due to the follogifactors:
2010 2009
increase increase
(decrease (decrease

(Dollars in thousands

Acquisition of Embarg on July 1, 20t $ 247,61! 347,68l

Reduced recoveries from the federal Universal $erkiigh Cost Loop support progre (35,819 (12,96

Reduced intrastate revenues due to decreased miofutise, decreased access rates in certain atades

recoveries from state support fur (17,279 (35,40¢)

Elimination of all intercompany transactions duehe discontinuance of regulatory account (21,509 (26,03))

Reduced partial recovery of operating costs thraegknue sharing arrangements with other telephone

companies, interstate access revenues and retuatehas: (13,44)) (5,930

Prior year revenue settlement agreements and other (7,802) 9,51¢
$ 151,77: 276,86

As mentioned above, upon the discontinuance oflaggny accounting effective July 1, 2009, we beghminating all intercompan



transactions with regulated affiliates that pregiguvere not eliminated under the application gfulatory accounting.

We believe that access rates and minutes of useanitinue to decline in conjunction with lossesaotess lines and substitution of other
alternatives, although we cannot precisely estitfeenagnitude of such decrease. Complaints fileshterexchange carriers in several of our
operating states or state initiated legislationl@oifi successful, place further downward pressureur intrastate access rates. We also expect ou
network access revenues to continue to be negaiimglacted in 2011 by a reduction in Universal Ssn\Fund receipts. In addition, delays in the
migration of traffic of a wireless carrier off onetworks in 2010 will reduce our operating revenne2011. Based on our current estimates, we
believe these items in the aggregate will redud¢eork access revenues approximately $160-180 miliio2011 as compared to 2010.

Other revenues.We derive other revenues primarily by (i) prowiglifiber transport, CLEC and security monitoringveees; (ii) leasing,
selling, installing and maintaining customer presrtislecommunications equipment and wiring; (iiipyiding payphone services primarily withi
local service territories and various correctidiaailities around the country; (iv) participating the publication of local directories, which allow
to share in revenues generated by the sale ofwelige and related advertising to businesses;réwiging network database services; and (vi)
providing certain other new product and serviceufigs. Other revenues increased $239.5 millia20ib0 due to $272.1 million of additional
revenues attributable to Embarq. Excluding Embattagr revenues decreased $32.7 million primatily th a $20.8 million reduction due to the
elimination of all intercompany transactions agsult of the discontinuance of regulatory accognta$7.1 million decrease in directory rever
and a $5.5 million decrease in certain non-regdlpteduct sales and service offerings.
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Other revenues increased $294.4 million in 200%ykth approximately $326.5 million related to @equisition of Embarg. Excluding
Embarqg, other revenues decreased $32.1 milliongiynas a result of a $22.0 million reduction daehe elimination of all intercompany
transactions resulting from the discontinuanceegtifatory accounting and a $10.5 million decreaseertain non-regulated product sales and
service offerings.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended December & 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Cost of services and products (exclusive of

depreciation and amortizatio $ 2,410,04 1,752,08 955,47:
Selling, general and administrati 1,137,98! 1,014,34. 399,13t
Depreciation and amortization 1,433,55. 974,711 523,78t
Operating expenses $ 4,981,59 3,741,13: 1,878,39!

Cost of services and productsCost of services and products increased $658li@m(37.6%) in 2010 primarily due to a $758.2lloin
increase in expenses incurred by Embarq (whiclhudes approximately $36.6 million of integration tsoand an incremental $8.0 million of costs
associated with employee severance benefits gratiilly offset by a curtailment gain of approxielg $5.9 million associated with freezing
certain future benefit accruals related to ourrdsdibenefit pension plans). The remaining $100liBomdecrease is primarily due to (i) an $89.4
million reduction in expenses resulting from thienéhation of all intercompany transactions resigtfrom the discontinuance of regulatory
accounting; (i) a $13.1 million decrease in aca@gsense and (iii) a $10.4 million decrease ingpamt costs associated with our long distance
operations.

Cost of services and products increased $796.6mil83.4%) in 2009 primarily due to $888.8 milliohexpenses attributable to the
Embarq properties acquired on July 1, 2009. Thwameing $92.2 million decrease is primarily dudijaa $88.7 million reduction in expenses
resulting from the elimination of all intercompatmgnsactions resulting from the discontinuanceegtitatory accounting; (ii) a $4.9 million
decrease in customer service related expensgss §4.6 million decrease in access expense; ahd $4.1 million decrease in CLEC expenses
as a result of the divestiture of six CLEC market2008. Such decreases were partially offset $§m8 million increase in salaries, wages and
benefits primarily due to increases in pension aegpeand share-based compensation expense andandillidn increase in DSL-related
expenses due to an increase in the number of DSormers served.

Selling, general and administrativ&elling, general and administrative expenses ise@&$123.6 million in 2010 primarily due to a
$170.4 million increase in expenses incurred by &mbThe $170.4 million increase is net of (i) 8 $Omillion reduction of severance costs and
accelerated recognition of share based compensatidpension costs due to workforce reductionsrieduduring 2010 as compared to similar
expenses incurred during 2009; (ii) $47.2 millidriransaction related costs incurred in 2009 relétethe Embarg acquisition; (iii) a $31.4
million reduction in integration costs related tar acquisition of Embarg and (iv) a 2010 curtailingain of approximately $15.0 million
associated with freezing certain future defineddfiépension accruals. During 2010, we also inedi@pproximately $22.3 million of transaction
and other costs associated with our pending adoprisaf Qwest. Such increases were partially affge(i) a $31.5 million reduction in salaries
and benefits (which includes $16.6 million of oimad charges related to a supplemental executiveigeplan in 2009); (i) a $17.4 million
decrease in legal costs, and (iii) a $14.9 millieduction in expenses due to the elimination ofraircompany transactions due to the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&615.2 million in 2009 primarily due to $50#lion of expenses attributable to
operating Embarq for the second half of 2009 (whidhudes approximately $106.0 million of costsaxsated with employee termination
benefits, primarily due to severance and reterttiemefits, contractual pension benefits and acdiberaf share-based compensation expense
associated with Embarqg employee terminations). réheining $114.6 million increase is primarily dogi) $86.4 million of integration cos



associated with our acquisition of Embarq, prinyardlated to system conversion efforts; (ii) $4milion of transaction related merger
costs, including investment banker and legal fess@ated with our acquisition of Embarq; and @i)3.8 million of higher employee benefit
costs, primarily due to higher pension expenser(prily due to accelerated expense recognition dwhange of control provisions triggered
upon our acquisition of Embarq and the terminatiba supplemental executive retirement plan) armdeshased compensation expense (due to
the accelerated vesting of equity grants of ourleyges upon the acquisition of Embarq). Such mees were partially offset by (i) a $19.5
million reduction in expenses resulting from thienéhation of all intercompany transactions duehe tliscontinuance of regulatory accounting;
(i) a $10.7 million reduction in operating taxesnparily due to the favorable resolution of certiansaction tax audit issues; and (iii) an $8.1
million reduction in marketing expenses.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization increased $458lBomin 2010 primarily due to $480.8 million of
additional depreciation and amortization attriblgab Embarq (including $69.3 million of additioreahortization expense related to the customer
list and other intangible assets acquired in cotimeevith the Embarq transaction) and a $22.4 oillincrease due to higher levels of plant in
service in our legacy markets. The remaining desavas primarily due to a $19.1 million decreas#gepreciation expense due to a change in
certain depreciation rates effective July 1, 20p8ruthe discontinuance of regulatory accountinga$@4.5 million decrease due to certain
assets becoming fully depreciated.

Depreciation and amortization increased $450.9anilin 2009 primarily due to $492.6 million of degiation and amortization
attributable to Embarq (including $118.4 millionahortization expense related to its customealigt other intangible assets). The remaining
$41.7 million decrease was primarily due to a $38iion decrease in depreciation expense resuftiogn a reduction in certain depreciation
rates effective July 1, 2009 upon the discontineasfaegulatory accounting (see Note 16) and dwettain assets becoming fully
depreciated. Such decreases were partially difsah $18.8 million increase due to higher levélplant placed in service in our incumbent
markets.
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Other. For additional information regarding certain teet that have impacted or may impact our operafisee “Regulation and
Competition”.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense increased $187.1 million in 20i&@Eared to 2009 primarily due to interest expertsiatable to Embarq’s indebtedness
assumed in connection with our acquisition of Embar

Interest expense increased $168.2 million in 2@M8mared to 2008 primarily due to $179.9 millionmkrest expense attributable to
Embarq’s indebtedness assumed in connection witlaguisition of Embarg. The remaining $11.7 roillidecrease is primarily attributable to a
$4.6 million decrease in interest expense duevoréble resolution of certain transaction tax aigtities and a $4.7 million one-time reduction in
interest expense in 2009 related to debt extinguéstt transactions consummated in October 2009.N8&e6 for additional information.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Other income (expense) includes the effects ohaeitems not directly related to our core operaijdncluding gains or losses from
nonoperating asset dispositions and impairmentssloare of the income from our 49% interest inluta partnership, interest income and
allowance for funds used during construction. ®theome (expense) was $29.6 million for 2010 coragao $(48.2) million for 2009 and $42.3
million in 2008.

Included in 2009 is (i) a $72.0 million pre-tax cha related to certain debt extinguishment tramsastconsummated in October 2009 (see
Note 6 for additional information) and (ii) an $8rlllion pre-tax charge associated with terminating our $800onibridge credit facility (see
Note 2 for additional information). Included in@®is (i) approximately $10.0 million related tetrecognition of previously accrued transac
related and other contingencies; (ii) a pre-tax @di$4.5 million upon the liquidation of our indesents in marketable securities in our SERP
trust; (iii) a pre-tax gain of approximately $7.3lan from the sales of certain nonoperating inwesnts; and (iv) a $3.4 million pre-tax charge
related to terminating all of our existing derivatiinstruments in the first quarter of 2008. Chare of income from our 49% interest in a cellular
partnership decreased $2.7 million in 2010 comp#reaD09 and increased $7.0 million in 2009 comg&oe2008. We record our share of the
partnership income based on unaudited results erfabipns until the time we receive audited finahsiatements for the partnership from the
unaffiliated general partner. In 2008, we recordethvorable adjustments upon receipt of the peshig’s audited financial statements for 2007.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The effective income tax rate was 38.1%, 37.286 34.7% for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivElgrtain executive compensation
amounts, including the lump sum distributions paidertain executive officers in connection witBatintinuing the Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan (see Note 12), are reflected asdeductible for income tax purposes pursuant t@etkee compensation limitations prescribed
by the Internal Revenue Code. Our inability tout#dhese amounts resulted in the recognition pf@pmately $3.3 million and $9.8 million of
income tax expense in 2010 and 2009 above amduettsvbuld have been recognized had such paymeetsdeluctible for income tax
purposes. Our 2010 and 2009 effective tax ratdsis higher because a portion of our merger-reletsaction costs incurred during those years
are nondeductible for income tax purposes (with such treatt resulting in a $3.9 million and $7.4 milliorciease to income tax expense in 2
and 2009, respectively). In 2009, such increasmiireffective tax rate was partially offset bya®million reduction to our deferred tax asset
valuation allowance associated with state net dimgréoss carryforwards



Income tax expense was reduced by approximately7$th8lion in 2009 and $12.8 million in 2008 dueth® recognition of previously
unrecognized tax benefits (see Critical Accounfrajicies below and Note 13) and other adjustmeptsdinalization of tax returns.

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accountinguy 1, 2009, we recorded a one-time extraordigain of approximately $136.0
million after-tax. See Note 16 for additional infoation related to this extraordinary gain.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2009, the Financial Accountiren8ards Board updated the accounting standarddiegarevenue recognition for
multiple deliverable arrangements, such as thesehundles that we offer to our customers. Thidate requires the use of the relative selling
price method when allocating revenue in these tgb@srangements. This method allows a vendor ¢oitsshest estimate of selling price if neit
vendor specific objective evidence nor third patydence of selling price exists when evaluatindtiple deliverable arrangements. This standard
update is effective January 1, 2011 and may betadqpospectively for revenue arrangements entetecbr materially modified after the date of
adoption or retrospectively for all revenue arrangats for all periods presented. We currently oibexpect this standard update to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial stagts.

We are subject to certain accounting standardsiifirie fair value, establish a framework for meamyufair value and expand the
disclosures about fair value measurements reqoir@érmitted under other accounting pronouncemenhk® fair value accounting guidance
establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, Witdoritizes the inputs used to measure fair vallibese tiers include: Level 1 (defined as
observable inputs such as quoted market pricestiveamarkets), Level 2 (defined as inputs othantljuoted prices in active markets that are
either directly or indirectly observable), and Le8d€defined as unobservable inputs in which litteno market data exists). See Note 19 for
additional information. In January 2010, we addgtee accounting standard update regarding fatrevadleasurements and disclosures, which
requires additional disclosures and explanationsrémsfers of financial assets and liabilitiesimstn certain levels in the fair value hierarchyeTh
adoption of this accounting standard update dichage a material impact on our condensed conselidatancial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our financial statements are prepared in alzowre with accounting principles that are genematigepted in the United States. The
preparation of these financial statements requiresagement to make estimates and assumptiondfénatthe reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. We contintalbluate our estimates and assumptions inclutiiogetrelated to (i) revenue recognition, (ii)
allowance for doubtful accounts, (iii) pension gustretirement benefits, (iv) intangible and longedl assets, (v) depreciation and amortization of
long-lived assets; (vi) business combinations afijlilcome taxes. Actual results may differ frahese estimates and assumptions and these
differences may be material. We believe thesé&atiiccounting policies discussed below involndgher degree of judgment or complexity.

Revenue recognitionWe collect in advance fees for fixed rate semviseich as local service, unlimited long distahigh-speed
Internet and certain data services, and defer reegcognition until these services are provideithéocustomer. We bill in arrears variable rate
billing services, including usage-based long distamlata and access revenues. We have multiplegbilycles spread throughout each month
resulting in accounts receivables and deferredmeedalances at the end of each reporting petiothe event that the variable rate usage data is
not available at the end of a reporting period esemate revenue based on historic usage and rtleeant factors. Service activation and
installation fees are deferred and amortized dmneéght-line basis over our average customer liv@perating revenues include certain revenue
reserves for billing disputes and contract inteigdiens. These reserves require management’s jedgamd are based on many factors including
historical trends, contract and tariff interpretas and developments during the resolution process.

Allowance for doubtful accountsWe maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsestimated losses that result from the failurewf
customers to make required payments. In evalushiegollectibility of our accounts receivable, a&sess a number of factors, including a
specific customer’s or carrier’s ability to meetfinancial obligations to us, the length of tirhe teceivable has been past due and historical
collection experience. Based on these assessmentecord both specific and general reservesrdoollectible accounts receivable to reduce the
related accounts receivable to the amount we ultilm@&xpect to collect from customers and carrigdsir reserves for accounts receivable
generally increase as the receivable ages. lfiwistances change or economic conditions worsenthlatlour past collection experience is no
longer relevant, we may need to increase our resérom the levels reflected in our accompanyingsctidated balance sheet.
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Pension and postretirement benefitdccounting for pensions and postretirement bénéfivolves estimating the cost of benefits to be
provided well into the future and attributing tieatst over the time period each employee providescgeto us. To accomplish this, extensive use
is made of various assumptions, such as discote,rimvestment returns, mortality, turnover, matlaosts and inflation through a collaborative
effort by management and independent actuarieesd bfforts are designed to provide managementthétihecessary information on which to
base its judgment and develop the estimates uggepare the financial statements. Changes imgs$ons used could result in a material img
to our financial results in any given period. @uoatuarial estimates of retiree benefit expensetiméssociated significant assumptions are
discussed in Notes 11 and 12.

A significant assumption used in determining oungien and postretirement expense is the expectedtErm rate of return on plan
assets. For 2010 and 2009, we utilized an expdotedterm rate of return on plan assets of 8.26f@tir incumbent pension plan and 8.50% for
the pension plan we assumed in connection witlEthbarg acquisition. In setting the I-term assumed rate of return, management cons



capital markets’ future expectations and the aséenf the plans’ investments. If all other factavere to remain unchanged, a 50 basis
point decrease in the assumed long-term rate ofiretould cause combined pension and postretireausitto increase by approximately $18
million. Should we experience asset returns thas@gnificantly below our long-term rate of retssumptions, we may experience in the future
higher levels of pension expense, higher levelggtiired contributions and lower stockholders’ ggbalances (due to accumulated other
comprehensive losses). For 2011, we are redueingpag-term assumed rate of return assumption3% #or our legacy CenturyLink pension
plan and 8.0% for our legacy Embarq pension plch reduction in our assumed rate of asset réfyprimarily due to lower prevailing bond
yields.

Another assumption used in the determination ofpamnsion and postretirement benefit plan obligatigrthe appropriate discount
rate. The discount rate is an assumed rate afirelerived from high-quality debt securities thhgpplicable at the measurement date to a
specified amount of principal, would provide theessary future cash flows to pay our pension beabfigations when they become due. For
pension plan, the discount rate used for the Deee@b, 2010 measurement date was derived by matgiojected benefit payments to bond
yields obtained from a hypothetical yield curvenfrda-rated corporate bonds. For the years endedmleer 31, 2009 and 2008, we utilized a
similar process using as a reference the CitiGfemsion Discount Curve (Above Median) to derivediscount rate. Our discount rate for
determining benefit obligations under our pensiamg at December 31, 2010 ranged from 5.0 to 5.&8tpared to 5.5 to 6.0% at December 31,
2009. The discount rate can change from year &o lyased on market conditions that impact corpdratel yields. We use a similar
methodology to determine the discount rate forpmstretirement plan by utilizing as a referenceHlesvitt Top Quartile Yield Curve as of the ¢
of the year. Our discount rate for determiningdfgrobligations under our postretirement planBatember 31, 2010 was 5.30% compared to
5.70-5.80% at December 31, 2009. We estimateatR&tbasis point decrease in the assumed discatenvould increase our combined pension
and postretirement benefit obligations by approxétya$148 million.
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Intangible and | ong-lived assetdVe are subject to testing for impairment of |divgd assets (including goodwill, intangible assatsl
other long-lived assets) based on applicable adoauguidelines.

We are required to review goodwill recorded in bass combinations for impairment at least annuaily are required to write-down the
value of goodwill only in periods in which the reded amount of goodwill exceeds the fair value. diszlosed in the table below, substantially
of our goodwill is associated with our local excharelephone operations. Subsequent to our atiquisif Embarg on July 1, 2009, we have
managed our local exchange telephone operatiorsi lmasfive geographic regions (which we internadifer to as Mid-Atlantic, Southern, South
Central, Northeast and Western) and have consideesg five operating regions to be our reportinigsun testing for goodwill impairment of o
telephone operations. The remainder of our goddsvélssociated with our competitive local exchaogeier (CLEC), fiber transport, security
monitoring and other operations of our businegfakhich we treat as separate reporting unitsingoodwill impairment testing.

The breakdown of our goodwill balances as of Deaan3i, 2010 by reporting unit is as follows (amauntthousands):

Telephone operations (V-Atlantic) $ 2,227,591
Telephone operations (Southe 2,297,06-
Telephone operations (South Cent 2,487,533l
Telephone operations (Northea 2,252,28:
Telephone operations (Weste 946,36"
CLEC operation: 29,93t
Fiber transport operatiot 10,607
Security monitoring operatior 4,96¢
All other operations 4,281
Total goodwill $ 10,260,64

We estimate the fair value of our telephone openatreporting units using multiples of earningsobefinterest, taxes and depreciation
(EBITDA). For each telephone reporting unit, wengare its estimated fair value to its carrying eallf the estimated fair value of the reporting
unit is greater than the carrying value, we coneltitht no impairment exists. If the fair valueto$ reporting unit is less than the carrying value,
second calculation is required in which the impliaid value of goodwill is compared to its carryinglue. If the implied fair value of goodwill is
less than its carrying value, goodwill must be tgritdown to its implied fair value.

The multiple of EBITDA we utilize in our goodwillipairment testing for our telephone operationsippsrted by an independent
valuation analysis performed by a major investniemtking firm. For the past several years, we hdWieed EBITDA multiples derived from
comparable independent analysis. The EBITDA midtierived in the independent reports and utilimedur goodwill impairment testing was
5.8 in 2010, 5.6 in 2009 and 6.5 in 2008. We belithe decline in EBITDA multiples since 2008 igparily due to, among other factors, the
continued erosion of access lines.
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We estimate the fair value of our other reportingsiusing various methods, including multiple €& TDA (as described above) and
multiples of revenues.

As of September 30, 2010, we completed the reqainedial test of goodwill impairment and concludeat bur goodwill was not impaired
as of that date. However, as of that date, thmattd fair value of the Southern region exceettedarrying value by less than 10%. Should
events occur (such as continued access line lossgher revenue reductions) that would causedhesélue to decline below its carrying value,
we may be required to record a -cash charge to earnings during the period in wtiielimpairment is determine



The carrying value of long-lived assets otth@n goodwill is reviewed for impairment wheneveets or circumstances indicate that
such carrying amount cannot be recoverable by sisgethe recoverability of the carrying value thgbwestimated undiscounted net cash flows
expected to be generated by the assets. If theamuhted net cash flows are less than the carmaihge, an impairment loss would be measured
as the excess of the carrying value of a long-lasset over its fair value.

Depreciation and amortization of long-lived asse®®ur depreciation of property, plant and equipmiruding the use of group
depreciation for our telephone operations and eg&mof useful lives, is discussed in Note 1. \&&gm useful lives based on annual studies of
actual asset lives, taking into account actual esegplacement history and assumptions about témgmevolution and access line losses. No
significant changes to our remaining useful liveswred as a result of our study performed in 2010.

We also have significant customer list intangildsets, the vast majority of which is attributaldetr July 1, 2009 Embarq
acquisition. The customer list intangible asseisfour Embarq acquisition are finite-lived intdnlgi assets and are amortized using an
accelerated method over the period in which thekgionships are expected to contribute to ourréutash flows. The accelerated method
employed is a process of allocation which reflectsbelief that we expect greater revenue generditamn these customer relationships during the
earlier years of their lives. Amortization of othietangible assets is determined using the sttdigh method of amortization over the expected
remaining useful lives.

We periodically evaluate our intangible assetqisuie that our current amortization method and neimguseful lives are appropriate.

Business combination$he new accounting guidance for business combinstizas effective for us for all business combinatio
consummated on or after January 1, 2009 and regair@cquiring entity to recognize all of the assequired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date fair value. The allocation of fhechase price to the assets acquired and liabiitssumed from Embarq (and the related
estimated lives of depreciable tangible and id&itié intangible assets) was finalized during 2@f.the end of the one-year measurement period
and required a significant amount of judgment.ct8allocation of certain aspects of the purchag o items that are more complex to value
was performed by an independent valuation firm #aseinformation provided by managemeree Note 2 for additional information concerr
the assignment of fair values to the assets andrass liabilities of Embarg. We will similarly agsi fair values to the assets and liabilities
acquired from our pending acquisition of Qwest,althive expect to close during 2011.
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Income taxes.We estimate our current and deferred income thased on our assessment of the future tax conseesief transactions
that have been reflected in our financial statementpplicable tax returns. Actual income taxas gould vary from these estimates due to
several factors, including future changes in incaaxelaw or the resolution of audits by federal atate taxing authorities. We maintain liabilit
for unrecognized tax benefits for various uncertaipositions taken in our tax returns. Thedgiliites are estimated based on our judgment of
the probable outcome of the uncertain tax positam are adjusted periodically based on changioig fand circumstances. Changes to the
liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits could Brélly affect operating results in the period bhnge. During 2009 and 2008, we recognized
approximately $15.7 million and $12.8 million, resgively, of previously unrecognized tax benefiteluding related interest and net of federal
tax benefit) and other adjustments upon finalizatbtax returns. Such benefits were recorded giisnas a result of the favorable resolution of
audits, administrative practices and the lapsdatfite of limitations in certain jurisdictions. e&Bote 13 for additional information regarding our
unrecognized tax benefits.

For additional information on our critical @cmting policies, see “Accounting Pronouncementsf @Regulation and Competition —
Other Matters” below, and the Notes to our conséd financial statements included elsewhere herein

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changéstarest rates on our long-term debt obligatiov&e have estimated our market risk
using sensitivity analysis. Market risk is defiredthe potential change in the fair value of adixate debt obligation due to a hypothetical
adverse change in interest rates. We determingdaie of long-term debt obligations based onsgalinted cash flow analysis, using the rates
and maturities of these obligations comparedrmseand rates currently available in the long-térmancing markets. The results of the
sensitivity analysis used to estimate market rigkpgesented below, although the actual resultsdifégr from these estimates.

At December 31, 2010, we estimated the fair vafuguo long-term debt to be $8.0 billion based om dverall weighted average interest
rate of our debt of 7.0% and an overall weightedurity of 11 years compared to terms and rateently available in long-term financing
markets. As of December 31, 2010, approximatei @5 our long-term debt obligations were fixed radarket risk is estimated as the
potential decrease in fair value of our long-tembtresulting from a hypothetical increase of 78idaoints in prevailing interest rates (ten
percent of our overall weighted average borrowtg). Such an increase in interest rates wouldtresapproximately a $331.9 million
decrease in the fair value of our fixed-rate loeg¥t debt at December 31, 2010, but would have paaton our interest expense or cash
flows. A 100 basis point increase in prevailiggiable interest rates would have had a negatigggx impact of approximately $1.7 million on
our results of operations and cash flows for thelve» months ended December 31, 2010, but would havmpact on the fair value of our long-
term variable-rate debt.
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From time to time over the past several years, awelused derivative instruments to (i) lock-in wap our exposure to changing or
variable interest rates for fixed interest rategipto swap obligations to pay fixed interestamfor variable interest rates. We have estaldi



policies and procedures for risk assessment andpheoval, reporting and monitoring of derivatimstrument activities. We do not hold
issue derivative financial instruments for tradorgspeculative purposes. Management periodicelliews our exposure to interest rate
fluctuations and implements strategies to managexiposure. Currently, we have no derivativerimsents in place.

We are also exposed to market risk from chang#seiffiair value of our pension plan assets. Thsipa plan we assumed in connection
with the Embarg acquisition was underfunded by appnately $667 million with respect to the projetteenefit obligation as of December 31,
2010. We contributed $300 million and $115 millionthe legacy Embarq pension plan during 2010thedast half of 2009, respectively. We
currently expect to contribute approximately $100iom to the legacy Embarg pension plan in 20Bhased on current actuarial estimates as of
December 31, 2010 that assume a $100 million dmrttan in 2011 and the utilization of our existirgnaining credit balance to partially satisfy
future required cash contributions, our estimatedre contributions for the 2012-2014 time periadges from approximately $7585 million pel
year for all of our pension plans. The actual I®feontributions required in future years canmdpa significantly depending on discount rates
actual returns on plan assets. See “Critical Antiag Policies — Pension and Postretirement Besfefit

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methoahalysis presented in the computation of fair valunancial instruments. Actual
values may differ from those presented if marketdiions vary from assumptions used in the faiueatalculations. The analysis above
incorporates only those risk exposures that exiagedf December 31, 2010.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Excluding cash used for acquisitions, we rely oshgarovided by operations to fund our operating eaqutal expenditures as well as our
dividend payments. Our operations have histdyigabvided a stable source of cash flow which hekped us continue our long-term program
of capital improvements.
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Operating activities. Net cash provided by operating activities wa$832.billion, $1.574 billion and $853.3 million i020, 2009 and
2008, respectively. Payments for income taxesexgged $431.7 million, $258.9 million and $208.8lion in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. In 2009, we paid approximately $58iom to fund lump sum distributions under our Zem supplemental executive retirement plan
upon the discontinuance of such plan and undergehahcontrol provisions triggered upon the acdjasiof Embarg. We also contributed $300
million and $115 million to the legacy Embarq pemsplan during 2010 and the last half of 2009, eetigely. Our accompanying consolidated
statements of cash flows identify major differenbesveen net income and net cash provided by apgrattivities for each of these periods.

For additional information relating to our opeoais, see “Results of Operations” above.

Investing activities.Net cash used in investing activities was $858illion, $678.8 million and $389.0 million in 2012009 and
2008, respectively. Payments for property, plamt equipment were $863.8 million in 2010, $754.8iam in 2009 (which includes $396.1
million of capital expenditures attributable to dembarq operations subsequent to our July 1, 26§Qisition of Embarq) and $286.8 million in
2008. Capital expenditures for 2010 and 2009 bhelapproximately $29.0 million and $75.1 millioaspectively, of one-time capital
expenditures related to the integration of Embarq.

On July 1, 2009, we consummated the acquisitioBrobarq Corporation by issuing approximately $6I0dpi of CenturyLink common
stock (valued as of June 30, 2009). We financedmanger transaction expenses with (i) availablé edshe combined company and (ii) proce
from CenturyLink's and Embarq’s existing revolvinedit facilities. We acquired $76.9 million ofstein connection with our acquisition of
Embarq.

During 2008, we paid an aggregate of approxima#&K9 million for 69 licenses in the FCC'’s auctidri760 megahertz wireless
spectrum. Our plan has been to use the spectraevielop wireless voice and data service capasliti our markets, built upon LTE (Long-
Term Evolution) technology. The LTE network depimgnt plans of larger wireless carriers are drivimgst vendor activity, including the
availability of handsets and other end-user deviddserefore, we are monitoring their deploymeifore$ to help shape our plans for moving
forward.

In anticipation of making lump sum distributionsdertain participants of our SERP in early 2009 ligggidated our investments in
marketable securities in the SERP trust duringsttemnd quarter of 2008 and thereby increased shraed cash equivalents by $34.9 million.
noted above, the lump sum distributions were pai2l009 and aggregated approximately $54 million.

Financing activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $1.4ifln during 2010, $976.4 million during 2009 a$#55.4
million in 2008. In October 2010, we repaid 04B83.5 million Series H Senior Notes at its schedutaturity using borrowings under our
existing credit facility. In September 2009, weeied net proceeds of $644.4 million from the &we of $250 million of 10-year, 6.15% senior
notes and $400 million of 30-year, 7.6% senior sotim October 2009, the proceeds from these rftéeings, along with additional borrowings
under our existing credit facility, were used tpuechase an aggregate of $746.1 million of CentimiyLInc. and Embarq indebtedness (see Note
6 for additional information). During 2008, we gaiur $240 million Series F Senior Notes at magyiimarily using borrowings from our
credit facility.
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In June 2008, our Board of Directors (i) increasadannual cash dividend to $2.80 from $.27 pereshad (ii) declared a o-time



dividend of $.6325 per share, which was paid iy 20108, effectively adjusting the total second ¢eradividend to the new $.70 quarterly
dividend rate. In February 2010, our Board of Dioes further increased our quarterly dividend @25. per share. We paid dividends of $878.0
million in 2010, $560.7 million in 2009 and $220xdllion in 2008. Such increase is primarily attribble to the dividend rate increases
mentioned above and the substantial increase nesloaitstanding as a result of the common stodeds connection with our Embarg
acquisition on July 1, 2009. Based on currenturitstances, we intend to continue our current divdderactice, subject to any other factors that
our Board in its discretion deems relevant.

In accordance with previously announced stock remse programs, we repurchased 9.7 million shéze$347.3 million) in 2008.

As of December 31, 2010, we had available two wnsetrevolving credit facilities, (i) a five-yea@750 million facility of CenturyLink
and (ii) an $800 million facility of Embarqg. A$ December 31, 2010, we had approximately $365IDomioutstanding under these credit
facilities (all of which related to CenturyLink’agility).

In January 2011, we entered into a new four-yeaslvéng credit facility that allows us to borrow tip $1.0 billion initially with the total
capacity of the credit facility increasing to $billion upon the consummation of our pending acigjois of Qwest. Up to $400 million of this ne
credit facility can be used for letters of creditterest will be assessed on future borrowingsgitie London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
plus an applicable margin between .5% and 2.5%apeum depending on the type of loan and our themcusenior unsecured long-term debt
rating. Upon the execution of the new credit fagithe two credit facilities mentioned above weseminated. As of February 28, 2011, we had
$280 million outstanding under the new credit fiacil For additional information regarding our nevedit facility, see Note 22.

As was the case with our predecessor credit feed]i(i) outstanding letters of credit directly ued the amount available for other
extensions of credit under our new credit faciiityd (ii) outstanding borrowings under our comméngéper program, which effectively cannot
exceed the amount available under our new factitfgctively have the same result on our borrowdgagacity under the new facility. As of
February 28, 2011, approximately $61 million ofdes of credit were outstanding and no amounts wetstanding under our commercial paper
program.
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Other. For 2011, we have budgeted approximately $1.0ohilfor capital expenditures (excluding any capiddted to the integration
of the Embarq acquisition or the pending Qwest &ifijpn). Such increase over the $863.8 milliorcapital expenditures in 2010 is due to our
planned incremental fiber to the tower investmer2011. Our 2011 capital expenditure budget alstudes amounts for expanding our new
service offerings and our data networks. We culyexxpect aggregate integration-related capitpleexitures associated with our pending
Qwest acquisition will approximate $200 million ovke next two years.

The pension plan we assumed in our acquisitionnatb& q was approximately $667 million underfunded@mpared to the projected
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2010. I§timderfunded status continues, we may be reqtoredntribute additional funds to our pension
plan in the near future. To reduce the underfurmesition, in March 2010 we contributed $300 millim the legacy Embarqg pension plan using
cash on hand and borrowings from our credit facilitVe currently expect to contribute approximat&lyp0 million to the legacy Embarg pension
plan in 2011. For further information, see ltem 4Risk Factors, of this annual report.

The following table contains certain informatiomcerning our material contractual obligations aBetember 31, 2010.

Payments due by peric

After
Contractual 2015 and
obligations Total 2011 2012-201% 2014-201¢ Other
(Dollars in thousands
Long-term debt, including current maturities amagital
lease obligations (! $ 7,327,58 376,58: 1,146,06 381,79: 5,423,14
Interest on lon- term debt obligation $ 6,175,64 506,85¢ 946,27 834,09! 3,888,41.
Unrecognized tax benefits ( $ 76,99" - - - 76,997

(1) For additional information on the terms of autstanding debt instruments, see Note 6.

(2) Represents the amount of tax and interest addypay assuming we are required to pay the eatireunt that we have reserved for our
unrecognized tax benefits (see Note 13 for additiorfformation). The timing of any payments for amrecognized tax benefits cannot be
predicted with certainty; therefore, such amoumeftected in the “After 2015 and Other” columntire above table.

We continually evaluate the possibility of aggg additional communications operations andeetfo continue our long-term strategy
of pursuing the acquisition of attractively-priceammunications properties in exchange for cashyritegs or both. At any given time, we may
be engaged in discussions or negotiations regaatidgional acquisitions. We generally do not ammz our acquisitions or dispositions until
we have entered into a preliminary or definitiveesgment. We may require additional financing inreection with any such acquisitions, the
consummation of which could have a material immacour financial condition or operations. Approxitely 4.1 million shares of our common
stock and 200,000 shares of our preferred stoclireavailable for future issuance in connectiorhvaitquisitions under our acquisition shelf
registration statement. We also have access toatebequity capital markets.
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Following our announcement of our pending &itjan of Qwest, (i) Standard & Poor’s indicatétat our current long-term debt rating
of BBB- had been placed under watch for a possiblengrade; (ii) Moody’s Investors Service affirmear current long-term debt rating of Baa3,
but downgraded its outlook from stable to negatarg] (iii) Fitch Ratings has rated our long-ternbtd®BB- with a negative watch. It is expected
that any downgrades would be made only followirggehmpletion of the Qwest acquisition. Our comnatqgaper program is rated P-3 by
Moody’s and A-3 by S&P. Any downgrade in our ctadiings will increase our borrowing costs and odtment fees under our new revolving
credit facility. Downgrades could also restrict agcess to the capital markets, increase our Wamrgpcosts under new or replacement debt
financings, or otherwise adversely affect the teaffsiture borrowings by, among other things, imgiag the scope of our debt covenants and
decreasing our financial or operating flexibility.

The following table reflects our debt to tatabitalization percentage and ratio of earningsxtx charges and preferred stock dividends
as of and for the years ended December 31, 200 20d 2008. The debt to total capitalizationorér 2010 and 2009 reflects our Embarq
acquisition. The ratio of earnings to fixed chargad preferred stock dividends calculation for@6flects the operations of Embarqg only since
July 1, 2009.

2010 2009 2008
Debt to total capitalizatio 43.2% 45.C 51.2
Ratio of earnings to fixed chargeand preferred stock dividend 3.74 3.2C 3.7¢
* For purposes of the chart above, “earnings” catnsf income before income taxes (before extraamjiitem) and fixed charges, and “fixed
charges” include our interest expense, includingriized debt issuance costs, and our preferred stivedend costs.

Our debt to capitalization percentage will increapen acquiring Qwest, which has $11.947 billiodasigterm debt at December 31, 20
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REGULATION AND COMPETITION

The communications industry continues to ugdefarious fundamental regulatory, legislative, petitive and technological
changes. These changes may have a significanttropahe future financial performance of all cormizations companies.

Events affecting the communications industwireless telephone services increasingly cortstiéusignificant source of competition
with ILEC services, especially since wireless @agihave begun to compete effectively on the lEHgisice with more traditional telephone
services. Similarly, the growing prevalence oftaienic mail, text messaging, social networkingd aimilar digital communications continue to
reduce the demand for traditional landline voicwises. We anticipate these trends will continue.

Federal USF programs have undergone substantinfjesasince 1997, and are expected to experience changes in the coming
years. Since May 2001, the FCC has administesegkisting universal service support programs tioalrtelephone companies based on
embedded, or historical, costs. The FCC, in A20i0, proposed to replace the USF with a broadb@ondnect America” fund that would
modernize the current “voice only” funding mechamiand direct funding away from local voice serviteadvance broadband deployment in
areas unserved or underserved by broadband comatiom, and in February 2011 sought public commeagarding creating this new
broadband fund. These developments have placeticadd financial pressure on the amount of mortegt is necessary and available to provide
support to all eligible service providers, incluglipayments we receive from the USF High Cost Lamgmam. Increases in the nationwide
average cost per loop factor used to allocate fanasng all USF recipients caused our revenues fhen SF High Cost Loop program
(excluding the effects of the additional six montfiseceipts recorded in 2010 as compared to 20@%a the July 1, 2009 acquisition of Embarq)
to decrease in 2010 when compared to 2009. Weipaite that such revenues will continue to dedlin011. See Item 7 of Part Il of this annual
report for more information.

Technological developments have led to the devedopiraf new services that compete with traditioh&lC services. Technological
improvements have enabled cable television compdaiprovide alternatives to traditional circuitigsied telephone service over their cable
networks, and several national cable companies aggeessively pursued this opportunity. Improvetaémthe quality of VolP service have led
several cable, Internet, data and other commupitsitompanies, as well as start-up companies bstautially increase their offerings of VolP
service to business and residential customersP odviders frequently offer features that caneatily be provided by traditional ILECs and
may price their services at or below those pricgsently charged for traditional local and longtditzce telephone services. Although over the
several years the FCC has increasingly subjectetbps of VolP operations to federal regulation,|R@ervices currently operate under fewer
regulatory constraints than LEC services. Fothabe reasons, we cannot assure you that VolPdam.vill not successfully compete for our
customers.

Beginning in 2003, the FCC initiated a series afdor intercarrier compensation proceedings desitmetkate a uniform mechanism to be
used by the entire telecommunications industnpfyments between carriers originating, terminatorgzarrying telecommunications traffic. In
connection therewith, the FCC has received inteilmacompensation proposals from several industoyigs, and solicited public comments on a
variety of topics related to access charges amddatrier compensation. Most recently, on Febr8a3011, the FCC sought comments from the
public on proposals designed to lower intercac@mpensation rates. The ultimate outcome of th€'stercarrier compensation proceedings
could change the way we receive compensation feard remit compensation to, other carriers, ourwe® customers and the USF. As discussec
further in Item 1A of this annual report, thesemfs could substantially reduce the amount of reeenve receive with respect to various
services.
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During 2010, the FCC released its National Broadifalan and adopted an order imposing “network ity rules governing Internet
services, both of which are discussed in furthéaitlim Item 1 of this annual report.

As discussed further in such item, we cannot pteale ultimate outcome of these actions, but beligat these and other FCC initiatives
could have a material impact on our operationsthode of other communications companies.

Many cable, technology or other communication comgmathat previously offered a limited range ofvgmas are now, like us, offering
diversified bundles of services. As such, a grganomber of companies are competing to serve theramications needs of the same customer
base. Several of these companies may be ablevadprmore comprehensive or less costly servicallasrthan ours. Such activities will
continue to place downward pressure on the denmanauf access lines.

Recent events affecting uduring the last few years, most of the stateshiich we provide telephone services have takersli&ire
or regulatory steps to further introduce compastiiitto the ILEC business.

At the state level, we are responding to eaomplaints, legislation or generic investigasioegarding our intrastate switched access
rate levels in several of our states. Althougltomtes cannot be determined at this time, we bebevéntrastate switched access rate levels are
appropriate and we vigorously plan to defend thiémve are required to reduce our intrastate switichecess rates as a result of any of these
initiatives, we will seek to recover displaced siéd access revenues from state universal semcks for other services. However, the amount
of such recovery, if any, is not assured.

Over the past few years, each of the FCC, &l Service Administrative Company (“USAC”) areftain Congressional committees
has initiated wide-ranging reviews of the admirmistm of the federal USF. As part of this process, along with a number of other USF
recipients, have undergone a number of USF aud@shave also received requests for information ftlhenFCC’s Office of Inspector General
(“OIG™) and Congressional committees. In additionJuly 2008 we received a subpoena from the @igaiesting a broad range of information
regarding our depreciation rates and methodolagjiee 2000, and in July 2009 we received a secobgaena requesting information about our
participation in the Eate program for Wisconsin schools and librariessi2004. The OIG has not identified to us angigigassues with respe
to our participation in the USF program and all SAudits are finalized with no material issued régbregarding our participation in the USF
program. During 2010, USAC moved from the audiigeiss to a Payment Quality Assessment (“PQA”) mnogrWe continue to receive and
respond to these PQAs and to date no materialddsame been identified. While we believe our pgsttion is in compliance with FCC rules and
in accordance with accepted industry practicescavaot predict with certainty the timing or outcoafdhese various reviews.
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Excluding our pending acquisition of Qwest, we extpour operating revenues in 2011 to decline 200 levels as we continue to
experience downward pressure primarily due to coetil access line losses, reduced universal séaridéng and lower network access
revenues. We expect such revenue declines taelfy offset primarily due to increased demaaddur high-speed Internet service offering
and special access services.

For a more complete description of regulation amahgetition impacting our operations and variousrataint risks, please see Items 1 and
1A of this annual report.

Other matters. Through June 30, 2009, CenturyLink accountedt$oregulated telephone operations (except foptioperties
acquired from Verizon in 2002) in accordance wita provisions of codification ASC 980-10 (forme8¥#AS 71) which addresses regulatory
accounting under which actions by regulators cawide reasonable assurance of the recognition aefaat, reduce or eliminate the value of an
asset and impose a liability on a regulated enprOn July 1, 2009, we discontinued the accagmgquirements of regulatory accounting
upon the conversion of substantially all of oueraf-return study areas to federal price cap raguigbased on the FCC'’s approval of our
petition to convert our study areas to price caulaion).

In the third quarter of 2009, we recorded a netoash extraordinary after-tax gain of approximatdg6.0 million upon the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting. See Nétéor additional information.

We have certain obligations based on fedstate and local laws relating to the protectiothefenvironment. Costs of compliance
through 2010 have not been material, and we cuyrdotnot believe that such costs will become malter

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

For information pertaining to the our market riskalosure, see “ltem 7 - Management’s Discussiahfmalysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Market Risk”.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Report of Management

The Shareholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

Management has prepared and is responsibteddntegrity and objectivity of our consolidatigancial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accoedaith accounting principles generally acceptetheUnited States of America and
necessarily include amounts determined using ostrjbdgments and estimates.

Our consolidated financial statements have beeitealidy KPMG LLP, an independent registered puéticounting firm, who have
expressed their opinion with respect to the fasrneshe consolidated financial statements. Thedit was conducted in accordance with
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigltard (United States).

Management is responsible for establishing and tai@iimg adequate internal control over financigaing, a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation imfancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipleee Under the supervision and with the partitggaof management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the frameworklimiernal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission (“COSQ”). Based on our evatuatinder the framework of COS@anagement concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZ110. The effectiveness of our internal contrgdr financial reporting as of December 31,
2010 has been audited by KPMG LLP, as stated in teport which is included herein.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaibject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprmcedures may deteriorate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors ismqmosed of independent directors who are not officeremployees. The Committee
meets periodically with the external auditors, inté¢ auditors and management. The Committee cersttie independence of the external
auditors and the audit scope and discusses inteon&lol, financial and reporting matters. Both txternal and internal auditors have free access
to the Committee.

/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
March 1, 2011
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Reportof Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiaries lompany) as of December 31,
2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statsméincome, comprehensive income, cash flowd,stockholders’ equity for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December@®1.2n connection with our audits of the consdkdifinancial statements, we also have
audited the financial statement schedule as listéim 15a(2). These consolidated financial st&tet® and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaesibility is to express an opinion on these ctidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaelaUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thestmibbtain reasonable assurance about whethéintreial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digads in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentekhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteerferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, ancktudts of their operations and their cash flowsefach of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.Segally accepted accounting principles. Also in opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basisolidated financial statements taken as a wipodsents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stalsda the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2010, based on criteria establishédtérnal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations oftleadway Commission, and our report dated Mar@011 expressed an unqualified opin
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal mdmtver financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

KPMG LLP
Shreveport, Louisiana
March 1, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiar{ge® Company) internal control over financial repw as of December 31, 2010,
based on criteria establishedliternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway
Commission (COSO)The Company’s management is responsible for maiinigieffective internal control over financial refing and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomyag Report of ManagemenOur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Canys internal control over financial reporting beson our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedslof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet samdibtain reasonable assurance about whethatigenternal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our amdliuded obtaining an understanding of internaltamrover financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aaldi&ng the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audit also included performing such other proceslaewe considered necessary in the circumstavwmbelieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassiregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettifansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepigation of financial statements in accordanch generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the compempeing made only in accordance with authorizatimhmanagement and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancedieggsrevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaibject to the risk that controls may becomdenqaate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprmcedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fig@l reporting as of December 31,
2010, based on criteria establishedniternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the COSO.
82

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdzf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of CenturyLink, Ind.subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 20@Bthenrelated consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, cash flows, and badkrs’ equity for each of the years in the thyeer period ended December 31, 2010 and
our report dated March 1, 2011 expressed an urfgatipinion on those consolidated financial stagats.

/sl KPMG LLP
KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
March 1, 2011
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended December &

2010 2009 2008
(Dollars, except per share amounts, and shar s in
thousands
OPERATING REVENUES $ 7,041,53 4,974,23! 2,599,74
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Cost of services and products (exclusivdepreciation and amortizatio 2,410,04 1,752,08 955,47:
Selling, general and administrat 1,137,98! 1,014,34. 399,13t
Depreciation and amortization 1,433,55. 974,71( 523,78t
Total operating expenses 4,981,59 3,741,13 1,878,39!
OPERATING INCOME 2,059,94. 1,233,10. 721,35:.
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest expen: (557,479 (370,41, (202,21°)
Other income (expense) 29,61¢ (48,179 42,25
Total other income (expense) (527,859 (418,589 (159,969
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSI 1,532,08! 814,51: 561,38
Income tax expense 582,95! 301,88 194,35
INCOME BEFORE NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS AND EXTRAORNARY ITEM 949,13: 512,63: 367,03(
Noncontrolling interest (1,429) (1,377) (1,29¢)
NET INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEN 947,70! 511,25 365,73:
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expense asncontrolling interests (see Note 16) - 135,95 -
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CENTURYLINK, INC. $ 947,70! 647,21: 365,73.
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARI
Before extraordinary itel $ 3.1: 2.5t 3.5:
Extraordinary iten $ - .68 -
Basic earnings per she $ 3.1¢ 3.2¢ 3.52
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Before extraordinary itel $ 3.1¢ 2.5¢ 3.52
Extraordinary iten $ - .68 -
Diluted earnings per sha $ 3.13 3.2t 3.52
DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE $ 2.9C 2.8( 2.167¢
AVERAGE BASIC SHARES OUTSTANDING 300,61¢ 198,81: 102,26t
AVERAGE DILUTED SHARES OUTSTANDING 301,29 199,05° 102,56(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financa#stents.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December &
2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

NET INCOME BEFORENONCONTROLLING INTERESTS $ 949,13¢ 650,13: 367,03(

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXE
Marketable securitie
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, ne ($332) tax - - (539
Reclassification adjustment for gain includec net income, net of ($1,730) t - - (2,776
Derivative instrument:
Reclassification adjustment for gaimcluded in net income, net of $267, $267 a

$267 tax 42¢ 42¢ 42¢
Items related to employee benefit ple
Change in net actuarial loss, net of ($37,9($30,100 and ($48,656) t: (62,327 39,20¢ (82,50%)
Change in net prior service credit, net of ($1,3 ($5,798) and ($589) te (2,130 (9,307) (94%)
Reclassification adjustment for gains (loss included in net income
Amortization of net actuarial loss, net $5,845, $6,161 and $1,198 { 9,37¢ 9,88: 1,921
Amortization of net priservice credit, net of ($749), ($1,270) and 62,2
tax (1,207 (2,037) 3,621
Net change in otbemprehensive income (loss) (net of reclassificat
adjustment), net of taxes (55,84") 38,18: (80,787)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 893,28° 688,31t 286,24¢
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrgliimterests (1,429 (2,9272) (1,29¢)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CENTURYLINK|NC. $ 891,85¢ 685,39: 284,95(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31
2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivale $ 172,94: 161,80
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $60 &8d $47,45! 712,81 685,58
Income tax receivab 102,46! 115,68:-
Materials and supplies, at average 32,717 35,75¢
Deferred income tax as: 81,34: 83,31¢
Other 40,84¢ 41,43
Total current assets 1,143,12! 1,123,59
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN" 8,754,47 9,097,13!
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 10,260,64 10,251,75
Other intangible asse
Customer lis 929,90 1,130,81
Othe 310,17( 315,60:
Other asse ts 639,776 643,823
Total goodwill and other assets 12,140,49 12,341,99
TOTAL ASSETS $ 22,038,09 22,562,72

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of lor-term debr $ 11,58: 500,06!
Accounts payabl 299,61 394,68
Accrued expenses and other current liabsl
Salaries and bene! 159,25¢ 255,10¢
Other taxe 124,15} 98,74
Interes 104,15t 108,02(
Othe 121,82¢ 168,20:
Advance billings and customer deposits 190,44 182,37:
Total current liabilities 1,011,04. 1,707,19!
LONG-TERM DEBT 7,316,00- 7,253,65:
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxi 2,368,69: 2,256,57!
Benefit plan obligation 1,305,99 1,485,64.
Other deferred credits 389,19¢ 392,86(
Total deferred credits and otheriliabs 4,063,89. 4,135,08;

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized@@M000 shares, issued and outstanding 304,943,588

299,189,279 share 304,94¢ 299,18¢
Paiw-in capital 6,174,74. 6,014,05.
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, nétx (141,15) (85,30¢)
Retained earning 3,302,46! 3,232,76!
Preferred stoc- nor-redeemabls 23¢€ 23€
Noncontrolling interests 5,91¢ 5,86(

Total stockholders' equity 9,647,15! 9,466,79!

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 22,038,09 22,562,72

See accompanying notes to consolidated financa#istents.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to nehgarovided by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizati
Extraordinary itel

Gains on asset dispositions and digtion of marketable securiti

Deferred income tax
Shar-based compensatic
Income from unconsolidated cellulatity
Distributions from unconsolidatedlgkdr entity
Changes in current assets and culigilities:
Receivabl
Accounts payal
Accrued tax
Other current assets aherocurrent liabilities, ne
Retirement benef
Excess tax benefits from sl-based compensatic
(Increase) decrease in noncurrerdts
Increase (decrease) in other nonaufiabilities
Other, net

Net cash provided by ofiatpactivities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipn
Cash acquired from Embarqg acquisit
Purchase of wireless spectr
Proceeds from liquidation of marketable siias
Proceeds from sale of ass
Other, net

Net cash used in investwgvities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of del
Net proceeds from issuance of ¢
Cash dividend
Repurchase of common stc
Net proceeds from settlement of hec
Proceeds from issuance of common s
Excess tax benefits from sk-based compensatic
Other, net

Net cash used in financotjvities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.

87

Year ended December &

2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands
$ 949,13: 648,58t 367,03(
1,433,55. 974,711 523,78t
- (135,95)) -
- - (12,457)
131,76¢ 153,95( 67,51¢
38,16¢ 55,15! 16,39(
(16,369 (19,08 (12,04%)
16,02¢ 20,10( 15,96(
(27,22 (23,77%) (7,97¢)
(95,06¢) (32,209 14,04
38,19¢ (150,073 (64,77¢)
(127,539 121,38( (15,61%)
(271,309 (82,114 (26,06¢€)
(11,889 (4,194 (1,129
(22,98() (2,347 9,74¢
10,23: 41,64¢ (27,567)
- 7,944 6,444
2,044,70. 1,573,71 853,30(
(863,769 (754,544 (286,81)
- 76,90¢ -
- (2,000 (148,96
- - 34,94¢
- 1,59t 15,80¢
4,71¢ (801) (3,96¢)
(859,05 (678,844 (388,994
(499,93) (1,097,06) (285,40
73,80( 644,42: 563,11!
(878,004 (560,69 (220,26¢)
(16,515 (15,567) (347,269
- - 20,74¢
130,26¢( 56,82: 14,59¢
11,88« 4,19¢ 1,12¢
3,99: (8,507%) (2,03))
(1,174,51) (976,39)) (255,38()
11,13¢ (81,52() 208,92!
161,80 243,32° 34,40
$ 172,94: 161,80° 243,32°




CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Year ended December &

2010 2009 2008
(Dollars, except per share amounts, and shar s in
thousands
COMMON STOCK (represents dollars and sha
Balance at beginning of ye $ 299,18 100,27 108,49:
Issuance of common stock to acquire Embamp&ation - 196,08: -
Repurchase of common stc - - (9,62¢)
Conversion of preferred stock into commorcis! - - 367
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdit (460) (503%) (50)
Issuance of common stock through dividendwestment, incentive and benefit plans 6,21¢ 3,332 1,094
Balance at end of year 304,94¢ 299,18 100,27
PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of ye 6,014,05. 39,96: 91,147
Issuance of common stock to acquire Embamgp&ation, including
portion of sha-basedcompensation awar@ssumed by CenturyLir - 5,873,90. -
Repurchase of common stc - - (91,409
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdit (16,059 (15,060 (1,667)
Conversion of preferred stock into commorck! - - 6,36¢
Issuance of common stock through dividendwestment, incentive and benefit plz 124,04 53,49 13,50¢
Excess tax benefits from sk-based compensatic 11,88¢ 4,19¢ 1,12
Shar-based compensatic 38,16¢ 55,15 16,39(
Other 2,652 2,40¢ 4,50:
Balance at end of year 6,174,74. 6,014,05. 39,96
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS,
NET OF TAX
Balance at beginning of ye (85,30¢) (123,489 (42,70))
Net change in other comprehensive loss (hetaassification adjustment), net of tax (55,84") 38,18 (80,787)
Balance at end of year (141,157) (85,30¢) (123,489
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of ye 3,232,76! 3,146,25! 3,245,30.
Net income attributable to CenturyLink, Ii 947,70! 647,21. 365,73.
Repurchase of common stc - - (244,51)
Cash dividends declar
Common stoc- $2.90, $2.80 and $2.1675 per sh (877,99) (560,68) (220,08t)
Preferred stock (12) (12) (180)
Balance at end of year 3,302,46! 3,232,76! 3,146,25!
PREFERRED STOCH NON-REDEEMABLE
Balance at beginning of ye 23€ 23€ 6,971
Conversion of preferred stock into commortksto - - (6,73
Balance at end of year 23€ 23€ 23€
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Balance at beginning of peri 5,86( 4,56¢ 6,60¢
Net income attributable to noncontrollingerésts 1,42¢ 1,377 1,29¢
Extraordinary gain attributable to noncontng interests - 1,54t -
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (1,377) (1,630 (3,335
Balance at end of period 5,91¢ 5,86( 4,56¢
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 9,647,15 9,466,79! 3,167,80:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasgstents.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PACIES

Principles of consolidatio- Our consolidated financial statements includeabeounts of CenturyLink, Inc. (“CenturyLink”) artd majority-
owned subsidiaries.

Embarq acquisitior- On July 1, 2009, we acquired Embarq Corporati@mparg”) through a merger transaction, with Embarq survithgmer
as a whollyewned subsidiary of CenturyLink. The results oéxgiions of Embarq are included in our consolidaésailts of operations beginni
July 1, 2009. See Note 2 for additional informatielated to the Embarq acquisition.

Discontinuance of regulatory accounti— Through June 30, 2009, CenturyLink accountedtéaregulated telephone operations (except for the
properties acquired from Verizon in 2002) in aceorck with the provisions of regulatory accountinger which certain of our assets and
liabilities were required to be recorded and, adicmly, reflected in the balance sheets of our lagd entities. On July 1, 2009, we discontinued
the accounting requirements of regulatory accogntiipon the conversion of substantially all of caterof-return study areas to federal price cap
regulation. In the third quarter of 2009, upon digcontinuance of regulatory accounting, we reedrd non-cash extraordinary gain in our
consolidated statements of income of $136.0 miléifter-tax. See Note 16 for additional information

Subsequent to the July 1, 2009 discontinuancegeflaéory accounting, all intercompany transactiith affiliates have been eliminated
from the consolidated financial statements. Rwafuly 1, 2009, intercompany transactions wittutated affiliates subject to regulatory
accounting were not eliminated in connection witbgaring the consolidated financial statements/lasved by the provisions of regulatory
accounting. The amount of intercompany revenuescasts that were not eliminated related to tret fialf of 2009 approximated $114 million.

Estimates- The preparation of financial statements in comiity with generally accepted accounting principleguires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartexlints of assets and liabilities and disclosureafingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts/enues and expenses during the reporting pedadual results may differ from those
estimates.

Revenue recognitic- Revenues are generally recognized when servieggravided or when products are delivered to custs. Revenue that is
billed in advance includes monthly recurring netlaccess services, special access services andhlsnoedurring local line charges. The
unearned portion of this revenue is initially deéeras a component of advance billings and custdeyosits on our balance sheet and recognizec
as revenue over the period that the services arddad. Revenue that is billed in arrears inclusl@gched access services, nonrecurring network
access services, nonrecurring local services argldistance services. The earned but unbilledgrodf this revenue is recognized as revenue in
the period that the services are provided. Werdiffmdle discounts to our customers who receiviiregroupings of services. These bundle
discounts are recognized concurrently with the eiased revenues and are allocated to the variawgcss in the bundled offering based on the
relative fair value of services included in eacindiled combination. Revenues from installation\dtitis are deferred and recognized as revenue
over the estimated life of the customer relatiopshiihe costs associated with such installatioivities, up to the related amount of deferred
revenue, are deferred and recognized as an opgetpense over the same period. We offer somaupte@nd services that are provided by
third-party vendors. We review the relationshipween us, the vendor and the end customer to asdether revenue should be reported on a
gross or net basis. In assessing whether revdrawddsbe reported on a gross or net basis, we densihether we act as a principal in the
transaction, take title to the products, have aisl rewards of ownership, and act as an ageno&ehr
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Allowance for doubtful accoun. In evaluating the collectibility of our accoumezeivable, we assess a number of factors, intduaispecific
customer’s or carrier’s ability to meet its finaaloobligations to us, the length of time the reabie has been past due and historical collection
experience. Based on these assessments, we texthrdpecific and general reserves for uncolleet#lcounts receivable to reduce the statec
of applicable accounts receivable to the amountlvmately expect to collect.

Property, plant and equipme— As discussed in Note 2, the property acquirecbimection with the acquisition of Embarqg was rdedrbased on
its fair value. Substantially all other telephgaiant is stated at original cost. Normal retiretsesf telephone plant are charged against
accumulated depreciation, along with the costewofaval, less salvage, with no gain or loss recaghiZRenewals and betterments of plant and
equipment are capitalized while repairs, as wetkagwals of minor items, are charged to operakmense. Depreciation of telephone plant is
provided on the straight line method using classvarall group rates; such average annual rategeraiom 2% to 29%.

Non-telephone property is stated at cost eu@n sold or retired, a gain or loss is recogniZéte depreciate such property on the
straight line method over estimated service liaging from two to 35 years.

We perform annual internal studies to determinediygreciable lives for our property, plant and pquent. Our studies utilize models that
take into account actual usage, replacement histodyassumptions about technology evolution tored# the remaining life of our asset
base. The changes in our estimates incorporatadesult of our 2010 internal study did not havaeaderial impact on the level of our
depreciation expense.
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Goodwill and other long-lived assetsGoodwill recorded in a business combination igined to be reviewed for impairment and to be temit
down only in periods in which the recorded amourgaodwill exceeds its fair value. Applicable anoting guidance also stipulates certain
factors to consider regarding whether or notggeting event has occurred that would require pevémce of an interim goodwill impairment
test. We test impairment of goodwill at least aallyuby comparing the fair value of the reportingjtuo its carrying value (including goodwill).
We base our estimates of the fair value of thentépunit on valuation models using criterion sashmultiples of earnings. See Note 4 for
additional information. Other long-lived assetsolesive of goodwill) are reviewed for impairmenbh@never events and circumstances indicate
that such carrying amount cannot be recoverabkesbgssing the recoverability of the carrying vallweugh undiscounted net cash flows expe
to be generated by the assets.

Income taxe- We file a consolidated federal income tax retwith our eligible subsidiaries. We use the asseétlability method of accounting

for income taxes under which deferred tax assetdiahilities are established for the future taxsequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of assedsliabilities and their respective tax basese éstablish valuation allowances when necessary
to reduce deferred income tax assets to the amthattsve believe are more likely than not to beveced.

Postretirement and pension pla— We recognize the overfunded or underfunded stztosr defined benefit and postretirement planaraasset

or a liability on our balance sheet, with an adjestt to stockholders’ equity (reflected as an iaseeor decrease in accumulated other
comprehensive income or loss) for the accumulattabaial gains or losses. Pension and postretintipenefit expenses are recognized over the
period in which the employee renders service andtes eligible to receive benefits. We make §igant assumptions (including the discount
rate, expected rate of return on plan assets aalthheare trend rates) in computing the pensionpsiretirement benefits expense and
obligations. See Notes 11 and 12 for additionfalrimation.

Stock-based compensatierWWe measure our cost of awarding employees witltyemstruments based upon allocations of thevalue of the
award on the grant date. See Note 15 for additiof@mation.

Derivative financial instrument We account for derivative instruments and hedgictgities in accordance with applicable accountjuidance
which requires that all derivative instruments,tsas interest rate swaps, be recognized in thadiabstatements and measured at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent of holding th&n the date a derivative contract is entereal vk designate the derivative as either (i) a fair
value hedge, which involves a hedge of the fainealf a recognized asset or liability or of an eognized firm commitment or (ii) a cash flow
hedge, which involves a hedge of a forecasted adius or the variability of cash flows to be re@al or paid related to a recognized asset or
liability. We also formally assess, both at theldgs inception and on an ongoing basis, whetleed¢hivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting fes in fair values or cash flows of hedged itdfnse determine that a derivative is not, or is no
longer, highly effective as a hedge, we would digtme hedge accounting prospectively. We recagalkzderivatives on the balance sheet at
their fair value. Changes in the fair value ofidative financial instruments are either recognizedhcome or stockholders’ equity (as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtoses)), depending on the use of the derivativit\ahether it qualifies for hedge
accounting. We do not hold or issue derivativafiicial instruments for trading or speculative pgg® Management periodically reviews

our exposure to interest rate fluctuations and ém@nts strategies to manage the exposure. Se&Natadditional information.
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Earnings per shar— We determine basic earnings per share amourtsedvasis of the weighted average number of conshares outstanding
during the applicable accounting period. Dilutednéngs per share gives effect to all potentialtdie common shares that were outstanding
during the period . See Note 14 for additionabrniation.

Cash equivalentsWe consider short-term investments with a matwaitdate of purchase of three months or less wabk equivalents.

Recent accounting pronounceme- In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Séatisl Board updated the accounting standard regardin
revenue recognition for multiple deliverable arramgnts, such as the service bundles we offer teustomers. This update requires the use of
the relative selling price method when allocatiagenue in these types of arrangements. This metthoas a vendor to use its best estimate of
selling price if neither vendor specific objectieidence nor third party evidence of selling pesésts when evaluating multiple deliverable
arrangements. This standard update is effectivealgrl, 2011 and may be adopted prospectivelydeemue arrangements entered into or
materially modified after the date of adoption etrospectively for all revenue arrangements fopatiods presented. We currently do not expect
this standard update to have a material impactuwrconsolidated financial statements.

In January 2010, we adopted the accounting stangatdte regarding fair value measurements andodisi@s, which requires additional
disclosures and explanations for transfers of fif@rassets and liabilities between certain leiretbe fair value hierarchy. The adoption of this
accounting standard update did not have a materct on our consolidated financial statements.

Reclassification— Certain amounts for prior periods have been reiflad4o conform to current year presentation, urdthg the reclassification
certain revenue components as more fully desciibétbte 20.

@) EMBARQ ACQUISITION

On July 1, 2009, we acquired Embarq through a niérgesaction, with Embarqg surviving the mergeaasholly-owned subsidiary of
CenturyLink. We accounted for such acquisitionspiant to Financial Accounting Standards Board guédan business combinations, which
requires an acquiring entity to recognize all & #ssets acquired and liabilities assumed in adrdion at the acquisition date fair value with
limited exceptions. Such guidance also change@c¢heunting treatment for certain specific itemsjuding acquisition costs, acquired conting
liabilities, restructuring costs, deferred tax assduation allowances and income tax uncertairdféar the acquisition date and is effective for us
for all business combinations with acquisition daéer January 1, 200
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As a result of the acquisition, each outstandirgyestof Embarg common stock was converted intoitd to receive 1.37 shares of
CenturyLink common stock (“CTL common stock”), withsh paid in lieu of fractional shares. Basedhennumber of CenturyLink common
shares issued to consummate the merger (196.bnjjlihe closing stock price of CTL common stoclofidune 30, 2009 ($30.70) and the pre-
combination portion of share-based compensation@gsassumed by CenturyLink ($50.2 million), the i@ggite merger consideration
approximated $6.1 billion. The premium paid byiruthis transaction is attributable to strategiadfés, including enhanced financial and
operational scale, market diversification, leverthgembined networks and improved competitive positig. None of the goodwill associated
with this transaction is deductible for income paxposes.

The results of operations of Embarq are includeslinconsolidated results of operations beginnirig I, 2009. Approximately $4.866
billion and $2.563 billion of operating revenueskrfibarg are included in our consolidated resulispeafrations for 2010 and 2009,
respectively. CenturyLink was the accounting acgun this transaction. We have recognized Enbassets and liabilities at their acquisition
date estimated fair values. The assignment off addue to the assets acquired and liabilitiesiassd of Embarq (and the related estimated lives
of depreciable tangible and identifiable intangi@$sets) require a significant amount of judgmditite fair value of property, plant and equipm
and identifiable intangible assets were determbeeed upon analysis performed by an independematiah firm. The fair value of pension and
postretirement obligations was determined by inddpat actuaries. The fair value of long-term deas determined by management based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, using the ratesnaairities of these obligations compared to termsrates currently available in the long-term
financing markets at the time of acquisition. éther fair value determinations, which consistedhprily of Embarq’s current assets, current
liabilities and deferred income taxes, were madenapagement. Upon the end of the measurementjpieritune 2010, we assigned the follow
final fair value amounts to the assets acquiredliabilities assumed for the Embarq acquisition.
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Fair value

as of July 1,
2009

(Dollars in

thousands
Current assets $ 675,72
Property, plant and equipme 6,077,67.

Identifiable intangible asse

Customer lis 1,098,001
Rights of way 268,47.
Other (trademarks, internally developed safty licenses 26,817
Other nol-current assel 24,13:
Current liabilities (837,13))
Long-term debt, including current maturiti (4,886,70)
Other lon¢-term liabilities (2,621,49)
Goodwill 6,244,96
Total purchase price $ 6,070,44!

* Includes a fair value of $440 million assignedaizounts receivable which had a gross contragalaé of $492 million as of July 1, 2009. The
$52 million difference represents our best estinaatef July 1, 2009 of the contractual cash fldwe tvould not be collected.

We recognized approximately $88 million of liabés arising from contingencies as of the acquisitate on the basis that it was probable
that a liability had been incurred and the amowuia be reasonably estimated. Such contingencieggly relate to transaction and property tax
contingencies and contingencies arising from lglidfisputes with various parties in the communicetimdustry.

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortitan presents the combined results of CenturyLimt Embarq as though the acquisii
had been consummated as of January 1, 2009 and r&3p&ctively, for the two periods presented below

Twelve months
ended December 3
2009 2008
(Dollars, except per share
amounts, in thousand

Operating revenue $ 7,645,000 8,289,00!
Income before extraordinary ite $ 895,00( 1,087,001
Basic earnings per share before extraordinary $ 3.0C 3.5¢
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinam $ 2.9¢ 3.5¢

These results include certain adjustments, primdrik to adjustments to depreciation and amortinadssociated with the property, plant
and equipment and identifiable intangible assatseased retiree benefit costs due to the remeasuteof the benefit obligations, and the related
income tax effects. Pro forma operating revenoeshfe year ended December 31, 2009 include appaiely $104 million of revenues that
would have been eliminated had our July 1, 2008adisnuance of the application of regulatory acdmgbeen effective as of January 1,

2009. The pro forma information does not necelysaaflect the actual results of operations hadabguisition been consummated at



beginning of the period indicated nor is it necesandicative of future operating results. Ottthan those actually realized during the last
half of 2009, the pro forma information does nategéffect to any potential revenue enhancementesirsynergies or other operating efficiencies
that have resulted or could result from the actjaisi
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During 2010 and 2009, we recognized an aggregaapmioximately $121.7 million and $253.7 millioespectively, of integration,
transaction and other costs related to the Embagqisition, including costs associated with systerd customer conversions, employee-related
severance and benefit costs, investment bankelegatifees associated with the merger closing,baadding costs associated with changing our
trade name to CenturyLink.

In connection with consummating the Embarq acquoisiton July 1, 2009, we amended our charter telifinate our time-phase voting
structure, which previously entitled persons whodjieially owned shares of our common stock cortimly since May 30, 1987 to ten votes per
share, and (ii) increase the authorized numbehafes of our common stock from 350 million to 80ilian. As so amended and restated, our
charter provides that each share of our commork ssoentitled to one vote per share with respeetach matter properly submitted to shareho
for their vote, consent, waiver, release or otlioa.

On January 23, 2009, Embarg amended its Creditehgeat to effect, upon completion of the mergeraaver of the event of default that
would have arisen under the Credit Agreement salelg result of the merger and enabled the Cregiitdment, as amended, to remain in plac
the merger. Previously, in connection with agrgeémacquire Embarg, we had entered into a comnnithe¢ter with various lenders which proy
for an $800 million bridge facility that would habeen available to, among other things, refinarmwedwings under the Credit Agreement in the
event a waiver of the event of default arising fritvea consummation of the merger could not have bétmined and other financing was
unavailable. On January 23, 2009, we terminateccttmmitment letter and paid an aggregate of $8l®mto the lenders. Such amount is ref
as an expense (in Other income (expense)) in 2009.

3) PENDING ACQUISITION OF QWEST

On April 21, 2010, we entered into a definitive @gmnent under which we propose to acquire Qwest Qoritations International Inc.
(“Qwest”) in a tax-free stock-for-stock transactiodnder the terms of the agreement, Qwest shateroWill receive 0.1664 CenturyLink shares
for each share of Qwest common stock they ownaairy. CenturyLink shareholders are expected to approximately 50.5% and Qwest
shareholders are expected to own approximately?4®Hthe combined company at closing. As of Decen#i, 2010, Qwest had outstanding
approximately (i) 1.764 billion shares of commoacktand (ii) $11.947 billion of long-term debt.

Completion of the transaction is subject to thesijgicof regulatory approvals, including approvatsti the Federal Communications
Commission and certain state public service comonss as well as other customary closing conditioBebject to these conditions, we anticipate
closing this transaction on April 1, 2011. If tinerger agreement is terminated under certain cistameces, we may be obligated to pay Qwest a
termination fee of $350 million or Qwest may beighated to pay CenturyLink a termination fee of $3&illion.
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4 GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill and other assets at Decembef810 and 2009 were composed of the following:

December 31 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands

Goodwill $ 10,260,64 10,251,75
Intangible assets subject to amortizat
Customer list, less accumulated amortizadibn

$349,402 and $148,4¢ 929,90 1,130,81
Other, less accumulated amortization of $8,29
and $22,46t¢ 41,67( 47,10:
Intangible assets not subject to amortiza 268,50( 268,50(
Billing system development costs, less accumulat:
amortization
of $73,735 and $61,6" 162,80¢ 174,87.
Investment in 700 MHz wireless spectrum licer 149,42! 149,42!
Deferred costs associated with installation adés 114,37! 91,86¢
Cash surrender value of life insurance contr 99,46: 100,94!
Investment in unconsolidated cellular partners 33,01¢ 32,67¢
Other 80,68¢ 94,03:

$ 12,140,49 12,341,99

Our goodwill was derived from numerous previousuisitions whereby the purchase price exceededainedlue of the net assets
acquired. The change in the balance of goodvathfDecember 31, 2009 is attributable to the fzalon of the assignment of fair value to
Embargs assets and liabilities acquired (primarily certzontingent liabilities and deferred income tafiealized within the measurement peric
connection with our July 1, 2009 acquisition of Eartp



The vast majority of our goodwill is attributabte dur telephone operations, which we internallyrafeeand manage based on five geog
regions which were established in connection withacquisition of Embarg. We test for goodwillgairment for our telephone operations at the
region level due to the similar economic charast@&s of the individual reporting units that congerieach region. Impairment of goodwill is te
comparing the fair value of the reporting unitt®dgarrying value (including goodwill). Estimatefsthe fair value of the reporting unit of our
telephone operations are based on valuation madélg techniques such as multiples of earningso(bdhterest, taxes and depreciation and
amortization). We also evaluate goodwill impairmehour other operations primarily based on midspof earnings and revenues. If the fair
of the reporting unit is less than the carryinguegala second calculation is required in which thglied fair value of goodwill is compared to its
carrying value. If the implied fair value of gooilivis less than its carrying value, goodwill mio& written down to its implied fair value.

As of September 30, 2010, we completed our anmugdirment test of goodwill and concluded that coodwill was not impaired as of tt
date and we believe that no events have occurteskguent to that date that would impact our amalylsiowever, as of September 30, 2010, the
estimated fair value of the Southern region exceédecarrying value by less than 10%. Should &/encur (such as continued access line losse:
or other revenue reductions) that would causealhreséllue to decline below its carrying value, waynte required to record a non-cash charge to
earnings during the period in which the impairmierdetermined.
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We are amortizing our customer list intangible asssociated with our Embarq acquisition over asrage of 10 years using an acceler:
method of amortization (sum-of-thears digits) to more closely match the estimatshdlow generated by such asset. Our remainiatpmer |
intangible assets are being amortized over a rah§el5 years using the straight-line amortizatiogthod. Effective July 1, 2009 we changed the
assessment of useful life for our franchise ridham indefinite to 20 years (straighitte). We periodically evaluate our customer iligangible as
to insure that our current amortization method emaining useful lives are appropriate.

Total amortization expense related to the intamgégsets subject to amortization for 2010 was 820@lion and is expected to be $185.6
million for 2011, $164.5 million for 2012, $145.2lhkon for 2013, $126.0 million in 2014 and $1068llion in 2015 (based on intangible asse
at December 31, 2010).

In connection with our acquisition of Embarg, wéabtished an intangible asset associated with-odfway and other real estate
agreements of approximately $268.5 million. Weeéhaoncluded that such asset has an indefinitafitetherefore is currently not being
amortized. We annually review this asset for poatimpairment.

We accounted for the costs to develop an integtaitilg and customer care system in accordanck agiplicable accounting guidance
related to internally developed software. Aggregzatpitalized costs (before accumulated amortiaatmtaled $236.5 million and are being
amortized over a twenty-year period.

The costs associated with installation activities@deferred and recognized as an operating expemesahe estimated life of the customer
relationship (10 years). Such costs are only defeto the extent of the related deferred revenue.

During 2008, we paid an aggregate of approxima&K9 million for 69 licenses in the FCC’s auctidri760 megahertz wireless
spectrum. We annually review this asset for pidéimpairment.
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5) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Net property, plant and equipment at Decen3ie2010 and 2009 was composed of the following:

December 31 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands
Cable and wirt $ 8,194,39. 8,133,83
Central office 5,082,85! 4,611,40
General suppo! 2,199,52! 1,873,52!
Fiber transpor 370,19¢ 343,20t
Information origination/terminatio 104,83: 85,02¢
Construction in progres 271,73t 430,11
Other 105,71: 79,64:
16,329,24 15,556,76
Accumulated depreciation (7,574,76) (6,459,62)
Net property, plant and equipme $ 8,754,47 9,097,13!

Depreciation expense was $1.227 billion, $838.8ioniland $506.9 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008 pexgively.
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(6) Long-term Debt
Our long-term debt as of December 31,028nd 2009 was as follows:

December 31 2010 2009




(Dollars in thousands

CenturyLink
.82%* Senior credit facilit 365,00( 291,20(
Senior notes and debentul
7.20% Series D, due 2( 100,00( 100,00(
6.875% Series G, due 2( 425,00( 425,00(
8.375% Series - 482,471
7.875% Series L, due 2( 317,53( 317,53(
5.0% Series M, due 2C 350,00t 350,00(
6.0% Series N, due 2C 500,00( 500,00(
5.5% Series O, due 2( 175,66! 175,66!
7.6% Series P, due 2( 400,00( 400,00(
6.15% Series Q, due 2( 250,00t 250,00t
Unamortized net discou (4,205) (5,33))
Unamortized premium associated with
derivative instruments
Series H senior nol - 2,24(
Series L senior notes 5,73¢ 9,182
Total CenturyLink 2,884,72! 3,297,95!
Subsidiaries
Embarq Corporatic
Senior note
6.738% due 20 528,25¢ 528,25¢
7.1%, due 20 2,000,001 2,000,001
8.0%, due 20 1,485,001 1,485,001
8.1%* Other, due through 2C 522,22: 524,27.
Unamortized net discot (174,99) (178,159
First mortgage del
5.40%* notes, payable to agenciethef
U. S. government and
cooperative lending associations ih
installments through 20z 82,27( 94,60:
Other deb
10.0% note 10C 10C
Capital lease obligations - 1,68t
Total subsidiaries 4,442 85: 4,455,76,
Total lon¢-term debt 7,327,58 7,753,71
Less current maturities 11,58 500,06!
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities 7,316,00- 7,253,65.

* Weighted average interest rate at December 310 20

The approximate annual debt maturities for the figars subsequent to December 31, 2010 are awfIlR011 - $11.6 million; 2012 -
$327.6 million; 2013 - $818.5 million; 2014 - $3Idllion and 2015 $715.3 million.

Certain of our loan agreements contaimous restrictions, among which are limitatioagarding issuance of additional debt, payment of
cash dividends, reacquisition of capital stock atiter matters. In addition, the transfer of fufrdsn certain consolidated subsidiaries to
CenturyLink is restricted by various loan agreermer8ubsidiaries which have loans from governmgaheies and cooperative lending
associations, or have issued first mortgage bayetserally may not loan or advance any funds to @ghink, but may pay dividends if certain
financial ratios are met. At December 31, 2010¢fbur consolidated retained earnings reflectedhe balance sheet was available under our
loan agreements for the declaration of dividends.
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The senior notes and debentures of CenturyLinknedeto above were issued under an indenture dasedh 31, 1994. This indenture
does not contain any financial covenants, but doaade restrictions that limit our ability to (f)cur, issue or create liens upon our property and
(ii) consolidate with or merge into, or transferl@ase all or substantially all of its assets to, ather party. The indenture does not contain any
provisions that are impacted by our credit ratirggghat restrict the issuance of new securitiehéevent of a material adverse change to us.

Embarq’s senior notes were issued pursuant todeninre dated as of May 17, 2006. While Embaggiserally prohibited from creating
liens on its property unless its senior notes aceied equally and ratably, Embarg can create berits property without equally and ratably
securing its senior notes so long as the sum afiddibtedness so secured does not exceed 15% alrgimloonsolidated net tangible assets. The
indenture contains customary events of defaulterafrwhich are impacted by Embasgredit rating. The indenture does not containfarancia
covenants or restrictions on the ability to issae/securities in accordance with the terms of tigenture.

Various of our other subsidiaries have outstandinisg mortgage bonds or unsecured debentures. Eaah of these first mortgage bonds
are secured by substantially all of the propergnpand equipment of the issuing subsidiary. rdgpnately 50% of our property, plant and
equipment is pledged to secure the long-term diedalosidiaries.

In September 2009, CenturyLink and its wh-owned subsidiary, Embarg, commenced joint debteenffers under which they offered



purchase up to $800 million of their outstandingeso In October 2009, (i) Embarqg purchased feh@171.7 million principal amount of
its 6.738% Notes due 2013 and (ii) CenturyLink fmased for cash $74.3 million principal amount sf5t5% Series O Senior Notes, due 2013,
$182.5 million principal amount of its 7.875% SerleSenior Notes, due 2012, and $17.5 million ppatamount of its 8.375% Series H Senior
Notes, due 2010. Due primarily to the premiumsl paiconnection with these debt extinguishmentsreeerded a or-time pre-tax charge of
approximately $61 million in the fourth quarter2i09 related to the completion of the tender ofessich is reflected in other income (expense)
and interest expense on our consolidated stateroéimsome).

We funded these debt tender offers with net preceé#644.4 million from the September 2009 isseawic(i) $250 million of 10-year,
6.15% Series Q senior notes and $400 million of&&F, 7.6% Series P senior notes and (ii) additibbaerowings under our existing revolving
credit facility.
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As of December 31, 2010, we had available two unsetrevolving credit facilities, (i) a five-ye&@750 million facility of CenturyLink
and (ii) an $800 million facility of Embarqg. A$ December 31, 2010, we had approximately $365IDomioutstanding under these credit
facilities (all of which related to CenturyLink’agility).

In January 2011, we entered into a new four-yeaslvéng credit facility that allows us to borrow tip $1.0 billion initially with the total
capacity of the credit facility increasing to $billion upon the consummation of our pending acigjois of Qwest. Up to $400 million of this ne
credit facility can be used for letters of creditterest will be assessed on future borrowingsgitie London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
plus an applicable margin between .5% and 2.5%peum depending on the type of loan and our themcusenior unsecured long-term debt
rating. Upon the execution of the new credit fagithe two credit facilities mentioned above wéseminated. As a result of the execution of the
new credit facility in early 2011, the amount oatsling under our predecessor credit facility aBefember 31, 2010 has been reflected in long-
term debt. As of February 28, 2011, we had $280amioutstanding under the new credit facilityorfadditional information regarding our new
replacement credit facility, see Note 22.

As was the case with our predecessor credit fes|i(i) outstanding letters of credit directly ued the amount available for other
extensions of credit under our new credit faciéityd (ii) outstanding borrowings under our commengéger program, which effectively cannot
exceed the amount available under our new factitfigctively have the same result on our borrowdgagacity under the new facility. As of
February 28, 2011, approximately $61 million ofdes of credit were outstanding and no amounts wetstanding under our commercial paper
program.

) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In 2003, we entered into four separate fair vahterest rate hedges associated with the full $80n principal amount of our Series
senior notes, due 2012, that pay interest at a fiage of 7.875%. These hedges were “fixed toatdel’ interest rate swaps that effectively
converted our fixed rate interest payment obligetiander these notes into obligations to pay vhriedies. In January 2008, we terminated all of
our existing “fixed to variable” interest rate sveagssociated with the full $500 million principaheunt of our Series L senior notes. In
connection with the termination of these derivaiwse received aggregate cash payments of appredin®25.6 million, which has been
reflected as a premium of the associated long-tirht and is being amortized as a reduction of@stezxpense through 2012 using the effective
interest method. In addition, in January 2008 alg® terminated certain other derivatives that wextedeemed to be effective hedges. Upon the
termination of these derivatives, we paid an agageegf approximately $4.9 million (and recorded3ad$million pre-tax charge in the first quarter
of 2008 related to the settlement of these deriea)i During 2010 and as of December 31, 201(adeno derivative instruments outstanding.
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(8) DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIE

Deferred credits and other liabilities at Deter 31, 2010 and 2009 were composed of the fatigwi

December 31 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands

Deferred federal and state income

taxes $ 2,368,69 2,256,57
Accrued pension cos 802,09( 960,61(
Accrued postretirement benefit co 503,90° 525,03:
Deferred revenu 147,75¢ 136,96
Unrecognized tax benefits for
uncertain tax position 66,50: 83,93:
Casualty insurance reser 64,18 60,66¢
Other 110,75! 111,29:
$ 4,063,89 4,135,08:

For additional information on deferred fedeaall state income taxes, accrued pension costaanded postretirement benefit costs, see
Notes 13, 12 and 11, respective

9) REDUCTIONS IN WORKFORCE



During each of the last three years, we have arcexliworkforce reductions primarily due to (i) inesed competitive pressures and the
loss of access lines over the last several yeidrprdgression or completion of our Embarg and Mad River integration plans; and (iii) the
elimination of certain customer service personm& t reduced call volumes. In connection thefgwite incurred pre-tax operating expense
charges of approximately $27.3 million in 2010, $8@illion in 2009 and $2.0 million in 2008 for sance and related costs.

The following table reflects additional informatioegarding the severance-related liability for 202@09 and 2008 (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 1,83t
Amount accrued to expen 2,04¢
Amount paid (2,089
Balance at December 31, 20 1,79¢
Severanc-related liability assumed in Embarqg acquisit 31,08¢
Amount accrued to expen 80,58(
Amount paid (44,899
Balance at December 31, 20 68,56¢
Amount accrued to expen 27,25¢
Amount paid (717,82))
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 18,00
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(10) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock Unissued shares of CenturyLink common stock weserved as follows:

December 31 2010
(In thousands

Incentive compensation

programs 25,24t

Acquisitions 4,064

Employee stock purchase pl 3,99(

Dividend reinvestment pla 59t

Conversion of convertible

preferred stock 13
33,90°

In January 2009, in connection with the specialtingeof shareholders to approve share issuancesnnection with our acquisition of
Embarq, our shareholders approved a charter amaridmeliminate certain special voting rights afigeterm shareholders upon the
consummation of the Embarq acquisition. On JulgQ09, we issued 196.1 million shares of Centuryldaknmon stock in connection with the
acquisition of Embarq. See Note 2 for addition&rmation.

In accordance with previously-announced stegkirchase programs, we repurchased 9.7 millioresi#or $347.3 million) in 2008.

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stadsi®@oard issued guidance regarding noncontrolligrésts in consolidated financ
statements, which requires noncontrolling interéstse recognized as equity in the consolidateainfomal statements. In addition, net income
attributable to such noncontrolling interests iguieed to be included in consolidated net incorbis guidance was effective for our 2009 fiscal
year and prior periods have been adjusted to tetfiéx presentation.

Preferred stocl- As of December 31, 2010, we had 2.0 million shareauthorized preferred stock, $25 par valuespare. At December 31,
2010 and 2009, there were approximately 9,400 shafreutstanding convertible preferred stock. Hoddof outstanding CenturyLink preferred
stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividenidsgive preferential distributions equal to $26 gfeare plus unpaid dividends upon
CenturyLink’s liquidation and vote as a single slasth the holders of common stock.

(11) POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Our postretirement health care plan provides ptistreent benefits to qualified retirees. The petitement health care plan we assumed as
part of our acquisition of Embarq provides postegtient benefits to qualified legacy Embarq retir@as allows (i) eligible employees retiring t
certain dates to receive benefits at no or redgostiand (ii) eligible employees retiring afterteér dates to receive benefits on a shared cost
basis. The postretirement health care plan isrgépdunded by us and we expect to continue fugdhrese postretirement obligations as bene
paid. Our plan uses a December 31 measurement date
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The following is a reconciliation of the beginniagd ending balances for the benefit obligation thedplan assets.

December 31 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligatic



Benefit obligation at beginnin

of year $ 582,34! 292,88 306,63:
Service cos 14,68( 8,76¢ 4,92¢
Interest cos 32,11¢ 26,69: 19,39t
Participant contributior 14,38: 3,01: 2,78¢
Plan amendmer (84€) - (9,097%)
Acquisitions - 228,20( -
Direct subsidy receip 1,092 62€ 1,09z
Actuarial (gain) los (31,97) 58,45¢ (11,997
Benefits paid (54,079 (36,297 (20,867)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 557,72: 582,34! 292,88

Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of yea $ 57,31 16,80¢ 28,32¢
Return (loss) on plan ass 5,91¢ 6,40¢ (6,166
Acquisitions - 33,20( -
Employer contributior 30,27 34,18: 12,72
Participant contributior 14,38: 3,01: 2,78¢
Benefits paid (54,079 (36,297 (20,867)
Fair value of plan assets at end of $ 53,81« 57,31 16,80¢

The following table sets forth the amounts recogdias liabilities on the balance sheet for poseetéent benefits at December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008.

December 31 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Benefit obligatior $ (557,72) (582,34)) (292,88)

Fair value of plan

assets 53,81« 57,31: 16,80¢

Accrued benefit cost $ (503,90 (525,037) (276,087)

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost f84.@, 2009 (which only includes the effects of ourtiarg acquisition subsequent to July 1,
2009) and 2008 included the following components:

Year ended December & 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Service cos $ 14,68( 8,76¢ 4,92¢

Interest cos 32,11¢ 26,69: 19,39¢

Expected return on plan ass (3,435) (2,38¢) (2,33%)

Amortization of unrecognized prior

service credi (3,439 (3,54¢) (2,606

Amortization of unrecognized net Ic 942 - -

Net periodic postretirement bene

cost $ 40,87 29,52¢ 19,37¢
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The unamortized prior service credit ($11.Hiar as of December 31, 2010) and unrecognizedattarial loss ($30.6 million as of
December 31, 2010) components have been reflestadsé2.3 million after-tax decrease to accumulatedr comprehensive loss within
stockholders’ equity. The estimated amount ofamebrtization income of the above unrecognized itdraswill be amortized from accumulated
other comprehensive loss and reflected as a compof@et periodic postretirement cost during 2&1%2.3 million income for the prior service
credit.

Assumptions used in accounting for postretaetrbenefits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were:

2010 2009
Determination of benefit obligatic
Discount rat 5.3(% 5.7-5.8%
Healthcare cost increase trend r
Following yea 8.5(% 8.C%
Rate to which the cost trend ratessuaned to decline (the ultimate cost trend t 5.C% 5.C%
Year that the rate reaches the uléncast trend rat 201¢ 201¢

Determination of benefit co
Discount rat 5.7-5.8% 6.4-6.9(%



Expected return on plan assets 7.25% 8.2E-8.5(%

Our discount rate is based on a hypothetical plotff bonds rated AA- or better that produces shciow matching the projected benefit
payments of the plans. In determining the expeadn on plan assets, we study historical marketsapply the widely-accepted capital market
principle that assets with higher volatility andkrigenerate a greater return over the long terme.eWluate current market factors such as infl
and interest rates before determining long-ternitamarket assumptions. We also review peer dathhistorical returns to check for
reasonableness.

Assumed health care cost trends have an impadteoarhounts reported for postretirement benefitplak one-percentage-point change in
assumed health care cost rates would have thevioldpeffects:

1-Percentagr  1-Percentag
Point
Point Increas Decreast

(Dollars in thousands

Effect on annual total of service and interest coshponent: $ 10¢ (132
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $ 1,28t (1,527%)

We employ a total return investment approach wheeetmix of equities and fixed income investments ased to maximize the long-
term return of plan assets for a prudent levelsk. r Risk tolerance is established through careduisideration of plan liabilities, plan funded
status and corporate financial condition. We memand monitor investment risk on an ongoing btsizugh annual liability measurements,
periodic asset studies and periodic portfolio regie
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Our weighted-average asset allocations at DeceBhe2010 and 2009 by asset category are as follows:

2010 2009
Equity securitie: 19.%% 18.€
Debt securitie: 72.2 64.5
Cash and cash equivalents 7.9 16.€
Total 100.(% 100.(

As of December 31, 2010, we used the following &ién techniques to measure fair value for assBt®re were no changes to these
methodologies during 2010:

Level 1 - Assets were valued using the closingepréported in the active market in which the indi)l security was traded.

Level 2 - Assets were valued using quoted pricanankets that are not active, broker dealer qumatinet asset value of shares held by
the plans and other methods by which all signifi¢aput were observable at the measurement date.

Level 3 - Assets were valued using valuation repfsdm the respective institutions at the measurdmate.
The following table presents the hierarchyelevfor our postretirement benefit plan’s investiseas of December 31, 2010:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in thousands

Equity securitie:
Common stocks, preferred stocks, equity usiad related

securities $ 5,20¢ 5,481 - 10,69:
Debt securitie: 35,22 3,64¢ - 38,87(
Cash 4,25¢ - - 4,25
Total $ 44 ,67¢ 9,13¢ - 53,81«

The following table presents the hierarchy levelsdur postretirement benefit plan’s investmentsfadecember 31, 2009:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in thousands

Equity securities
Common stocks, preferred stocks, equity $uaiad related

securities $ 4,967 5,68¢ - 10,65¢
Debt securitie: 32,90( 4,07¢ - 36,97¢
Cash 9,68: - - 9,68:

Total $ 47,54¢ 9,76¢ = 57,31




Our plan invests in various securities, some ofcllaire exposed to various risks such as intergstmraarket and credit risks. Due to
the level of risk associated with certain investirescurities, it is at least reasonably possiké¢ thanges in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and thasthohanges could materially affect the amountsrtegdn the statement of net assets available
for benefits.
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Based on current estimates, we expect to contrifyopeoximately $47.9 million to our postretireméenefit plan in 2011.

Our estimated future projected benefit payment®uodr postretirement benefit plan are as follows:

Before
Medicare Medicare Net of
Medicare
Year Subsidy Subsidy Subsidy
(Dollars in thousands
2011 $ 49,20¢ (1,35)) 47,85tk
2012 $ 51,18¢ (2,600 49,58¢
2013 $ 47,75 (1,857) 45,89¢
2014 $ 46,28: (2,099 44,18:
2015 $ 45,62( (2,35)) 43,26¢
2016-
2020 $ 203,78( (5,539) 198,24
(12) DEFINED BENEFIT AND OTHER RETIREMENHLANS

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for sulisty all employees, including separate planslégracy CenturyLink employees and
legacy Embarg employees. Until such time as wetab integrate Embarq’s benefit plans with ours,plan to continue to operate these plans
independently. Pension benefits for participarfthese plans who are represented by a collectivgdining agreement are based on negotiated
schedules. All other participants’ pension besedite based on each individual participant’s ye&service and compensation. Both
CenturyLink and Embarg have previously sponsoredpatinue to sponsor, supplemental executiveengigimt plans providing certain officers
with supplemental retirement, death and disabligpefits. We use a December 31 measurement dadé éur plans.

To align our benefit structure closer to those reffeby our competitors, in late 2010 we froze pem&ienefit accruals for our non-
represented employees as of December 31, 201(h &tion resulted in a reduction of our benefiigdtion of approximately $110.2 million
and resulted in the recognition of a curtailmenhgd approximately $20.9 million in 2010.

In late February 2008, our Board of Directors apprbcertain actions related to CenturyLink’s Suppdatal Executive Retirement Plan,
including (i) freezing benefit accruals effectivetffuary 29, 2008 and (ii) amending the plan inseond quarter of 2008 to permit participants
to receive in 2009 a lump sum distribution of tmegent value of their accrued plan benefits baseth@ir election. We also enhanced plan
termination benefits by (i) crediting each activetjzipant with three additional years of servioel i) crediting each participant who was not in
pay status under the plan with three additionats/eéage in connection with calculating the présetue of any lump sum distribution. We
recorded an aggregate curtailment loss of appraeim&8.2 million in 2008 related to the above-désed items. In addition, principally due to
the payment of the lump sum distributions in e2099, we also recognized a settlement loss (wisichciuded in selling, general and
administrative expense) of approximately $7.7 willin 2009.

107

Due to change of control provisions that were ®iggl upon the consummation of the Embarq acquisitioJuly 1, 2009, certain retirees
who were receiving monthly annuity payments und€eaturyLink supplemental executive retirement pleame paid a lump sum distribution
calculated in accordance with the provisions ofglem. A settlement expense of approximately $&illon was recognized in the third quarter of
2009 as a result of these actions.

The legacy Embarq pension plan contains a provigiahgrants early retirement benefits for certanticipants affected by workforce
reductions. During 2009, we recognized approxilgei&4.7 million of additional pension expense tethto these contractual benefits.

The following is a reconciliation of the beging and ending balances for the aggregate beuigfijation and the assets for our above-
referenced defined benefit plans.

December 31 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligatic
Benefit obligation at beginning

year $ 4,181,58; 462,70: 469,43
Service cos 61,15¢ 36,22: 13,76:
Interest cos 245,75: 134,89¢ 29,37:
Plan amendmer 4,30¢ 16,01¢ 2,39:
Acquisitions - 3,467,26! -
Actuarial (gain) los 426,70( 231,66: (24,819

Contractual retirement bene - 14,67¢



Curtailment (gain) los (110,169 - 8,23t

Settlement - 8,29¢ (1,94
Benefits paid (275,35) (190,149 (33,739
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 4,533,96 4,181,58: 462,70:
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at
beginning of yea $ 3,219,700 352,83 459,19¢
Return (loss) on plan ass 482,70¢ 473,87¢ (123,210)
Acquisitions - 2,407,20! -
Employer contributior 304,81: 175,94¢ 52,52
Settlement - - (1,945
Benefits paid (275,35) (190,14 (33,739
Fair value of plan assets at end of ye $ 3,731,86! 3,219,701 352,83
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The following table sets forth the combined plafosided status and amounts recognized in our catetelil balance sheet at December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008.

December 31 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Benefit obligatior $ (4,533,96) (4,181,58) (462,70)

Fair value of plan assets 3,731,86! 3,219,701 352,83l

Net amount recognize $ (802,100 (961,871) (109,87))

Amounts recognized on the balance sheet consist of:

December 31 2010 2009

(Dollars in thousands

Accrued expenses and other

current liabilities $ (10) (1,266€)
Other deferred credits (802,09() (960,61()
Net amount recognize $ (802,100 (961,870

Our aggregate accumulated benefit obligatoféDecember 31, 2010 and 2009 was $4.509 bidlimh $4.042 billion, respectively.

Net periodic pension expense for 2010, 2009 (wbidly includes the effects of our Embarqg acquisiabsequent to July 1, 2009) and
2008 included the following components:

Year ended December ., 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Service cos $ 61,15¢ 36,22: 13,76:

Interest cos 245,75 134,89¢ 29,37:

Expected return on plan

assets (283,02¢) (127,61) (36,66)

Curtailment (gain) los (20,909 - 8,23t

Settlement: - 17,83« 41C

Contractual retirement

benefits - 14,67¢ -

Net amortization an

deferral 18,76¢ 16,27: 3,371

Net periodic pensio

expense $ 21,74( 92,28¢ 18,48¢

The unamortized prior service cost ($18.9 millienod December 31, 2010) and unrecognized net aatlass ($187.5 million as of
December 31, 2010) components have been reflestadbd06.4 million net reduction ($127.1 millioteaftax) to accumulated other
comprehensive loss within stockholders’ equity.e Bistimated amount of amortization expense of ble@e@unrecognized amounts that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensivedassreflected as a component of net periodic pensdst for 2011 are (i) $2.4 million for
the prior service cost and (ii) $13.4 million ftyetnet actuarial loss.
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Assumptions used in accounting for pension plansf &ecember 31, 2010 and 2009 were:

2010 2009

Determination of benefit obligatic

Discount ratt 5.C-5.5% 5.5-6.C

Weighted average rate of compensation incr 3.25-4.C% 3.54.C
Determination of benefit co

Discount ratt 5.5-6.C% 6.6(-6.9C

Weighted average rate of compensation incr 3.5-4.C% 4.C

Expected return on plan assets* 8.25-8.5(% 8.2E5-8.5(

* For 2011, we are reducing our long-term assunagel of return assumption to 7.5% for our legacynt@e/Link pension plan and 8.0% for our
legacy Embarq pension plan.

Our discount rate is based on a hypothetical plotff bonds rated AA- or better that produces shciow matching the projected benefit
payments of the plans. In determining the expeadn on plan assets, we study historical marketsapply the widely-accepted capital market
principle that assets with higher volatility andkrigenerate a greater return over the long terme.eWluate current market factors such as infl
and interest rates before determining long-ternitamarket assumptions. We also review peer dathhistorical returns to check for
reasonableness.

W e employ a total return investment approahbreby a mix of equities and fixed income investtaare used to maximize the long-
term return of plan assets for a prudent levelsi. r Risk tolerance is established through careduisideration of plan liabilities, plan funded
status and corporate financial condition. We meaand monitor investment risk on an ongoing btsizugh annual liability measurements,
periodic asset studies and periodic portfolio regie The fair value of most of our pension plaretss determined by reference to observable
market data consisting of published market quotes.

Our pension plans weighted-average assetagitots at December 31, 2010 and 2009 by assetagtace as follows:

2010 2009
Equity securitie: 52.2% 49.2
Debt securitie: 33.4 28.¢
Hedge fund: 4.3 8.5
Real estat 4.9 5.0
Cash equivalents and other 5.1 8.4
Total 100.(% 100.(

As of December 31, 2010, we used the following s techniques to measure fair value for assBlt®re were no changes to these
methodologies during 2010:

Level 1 - Assets were valued using the closingegpréported in the active market in which the indidl security was traded.
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Level 2 - Assets were valued using quoted pricanankets that are not active, broker dealer qumtatinet asset value of shares held by
the plans and other methods by which all signifi¢aput were observable at the measurement date.

Level 3 - Assets were valued using valuation repfsdm the respective institutions at the measurdmate.
The following table presents the hierarchy levelsdur defined benefit pension plans’ investmestsfaDecember 31, 2010:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in thousands

Equity securitie:
Common stocks, preferred stocks, equity fuamts related

securities $ 1,675,56! 277,26 - 1,952,83
Debt securitie:

Corporate bondand related securitie - 911,12: 1,58¢ 912,71:

Government bonds, municipbonds and related securiti - 331,93 2,89¢ 334,83t
Hedge fund: - - 161,61: 161,61:
Real estat - - 181,58: 181,58:
Cash and cash equivalel 26,04: - - 26,04
Other 13,47 146,17. 2,60¢ 162,25:
Total $ 1,715,07 1,666,50! 350,29( 3,731,86!

The following table presents the hierarchy levelsdur defined benefit pension plans’ investmestsfaDecember 31, 2009:



Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in thousands

Equity securitie:

Common stocks, preferred stocks, equity fundsralated securitie $ 1,345,66! 242,85 - 1,588,52.
Debt securitie:

Corporate bonds and related secur - 798,14: 1,00t 799,14¢

Government bonds, municipal bonds and relatedrities - 129,12¢ - 129,12¢
Hedge fund: - 113,34( 159,88t 273,22t
Real estat - - 161,33t 161,33t
Cash and cash equivalel 21,21( - - 21,21(
Other 67,15¢ 181,11¢ (1,13¢€) 247,13t
Total $ 1,434,03 1,464,58! 321,09: 3,219,701
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The following sets forth a summary of changes nftir value of our defined benefit pension plaoesvel 3 assets for the year ended
December 31, 2010:

Hedge All
Real
estate funds other Total
(Dollars in thousand

Balance, beginning of ye. $ 161,33t 159,88t (131) 321,09:
Realized gain (loss) in investments, (1,677) 2,10z 92 517
Unrealized gain (loss) in investments, 20,03¢ 8,851 16¢ 29,05¢
Purchases and sales, net 1,88¢ (9,227) 6,96 (37€)
Balance, end of year $ 181,58 161,61: 7,09 350,29(

The following sets forth a summary of changes nftir value of our defined benefit pension plaoesvel 3 assets for the year ended
December 31, 2009:

Hedge All
Real
estate funds other Total
(Dollars in thousand

Balance, beginning of ye, $ > > > =
Level 3 assets acquired in the Embarqg acquis 182,81¢ 146,33! (4,875 324,27
Transfers to (from) Level - - (3,45¢) (3,45%)
Realized gain (loss) in investments, 21 - 70 91
Unrealized gain (loss) in investments, (24,22)) 13,55 31 (10,64
Purchases and sales, net 2,71¢ - 8,101 10,82(
Balance, end of year $ 161,33t 159,88t (131) 321,09:

Our plans invest in various securities, some ofcilare exposed to various risks such as interestmraarket and credit risks. Due to
the level of risk associated with certain investiremturities, it is at least reasonably possiké¢ thanges in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and thasthohanges could materially affect the value ofpmmsion plan assets.

Some of our plans’ investment securities have eatiial cash flows, such as asset backed secudti#ateralized mortgage
obligations, and commercial and government mortdegked securities, including securities backeduiy-prime mortgage loans. The value,
liquidity, and related income of these securitisssensitive to changes in economic conditionduding real estate values, delinquencies or
defaults, or both, and may be adversely affecteshifys in the market’s perception of the issuerd ehanges in interest rates.

During 2010, we contributed $300 million to thedey Embarq pension plan. Based on current actiestienates, we expect to contribute
approximately $100 million to the legacy Embarqgen plan in 2011.

Our estimated future projected benefit paymenteuodr defined benefit pension plans are as foll@041 - $268.0 million; 2012 -252.€
million; 2013 - $280.3 million; 2014 - $284.7 mdh; 2015 - $289.8 million; and 2016-2020 - $1.526dn.

112
We also sponsor qualified profit sharing plans parg to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Gelieh are available to

substantially all employees. Our matching contiins to these plans were $16.7 million in 201G.8Imillion in 2009 and $10.5 million in
2008.



(13) INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense included in the ConsolidateteBients of Income was as follows:

Year ended December & 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands
Federal
Current $ 384,44 158,24t 141,60«
Deferrec 145,16¢ 210,20: 59,66¢
State
Current 66,74( 2,28¢F (14,765
Deferred (13,399 12,20¢ 7,84¢
$ 582,95: 382,94 194,35
Income tax expense was allocated as follows:
Year ended December & 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in thousands
Income tax expense in the consolidated stateméimsame:
Attributable to income before extraordinammnit $ 582,95! 301,88: 194,35
Attributable to extraordinary ite - 81,06( -
Stockholder' equity:
Compensation expense for tax purposes inssxaeamounts
recognized for financial reporting purpos (11,889 (4,199 (1,129
Tax effect of the change in accumulated otloenprehensive loss (33,879) 29,46( (47,58))

The following is a reconciliation from the &ttory federal income tax rate to our effectiveame tax rate:

Year ended December & 2010 2009 2008
(Percentage of p-tax income)

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.C 35.C
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lie 1.¢ 2.C 2.C
Change in tax treatment of Medicare sub: 0.3 - -
Nondeductible acquisition related co 0.2 0.7 0.3
Nondeductible compensation pursuant to executivepemsatior

limitations 0.2 0.¢ 0.2
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax bene - (1.5) (2.9
Other, net 0.t 0.1 (0.5)
Effective income tax rate 38.1% 37.2 34.7
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Included in income tax expense in 2010 is a $4l6anicharge related to the change in the tax tneat of the Medicare Part D subsidy i
result of the comprehensive health care reformslagjon signed into law in March 2010. In additi@nportion of our transaction costs associated
with our pending acquisition of Qwest is considened-deductible for income tax purposes. The tneat of these costs as non-deductible
resulted in the recognition of approximately $3.dian of higher income tax expense in 2010 tharulddhave been recognized had such costs
been deductible for income tax purposes. Certegt@tive compensation amounts, including the lump distributions paid to certain executive
officers upon discontinuing the Supplemental ExieeuRetirement Plan (see Note 12), are reflectembasleductible for income tax purposes
pursuant to executive compensation limitationsheflnternal Revenue Code. The treatment of thesriats as non-deductible resulted in the
recognition of approximately $3.3 million and $9ndlion of income tax expense in 2010 and 2009peesively, above amounts that would have
been recognized had such payments been deduditilecbme tax purposes. Our 2009 effective tag veds also higher because a portion of our
Embarqg merger-related transaction costs incurreahg2009 are nondeductible for income tax purp@séth such treatment resulting in a $7.4
million increase to income tax expense).

In 2009, our effective tax rate was reduced by .8 #7llion reduction to our net deferred tax assgtiation allowance associated with state
operating loss carryforwards.

During 2009 and 2008, we recognized net afdarbenefits of approximately $15.7 million and $L&illion, respectively, which include
the recognition of previously unrecognized tax bigs@rimarily due to certain issues being effeeljwsettled through examinations or the lapse of
statute of limitations and (ii) other adjustmene®ded upon finalization of tax returns.

The tax effects of temporary differences thate rise to significant portions of the deferraxl assets and deferred tax liabilities at
December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

December 31 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands

Deferred tax asse



Postretirement and pension benefit ¢ $ 509,95( 479,16:

Net state operating loss carryforwa 74,93: 64,78
Other employee benef 45,45¢ 67,04¢
Other 115,75( 127,30t
Gross deferred tax ass 746,09: 738,29¢
Less valuation allowance (42,899 (41,537)
Net deferred tax assets 703,19 696,76t

Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property, plant and equipment, primarily dw

depreciation difference (1,761,501 (1,573,981
Goodwill and other intangible ass (1,158,52) (1,189,14)
Other (70,529 (106,900

Gross deferred tax liabilities (2,990,55) (2,870,02)

Net deferred tax liability $ (2,287,35) (2,173,26)
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Of the $2.287 billion net deferred tax liatyilas of December 31, 2010, approximately $2.38®biis reflected as a long-term liability
and approximately $81.3 million is reflected aseacurrent deferred tax asset.

We establish valuation allowances when necessamgdiace the deferred tax assets to amounts we eixpezalize. As of December 31,
2010, we had available tax benefits associated néttstate operating loss carryforwards, which exgfirough 2030, of $74.9 million. The
ultimate realization of the benefits of the carryfards is dependent upon the generation of futaxalile income during the periods in which th
temporary differences become deductible. We censidr scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabgitiprojected future taxable income, and tax
planning strategies in making this assessmentof A&s=cember 31, 2010, a valuation allowance of $4illion was established as it is more lik
than not that this amount of net operating lossyfarwards will not be utilized prior to expiration

The following table reflects the activity of ouragis unrecognized tax benefits (excluding both @seand any related federal benefit) du
2010 (amounts expressed in thousands).

Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, Z $ 327,22
Increase in tax positions taken in the current: 32C
Increase due to tax positions taken in a prior: 7,27
Decrease due to the reversal of tax positions takarprior yea (22,529
Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitations (1,239
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2010 $ 311,06:.

Approximately $246 million of the above unrecogmizax benefits represents refund claims relataHedreatment of universal service f
receipts of certain subsidiaries acquired in cotiaeavith our Embarq acquisition, which due to threertainty of these claims have not been
recognized in current or deferred taxes in our obidated financial statements. Of the remainingsgrbalance of $65.5 million, approximately
million is included as a component of “Deferreddite and other liabilities” and the remainder islided in “Accrued income taxestt we were -
prevail on all unrecognized tax benefits recordedor balance sheet, we would recognize approxign&g¥.0 million (including interest and n
federal benefit), which would lower our effectiaxtrate.

Our policy is to reflect interest expense assodiatith unrecognized tax benefits in income tax exgge We had accrued interest (prese
before related tax benefits) of approximately $Iilion and $9.9 million as of December 31, 2010l &ecember 31, 2009.

We file income tax returns, including returns farr subsidiaries, with federal, state and locakidtions. Our uncertain income tax
positions are related to tax years that are cugremider or remain subject to examination by tHevant taxing authorities. Our open income tax
years by major jurisdiction are as follows.
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Jurisdiction Open tax year
Federal 200%-current
State
Florida 200¢-current
Georgic 200%-current
Louisiane 200%-current
North Caroline 200z-current
Oregor 200z-current
Texas 2002-current
Other state 200z-current

Additionally, Embarq, its subsidiaries, and theiegecessors have filed amended returns on a sp&rifissue relating to years as early as
1990. These amended returns have been audited bR® and the refund claims contained therein ladivieeen denied by the Exam Division
and the Appeals Division of the IRS. Embarq hisifsuit for refund in U.S. District Court for antion of the years, and is considering litigat



for the rest.

Since the period for assessing additional liabtltyically begins upon the filing of a return, stpossible that certain jurisdictions could
assess tax for years prior to the open tax yeacdadied above. Additionally, it is possible thettain jurisdictions in which we do not believe we
have an income tax filing responsibility, and adtogly did not file a return, may attempt to asseéability, or that other jurisdictions to which
we pay taxes may attempt to assert that we oweiaddl taxes.

Based on our current assessment of various fadtaiading (i) the potential outcomes of these dngaxaminations, (ii) the expiration of
statute of limitations for specific jurisdiction(j) the negotiated settlement of certain disputsiies, and (iv) the administrative practices of
applicable taxing jurisdictions, it is reasonabbsgible that the related unrecognized tax benfefitancertain tax positions previously taken may
decrease by up to $213.0 million within the neximiénths. The actual amount of such decreaseyijfvaill depend on several future
developments and events, many of which are outsideontrol.
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(14) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the nurators and denominators of the basic and dilutediegs per share computations:

Year ended December 31, 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars, except per share amounts, and shar s in
thousands
Income (Numerator;
Net income before extraordinary ite $ 947,70! 511,25« 365,73.
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expense amucontrolling interests - 135,95 -
Net income attributable to CenturyLink, Ir 947,70! 647,21. 365,73.
Dividends applicable to preferred stc (12 (12 (15%)
Earnings applicable to unvested restricted stockres:
Income before extraordinary ite (5,52%) (3,559 (4,240
Extraordinary item - (94€) -
Net income as adjusted for purposeccomputing basic earnings per sh 942,16¢ 642,69 361,33
Dividends applicable to preferred stock 12 12 15E
Net income as adjusted for purposes of computihgedi earnings per sha $ 942,18 642,70t 361,49.

Shares (Denominator
Weighted average number of shai

Outstanding during peric 301,42¢ 199,17 103,46
Unvested restricted sto (1,756 (1,387) (1,199
Unvested restricted stock units 947 1,02¢ -
Weighted average number of shares outstandingglpeniod for computing basic earnings
per share 300,61¢ 198,81: 102,26¢
Incremental common shares attributable to diluseeurities
Shares issuable under convertible secul 13 13 16¢
Shares issuable under incentive compensatamspl 66E 231 128
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of cangpdiluted earnings per she 301,29° 199,05 102,56(

Basic earnings per shs
Before extraordinary itel $ 3.1: 2.5t 3.5¢
Extraordinary iten $ = .68 -
Basic earnings per she $ 3.1¢ 3.2¢ 3.5

Diluted earnings per sha

Before extraordinary itel $ 3.1¢ 2.5t 3.52
Extraordinary iten $ - .68 -
Diluted earnings per she $ 3.1 3.22 3.52

The weighted average number of shares of commak sttbject to issuance under outstanding optioaiswiere excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share (becthesexercise price of the option was greater tharaverage market price of the common stock)
was 2.9 million for 2010, 4.1 million for 2009 a@dL million for 2008.
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In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued guidance in determining whether instntsngranted in shargased payme

transactions are participating securities. Basethis guidance, we have concluded that our outstgmonvested restricted stock is a particip.
security and therefore should be included in thraiags allocation in computing earnings per shaiagithe tw-class method. The guidan



was effective for us beginning in first quarter @Gthd required us to adjust our previously repoei@ahings per share.

(15) STOCK COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

We recognize as compensation expense ountastarding employees with equity instruments Bgating the fair value of the award
on the grant date over the period during whichetfmployee is required to provide service in exchdogéhe award.

We currently maintain programs which allow the Bbaf Directors (through its Compensation Commiti@e the Chief Executive Office
grant incentives to certain employees and our detdirectors in any one or a combination of seviarahs, including incentive and non-qualified
stock options; stock appreciation rights; restdcitock; restricted stock units and performanceeshaAs of December 31, 2010, we had reserved
approximately 25.2 million shares of common stod¢kch may be issued in connection with awards uodercurrent incentive programs. We ¢
offer an Employee Stock Purchase Plan whereby grapkcan purchase our common stock at a 15% disbasad on the lower of the beginn
ending stock price during recurring six-month pésiatipulated in such program.

Upon the consummation of the Embarqg acquisitioduy 1, 2009 (see Note 2), outstanding Embarqg stptlons and restricted stock units
were converted to 7.2 million CenturyLink stockiops and 2.4 million restricted stock units basedh® exchange ratio stipulated in the Embarqg
merger agreement. The fair value of the former &mlstock option awards that were converted to @ghink stock options was estimated as
July 1, 2009 conversion date using a Black-Schofg®n pricing model using the following assumpsodividend yield -9.12%; expected volal
— 27-50%; weighted average risk free interest rales-2.6% and expected term - 0.3-6 years. Otlaar in connection with converting the former
Embarq stock options into CenturyLink stock optiome did not grant any stock options to employ@e2010 or 2009.

In late February 2008, the Compensation Committelecsized all long-term incentive grants for 200&e in the form of restricted stock
instead of a mix of stock options and restrictextistas had been granted in recent years. Durifg,3f¥ior to this authorization, 25,700 option
granted with a weighted average grant date fairevaf $8.85 per share using a Black-Scholes ogtitming model using the following
assumptions: dividend yield - 0.6%; expected ithat 25%; weighted average risk free interedera2.9%; and expected term - 4.5 years. The
expected volatility was based on the historicahtibity of our common stock over the 4.5- year termmantioned above. The expected term was
determined based on the historical exercise arfdifore rates for similar grants.
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Our outstanding stock options have been grantdd avitexercise price equal to the market price oft@gLink’s shares at the date of
grant. The exercise price of former Embarq stquioms were converted by applying the exchange siipulated in the Embarg merger
agreement. Our outstanding options generally laatbeeeyear vesting period and all of them expire ten yedier the date of grant. The fair v
of each stock option award is estimated as of #te df grant using a Black-Scholes option pricirade.

Stock option transactions during 2010 were as fasto

Average Remaining Aggregate
Number exercise contractua intrinsic
of options price term (in yea value*
Outstanding December 31, 20 9,318,55: $ 37.8¢
Exercisec (3,507,89) 32.2¢
Forfeited/Cancelled (770,37 55.4(
Outstanding December 31, 2010 5,040,28' $ 39.0¢ 4.1€ $ 49,225,00
Exercisable December 31, 2010 4,739,73. $ 39.6(¢ 3.97 $ 44,554,00

* Equals the difference between the market pricewrh date and the average exercise price muttipliethe number of shares subject to the
options.

Our outstanding restricted stock awards generagt wver a three- or five-year period (for empl®yew a three-year period (for outside
directors).

During the first quarter of 2010, we granted 398,8Bares of restricted stock to certain execuegvell employees, of which 198,374 were
time-vested restricted stock that vests over aetlyear period and 198,379 were performance-bastdcted stock. The performance-based
restricted stock will vest over time only if speciperformance measures are met for the appligadrieds. One half of the performance-based
restricted stock will vest in March 2012 based antwo-year total shareholder return for 2010 a@iil?as measured against the total shareholder
return of the companies comprising the S&P 500 xrfde the same period. The other half will vesMarch 2013 based on our three-year total
shareholder return for 2010, 2011 and 2012 as meadsgainst the total shareholder return of thepaoies comprising the S&P 500 Index for
the same period. The 198,379 shares of performlaased restricted stock issued represent the tavggtd. Each recipient has the opportunity
to ultimately receive between 0% and 200% of thgeirestricted stock award depending on our &itateholder return in relation to that of the
S&P 500 Index. We valued these performance-bagedds using Monte-Carlo simulations. In additiee,granted 525,377 shares of time-
vested restricted stock during 2010 (which, subjectertain limited exceptions, vest over a threafyperiod) to certain other key employees and
our outside directors as part of our normal reagrannual equity compensation programs.



During the third quarter of 2010, we granted 408,8Bares of restricted stock and approximatelyZfllion of deferred cash
compensation awards to certain executive officats@her key employees as part of a retention pragn connection with our pending
acquisition of Qwest. The shares of restrictedlstaill vest in equal installments on the firstcead and third anniversaries of the closing
date. Each employee receiving a deferred cashdawitibe entitled to receive one-half of the awardthe closing date of the Qwest merger and
the other half on the first anniversary of the oigsdate. Both the restricted stock grant anddégferred cash award will accelerate if we
terminate the recipient without cause or underaierther conditions, and will be forfeited if t@vest merger is not consummated. No
compensation expense has been recorded to datdrédethe retention program since recognitioristingent upon consummation of the Qwest
merger. In addition to the above retention awar8g)00 shares of restricted stock were grantesh imcoming executive officer during the third
quarter of 2010 (which vests fully at the end & dfificer’s term of employment).
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Nonvested restricted stock and restricted stocktramsactions during 2010 were as follows:

Number Average gre

of shares date fair val
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 2,922,85 $ 31.0¢
Granted 1,404,36! 36.5¢
Vested (1,343,17) 31.0¢
Forfeited (92,39)) 31.7¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 2,891,65' $ 33.6¢

During 2009, we issued 820,234 shares of restristeck to certain employees and our outside dirsctba weighte@dwverage price of $27
per share. During 2008, we issued 643,397 shdnesivicted stock to certain employees and ousidatdirectors at a weighted-average price of
$34.86 per share.

The total compensation cost for all share-basednpay arrangements in 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $3i8i@n, $55.2 million and $16.4
million, respectively. Upon the consummation of #itquisition of Embarg on July 1, 2009, the vegssichedules of certain of our equity-based
grants issued prior to 2009 were accelerated debdnge of control provisions in the respectiveasihased compensation plans (with the exct
of grants to certain officers who waived such aelon right). In addition, the vesting of centaither awards was accelerated upon the terrr
of employment of certain employees. As a resudiaifelerating the vesting schedules of these awamgsecorded share-based compensation
expense of approximately $21.2 million in 2009 abamounts that would have been recognized absemtigigering of these acceleration prov

We recognized a tax benefit related to such arraegés of approximately $14.1 million in 2010, $2@#lion in 2009 and $5.8 million in
2008. As of December 31, 2010, there was $60.Bomibf total unrecognized compensation cost relatethe shardased payment arrangeme
which is expected to be recognized over a weighteztage period of 2.1 years.

We received net cash proceeds of $113.1 millioindu2010 in connection with option exercises. Tdtal intrinsic value of options exer
(the amount by which the market price of the stockhe date of exercise exceeded the market pfiteestock on the date of grant) was $28.1
million during 2010, $6.0 million during 2009 and®8,000 during 2008. The excess tax benefit redlfrom shardased compensation transa
during 2010 was $11.9 million. The total fair valferestricted stock that vested during 2010, 2808 2008 was $47.9 million, $45.2 million and
$6.2 million, respectively.
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(16) DISCONTINUANCE OF REGULATORY ACCOUNNIG

Through June 30, 2009, we accounted for our regdlegtlephone operations (except for the propeatigsiired from Verizon in 2002) in
accordance with the provisions of regulatory actimgnunder which actions by regulators can provisonable assurance of the recognition of
an asset, reduce or eliminate the value of an asskimpose a liability on a regulated enterpriSech regulatory assets and liabilities were
required to be recorded and, accordingly, refleateatie balance sheet of entities subject to régntaaccounting.

On July 1, 2009, we discontinued the accountingireqnents of regulatory accounting upon the conwarsf substantially all of our rate-
of-return study areas to federal price cap regutabased on the FCC’s approval of our petitiondovert our study areas to price cap regulation).

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting reversed previously established regulatory assetdiabilities. Depreciation rates of
certain assets established by regulatory authsfitieour telephone operations subject to regweadocounting have historically included a
component for removal costs in excess of the relatdvage value. Notwithstanding the adoptioncabanting guidance related to the accounting
for asset retirement obligations, regulatory actiogrequired us to continue to reflect this acclated liability for removal costs in excess of
salvage value even though there was no legal dldigéo remove the assets. Therefore, we did dopathe asset retirement obligation provis
for our telephone operations that were subjectétilatory accounting. Upon the discontinuanceegfitatory accounting, such accumulated
liability for removal costs included in accumulatepreciation was removed and an asset retirenidigation was established. Upon the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting, we wecgiired to adjust the carrying amounts of propgstant and equipment only to the extent the
assets are impaired, as judged in the same mappkcable to nonregulated enterprises. We did eocdord an impairment charge related to the
carrying value of the property, plant and equipnadrdur regulated telephone operations as a reétitte discontinuance of regulatory account
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In the third quarter of 2009, upon the discontiraeaaf regulatory accounting, we recorded a nash extraordinary gain in our consolide
statements of income comprised of the following poments (dollars, except per share amounts, insdrails):

Gain (loss;
Elimination of removal costs embedded in accumdlaepreciatior $ 222,70:
Establishment of asset retirement obliga (1,55€)
Elimination of other regulatory assets and liaigitit (2,589
Net extraordinary gain before income tax expenseremmcontrolling interest 218,56
Income tax expense associated with extraordinary ga (81,060
Net extraordinary gain before noncontrolling inttg 137,50:
Less: extraordinary gain attributable to noncofitrglinterests (1,549
Extraordinary gain attributable to CenturyLink, Inc $ 135,95
Basic earnings per share of extraordinary | $ .68
Diluted earnings per share of extraordinary ¢ $ .68

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting revised the lives of our property, plant and pmént to reflect the economic
estimated remaining useful lives of the assetgyelmeral, the estimated remaining useful livesuwftelephone property were lengthened as
compared to the rates used that were establisheglgoyatory authorities.

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting eliminated certain intercompany transactions watfulated affiliates that previously
were not eliminated under the application of retprlaaccounting. This has caused our operatingmegs and operating expenses to be lower by
equivalent amounts beginning in the third quarfe2GD9.

a7 GAIN ON ASSET DISPOSITIONS

In third quarter 2008, we sold our interest in a{operating investment for approximately $7.2 railliand recorded a pre-tax gain of
approximately $3.2 million. In anticipation of niag the lump sum plan distributions in early 20@8cdssed in Note 12, we liquidated our
investments in marketable securities in the SER&t find recognized a $4.5 million pre-tax gairhi $econd quarter of 2008. In first quarter
2008, we sold a non-operating investment for apprately $4.2 million and recorded a pre-tax gaimpproximately $4.1 million. Such gains
are included in “Other income (expense)” on our &idated Statements of Income.

(18) SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW AND OTHER DC2.OSURES
The amount of interest actually paid, netrabants capitalized of $12.9 million, $3.5 millicerad $2.4 million during 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively, was $548.4 million, $391.8 imil| and $204.1 million during 2010, 2009 and 2Q@8pectively. Income taxes paid were
$431.7 million in 2010, $258.9 million in 2009, a##08.8 million in 2008. Income tax refunds totb%¥.6 million in 2010, $2.1 million in 2009,
and $4.6 million in 2008.
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In connection with our July 1, 2009 acquisitiaf Embarq, the following assets were acquiredlefulities assumed:

Year ended December & 2009
(Dollars in
thousands

Property, plant and equipment, | $ 6,077,67

Goodwill 6,236,08.

Long-term debt, deferred credits and other liabili (7,508,061)

Other assets and liabilities, excluding cashceagh

equivalents 1,187,84!

Common equity issued for acquisition (6,070,44)

Increase in cash due to acquisition $ (76,90¢)

See Note 2 for additional information related to acquisition of Embarq in 2009.

We collect various taxes from our customers andegbently remit such funds to governmental autiestitSubstantially all of these taxes
are recorded through the balance sheet. We an@reddo contribute to several universal serviaedfprograms and generally include a surcharge
amount on our customers’ bills which is designecetmver our contribution costs. Such amountseftected on a gross basis in our statement of
income (included in both operating revenues an@eges) and aggregated approximately $115 millio2@a0, $84 million for 2009 and $42
million for 2008.
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(19) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS



The following table presents the carrying antswand estimated fair values of certain of ouafficial instruments at December 31, 2010
and 2009.

Carrying Fair
Amount value
(Dollars in thousands

December 31, 201

Financial assel

Othel $ 110,17¢ 110,1742)
Financial liabilities

Longterm debt (including curre
maturities)

Other

7,327,58 8,006,50(1)
190,44: 190,44:(2)

& &H

December 31, 200

Financial assel

Othel $ 111,80¢ 111,8042)
Financial liabilities

Longterm debt (including curre
maturities)

Other

7,753,71 8,408,94:(1)
182,37 182,3742)

& &H

(1) Fair value was estimated by discounting the scleeiphyment streams to present value based
rates currently available to us for similar de
(2) Fair value was estimated by us to approximate gagryalue or is based on current market informat

We believe the carrying amount of cash and caskvalguts, accounts receivable, short-term debaats payable and accrued expenses
approximates the fair value due to the short migtwfithese instruments, which have not been reftéan the above table.

We are subject to certain accounting standardsdifate fair value, establish a framework for meampfair value and expand the
disclosures about fair value measurements reqoir@ermitted under other accounting pronouncemehite fair value accounting guidance
establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, Whudoritizes the inputs used to measure fair vallieese tiers include: Level 1 (defined as
observable inputs such as quoted market pricestiveamarkets); Level 2 (defined as inputs othantlquoted prices in active markets that are
either directly or indirectly observable); and LE8€defined as unobservable inputs in which littteno market data exists).

As of December 31, 2010, we held life insuranceremts with cash surrender value that are requodat measured at fair value on a re
basis. The following table depicts those assdt$ dred the related tier designation pursuant taatt@unting guidance related to fair value disc
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Balance
Description Dec. 31, 20 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Dollars in thousands
Cash surrender value of life insuranc
contracts $ 99,46: 99,46: - -

See Notes 11 and 12 for the tier designation rlete@ur postretirement and pension plan assets.

(20) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We re an integrated communications companwa@ed primarily in providing an array of communioats services to our customers,
including local exchange, long distance, Interreeeas and broadband services. We strive to maiataicustomer relationships by, among other
things, bundling our service offerings to provide customers with a complete offering of integratechmunications services. Because of the
similar economic characteristics of our operatiams have utilized the aggregation criteria spedifiethe segment accounting guidance and
concluded that we operate as one reportable segment

Our operating revenues for our products and sesvitgude the following components:

Year ended Decembe
31, 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Voice $ 3,137,92 2,168,48! 1,043,38
Data 1,908,90. 1,202,28: 524,19



Network acces 1,079,67! 927,90! 651,03t

Other 915,03: 675,57( 381,12¢
Total operating
revenues $ 7,041,53 4,974,23! 2,599,74

Beginning in 2010, we have reclassified rexangenerated from subscriber line charges to “Vameenues from “Network access”
revenues to better align our presentation of seehnmues with others in our industry and we havkided revenues generated from our fiber
transport, CLEC and security monitoring operation®Other” revenues. Prior periods have been adflito reflect this new presentation.

(21) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Over 60 years ago, one of our indirect subsiéls, Centel Corporation, acquired entities thay imave owned or operated seven former
plant sites that produced “manufactured gas” uadaocess widely used through the mid-1900s. Ceaatebeen a subsidiary of Embarq since
being spun-off in 2006 from Sprint Nextel, whiclgaced Centel in 1993. None of these plant sitescarrently owned or operated by either
Sprint Nextel, Embarq or their subsidiaries. Oméhsites, Embarg and the current landowners arkingpwith the Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA”) pursuant to administrative conserdars. Remediation expenditures pursuant to ttersrare not expected to be material. On
five sites, including the three sites where the E®#volved, Centel has entered into agreemerntts @ther potentially responsible parties to share
remediation costs. Further, Sprint Nextel has apjteendemnify Embarq for most of any eventual iligparising from all seven of these
sites. Based upon current circumstances, we dexpect this issue to have a material adverse itrgraour results of operations or financial
condition.
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In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarqg Coration, et al, filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statéstri@t Court for the
District of Kansas (Civil Action No. 07-CV-2602),gaioup of retirees filed a putative class actiomdait challenging the decision to make certain
modifications to Embarq’s retiree benefits prograyaserally effective January 1, 2008 (which reglitea $300 million reduction to the liability
for retiree benefits at the time of the modificagd. Defendants include Embarq, certain of its bepkans, its Employee Benefits Committee and
the individual plan administrator of certain of litsnefits plans. Additional defendants include Sgxextel and certain of its benefit
plans. Recently, the Court certified a class atage of plaintiffs’ claims, but rejected class tfcation as to other claims. Embarqg and other
defendants continue to vigorously contest thesensland charges. Given that this litigation i#§ Bt discovery, it is premature to estimate the
impact this lawsuit could have to our results oéigtion or financial condition. In 2009, a rulimgEmbarg’s favor was entered in an arbitration
proceeding filed by 15 former Centel executivesnikirly challenging the benefits changes.

In April 2010, a series of lawsuits were filed haseholders of Qwest Communications International in Colorado state and federal
courts and in Delaware federal court, alleging aest’s officers and directors breached theirdidry duties by failing to maximize the value to
be received by Qwest’s stockholders in connectidh @enturyLink’s recently announced acquisition of Qwest. Cehfinkywas also hamed as
defendant in most of the lawsuits. On July 16,®Qke parties entered into a memorandum of uraledsig reflecting the terms of their
agreement-in-principle for a settlement of alllof tlaims asserted in these actions. Pursuanistagheement, defendants included additional
disclosures in the final joint proxy statement-pctus dated July 19, 2010, in response to allegatind claims asserted in certain of the
complaints. At a hearing in late February 2012, @ourt gave final approval to this settlement, alh¢éawsuits challenging the transaction will be
dismissed with prejudice effective March 17, 201¥e do not expect the settlement to have a matdiatrse impact to our results of operations
or financial condition.

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fitew lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Nexelecover terminating access charges
for VolIP traffic owed under various interconnectagreements and tariffs which presently approxir&@ million. The lawsuits allege that
Sprint Nextel has breached contracts, violatedfsadnd violated the Federal Communications Acfdiling to pay these charges. One lawsuit,
filed on behalf of all legacy Embarqg operating gesi, was tried in federal court in Virginia in Augf 2010 and a ruling is expected in the first
quarter of 2011. The other lawsuit, filed on bébékll legacy CenturyLink operating entities pending in federal court in Louisiana. In that
case, the Court recently dismissed certain of Gghink’s claims, referred other claims to the FG@d stayed the litigation for 12 months. We
have not recorded a reserve related to these l&wvsui
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From time to time, we are involved in other prodagd incidental to our business, including admmaiste hearings of state public utility
commissions relating primarily to rate making, ant relating to employee claims, various tax issaesasional grievance hearings before labor
regulatory agencies and miscellaneous third partyactions. The outcome of these other procgsdmnot predictable. However, based on
current circumstances, we do not believe that tti@ate resolution of these other proceedingsraft@sidering available insurance coverage
and current levels of reserves, will have a matedaerse effect on our financial position, resolt®perations or cash flows.

(22) SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 19, 2011, we entered into a four-yeanving credit facility with various lenders. Thisedit facility allows CenturyLink to
borrow up to $1.0 billion initially with the totalapacity of the credit facility increasing to $biflion upon the consummation of our pending
acquisition of Qwest. Up to $400 million of theedit facility can be used for letters of credit,islhreduces the amount available for other

extensions of credit.

Interest will be assessed on future borrowingsgutie London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plusagplicable margin between .5%



2.5% per annum depending on the type of loan amdu@d_ink’s then current senior unsecured long-telebt rating. CenturyLink’s
obligations under the credit facility are currerglyaranteed by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Emb@ogporation, and upon consummation of the
Qwest acquisition will also be guaranteed by Qvaest one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

CenturyLink’s ability to borrow under the credit facility israditioned upon its continued compliance with vasidman covenants, includir
financial covenants that stipulate that CenturylLshiall not permit (i) the ratio of consolidated tlebconsolidated EBITDA to exceed 4.0 to 1.0
and (ii) the ratio of consolidated EBITDA to theswf consolidated interest expense and prefermak gtividends to be less than 1.5 to 1.0 (with
all of the above terms having the meanings stipdlat the agreement). Amounts outstanding undectédit facility may be accelerated upon
specified events of default, including failuresrtake payments when due, defaults of obligationgundrtain other debt, breaches of
representations, warranties or covenants, commesrtenh bankruptcy proceedings and certain othéduries to discharge specified obligations or
comply with specified laws.

CenturyLink’s previously existing $750 million criééacility and Embarq’s previously existing $800llion credit facility (which
CenturyLink assumed upon its acquisition of Emb@rgluly 1, 2009) were both terminated upon the @txaa of this new credit facility.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Information

(Unaudited)
First Seconc Third Fourth
guarter guarter guarter guarter
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amot

2010 (unaudited’

Operating revenue $ 1,800,42i 1,772,083 1,747,10. 1,721,97
Operating incom $ 545,23( 522,98t 505,35! 486,37
Net income attributable to CenturyLil $ 252,60: 238,77 231,16 225,16t
Basic earnings per shs $ .84 7S 7€ .74
Diluted earnings per sha $ .84 7S 7€ 74
2009

Operating revenue $ 636,38! 634,46¢ 1,874,32! 1,829,06!
Operating incom $ 164,33 149,44 378,98: 540,33t
Net income before extraordinary ite $ 67,15¢ 69,03( 147,63! 227,43t
Basic earnings per share before extraordinary $ .67 .68 A4S 7€
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinam $ .67 .68 A4S 7€
2008

Operating revenue $ 648,61 658,10¢ 650,07 642,95
Operating incom $ 183,49: 180,69( 180,72 176,44:
Net income attributable to CenturyLil $ 88,76( 92,167 84,73 100,07:
Basic earnings per shs $ .83 .8¢ .83 1.0C
Diluted earnings per sha $ .82 .8¢ .83 1.0C

The results of operations of Embarq are reflectdzbsquent to its July 1, 2009 acquisition date.

We incurred a significant amount of integratioratetl expenses in each quarter of 2010 relatedrtaaquisition of Embarg. Such pre-tax
operating expenses aggregated approximately $2iliamin first quarter 2010, $31.1 million in sewtd quarter 2010, $26.9 million in third
quarter 2010 and $27.2 million in fourth quartel@0 We also incurred pre-tax operating expendageeto our pending acquisition of Qwest of
approximately $10.0 million in second quarter 208%.,1 million in third quarter 2010 and $7.1 miilisn fourth quarter 2010. In addition, during
the fourth quarter of 2010 we recognized a curtailhgain of approximately $20.9 million upon thedzing of certain future defined benefit
pension plan accruals.

During the third and fourth quarters of 2009, weuimed a significant amount of one-time expenskdaé to our acquisition of
Embarqg. Such expenses included (i) severanceti@teand early retirement pension benefit costs tduvorkforce reductions, (ii) transaction
related costs, including legal and investment baoksts, (iii) integration related costs associatitti our acquisition of Embarq, (iv) accelerated
recognition of share-based compensation expensdifange of control provisions and terminatiohsmployment and (v) settlement expenses
related to certain executive retirement plans. h32xpenses aggregated approximately $195.5 mijpogrtax) in the third quarter of 2009 and
approximately $37.6 million (pre-tax) in the foudharter of 2009.
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During the fourth quarter of 2009, we recognizemtextax charge of approximately $60.8 million duienavrily to the premiums paid in
connection with certain debt extinguishments consated in October 2009.

In the first quarter of 2008, we recognized a $4illion pre-tax gain upon the sale of a non-opaginvestment. In the second quarter of
2008, we recognized an $8.2 million curtailmenslosconnection with amending our SERP. We alsogrized a $4.5 million pre-tax gain upon
liquidation of our investments in marketable setiesiin the SERP trust in the second quarter 08208 the third quarter of 2008, we recorded a
one-time pre-tax gain of approximately $3.2 milliatated to the sale of a non-operating investmémthe fourth quarter of 2008, we recognized
(i) a net benefit of approximately $12.8 milliortexftax related to the recognition of previouslyerognized tax benefits, (ii) a pre-tax benefit of
approximately $10.0 million related to the recogmitof previously accrued transaction and othetiogencies and (iii) a $5.0 million charge
associated with costs associated with our thenipgratquisition of Embarq.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on &ounting
and Financial Disclosure
None.
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Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur We maintain disclosure controls and proceduessgthed to provide reasonable assuranc
information required to be disclosed by us in thgorts we file under the Securities Exchange Ad9#4 is timely recorded, processed, summn
and reported as required. Our Chief Executived@ffiGlen F. Post, Ill, and our Chief Financial i®éf, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., have evaluated our
disclosure controls and procedures as of Decemhe2®L0. Based on the evaluation, Messrs. PosEaridg concluded that our disclosure col
and procedures have been effective in providingaeable assurance that they have been timely dleftmaterial information required to be fil
this annual report. Since the date of Messrs.'®astl Ewing’s most recent evaluation, we did nakemany change to our internal control over
financial reporting that materially affected, oathve believe is reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, our internal control over financial reportint
design of any system of controls is based in paohicertain assumptions about the likelihood dfifeievents and contingencies, and there ca
assurance that any design will succeed in achietsngfated goals. Because of inherent limitatioresny control system, misstatements due tc

or fraud could occur and not be detected.

Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Repogdil We incorporate by reference into this Item 9A tgorts appearing at the forefront of I
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

Iltem 9B.Other Information

Not applicable.

PART lll

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

The name, age and office(s) held by each of cecative officers are shown below. Each of the akee officers listed below serves
pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Name Age Office(s) held with CenturyLinl
Glen F. Post, Il 58 Chief Executive Officer and Preside
Karen A. Pucket 50 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Off
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 59 Executive Vice Presiderd
Chief Financial Office
Stacey W. Gof 45 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Sagr
William E. Cheek 55 Presiden— Wholesale Operatior
David D. Cole 53 Seniolr Vice President —
Operations Suppo
Dennis G. Hube 50 Executive Vice President, Network Servit
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With the exception of Mr. Cheek and Mr. Huber, Bab€our executive officers has served for morentfiae years as an officer of
CenturyLink and one or more of its subsidiariesanying capacities substantially similar to thairrent positions. Mr. Post has served as Pre
since July 1, 2009, and served as Chairman of teedBbetween June 2002 and June 2009. Prior by Im@med to her current positions on Ju
2009, Ms. Puckett served as President and Chiefafipg Officer since 2002. Mr. Goff was promotedr Senior Vice President to Executive
Vice President on July 1, 2009.

Prior to CenturyLink’s acquisition of Embarg, Mrh€ek previously served as Embarqg’s Presid&thelesale Markets since May 2006.
served in this role at Sprint Nextel's local telegounications division from August 2005 until Mayd®) He served as Assistant Vice President—
Strategic Sales and Account Management in Sprisiriss Solutions from January 2004 until July 2005.

Mr. Huber has served as Executive Vice Presidéyetwork Services since July 1, 2009 (excludingpgbgod beginning on his resignation
date of May 3, 2010 and ending on the date herregbus at our request on September 7, 2010). ®ridenturyLink’s acquisition of Embarq,
Mr. Huber previously served as Embarq’s Chief Tetbgy Officer and Senior Vice President since R0Q8. He served as Senior Vice President
Corporate Strategy and Development from Decemb@r #rough June 2008. Mr. Huber served as Seniocg President of Product Development
from October 2006 until December 2007. Before thatserved as Senior Vice President of Wirelesst®olk from August 2006 until October
2006. From January 2003 to August 2005 he serv@&tessdent of Sprint North Supply Company, a Smirfisidiary that procured and distribu
materials to the communications industry.

The balance of the information required byrt&0 is incorporated by reference to our definifivexy statement relating to our 2011
annual meeting of stockholders (the "Proxy Stateaiyemhich Proxy Statement will be filed pursuaotRegulation 14A within the first 120 days
of 2011.



Iltem 11.

Iltem 12.

Iltem 13.

Iltem 14.

Item 15.

@)
2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1
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Executive Compensation
The information required by Item 11 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
Security Ownership of Ceain Beneficial Owners and Management
The information required by Item 12 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
Certain Relationships anRelated Transactions
The information required by Item 13 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
Principal Accountant Fees and Béces
The information required by Item 14 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
Exhibits, Financial Statenré Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
@). Documents filed as a part of this rep
(1) The following Reports and Consolidated Financialt&nents are included in Part Il, Iterr
Report of Management, including its assessmerteeffectiveness of its internal control over fioihreporting
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfingl on Consolidated Financi
Statements, Financial Statement Schedule andti#eess of the Compa’s Internal Control over Financial Reporti
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@dimecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéoyears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
Consolidated Balance She- December 31, 2010 and 20
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraded December 31, 2010, 2009 and =
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferyears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems
Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Informatioraudited
(2) The attached Schedule 1, Valuation and Qualifydtagounts, is the only applicable schedule that veeraquired to file
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Exhibits:
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of liat@6, 2008, among CenturyLink, Inc., Embarq Coapon and Cajun Acquisition

Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3#.the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Centuink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784)
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on i@t80, 2008)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as ofl 2dri2010, among CenturyLink, Inc., its subsidi&&44 Acquisition Company, and
Qwest Communications International Inc. (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Current RéparForm 8-K filed by
CenturyLink with the Securities and Exchange Consiois on April 27, 2010)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatib@enturyLink, Inc., as amended through May 211.@ (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the period ended June 30, 20:

Bylaws of CenturyLink, Inc., as amended arsiated through November 4, 2010 (incorporated fareace to Exhibit 3.2 of our
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended September 30, 20

Form of common stock certificate (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Quarterly Repor Form 10-Q for the period ended



4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1**

June 30, 2010

Instruments relating to CenturyLi’s Revolving Credit Facilit

a.

b.

Four-Year Revolving Credit Facility, datethdary 19, 2011, between CenturyLink, Inc. andehders named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ther€at Report on Form-K filed by CenturyLink, Inc. on January 24, 201

Form of related Guarantee Agreement (incaiea by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Currenpdteon Form 8-K filed be
CenturyLink, Inc. on January 24, 201

Indebtedness of Embarq Corporati

a.

Indenture, dated as of May 17, 2006, by and betvizmebarq Corporation and J.P. Morgan Trust CompBlagional Association,
national banking association, as trustee (incotpdrhy reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Repa Form 8-K filed by
Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32732) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiay 18, 2006)

6.738% Global Note due 2013 of Embarqg Caton (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2Hte Annual Report on Form 10-
for the year ended December 31, 2006 filed by Emarporation (File No. 001-32372) with the Sedasitand Exchange
Commission on March 9, 2007

7.082% Global Note due 2016 of Embarg Cation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3hte Annual Report on Form 10-
for the year ended December 31, 2006 filed by Emarporation (File No. 001-32372) with the Sedasitand Exchange
Commission on March 9, 2007

7.995% Global Note due 2036 of Embarqg Caton (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4hte Annual Report on Form 10-
for the year ended December 31, 2006 filed by Emarporation (File No. 001-32372) with the Sedasitand Exchange
Commission on March 9, 2007

Instruments relating to CenturyLi’s public senior deb

a.

Indenture dated as of March 31, 1994 betv@srturyLink and Regions Bank (formerly First Anvam Bank & Trust of
Louisiana), as Trustee (incorporated by refereadexhibit 4.1 of our Registration Statement on F&+8, Registration No. 33-
52915).
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Form of CenturyLink’s 7.2% Senior Notes,i8&D, due 2025 (incorporated by reference to EkHKiR7 to our Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 19!

Form of CenturyLink's 6.875% Debentures,i&e6, due 2028, (incorporated by reference tolikhi9 to our Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 19!

Form of CenturyLink’s 7.875% Senior Notesri€s L, due 2012 (incorporated by reference tailtik#i.2 of our Registration
Statement on Form-4, File No. 33-100480).

Third Supplemental Indenture dated as ofdreely 14, 2005 between CenturyLink and Regions Bask rustee, designating and
outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink% Senior Notes, Series M, due 2015 (incorporhtedeference to Exhibit 4.1
of our Current Report on Forn-K dated February 15, 200t

Form of 5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 2015 (inetlich Exhibit 4.4(e))

Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as atMa6, 2007 between CenturyLink and Regions Baekrustee, designating and
outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLinE$% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 and 5.5%SKotes, Series O, due
2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Gurrent Report on Forn-K dated March 29, 2007

Form of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 abithenior Notes, Series O, due 2013 (includedktmitit 4.4(g)).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as oftSmjber 21, 2009 between CenturyLink and RegionkBas Trustee, designating and
outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLisilf.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due 2039 and 6S3&5%6r Notes, Series Q, d
2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Gurrent Report on Forn-K dated September 21, 200

Form of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due 201%atiP6 Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019 (includdtkhibit 4.4(i)).

Qualified Employee Benefit Plans of Centlink, Inc. (excluding several narrow-based quatifigans that cover union
employees or other limited groups of employe

CenturyLink Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan dmdst, as amended and restated through Decemb@0@&,(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of the Annual Repartr@rm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2086 fiy CenturyLink, Inc.
(File No. 001-07784) with the Securities and Exg@@@ommission on March 1, 2007), as amended bFitseAmendment and
the Second Amendment thereto, each dated Deceritb2037 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18) If the Annual Report



10.2**

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 206d by CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) withe Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008), as amakeloyl the Third Amendment thereto dated Novembe2Q08
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) te A&nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endedebdwer 31, 2008 filed by
CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with the feties and Exchange Commission on February 279R@% amended by the
Fourth Amendment thereto dated June 30, 2009 (acated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) to the @arr Report on Form 10-Q
filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period ended 80, 2009), as amended by the Fifth Amendmenétbetated September 15,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1¢athe Annual Report on Form X0filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the year enc
December 31, 2009), as amended by the Sixth Ameniiiereto, dated December 30, 2009 (incorporaye@ference to Exhibit
10.1(a) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed®gnturyLink, Inc. for the year ended December 3DY, as amended by the
Seventh Amendment thereto, effective May 20, 2d€ofporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) toherterly Report on Form
10-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period emd®eptember 30, 2010) and as amended by the BEighémdment thereto,
effective January 1, 2011, included her:
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CenturyLink Union 401(k) Plan and Trustaasended and restated through December 31, 200& im@ated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1(b) of the Annual Report on Form 104¢ the year ended December 31, 2006 filed by Cghink, Inc. (File No. 001-
07784) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 1, 2007), as amended by the First Amenditheneto dated

May 29, 2007 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitL(b) of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filgdCenturyLink, Inc. (File
No. 001-07784) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMay 7, 2008), as amended by the Second Amendimereto
dated December 31, 2007 (incorporated by refertmgshibit 10.1(b) of the Annual Report on Form K@er the year ended
December 31, 2007 filed by CenturyLink, Inc. (Ale. 001-07784) with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on February 29,
2008), as amended by the Third Amendment theregtdddovember 20, 2008 (incorporated by referentbgcAnnual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 filg CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) withetSecurities and
Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009), as aedelmygl the Fourth Amendment thereto dated June(® @ncorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Quarterly Remor Form 10-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for theniod ended June 30, 2009),
as amended by the Fifth Amendment thereto dateteBdyer 15, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Bk 1(b) to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed by CenturyLink, Inc. fibre year ended December 31, 2009), as amendec [8ixth Amendment
thereto, dated December 30, 2009 (incorporateefgyance to Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Annual Reporfrf@nm 10-K filed by
CenturyLink, Inc. for the year ended December 3DR, as amended by the Seventh Amendment thexéative May 20, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) te Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by Centur,imc. for the period ended
September 30, 2010) and as amended by the Eightnmdment thereto, effective January 1, 2011, inadudsrein.

CenturyLink Retirement Plan, as amendedrastated through December 31, 2006 (incorporate@fsyence to Exhibit 10.1(c) of
the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddnber 31, 2006 filed by CenturyLink, Inc. (File.ND01-07784) with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, R@&7amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto dated 2p2i007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) af Puarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by Centur,imc. (File No. 00107784’
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on F|&3008), as amended by Amendment No. 2 theretxldet of

December 31, 2007 (incorporated by reference taldixt0.1(c) of the Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended
December 31, 2007 filed by CenturyLink, Inc. (Ale. 001-07784) with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on February 29,
2008), as amended by Amendment No. 3 thereto datsaber 24, 2008 (incorporated by reference toAtmeual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 filg CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) withetsecurities and
Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009), as aedelogl Amendment No. 4 dated June 30, 2009 (incatpdrby reference to
Exhibit 10.1(c) to the Quarterly Report on FormQGHed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endathé 30, 2009), as amended
by Amendment No. 5 thereto dated September 15, @@68rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c)ie Annual Report on For
10K filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the year ended Beaber 31, 2009), as amended by Amendment No. 6tthetated Decemb
30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit {€).10 the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by Qamyt.ink, Inc. for the year
ended December 31, 2009), as amended by Amendneem tereto, effective at various dates duringl2@ricorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) to the Quarterly Reémor Form 10-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for thennd ended September 30,
2010) and as amended by Amendment No. 8 therdemtioe January 1, 2011, included her¢

Stock-based Incentive Plans and Agreements of Century itk

Amended and Restated 1983 Restricted Stack 8 amended and restated through February028, (hcorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(a) to the Annual Report on Forn-K filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the year ended Retber 31, 2009

Amended and Restated 2000 Incentive Compensatam B amended through May 23, 2000 (incorporateéference to Exhit
10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form @@for the quarter ended June 30, 2000) and amertdihereto dated May 29, 20
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of owa@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!
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0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthie 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated By 21, 2001, entered

into by CenturyLink and its officers (incorporated reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of our Annual Repor Form 10K for the
year ended December 31, 20(C

(i)  Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthe 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated Bebruary 25, 2002,
entered into by CenturyLink and its officers (ingorated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(d)(ii) of &nnual Report on Form



C.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

10-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Amended and Restated 2002 Directors Stodlo@plan, dated as of February 25, 2004 (incorgdray reference to Exhibit 10.2
(e) of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2003) and amendment theretd @ateber 24, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(d) of &mnual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthte foregoing plan, entered into by CenturyLinkcémnection with options
granted to the outside directors as of May 10, 20@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Régint's Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the period ended September 30, 20

(i)  Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthe foregoing plan, entered into by CenturyLinikconnection with options
granted to the outside directors as of May 9, 20@3rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e)(fijoar Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

(i)  Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuémthe foregoing plan, entered into by CenturyLimiconnection with options
granted to the outside directors as of May 7, 20@@brporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(d)@four Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Amended and Restated 2002 Management Inee@tbmpensation Plan, dated as of February 25, @66drporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(f) of our Annual Report on Form KOfor the year ended December 31, 2003) and amentdiinereto dated
October 24, 2008 (incorporated by reference to l&khi0.2(e) of our Annual Report on Form 10-K fbetyear ended December
31, 2008).

0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthte foregoing plan, entered into between Centunlyland certain of its
officers and key employees at various dates di20@p following May 9, 2002 (incorporated by refererio Exhibit 10.4 o
our Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended September 30, 20

(i)  Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foraggilan and dated as of February 24, 2003, entetede CenturyLinl
and its officers (incorporated by reference to BxHi0.2(f)(ii) of our Annual Report on Form 10-kirfthe year ended
December 31, 2002

(i)  Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foraggilan and dated as of February 25, 2004, entetede CenturyLinl
and its officers (incorporated by reference to BkHL0.2(f)(iii) of our Annual Report on Form 104ér the year ended
December 31, 2003

(iv) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purdita the foregoing plan and dated as of Februdn2@03, entered into by
CenturyLink and its executive officers (incorporhtey reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Quarterly Bewn Form 10-Q for
the period ended March 31, 200
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(v)  Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februan2@84, entered into by
CenturyLink and its executive officers (incorporhtey reference to Exhibit 10.2(f)(v) of our QualyeReport on Form 1@
for the period ended March 31, 200

(vi) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foraggilan and dated as of February 17, 2005, entetede CenturyLinl
and its executive officers (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.2(e)(v) of our Annual Report onrifacl0-K for the year
ended December 31, 200

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, punsuto the foregoing plan and dated as of Febri@n2005, entered into by
CenturyLink and its executive officers (incorporhtey reference to Exhibit 10.2(e)(vi) of our Annieport on Form 10-K
for the period ended December 31, 20!

Amended and Restated 2005 Directors Staak, B amended and restated through February 28,(B®@orporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(f) to the Annual Report on Form-K filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the year ended Retber 31, 2009

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purguarthe foregoing plan, entered into between Qghink and each of its outside
directors as of May 13, 2005 (incorporated by rfiee to Exhibit 10.4 of our Current Report on F&-K dated May 13, 2005

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursua the foregoing plan, entered into between @ghink and each of its outside
directors as of May 12, 2006 (incorporated by mafiee to Exhibit 10.1 of our Quarterly Report onrRd0-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2006

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, puastito the foregoing plan, entered into betweent@ghink and each of its outside
directors as of May 11, 2007 (incorporated by mafiee to Exhibit 10.2(f)(iii) of our Annual Repom &orm 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 200

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purgita the foregoing plan, entered into between @whink and each of its outside
directors as of May 9, 2008 (incorporated by rafeesto Exhibit 10.2(f)(iv) of our Annual Report &orm 10-K for the period



ended December 31, 200

(v) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursaarhe foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2@®®ered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directmnssuch date who remained on the Board followirg 1, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(b) to the Quarterly Repor Form 1-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endaché 30, 2009)

(vi) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purgua the foregoing plan and dated as of May 892@ditered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directat® retired on July 1, 2009 (incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.2(c) to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endathé 30, 2009)

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, puansuto the foregoing plan and dated as of JulyoR92entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directaasned to the Board on July 1, 2009 (incorporateceference to Exhibit 10.1(d)
to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endaché 30, 2009)

(viil) Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuanttte foregoing plan and dated as of July 2, 200&red into between CenturyLink, Inc.
and William A. Owens in payment of Mr. Owens’ 200%plemental chairman’s fees (incorporated by esfes to Exhibit 10.2(e)
to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endaché 30, 2009)
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(ix) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purduta the foregoing plan and dated as of May 2102@ntered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and seven of our outside direston such date (incorporated by reference to Exhibil to the Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endaché 30, 2010}

f. Amended and Restated 2005 Management Inee@dmpensation Plan, as amended and restatedjthFabruary 23, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) te fmnual Report on Form 10-K filed by CenturyLinkg. for the year ended
December 31, 200¢

0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthte foregoing plan, entered into between Centunlyland certain officers and
key employees at various dates since May 12, 2id@brporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of oura@erly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the period ended September 30, 20

(i)  Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursiua the foregoing plan, entered into between @ghink and certain officers
and key employees at various dates since May 105 #iicorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Quarterly Report ¢
Form 1(-Q for the period ended September 30, 20

(i)  Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuémthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februan2Q@6, entered into between
CenturyLink and its executive officers (incorporhtey reference to Exhibit 10.2(g)(iii) of our AndlReport on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 20!

(iv) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purdua the foregoing plan and dated as of Februarn2006, entered into between
CenturyLink and its executive officers (incorporhtey reference to Exhibit 10.2(g)(iv) of our AnnirRegport on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 20!

(v)  Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanti® foregoing plan and dated as of February 267 2éntered into between
CenturyLink and its executive officers (incorporhtey reference to Exhibit 10.10f our Quarterly Remm Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 20C

(vi) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purdua the foregoing plan and dated as of Februérn2@07, entered into between
CenturyLink and its executive officers (incorporhtey reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Bewn Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 20C

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, punsuto the foregoing plan and dated as of Febr2ar2008, entered into between
CenturyLink and its executive officers ((incorp@@ty reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our QuarterlypB# on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 20C

(viii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, puaat to the foregoing plan and dated as of Febr2ér2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) of our Quarterly Repor Form 1-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

(ix) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purdita the foregoing plan and dated as of March08,0Xincorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly RepartFmrm 1(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 201

g. Amended and Restated CenturyLink Legacy EmB@08 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended andtesstarough February 23,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2¢hthe Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by Centuink, Inc. for the year
ended December 31, 200
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() Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tddhegoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010, edtarto between CenturyLil



and four of its outside directors as of such dateofporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of oua@erly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 201

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purdua the foregoing plan and dated as of May 2102@ntered into between
CenturyLink and William A. Owens in payment of Mdwens’ 2010 supplemental chairman’s fees (incoredray reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the period ended June 30, 20:

(iii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, datsdof September 7, 2010 by and between Centuryliickand Dennis G. Huber
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended September 30, 20

h. Form of Retention Award Agreement, pursuarthe equity incentive plans of CenturyLink or Eanipand dated August 23, 2010,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and certdfiters and key employees as of such date (incatpd by reference to Exhibit
10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the period ended September 30, 20

10.3 Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plaredidanuary 1, 1984, as amended and restated asvefiider 16, 1995 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) of our Annual Reponteorm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1988)anendment thereto
dated November 21, 1996 (incorporated by referémé&echibit 10.1(f) of our Annual Report on Form-KOor the year ended December
31, 1996), amendment thereto dated February 25, (i88orporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Qurarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 1997), amendmeméth dated April 25, 2001 (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 10.2 of our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endiedch 31, 2001), amendment thereto dated ApriRODO (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3(a) of our Annual RepartFmrm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200d)eemendment thereto dated
February 27, 2007 (incorporated by reference taitkxh0.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!

10.4* Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, 2008 &estent, effective January 1, 2008, (incorporateteference to Exhibit 10.3(c) of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduem31, 2007) and amendment thereto dated Octeh&0B8 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3(c) of our Annual Repartkorm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)aanendment thereto dated
December 27, 2010, included here

10.5* Supplemental Defined Benefit Plan, 2008 Riestent, effective as of January 1, 2008, (incateal by reference to Exhibit 10.3(d) of
our Annual Report on Form 1KRfor the year ended December 31, 2007) and amenidinereto dated October 24, 2008 (incorporate
reference to Exhibit 10.3(d) of our Annual Repartfeorm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)semendment thereto dated
December 27, 2010, included here

10.6 Amended and Restated Salary Continuatiorafiilisy) Plan for Officers, dated November 26, 198icorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.16 of our Annual Report on Form-K for the year ended December 31, 19¢

10.7 2010 Executive Officer Shorerm Incentive Program (incorporated by referemceur 2010 Proxy Statement filed on Form 14A wité
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 7, 2C

10.8 Amended and Restated CenturyLink 2001 Emgl@teck Purchase Plan, dated as of June 30, 208& giorated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Quarterly Report on Fornm-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endaché 30, 2009)

10.9 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered iioy CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its directoroéguly 1, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 of the Current Reporfonm 8-K filed by CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 0017084) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 1, 20C

140
10.10 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into ln@iryLink, Inc. and each of its officers as ofyJl) 2009 (incorporated by referel
to Exhibit 10.5 to the Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endathé 30, 2009)

10.11* Change of Control Agreement, effective JanuaryOLL12 by and between Glen F. Post, 11l and CenturyLincluded hereir

10.12* Form of Change of Control Agreement, effective dapu., 2011 by and between CenturyLink and eadtsafther executive officers,
included herein

10.13 Amended and Restated CenturyLink, Inc. Bduifgsinsurance Plan for Executive Officers, dagedof April 3, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly RepartFmrm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008)Eirst Amendment thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended September 30, 20

10.14 Certain Material Agreements and Plans of Embarg@Quation.

a. Employment Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2008yden Thomas A. Gerke and Embarqg Corporation (pmated by referen
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8Héd by Embarq Corporation (File No. 001-32372)hwthie Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 4, 20(

b. Amendment to the Employment Agreement amdmgmas A. Gerke, Embarg Corporation and CenturyLlin& dated
October 26, 2008 (incorporated by reference to lkhi0.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filedBybarg Corporation (File
No. 001-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissio@ctober 26, 2008



10.15

12*

21*

23*

31.1*

31.2*

32*

C. Amendment 2008-2 to the Employment Agreerbetiveen Embarg Corporation and Thomas A. Gerkeddaecember 20, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to thendal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Deearth, 2008 filed by
Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32372) on February 13, 200!

d.* Letter agreement, dated as of DecembeQ%0, by and between Embarg Corporation, CentukglLlimc. and Thomas A. Gerke,
designating Mr. Gerl's last day of employment, included here

e. Agreement Regarding Special CompensatiorPastl Employment Restrictive Covenants, dated Deeerh2, 1995, by and
between Sprint Corporation and Dennis G. Huberclviesbntinues to govern certain payments being nadér. Huber as of the
date of this report (incorporated by referencestbikit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-f@diby Embarq Corporation
(File No. 00-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissio@ctober 30, 2008

f. Amendment 2008-1 to the Employment Agreenettveen Embarg Corporation and Dennis G. Hubeeddaecember 22, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to thendal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Deearth, 2008 filed by
Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32372) on February 13, 200!

g. Embarq Corporation 2006 Equity IncentivenPs amended and restated (incorporated by refeterExhibit 99.1 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by Cernitiny, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with the Securiti@sd Exchange Commission
on July 1, 2009)

h. Form of 2007 Award Agreement for executi¥iicers of Embarq Corporation (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Embarq CorpimmatFile No. 001-32372) with the Securities andEange Commission on
February 27, 2007
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i. Form of 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agment (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.thé Current Report on Form 8-
K filed by Embarq Corporation (File No. C-32372) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 4, 2008’

j- Form of 2009 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreem@mtorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ¢herent Report on Form 8-
K filed by Embarq Corporation (File No. C-32732) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 5, 2009

k. Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (incarmrgted by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the CurRReport on Form 8-K filed by
Embarqg Corporation (File No. 0-32372) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 4, 2008’

l. Amendment to Outstanding RSUs granted in7280d 2008 under the Embarg Corporation 2006 Edpigntive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 toAmmual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwem31, 2008 filed by
Embarqg Corporation (File No. 0-32372) on February 13, 200!

m. Form of 2006 Award Agreement between Emitzoporation and Richard A. Gephardt (incorporatgddference to Exhibit 10.3
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Embamygdration (File No. 001-32372) with the Securit@®l Exchange
Commission on August 1, 2006), as amended by trendment thereto dated June 26, 2009 (incorporatedference to Exhibit
10.6 (m) to the Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed by CenturyLink, Inc. for the period endathé 30, 2009)

n. Amended and Restated Executive Severance iRtduding Form of Participation Agreement entkirgto between Embarq
Corporation and William E. Cheek (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly ReporFonm 10-Q filed by
Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissio@ctober 30, 2008

0. Embarq Supplemental Executive Retirememnt,Rla amended and restated as of January 1, 26fidorated by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K floe year ended December 31, 2008 filed by Embarg&ation (File
No. 001-32372) on February 13, 2009) and amendment theegtml December 27, 2010, included her

Employment Agreement, dated as of Septemd@d10 by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and De@hisluber (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 of our Quarterly RepmrtForm 1-Q for the period ended September 30, 20

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and PreferredkSbividends

Subsidiaries of CenturyLink, In

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Conh:

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of CtenyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Saiz-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of CemyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Executive Officen@ Chief Financial Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. pwant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit filed herewith.



* Portions of Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 filed herew
Note: Our Corporate Governance Guidelines and CharfesardBoard of Director Committees are located anwebsite at
www.centurylink.con.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

CenturyLink, Inc

Date: March 1, 201 By: /s/ Glen F. Post, Il
Glen F. Post, Il
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptine following persons on behalf
the Registrant and in the capacities and on theiddtcated.

/s/ Glen F. Post, Il
Glen F. Post, Il

/s/ William A. Owens
William A. Owens

Chief Executive Officer
President and Direct:

Chairman of the Boar

March 1, 2011

March 1, 2011

/sl R. Stewart Ewing, J Executive Vice President ai

R. Stewart Ewing, J Chief Financial Office March 1, 2011

s/ Neil A. Sweas! Vice President and Controll:

Neil A. Sweas) March 1, 2011

s/ Virginia Boulet Director

Virginia Boulet March 1, 2011

[s/ Peter C. Brow! Director

Peter C. Browr March 1, 2011

/s/ Richard A. Gephar Director

Richard A. Gepharc March 1, 2011

/s/ W. Bruce Hank Director

W. Bruce Hank March 1, 2011
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/sl Gregory J. McCra Director

Gregory J. McCra March 1, 2011

/s/ C. G. Melville, Jr Director March 1, 2011

C. G. Melville, Jr.

/s/ Fred R. Nichol: Director March 1, 2011

Fred R. Nichols

/sl Harvey P. Perr Director March 1, 2011

Harvey P. Perr



/sl Laurie A. Siege Director March 1, 2011
Laurie A. Siege

/s/ Joseph R. Zimmq Director March 1, 2011
Joseph R. Zimme
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Description

Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Valuation allowance fodeferre
tax asset

Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Valuation allowance fodeferred
assets

Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Valuation allowance fordeferrec
assets

SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
CENTURYLINK, INC.

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 ar&l 200

Additions
Balance chargec Deductic Balan
beginnir costs ar from Other at enc
of peric expens allowan changge of peri
(Dollars in thousands
$ 47,45( 91,20: (78,56¢€) (1) - 60,08¢
$ 41,53 3,681 (2,320 - 42,89:
$ 16,29( 56,60¢ (25,449 (1) - 47,45(
$ 33,85¢ 3,88¢ (6,329 10,11¢ (2) 41,53
$ 20,36! 9,86¢ (13,529 (1) (413) (2) 16,29(
$ 30,90% 1,60z - 1,34¢ 33,85¢

(1) Customer’ accounts writte-off, net of recoveries

(2) Allowances at the date of acquisition of purchaseasidiaries, net oallowances at the date of disposition of subsid&sold
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EXHIBIT 10.1(A)

EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO THE
CENTURYLINK DOLLARS & SENSE 401(K) PLAN

WHEREAS , the CenturyLink Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan (“Plamas amended and restated by CenturyLink, Ine {@ompany)
effective December 31, 2006;

WHEREAS , the Company wishes to amend the Plan to incliafe barbor and qualified automatic contributiontfiees, exten
eligibility to participate in the Plan to those doyees of Embarq Corporation who were participamtthe Embarg Retirement Savings Plan
make other necessary changes; and

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRl&ection 14.2 of the Plan;
NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is amended effective January 1, 201 1glksfs:
I

The fourth sentence of the third paragraph of mmble to the Plan is amended and restated tameédentirety as
follows:

The Trustee of the Dollars & Sense Trust is Wedlsge Bank, N.A.

The Preamble to the Plan is amended by addingotteving as the last paragraph thereof to readisiemtirety as
follows:

Effective January 1, 2011, non-represented emptogé&mbarqg Corporation (“Embarq”) and the subsidia
of Embarq that sponsored the Embarq Retiremenngawrlan are eligible to participate in the Plaraécordance with
the adoption of the Plan by such entities as Rpatiimg Employers as of such date.

Il
The second paragraph of Section 1B®ployee, is amended and restated in its entirety to reddlows:

The term Employee shall not include any individwab, as of the effective date of the acquisitiofcofbarqg
Corporation (“Embarg”) by the Company, was a comi@anemployee of Embarg, but who transfers to akiocation
of an Employer after such acquisition, if such wdiial remains on a payroll of Embarq or anothéitgthat,
immediately prior to such acquisition, was requitethe aggregated with Embarqg under Section 414¢h)(m) or (0)
of the Code (an “Embarqg Entity”) (“Embarg EmployeeThis paragraph shall not apply to individuatsered by a
collective bargaining agreement that provides fatipipation in the Plan.

Nevertheless, effective January 1, 2011, the datkdEq and its subsidiaries that sponsored the Embar
Retirement Savings Plan became Participating Eneptoin accordance with Article 14, the immediat@igceding
paragraph shall cease to apply and the term Emelsiyall include such Embarg Employees describedealyto
otherwise meet the requirement to be considerdehaployee under this Section 1.18.

(A2

Section 2.1, Active Patrticipation , is amended and restated to read in its entirefpliows:

2.1 Active Participation . Each Employee shall be eligible to participat¢hie Plan upon the first day of the first month
after the thirtieth (30th) day following his or hdaite of employment or reemployment.

Section 3.1(a) Participant Election , is amended and restated to read in its entirefpliows:

@) 1) Participant Deferral ElectionA Participant may elect to defer Compensatiat thould otherwise be paid to him
for the deferral of such Compensation, in an amaxpressed as a whole percentage from one pert@)ttp fifty
percent (50%) of his Compensation as he shall @dtie manner prescribed by the Emplo

2) Automatic Contribution Arrangemerifthe Plan is intended to meet the requirementicaiybe to a Qualified
Automatic Contribution Arrangement (as defined iectton 401(k)(13)(B) of the Code) and an Eligibleitématic
Contribution Arrangement (as defined in Section(¥343) of the Code), effective as of January 1,201

?3) Automatic Compensation ReductioncEta . If a Participant becomes a Participant on orrafsnuary 1,
2011 anc does not affirmatively elect to contribute to tRi&n, his or her Compensation shall be automaficallucec



by three percent (3%) each pay period and this amshall be contributed to the Plan as a Pre-Tactile Deferral
(the “Automatic Compensation Reduction Election”).

If on or before January 1, 2011 an eligible Emptoyas affirmatively elected to make Elective Deflri(i.e., Pre-Tax
Elective Deferral and/or Roth Elective Deferral)le$s than three percent (3%) (during such elegignod and under
such procedures as are prescribed by the Committee)Automatic Compensation Reduction Electionlstgual the

difference between the eligible Employee’s affirimatelection and three percent (3%). Such contidos shall be
contributed to the Plan as a Pre-Tax Elective Dafemunless the eligible Employee’s affirmative atlen was

exclusively a Roth Elective Deferral, in which cadbe Automatic Compensation Reduction Election Ishala Roth

Elective Deferral.

Example 1. If an eligible Employee had affirmatively electedmake Pre-Tax Elective Deferrals of one pert)

of his or her Compensation each pay period, as albne percent (1%) Roth Elective Deferrals, theofatic

Compensation Reduction Election shall be one pertEn), contributed as Pre-Tax Elective Deferraig,that the
eligible Employee’s total Elective Deferrals wile lihree percent (3%) of Compensation each pay ¢péopne percent
(1%) Roth Elective Deferral and two percent (2%9-Pex Elective Deferral).

Example 2. If an eligible Employee had affirmatively electedimake Roth Elective Deferrals of two percent ] 2%
his or her Compensation each pay period, the Autiocn@ompensation Reduction Election shall be oneqr (1%),
contributed as Roth Elective Deferrals, so that eligible Employee’s initial total Elective Defelsawill be three
percent (3%) of Compensation each pay period fallnich shall be Roth Elective Deferrals.

A Participant may change the Automatic Compensa®eduction Election, and may change the classifinatf future
deferrals from Pre-Tax Elective Deferrals to Rotadive Deferrals, at any time. Automatic CompeéissaReductions
that are not changed by the Participant are sutgeztiange in accordance with paragraph (5) below.

4) Withdrawal Right A Participant may withdraw Contributions made tie or her behalf pursuant to the
Automatic Compensation Reduction Election, adjustedallocable gains or losses to the date of ithistion, during an
initial ninety (90) day period after such Contriloms were first made on the Participant’s behalfParticipant who
withdraws Contributions pursuant to this subparplgrahall be treated as having made an affirmatieetien to stop
having Elective Deferrals made on his or her behslbf the effective date of the withdrawal.

5) Automatic Escalations If the Participant to whom an Automatic Compaitn Reduction Election applies
does not change the election prior to the followpuyil 1 which is at least six (6) months after tthate on which the
Automatic Compensation Reduction Election firstlaggpto the Participant, such Participant’s Pre-daRoth Elective
Deferrals shall be increased at a rate of one pefd8so) per year, commencing as of such April I eontinuing each
subsequent April 1 until the Participant’s defematle equals six percent (6%). A Participant miap ¢he automatic
escalations or otherwise change his or her defeteaition at any time. Automatic Escalation cdnitions shall have
the same charactei.€. Pre-Tax or Roth) as the Participant’s Automatic @ensation Reduction Election. Thus, under
Example lin paragraph (3) above, the Automatic Escalatioilsb& contributed as Pre-Tax Elective Deferraldiles
underExample Zhe Automatic Escalations will be contributed agHRBlective Deferrals.

(6) Voluntary Automatic EscalationsAny Participant who has affirmatively electectcentribution rate of at
least one percent (1%) may elect, in the mannescpled by the Employer and under such procedusesra
determined by the Employer, for his Pre-Tax Elextdeferrals and/or Roth Elective Deferrals to béommatically

increased according to a pre-determined scheduRarficipant may stop or change the voluntary aatanescalations
or otherwise change his or her deferral electicemgttime.

©) Vesting A Participant shall at all times have a nonfiteflele interest in his Elective Deferral Account.

Contributions shall be subject to the followingesil

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Change A Participant may change the specified defgueatentage and the classification of future defs
from Pre-Tax Elective Deferrals to Roth Elective f&eals (or viceversa) at any time. Said change
percentage shall be made by such means as is abkepd the Committee. If the election is maderatte
Employees date of hire and before the Employee becomeiblgitp participate in this Plan, such electionlk
be effective for the Employeg’first pay period following eligibility and for gequent pay periods (ul
superseded by a subsequent election). Electitets dit a later date shall be effective for the plygeriod a
soon as administratively feasible following theedtite election is filec

Suspension A Participant may suspend his election at ametieffective for the payroll period beginning
the month following the date the election is fil

Salary Reduction The amount of a ParticipaatCompensation for a Plan Year shall be reducatidoamour
of the contribution that is contributed to the Plamrsuant to his election or the Automatic Comp&as
Reduction Election

Election. All elections shall be made at the time, in th@nner, and subject to the conditions specifiethk
Committee, which shall prescribe uniform and noadiisinatory rules for such elections. The Emplogkal
pay over to the Plan all Elective Deferrals as sa®is practicable (but in no event later thanltbia busines



day of the month following the month in which thie&ive Deferrals would have otherwise been payabtae
Participant in cash). Contributions made by theplxyer under this subsection shall be allocateth&oPre-
Tax Elective Deferral Account or the Roth Electibeferral Account in accordance with the Participgnt
irrevocable designation, unless the election iAatomatic Compensation Reduction Election, in whiets:
such Contributions shall be allocated to the Pigditt's PreTax Elective Deferral Account (unless and
the Participant elects to make Roth Elective Delsjr

v) Notice. At least 30 days (but not more than 90 daysyteethe beginning of the Plan Year, the Employék
provide each Participant a comprehensive noticehef Participans rights and obligations regarding
Automatic Compensation Reduction Election. If andioyee becomes a Participant after the 90th déyré
the beginning of the Plan Year and does not rectiigenotice for that reason, the notice will bevied nc
more than 90 days before the Employee becomestigifant but not later than the date the Employeeoine
a Participant. The notice will accurately descri®® the amount of the Elective Deferrals thatlwié made o
the Participant’s behalf; (B) the Participantight to elect to have no Elective Deferrals madehis or he
behalf or to have a different amount of Electivé@mls made; (C) how Elective Deferrals will beésted il
the absence of the Participant’s investment intibs; and (D) the Participastrights to make a permissi
withdrawal, if applicable, and the procedures txebuch a withdrawa

Section 3.2, Employer Match Contributions , is amended to read in its entirety as follows iternal references shall be corrected
accordingly:

3.2 E mployer Match Contributions

@) Effective January 1, 2011, Employer Match Contiitmg shall be made in cas

(b) Effective January 1, 2011, each Participant witleige an Employer Match Contribution in an amoumqia to the sui
of —

Q) 100% of the amount of the Participant’sdilee Deferrals that do not exceed 1% of the Piaditt’'s
Compensation; plu

2) 50% of the amount of the Participant’s ElexDeferrals that do exceed 1% of the Particiga@bmpensation
but that do not exceed 6% of the Partici| s Compensatior

(c) Employer Match Contributions will be calatéd on a payroll period basis. No contributiorils lve made to “true up”
the Employer Match Contributions after the endhef Plan Year

(d) Employer Match Contributions made on behalf of giBigant, as adjusted for withdrawals thereof @stment gain an
losses, and income or expenses, shall be creditegch Participa’s Employer Match Accoun

(e) Any Employer Match Contributions that ateilbutable to Excess Deferrals shall be forfeided applied to reduce
Employer Contributions to the Ple

) Any Employer Match Contribution with respect to Ege Contributions that are distributed shall béefted.
(9) Employer Match Contributions shall be fully vestdall times except as provided in paragraphsr{d)(® above
(h) The Employer Match Contribution formula Bltantinue in effect until otherwise changed bgakition of the
Employe’s Board of Directors
VII.

Section 3.3, Additional Match Contributiongs amended to include the following sentencéatend thereof to read in its entirety as
follows:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and in accordanc Wireasury Regulations Section 1.401(m)-3(d), sugh Additional Match
Contribution shall not be made with respect to ecDeferrals or employee contributions that exise8% of the Participant’s
Compensation. Furthermore, any such Additionaldid&ontribution shall not exceed 4% of the Partioifs Compensation.

VIII.

Paragraph (d), Participant Electipof Section 4.7Investment of Funds, is amended to add a second paragraph to reggléntirety as
follows:

The default fund designated by the Committee isndéed to satisfy the U.S. Department of Laboules for a qualified default investm
alternative (“QDIA”). The QDIA rules specify thdigcause the Participant had an option to makewasiment election and chose not to
do so, the Company and other Plan fiduciaries evtepted from liability under the Employee Retiretnencome Security Act of 1974
(“ERISA”) for placing such Participant’s contribatis in the default investment fund. A Participaray choose to transfer all or any
portion of his or her balance out of a default stweent fund by giving appropriate notice of hiscéitn in accordance with rules
established by the Committe



IX.

The second sentence of paragraph_(e), Company Stdckection 4.7, Investment of Funds amended and restated to
read in its entirety as follows:

The Plan shall include Company Stock as an Invasti@etion for assets that are invested in Compaogkas of December 31,
2010, however, once Company Stock in the Plaraissterred to another Investment Option, it caneotdinvested in Company
Stock.

X.

The first paragraph of Section 6.4(a), Hardshigpamended and restated to read in its entirefplbows:

@) Hardship By filing the required form, a Participant majthdraw on account of hardship all or a portiorhisf vested Accrued
Benefit held in the Participant’s Elective Deferfadcount and Rollover Account onlyexcept earnings thereon. The amount
distributed will be withdrawn pro rata across ddigimoney types

XI.
The last paragraph under Subparagraph (3) of Se6tit(a), Hardshipis amended and restated to read in its entiefpliows:
A Participant who receives a distribution on acdafrhardship shall be prohibited from making EleetDeferrals and employee

contributions under this and all other plans of Emeployer and any Affiliated Employer (includingetiCompany’s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan and Supplemental Dollars & Sensg flasix (6) months after the distribution.

XIl.
Section 9.1Loans, is amended by adding a new Paragraph (h) toireiéslentirety as follows:
(h) A Participant may not have more than twenle outstanding at one time from all plans of thgplyer and any Affiliated
Employer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onTttisday of December, 2010.
CENTURYLINK, INC.
By :/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J

Name: R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Title: EVP, CFO and Assistant Secret:




EXHIBIT 10.1(B)

EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO THE
CENTURYLINK UNION 401(K) PLAN

WHEREAS , the CenturyTel Union 401(k) Plan (“Plan”) was armded and restated by CenturyLink, Inc. (the “Conydpaffective
December 31, 2006;

WHEREAS , on May 20, 2010, the shareholders of the Compgpyoved a change of the Company's name from Garglrinc. to
CenturyLink, Inc., and the Company changed the R&me to reflect the new Company name;

WHEREAS , the Company wishes to revise the Plan’s Preatohieflect the Plan’s new Trustee, restrict hargghstributions to
employee contributions only, revise in-serviceriisitions from Rollover Accounts and After-Tax Aects; and

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRI&ection 13.2 of the Plan.
NOW, THEREFORE , the Plan is amended as follows, effective Janta®011:
l.
The third sentence of the sixth paragraph of the Rramble to the Plan is amended and restated to readlits entirety as follows:
The Trustee of the Union 401(k) Trust is Wells FeaBank, N.A.
Il.
The first paragraph of Section 6.6(a), Hardship is amended and restated to read in its entiretysafollows:
Hardship. By filing the required form, a Participant maytlkdraw on account of hardship all or a portion igfirested Accrued Benefit
held in the Participant’s Elective Deferral Accoumtcept earnings thereon. The amount distribwiide withdrawn pro rata across eligible
money types.

Paragraph (c), Rollover Account, of Section 6.6, Other Permitted Distributions, is amended by adding the following sentence at
the end thereof:

Effective January 1, 2011, Participants in Group8/And C may withdraw any amount from their RoloAccounts in accordance with
this Section 6.6(c).

V.

Paragraph (d), Voluntary After -Tax Account, of Section 6.6, Other Permitted Distributions, is amended by adding the following
sentence at the end thereof:

Effective January 1, 2011, Participants in Group8/And C may withdraw any amount from their VoamtAfter-Tax Accounts in
accordance with this Section 6.6(d).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onTttisday of December, 2010.

CENTURYLINK, INC.

By :/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J
Name: R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Title: EVP, CFO and Assistant Secret:




EXHIBIT 10.1(C)
AMENDMENT NO. 8

TO THE
CENTURYLINK RETIREMENT PLAN

WHEREAS , the CenturyTel Retirement Plan (“Plan”) was anezhdnd restated by CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Compasejfctive
December 31, 2006;

WHEREAS , effective May 20, 2010, the name of the Plan gedrto CenturyLink Retirement Plan to corresponithwie change in the
Company’s hame to CenturyLink, Inc.;

WHEREAS , the Company desires to amend the Plan to lireiefgibility of nonrepresented employees to pagyéte in the Plan, to
curtail accrual of benefits for the existing nomesented participants, and to provide a 5-yeasttian period during which specified benefits that
have already accrued will be increased by a fixadgntage each year; and

WHEREAS , pursuant to Section 12.2 of the Plan, the Compasgrves the right to amend the Plan in whole qairt;

NOW, THEREFORE , the Plan is amended effective as of January 1] 2@less otherwise provided below, as follows:

I
Section 2.14Compensation, is amended by adding a new paragraph at thecerghd in its entirety as follows:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, effective Januarg@11, no amounts paid after December 31, 2010 sbalonsidered in
determining a Participant’'s Compensation. Theiptevsentence shall not apply to Grandfathered éssmted Employees.

Effective December 31, 2010, the following new 8stt 2.26 Grandfathered Participants , and 2.27, Grandfathered
Represented Employeesare inserted immediately following the existingc8on 2.25Final Average Pay, to read in their entirety as
follows. The remainder of Section 2 (beginning vtttk existing Section 2.26lours of Service) is renumbered and the relevant cross-
references in the Plan are re-referenced accosdingl

2.26 Grandfathered Participants means Employees as of December 31, 2010 who a®raatfathered Represented
Employees and who have accrued a Normal RetireBemefit as of such date.

2.27 Grandfathered Represented Employeemeans Eligible Employees who participate in thenRlarsuant to a collective
bargaining agreement that requires the Employerdwide benefit accruals to such employees undgpartion of the Plan. Eligible
Employees may be Grandfathered Represented Emgleyes though their collective bargaining agreerpes¥ides for benefit accruals
equivalent to the accruals that were, as of Dece@bge2010, provided to Employees who are not aedvéay a collective bargaining
agreement. Employees who are covered by a caliebtirgaining agreement that does not require hgl®&er to provide benefit
accruals pursuant to the Plan, or who are coveyexddmllective bargaining agreement that ceasesdgoire such accruals, are not
Grandfathered Represented Employees.

Section 3.1Eligible Employee, is amended by adding a paragraph at the endathereead in its entirety as follows:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Employee is noEdigible Employee if his employment with an Exoypér began after
December 31, 2010.

V.

Section 3.4Reassignment and Reemploymentis amended by adding a fourth and fifth paragitapiead in their entirety as follows:

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thisen 3.4, effective January 1, 2011, no personsehemployment with the
Employer begins after December 31, 2010 shall becamarticipant in the Plan.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thiscien 3.4, effective January 1, 2011, a person whasployment with the
Employer resumes after December 31, 2010 may restahigs as a Participant in the Plan in accordaitteSection 4.4. Such a
Participant shall not however resume accrual okfisnunder the Plan after resuming employment,shatl he or she resume accrual of
the transition benefit set forth in Section 6.124)(



Section 4.3, Credited Service, is amended by adding new paragraphs (h) and (8&d in their entirety as follows:

(h) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions oktBection 4.3, effective January 1, 2011, no GeeldBervice shall be earned
by a Participant or Eligible Employee with respecany period of employment after December 31, Z0i@he purpose of determining
the amount of the Accrued Benefit. This Secti@(). shall not apply to Grandfathered Representagdi&yees.

(i) Credited Service will continue to be earnedabiyarticipant or Eligible Employee with respecptsiods of employment after

December 31, 2010 for the purpose of determiniigglelity for a Retirement Benefit (such as elidibyi for Early Retirement pursuant to
Section 5.2).

VL.

Section 4.7Transfers Between Company, Affiliates and Adoptingentities , is amended by adding new paragraphs (f) andb(ggad
in their entirety as follows:

(f) Notwithstanding the foregoing, and except esvgled in Section 2.22 (Employee), in the casaroindividual who transfers
employment as described under (a) above on or rarary 1, 2011, such individual shall not betledtito an Accrued Benefit under t
Plan with respect to any period of employment ditecember 31, 2010.

(g) Notwithstanding the foregoing, and except@viged in Section 2.22 (Employee), in the casa Grandfathered Particips
who transfers employment to or from an Affiliate @nafter January 1, 2011, such individual shafitcwe to accrue benefits pursuant to
Section 6.1(g)(2).

VII.

Article 6.1 is amended by adding a new paragraplo(gead in its entirety as follows:

Section 6.1Freezing of Normal Retirement Benefit (and all Benfits Based Thereon); Exceptions

(g) Plan Freeze. Except as otherwise stated in Sections 6.1(g)(tl)(2), and notwithstanding any other provisiothie Plan
to the contrary, the Normal Retirement Benefit bParticipants shall be frozen at the level acdrae of December 31, 2010, and shall
not increase after such date. The freezing offifsrmursuant to this Section 6.1(g) (as modifietbly) also applies to all Plan benefits
that are determined by reference to the Normalr&atnt Benefit (including but not limited to EaRgtirement Benefits under Section
6.2, Deferred Retirement Benefits under Section BiSability Retirement Benefits under Section Gppuse’s Benefits under Section
6.5, and Benefits for Terminated Vested Participamider Section 6.6), and to any benefits provmeduant to Schedules 6.1(a)(3) and
6.1(a)(4). Benefits provided under Schedule 6(bjagre not determined by reference to the Nornadir@nent Benefit and are
unaffected by the Plan freeze under this Sectit(gp.

(1) Exception: Grandfathered Represented Employees Grandfathered Represented Employees shall retie@/Normal
Retirement Benefit required under the terms ofaplicable collective bargaining agreement, ageééid in such agreement
and/or the Plan (including the Constituent Plarg Appendices to the Plan) for as long as requitedyant to such collective
bargaining agreement. Grandfathered Representgiolfees, including those who cease to be GrandidhRepresented
Employees on or after January 1, 2011, shall naligéle for the limited annual increases to theridal Retirement Benefit set
forth in Section 6.1(g)(2), unless specifically yicted under a collective bargaining agreement.

(2) Exception: Grandfathered Participants. Grandfathered Participants shall receive a frucent (4%) increase to their
Normal Retirement Benefit each year that they aBgandfathered Participant, until the earlier §fDlecember 31, 2015 or (ii)
the date of the Participastinitial termination of employment with the Empésyand all Affiliates. If a Grandfathered Partiiy
terminates employment with the Employer and alilisfies prior to the end of a Plan Year, the inseein the prior sentence for
the applicable Plan Year shall be based on the punfimonths credited in such Plan Year, wherdrtbeease is calculated
using compound interest. If the Grandfatherediépant works at least one day in a calendar mdmhgr she shall receive full
credit for that month. If any Grandfathered P#stat terminates employment with the Employer ahdfiliates after
December 31, 2010 and becomes reemployed withrii@dyer or any Affiliate before December 31, 2046¢h Participant
shall receive no additional increases to his olNmmal Retirement Benefit after such reemploymandt his or her Normal
Retirement Benefit shall remain frozen as of his@rinitial termination date after December 311@0 The increases in bene
provided pursuant to this Section 6.1(g)(2) shatlapply to any benefits provided pursuant to Sake=si6.1(a)(3), 6.1(a)(4), or
6.1(a)(5).

(3) Vesting. The provisions of this Section 6.1(g) shall haveeffect on the continued vesting of benefitsspant to Article
IV of the Plan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Employer has caused this Amendment No. & texiecuted this 27 day of December, 2010 by its
authorized representative.

CENTURYLINK, INC.



By :/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J
Name: R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Title: EVP, CFO and Assistant Secret:




EXHIBIT 10.4
FIRST AMENDMENT TO
THE CENTURYLINK, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL DOLLARS & SENSE PLAN
2008 RESTATEMENT

WHEREAS , CenturyLink, Inc. (the “Company”) maintains ther@uryTel, Inc. Supplemental Dollars & Sense Ptae (Plan”), which
was most recently restated effective January 18200

WHEREAS , on May 20, 2010, the shareholders of the Compapyoapd a change of the Company’s name from Cenglryfic. to
CenturyLink, Inc., and the Company wishes to chahgePlan name to reflect the Company’s new name;

WHEREAS , effective January 1, 2011, the Company amende@#nturyLink, Inc. Dollars & Sense Plan to inceetitee maximum
percentage of pay that may be deferred thereuaddrthe Company desires to amend the Plan to meseesponding change thereto;

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRI&ection 16.02 of the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE , the Plan is amended effective as of the datesfigmbbelow, as follows:

l.

Effective May 20, 2010, “CenturyTel” is deleted edt place it appears in the Plan and “CenturyLink” is substituted therefor.
Il.

Effective January 1, 2011, the second sentence afcon 5.01 is amended to read as follows:

The amount of allowable deferral pursuant to eddh@Participans elections shall be a whole percentage, not teexk&0% (25% pric
to January 1, 2011).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment on Tttisday of December, 2010.

CENTURYLINK, INC.

By :/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J
Name: R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Title: EVP, CFO and Assistant Secret:




Exhibit 10.5

SECOND AMENDMENT
TO
THE CENTURYLINK, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
2008 RESTATEMENT

WHEREAS , CenturyLink, Inc. (the “Company”) maintains ther@uryTel, Inc. Supplemental Defined Benefit Pltre (‘Plan”), which
was most recently restated effective January 18200

WHEREAS , on May 20, 2010, the shareholders of the Compapyoaed a change of the Company’s name from Cengiryiic. to
CenturyLink, Inc., and the Company wishes to chahgePlan name to reflect the Company’s new name;

WHEREAS , the Company desires to freeze the Plan effedtwiary 1, 2011 in connection with the amendmethi®fCenturyLink,
Inc. Retirement Plan (the “Retirement Plan”) fregzihe benefit accruals thereunder as of Decenthe2®L0;

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRI&ection 18.02 of the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE , the Plan is amended effective as of the datesfsgakbelow, as follows:

Effective May 20, 2010, “CenturyTel” is deleted edt place it appears in the Plan and “CenturyLink” is substituted therefor.

Il.
Effective January 1, 2011, Article IIl, Participation , is amended by adding a new Section 3.04 to read follows:
3.04 Notwithstanding the foregoing, effective Januar@11, no employee shall be eligible to participatthe Plan if his
employment with the Employer began after Decemiie2810.

Il
Effective January 1, 2011, Article IV, Normal Retirement, is amended and restated to read as follows:

IV. Normal Retirement

4.01 Subiject to the provisions of Articles XII and Klthe monthly retirement benefit payable to a iegrant shall commence
on his Normal Retirement Date and shall be the #déany, of the sum of the amounts determinadyant to Sections 6.1(a)(1) and (a)
(2) of the Retirement Plan (as modified by Sec@idl(g) of the Retirement Plan, which freezes Retéet Plan benefits at the level
accrued as of December 31. 2010, with the excepfidimited transition benefits under Section 6){2y of such plan), computed
without taking into account the limitations contihin Sections 2.14(d) and (e) and 5.7 thereof theeamount so determined taking into
account such limitations; the resulting benefitlisba further reduced by the amount determinedymnsto Section 6.1(a)(3) of the
CenturyTel Retirement Plan, if any.

4.02 In accordance with Section 6.1 of the Retirenidah, the Normal Retirement benefit under the Blall be frozen at the
level accrued as of December 31, 2010, and shalhanrease after such date, with the exceptiomgfapplicable transition benefit
increases in accordance with Section 4.01 of thae.PThe freezing of benefits pursuant to this iBact.02 of the Plan also applies to all
Plan benefits that are determined by referenchad\ibrmal Retirement benefit under Section 6. hefRetirement Plan (including but
not limited to benefits under the following Artislef the Plan: Late Retirement under Article V; liz&etirement under Article VI;
Disability Retirement under Article VII; SpouseséBefits under Article VIII; and Benefits for Ternaited Vested Participants under
Article X).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onTttisday of December, 2010.

CENTURYLINK, INC.

By :/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J
Name: R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Title: CFO




EXHIBIT 10.11
CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT

CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement), effective as of January 1, 2011 (the “ Agreetri@ate”), between
CenturyLink, Inc., a Louisiana corporation (the 8r@pany”), and Glen F. Post, Il (the “* Employép

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS , on December 31, 2010, the change of control ageaeebetween the Company and the Employee (theddeessor
Agreement) lapsed;

WHEREAS , the Board of Directors of the Company (the “ Bbgrhas determined that it is in the best intere$tthe Company and its
shareholders to enter into a replacement changerdfol agreement providing the Employee with bi#ésaiubstantially comparable to those
previously afforded to the Employee under the Reedsor Agreement, subject to a reduction of thegef time during which the Employee will
hold contingent severance rights following a chaogeontrol of the Company, the elimination of eémttax “gross-up” rights, the elimination of
certain events or conditions triggering the paynodrgeverance benefits, the addition of certaitricive covenants applicable to the Employee,
and certain other changes curtailing the Employeglds to receive severance benefits upon a chahgentrol of the Company, each on the
terms and conditions provided below; and

WHEREAS , the Board believes that this Agreement is redsigrdesigned to retain the services of the Empl@mto assure the full
dedication of the Employee, free from personalrdition, in the event of an actual or pending cleamigcontrol of the Company;

NOW , THEREFORE , the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

1.1 Affiliate. “Affiliate” (and variants thereof) shall mean arBon that controls, or is controlled by, or is @ndommon control
with, another specified Person, either directlynalirectly.

1.2 Beneficial Owner. “Beneficial Owner” (and variants thereof), witlispect to a security, shall mean a Person whathjirer
indirectly (through any contract, understandinggtienship or otherwise), has or shares (i) the grow vote, or direct the voting of, the security,
or (i) the power to dispose of, or direct the disition of, the security.

1.3 Business. “Business” shall mean, as of any particular gitte business of (i) providing local or long dista voice, network
access, Internet access, data or video servigeselling communications products in connectiothwiroviding such services or (iii) providing
any other material services or selling any othetenia products then performed or sold by the Comypar its Affiliates.

1.4 Cause. (a) “Cause” shall mean the Employee’s (i) willfweach of Section 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreemeiitconviction of, or
plea of guilty omolo contender¢o, a felony or other crime involving dishonestynooral turpitude; (iii) workplace conduct resultiimgthe
payment of civil monetary penalties or the incucef civil non-monetary penalties that will magdisi restrict or prevent the Employee from
discharging his obligations to the Company; (ivbihaal intoxication during working hours or habitaduse of or addiction to a controlled
substance; (v) material breach of the Companyisiémdrading, corporate ethics and compliance pgiand programs or any other Boadbptec
policies applicable to management conduct; (vijipigation in the public reporting of any informei contained in any report filed by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commigbiathwas impacted by the Employg&howing or intentional fraudulent or illegal corod,
or (vii) substantial, willful and repeated failuie perform duties as instructed by or on behathefBoard in writing.

(b) The Employee’s employment shall notlbemed terminated for Cause unless the Companiyhstval delivered to the
Employee a termination notice with a copy of a heson adopted by the affirmative vote of not Iéisan three-quarters of the entire Board at a
meeting called partly or wholly for such purposteareasonable notice is provided to the Emplayeed the Employee has had an opportunity,
with counsel, to be heard by the Board) finding tha Employee should be terminated for Cause padifying in reasonable detail the grounds
therefor.

() No action or inaction shall be deentesl hasis for Cause unless the Employee is terndrih&zefor prior to the first
anniversary of the date on which such action orssian is first known to the Chairman of the Boardhe Chair of any standing committee of the
Board.

15 Change of Control. “Change of Control” shall mean:
@) the acquisition by any Person of Biered Ownership of 30% or more of the outstandstgres of the Company’s
Common Stock, $1.00 par value per share (the “ Com8tock’), or 30% or more of the combined voting powetle Company’s then
outstanding securities entitled to vote generallthie election of directorgrovided, howevethat for purposes of this subsection (a), the foitgy
acquisitions shall not constitute a Change of Gontr

0] any acquisition (other than a Busey€ombination which constitutes a Change of Contnaler Section 1.5(c)
hereof) of Common Stock directly from the Company,

(ii) any acquisition of Common Stock lmetCompany or its subsidiaries,



(iii) any acquisition of Common Stock agy employee benefit plan (or related trust) spmtsor maintained by the
Company or any corporation controlled by the Conypan

(iv) any acquisition of Common Stock byantity pursuant to a Business Combination tlaschot constitute a
Change of Control under Section 1.5(c) hereof; or

(b) individuals who, as of the AgreemBiate, constitute the Board (the “ Incumbent Bdarckase for any reason to
constitute at least a majority of the Bogpdpvided, howevethat any individual becoming a director subseqoetihe Agreement Date whose
election, or nomination for election by the Comparghareholders, was approved by a vote of at teasthirds of the directors then comprising
the Incumbent Board shall be considered a membireoincumbent Board, unless such individual’sahissumption of office occurs as a result
of an actual or threatened election contest wisipeet to the election or removal of directors dveotactual or threatened solicitation of proxies or
consents by or on behalf of a Person other thainthenbent Board; or

(c) consummation of a reorganizationyshexchange, merger or consolidation (including sugh transaction involving
any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Compamy)sale or other disposition of all or substangialll of the assets of the Company (a “ Business
Combination”); provided, howevethat in no such case shall any such transactiostitote a Change of Control if immediately followisuch
Business Combination,

0] the individuals and entities who wéine Beneficial Owners of the Company’s outstandiognmon stock and the
Company’s voting securities entitled to vote geliia the election of directors immediately primr such Business Combination have
direct or indirect Beneficial Ownership, respectyy®f more than 50% of the then outstanding shafemsmmon stock, and more than
50% of the combined voting power of the then ouigiiag voting securities entitled to vote generallyhe election of directors, of the
Post-Transaction Company (as defined in SectioB Aeteof), and

(ii) except to the extent that such ovehgy existed prior to the Business CombinationPeoson (excluding the Post-
Transaction Company and any employee benefit plaslated trust of the Company, the Post-Transadcfiompany or any subsidiary of
either corporation) Beneficially Owns, directlyiadirectly, 20% or more of the then outstandingrekaf common stock of the
corporation resulting from such Business Combimatin20% or more of the combined voting power @f tilen outstanding voting
securities of such corporation, and

(i) at least a majority of the membefghe board of directors of the Post-Transactiom@any were members of the
Incumbent Board at the time of the execution ofitfial agreement, or of the action of the Bogrhviding for such Business
Combination; or

(d) approval by the shareholders of thenBany of a complete liquidation or dissolutiortted Company.
1.6 Code. “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code &61@s amended from time to time.
1.7 Confidential Information . “Confidential Information” shall mean any infoation, knowledge or data of any nature and in

any form (including information that is electrorligaransmitted or stored on any form of magneti@ctronic storage media) that directly or
indirectly relates to the past, current or prosipedbusiness of the Company and its Affiliates, thiee generated by the Company, any of its
Affiliates, or any of their respective employeefficers, directors, representatives, consultargenss or independent contractors, and whether or
not marked confidential, including without limitati information relating to operations, productsyses, assets, liabilities, franchises, customers,
financial condition, results of operations, finascprospects, strategies, business plans, budgejsctions, pricing information, business
acquisitions, joint ventures, processes, researdtdavelopment ideas, trade secrets, supplier $sfplier information, distribution and sales d
consultants’ reports, marketing strategies, pra@ryecomputer software, and internal notes and manta relating to any of the foregoing;
provided, however, that “Confidential Information” shall not includay information that (i) is or becomes generallgiable to the public other
than as a result of a breach of this Agreemenj)as or becomes available to the Employee oma-confidential basis from a source other than
the Company, its Affiliates or their respective nesentatives, provided that such source is not knmythe Employee to have violated any
confidentiality agreement with the Company in castime with such disclosure.

1.8 Company. “Company” shall mean CenturyLink, Inc. and shadllide any successor to or assignee of (whethectdire
indirect, by purchase, share exchange, mergerptidation or otherwise) all or substantially alltble assets or business of the Company that
assumes and agrees to perform this Agreement batige of law or otherwise.

1.9 Disability. “Disability” shall mean a condition that would etfgithe Employee to receive benefits under the t@nm
disability insurance policy applicable to the Comya officers at the time because the Employeetally disabled or partially disabled, as such
terms are defined in the policy then in effectthd Company has no long-term disability plan fieet “Disability” shall occur if (a) the Employe
is rendered incapable because of physical or méimass of satisfactorily discharging his dutieslaesponsibilities to the Company for a period
of 90 consecutive days, (b) a duly qualified phiggiachosen by the Company and acceptable to thédyegor his legal representatives so
certifies in writing, and (c) the Board determirteat the Employee has become disabled.

1.10 Employment Term. “Employment Term” shall mean the period commegan the date of a Change of Control and ending
on the 24-month anniversary of such date.

1.11 Good Reason. “Good Reasonshall mean any of the following events or condisiaiescribed in this Section 1.11, but on
the Employee shall have provided written noticéh®® Company within 90 days of the initial existeloceccurrence of such event or condition
the Company shall have failed to cure such evenbodition within 30 days of its receipt of sucHhine:

(@) Any failure of the Company or its #ifftes to provide the Employee with a positionthewity, duties ant



responsibilities at least commensurate in all niteespects with the most significant of thosedhelkercised and assigned at
any time during the 180-day period immediately pding the Change of Control. The Employee’s pasjtauthority, duties and responsibilities
after a Change of Control shall not be considemdruensurate in all material respects with the Eggadés position, authority, duties and
responsibilities prior to a Change of Control uslafter the Change of Control the Employee holdeaarivalent position with, and exercises
substantially equivalent authority, duties and cesgibilities on behalf of, the Post-Transaction @amy;

(b) The assignment to the Employee ofd@utjes inconsistent in any material respect with Employee’s position
(including status, offices, titles and reportingugements), authority, duties or responsibilitesscontemplated by Section 3.1(b) of this
Agreement, or any other action that results inmaiwlition in any material respect in such positamthority, duties or responsibilities;

(c) A reduction of the Employee’s basksain effect as of the date of the Change of @mwithout the Employee’s
consent, except for across-the-board salary rezhasimilarly affecting all or substantially alhsiarly-situated officers of the Company and the
Post-Transaction Company;

(d) The Employee is advised of, manifestawareness of, or becomes aware of facts thativeause a reasonable per
to inquire into any failure in any material respbgtthe Company or its Affiliates to comply withyaaf the provisions of this Agreement; or

(e) Any directive requiring the Employteebe based at any office or location other thaprasided in Section 3.1(b)(ii)
hereof or requiring the Employee to travel on basto a substantially greater extent than requinegediately prior to the Change of Control.

1.12 Person. “Person” shall mean a natural person or entiti, shall also mean the group or syndicate createshwwo or more
Persons act as a syndicate or other group (inaydithout limitation, a partnership or limited pa&rship) for the purpose of acquiring, holding,
or disposing of a security, except that “Persorgdlisiot include an underwriter temporarily holdiagecurity pursuant to an offering of the
security.

1.13 Post-Transaction Company. Unless a Change of Control results from a Busir@@smbination (as defined in Section 1.5(c)
hereof), “Post-Transaction Company” shall meanGbepany after the Change of Control. If a Chanfg@antrol results from a Business
Combination, “Post-Transaction Compargfiall mean the corporation or other entity resglfiom the Business Combination unless, as a ref
such Business Combination, an ultimate parentyeotihtrols such resulting entity, the Company dpakubstantially all of the Company’s assets
either directly or indirectly, in which case “Pditansaction Company” shall mean such ultimate garetity.

1.14 Specified Employee. ‘Specified Employee” shall mean the Employee ifEngployee is a key employee under Treasury
Regulations Section 1.409A-1(i) because of final Bmding action taken by the Board or its Comp&asaCommittee, or by operation of law or
such regulation.

ARTICLE Il
STATUS OF CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENTS

This Agreement supersedes the Predecessor Agreameainy and all other prior agreements or arraegésrbetween the Company and
the Employee that provide for severance benefithenevent of a Change of Control of the Compasydefined therein, and is effective as of the
Agreement Date for any Change of Control of the @any occurring after such daf@pvided, howeverthat the Employee shall continue to be
entitled to severance benefits, if any, payablinéoEmployee under the Predecessor Agreement aothry prior agreements or arrangements
between the Employee and the Company in connegtittnthe change of control of the Company as alt@sglits business combination with
Embarq Corporation effected on July 1, 2009 (sulifpeny waiver of benefits under such agreemengrangements furnished in writing by the
Employee to the Company).

ARTICLE Il
CHANGE OF CONTROL BENEFITS

3.1 Terms of Employment after Change of Control. (a) This Agreement shall commence on the Agre¢mate and continue
in effect through December 31, 20J2ovided, howeverthat, commencing on January 1, 2013 and eachadadithereafter, the term of this
Agreement shall automatically be extended for alditeonal year unless, not later than June 30 efiteceding year, the Company or the
Employee shall have given written notice that iesloot wish to extend this Agreememtpvided, furtherthat, notwithstanding any such non-
extension notice by the Company, if a Change oft@bof the Company shall have occurred duringdhiginal or extended term of this
Agreement, this Agreement shall continue in effaobugh the 24-month anniversary of the Changearft®l, subject to any earlier termination
of the Employee’s status as an employee pursughis@dgreementprovided, further, that in no event shall any termination of thisrdgment
result in any forfeiture of rights that accruedoptio the date of termination.

(b) During the Employment Term, the Comphereby agrees to continue the Employee in ifgleyn subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. During the Emypient Term, (i) the Employee’s position (includistgitus, offices, titles and reporting
requirements), authority, duties and responsibgishall be at least commensurate in all matergdects with the most significant of those held,
exercised and assigned at any time during the 3§Qdriod immediately preceding the Change of @bmtnd (ii) the Employee’s services shall
be performed during normal business hours at tbatilon of the Company’s principal executive offatehe time of the Change of Control, or the
office or location where the Employee was employeahediately preceding the Change of Control or eatgcation of any such site to a location
that is not more than 50 miles from its locationhet time of the Change of Control. The Emplogg@sition, authority, duties and responsibili
after a Change of Control shall not be considemdruensurate in all material respects with the Eggadés position, authority, duties and
responsibilities prior to a Change of Control uslefter the Change of Control the Employee holdedrivalent position with, and exercises
substantially equivalent authority, duties and cesgibilities on behalf of, the Post-Transaction @amy.

3.2 Compensation and Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Employee shalébttled to the following compensati



and benefits:

@) Base SalaryThe Employee shall receive an annual base s@él&gse Salary), which shall be paid in at least
monthly installments. The Base Salary shall itiitibe equal to 12 times the highest monthly badarg that was paid or is payable to the
Employee, including any base salary which has leeened but deferred by the Employee, by the Companits Affiliates with respect to any
month in the 12-month period ending with the mahtit immediately precedes the month in which thar@e of Control occurs. During the
Employment Term, the Employee’s Base Salary steatieviewed at such time as the Company undertakekegy review of his peer employees
(but at least annually), and, to the extent thitrgancreases are granted to his peer employetteedfompany (or have been granted during the
immediately preceding 12-month period to his peepleyees of any Affiliate of the Company), the Eoy#te shall be granted a salary increase
commensurate with any increase granted to hisgrapioyees of the Company and its Affiliates. Angrease in Base Salary shall not serve to
limit or reduce any other obligation to the Empleyender this Agreement. Base Salary shall noeteaed during the Employment Term
(whether or not any increase in Base Salary ocams) if any increase in Base Salary occurs, the Base Salary as utilized in this Agreement
shall refer to Base Salary as so increased from toriime.

(b) Annual Bonus In addition to Base Salary, the Employee shalbarded, for each fiscal year ending during the
Employment Term, an annual cash bonus (the “ Boniimsan amount at least equal to the average ®ftimual bonuses paid to the Employee
with respect to the three fiscal years that immietigprecede the year in which the Change of Cdwoizours under the Company’s annual bonus
plan, or any comparable bonus under a successurplavided, howevethat if the Company has never paid an annual béorus full year to the
Employee, the Employee shall be awarded a Bonas @mount at least equal to the target bonus fichtthe Employee is eligible for the fiscal
year in which the Change of Control occurs, assgrathievement at the target level of the objeqtedormance goals established with respe
such bonus and achievement of 100% of any subgepvformance goals or criteria otherwise applieatith respect to such bonus. Each such
Bonus shall be paid after the end of the fiscal weal no later than the #&day of the third month of the fiscal year nextdeling the fiscal year
for which the Bonus is awarded, unless the Emplayedl timely elect to defer the receipt of sucmB® pursuant to the CenturyLink, Inc.
Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan. For purposeetrmining the value of any annual bonuses faitidé Employee in any year preceding the
year in which the Change of Control occurs, alhcasd stock bonuses earned by the Employee shadllbed as of the date of the grant.

(c) Fringe Benefits The Employee shall be entitled to fringe besefimmensurate with those provided to his peer
employees of the Company and its Affiliates, butndnevent shall such fringe benefits be less fahlerthan the most favorable of those provided
by the Company and its Affiliates for the Employeny time during the one-year period immediapebceding the Change of Control or, if
more favorable to the Employee, those provided galyeat any time after the Change of Control te béer employees of the Company and its
Affiliates.

(d) ExpensesThe Employee shall be entitled to receive prorephbursement for all reasonable expenses incloyed
the Employee in accordance with the most favoragleements, policies, practices and procedurdeedCbmpany and its Affiliates in effect for
the Employee at any time during the one-year perudediately preceding the Change of Control omdfre favorable to the Employee, as in
effect generally at any time thereafter with respedis peer employees of the Company and itdiAfés.

(e) Benefit Plans (i) The Employee shall be entitled to particgat all incentive, savings and retirement plamacfices
policies and programs applicable generally to lkeisremployees of the Company and its Affiliateg,ibuno event shall such plans, practices,
policies and programs provide the Employee witlentive opportunities (measured with respect to begular and special incentive opportuni
to the extent that any such distinction is appliegtsavings opportunities and retirement bengffiartunities, in each case, less favorable than the
most favorable of those provided by the CompanyitnAéffiliates for the Employee under any agreetseplans, practices, policies and progr:
as in effect at any time during the one-year permahediately preceding the Change of Control omdfre favorable to the Employee, those
provided generally at any time after the Chang€aftrol to his peer employees of the Company anAffiliates.

0] The Employee and his family shallddigible for participation in and shall receive bénefits under welfare bene
plans, practices, policies and programs providethbyCompany and its Affiliates (including, withdimhitation, medical, prescription
drug, dental, disability, salary continuance, ergpmlife, group life, accidental death and travaident insurance plans and programs
the extent applicable generally to his peer emmeya the Company and its Affiliates, but in nomvghall such plans, practices, policies
and programs provide the Employee and his famith Wwenefits, in each case, less favorable thamitet favorable of those agreements,
plans, practices, policies and programs in effecttie Employee and his family at any time during tne-year period immediately
preceding the Change of Control or, if more favtedab the Employee and his family, those providedegally at any time after the
Change of Control to his peer employees of the Gom@and its Affiliates.

(ii) Without limiting the generality ohe Company’s obligations under this subsectiontfe) Company shall comply
with all of its obligations under the benefit plapsactices, policies and programs of the Compamlies Affiliates that arise in
connection with a Change of Control of the Compamngiuding without limitation all obligations tha¢quire the Company to (A) fully
vest participants under the Company’s qualifiedamn-qualified retirement plans and (B) extend thedjits described in Section 3.5.

® Office and Support StaffThe Employee shall be entitled to an office ffices of a size and with furnishings and
other appointments, and to secretarial and othgstasice, commensurate with those provided todes pmployees of the Company and its
Affiliates.

(9) Vacation The Employee shall be entitled to paid vacatiaccordance with the most favorable agreemefaasp
policies, programs and practices of the Companyitanafffiliates as in effect for the Employee atyaime during the one-year period immediately
preceding the Change of Control or, if more favtedb the Employee, as in effect generally at amg tthereafter with respect to his peer
employees of the Company and its Affiliates.

(h) Indemnification. If, in connection with any agreement relatea toansaction that will result in a Change of Contif



the Company, an undertaking is made to provideBtterd with rights to indemnification from the Conmya(or from any other
party to such agreement), the Employee shall, biyeiof this Agreement, be entitled to the sambtsigo indemnification as are provided to the
Board pursuant to such agreement. Otherwise, tiygldyee shall be entitled to indemnification rightsterms no less favorable to the Employee
than those available under any Company indemnifinatgreements or the articles of incorporatioalg or resolutions of the Company at any
time after the Change of Control to his peer emgésyof the Company. Such indemnification rightdldie with respect to all claims, actions,
suits or proceedings to which the Employee is ¢iiisatened to be made a party that arise out afeoconnected to his services at any time prior
to the termination of his employment, without reytr whether such claims, actions, suits or proicgsdare made, asserted or arise during or
the Employment Term.

0] Directors and Officers Insurancéf, in connection with any agreement relatea toansaction that will result in a
Change of Control of the Company, an undertakingasle to provide the Board with continued coverfafjewing the Change of Control under
one or more directors and officers liability insoca policies, then the Employee shall, by virtu¢his Agreement, be entitled to the same rights to
continued coverage under such directors and offiibility insurance policies as are providedhe Board, and the Company shall take any steps
necessary to give effect to this provision. Othisewthe Company shall agree to cover the Employeler any directors and officers liability
insurance policies as are provided generally attiamy after the Change of Control to his peer eiygds of the Company.

3.3 Obligations upon Termination after a Change of Contol .

@) Termination by Company for Reasatfeothan Death, Disability or Cause or by the Eogyeé for Good Reasanlf,
after a Change of Control and during the Employnientn, the Company or any of its Affiliates terntiesmthe Employee’s employment, as
defined in Treasury Regulations 1.409A-1(h)(1) €p8ration from Servic8, other than for Cause, death or Disability, or tihepbyee terminate
employment for Good Reason, subject to Sectiord3&{d Section 3.6, if applicable:

0] the Company shall pay to the Employea lump sum in cash within five business daythefdate of termination
an amount equal to three times the sum of (i) theunt of Base Salary in effect pursuant to Sec3i@a) hereof at the date of
termination plus (ii) the average of the annualus®s paid or to be paid to the Employee with resjpetthie immediately preceding three
fiscal yearsprovided, howevethat, if the Employee has in effect a deferral #becwith respect to any percentage of the annaalb
which would otherwise become payable with respathé¢ fiscal year in which termination occurs, siwwhp sum payment shall be
reduced by an amount equal to such percentage thedsonus component of the lump sum payment (madbction amount shall be
deferred in accordance with such election);

(i) the Company shall pay to the Empleye a lump sum in cash, as promptly as practichbtén no case later than
the 15t day of the third month following the end of theci$ year of the Company in which the terminationws, apro rata
performance bonus, the amount of which shall berdghed by multiplying the annual bonus that thepleimee would have earned with
respect to the entire fiscal year in which the faeation occurs, assuming that the Employee hadesfir the entire fiscal year and
calculated by the Company in good faith to excltideeffects of the Change of Control on the apple@erformance metrics used to
calculate such bonus (including without limitatiexcluding the effects of any non-recurring tranigectosts or any changes in overhead,
interest, tax, intercompany or other expensesnarisut of such transaction), by the fraction otediby dividing the number of days in
such year through the date of termination by 386yided, howevethat, if the Employee has in effect a deferral &becwith respect to
any percentage of the annual bonus which wouldraike become payable with respect to the fiscat yreavhich termination occurs,
such lump sum payment shall be reduced by an anemurat to such percentage times the lump sum paygwhich reduction amount
shall be deferred in accordance with such electiamd,further provided, that if the bonus performance period in effedhatdate of
termination is less than a year, then the foregparggraph will apply with respect to such shorteperformance period and all
references to an annual period or 365 days shalhrttee applicable shortened period or shortenederunf days to the extent the
context requires;

(iii) if, at the date of termination, tB®mpany shall not yet have paid to the Employe@éderred in accordance with
any effective deferral election by the Employeepanual bonus with respect to a fully completeddigyear, the Company shall pay to
the Employee in a lump sum in cash within five hesk days of the date of termination but in no eftes the 15" day of the third mont
following the end of the fiscal year of the Compamyvhich the termination occurs, an amount deteedias follows: (i) if the Board
(acting directly or indirectly through any commaéter subcommittee) shall have already determinedthount of such annual bonus,
such amount shall be paid, and (ii) if the Boardllstot have already determined the amount of sunctual bonus, the amount to be paid
shall be the greater of the amount provided unéeti@ 3.2(b) hereof or the annual bonus that tinglByee would have earned with
respect to such completed fiscal year, based sofgn the actual level of achievement of the objegberformance goals established
with respect to such bonus and assuming the aahieweof 100% of any subjective performance goalsriteria otherwise applicable
with respect to such bonuysrovided, howevethat, if the Employee has in effect a deferral #becwith respect to any percentage of the
annual bonus which would otherwise become payalite respect to such completed fiscal year, suchplsom payment shall be reduc
by an amount equal to such percentage times the funm payment (which reduction amount shall berdedein accordance with such
election);provided, furtherthat any payment under this subsection (iii) (or payment under any other provision of this Agreetne
calculated by reference to prior or target bonuswams) shall be payable notwithstanding any prowiso the contrary set forth in any
bonus plan or program of the Company;

(iv) for a period of three years folloygithe date of termination of employment, or sucigkr period as may be
provided by the terms of the appropriate plan, oy practice or policy (the * Continuation Periddthe Company shall at its expense
continue on behalf of the Employee and his depetsdiamd beneficiaries the life insurance, disahilitgdical, dental and hospitalization
benefits (including any benefit under any individbanefit arrangement that covers medical, denthbgpitalization expenses not
otherwise covered under any general Company plaviged (x) to the Employee at any time during dine-year period prior to the
Change in Control or at any time thereafter ont¢ydther similarly-situated employees who contiimuthe employ of the Company or its
Affiliates during the Continuation Period. If tRenployee is a Specified Employee governed by Se&i8(d), to the extent that any
benefits provided to the Employee under this Sac3i@(a)(iv) are taxable to the Employee, thenhwlie exception of medical insurar




benefits, the value of the aggregate amount of saxdble benefits provided to the Employee purstattiis Section 3.3(a)
(iv) during the six-month period following the daiBtermination shall be limited to the amount sfied by Code Section 402(g)(1)(B)
for the year in which the termination occurred.eEmployee shall pay the cost of any benefitseékaeed the amount specified in the
previous sentence during the six-month period feithg the date of termination, and shall be reimbdris full by the Company during
the seventh month after the date of terminatiohe @overage and benefits (including deductiblescarsts) provided in this Section 3.3
(a)(iv) during the Continuation Period shall beless favorable to the Employee and his dependawitbeneficiaries than the most
favorable of such coverages and benefits duringodutlye periods referred to in clauses (x) or (y\e;provided, howevein the event
of the Disability of the Employee during the Contition Period, disability benefits shall, to thexinaum extent possible, not be paid for
the Continuation Period but shall instead commeameeediately following the end of the Continuatioarldd. The Company’s
obligation hereunder with respect to the foregdiegefits shall be limited to the extent that theptayee obtains any such benefits
pursuant to a subsequent employer’s benefit planghich case the Company may reduce the coverbgeyobenefits it is required to
provide the Employee hereunder as long as the gatgeoverages and benefits of the combined bepiefis is no less favorable to the
Employee than the coverages and benefits required provided hereunder. At the end of the Coation Period, the Employee shall
have assigned to him, at no cost and with no ajgponent of prepaid premiums, any assignable inaganned by the Company that
relates specifically to the Employee unless susigament is inconsistent with the terms of anytsjiilar arrangement with the
Employee. The Employee will be eligible for covgeaunder the Consolidated Omnibus Budget RecotioitigAct at the end of the
Continuation Period or earlier cessation of the @any’s obligation under the foregoing provisiondho$ Section 3.3(a)(iv) (or, if the
Employee shall not be so eligible for any reasba,Gompany will provide equivalent coverage);

v) the Company at its cost shall providléhe Employee outplacement assistance by aablautirm specializing in
such services for the period beginning with thenieation of employment and ending one year lated; a

(vi) the Company shall discharge its gations under all other applicable sections of grtgcle 111, including
Sections 3.4, 3.5, 3.6 and 3.7.

To the extent that the amounts payable under Se8ti(a)(iv), Section 3.3(a)(Vv), or Section 3.7 deemed to be reimbursements and other
separation payments under Treasury RegulationsoBetd09A-1(b)(9)(v), they shall not be deemegtovide for the deferral of compensation
governed by Code Section 409A. If they do contgitleferral of compensation governed by Code Sedtd®A, they shall be deemed to be
reimbursements or in-kind benefits governed by JueaRegulations Section 1.409A-3(i)(1)(iv). Ietprevious sentence applies, (i) the amount
of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kirehéfits provided during the Employee’s taxable yaweall not affect the expenses eligible for
reimbursement or in-kind benefits in any other legear, (ii) the reimbursement of an eligible expe must be made on or before the last day of
the Employee's taxable year following the taxatdanin which the expense was incurred and (iii)ritlet to reimbursement or in-kind benefits
shall not be subject to liquidation or exchangedioother benefit.

The payments and benefits provided in this Se@i8(a) and under all of the Company’s employee fiesied compensation plans shall be
without regard to any plan amendment made afteiGlrgnge of Control that adversely affects in anynes the computation of payments and
benefits due the Employee under such plan or the tir manner of payment of such payments and lispeficluding plan amendments that the
Company is required by law to implement. Aftert@a8ge of Control no discretionary power of the Bloar any committee thereof shall be used
in a way (and no ambiguity in any such plan shaltbnstrued in a way) which adversely affects ymanner any right or benefit of the
Employee under any such plan.

(b) Death; Disability; Termination fomGse; or Voluntary Terminatianlf, after a Change of Control and during the
Employment Term, the Employee’s status as an emsplag/terminated (i) by reason of the Emplogatgath or Disability, (ii) by the Company
Cause or (iii) voluntarily by the Employee otheamhfor Good Reason, this Agreement shall termingteout further obligation to the Employee
or the Employee’s legal representatives (other thartimely payment or provision of those alreadgraed to the Employee, imposed by law or
imposed pursuant to employee benefit or compensatans, programs, practices, policies or agreesnaaintained by the Company or its
Affiliates).

(c) Notice of Termination Any termination by the Company for Cause or &gson of the Employee’s Disability, or by
the Employee for Good Reason, shall be communidatealNotice of Termination to the other party give accordance with Section 5.2 of this
Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, a ‘id¢adf Terminatiori means a written notice which (i) indicates thedfic termination
provision in this Agreement relied upon, (ii) teetbxtent applicable, sets forth in reasonable Idbiifacts and circumstances claimed to provide a
basis for termination of the Employee’s employmamder the provision so indicated and (iii) if tiféeetive date of the termination is other than
the date of receipt of such notice, specifies gmmination date (which date shall be not more Bdays after the giving of such notice), provi
that the effective date for any termination by ceasf the Employee’s Disability shall be the 308y dfter the giving of such notice, unless prior
to such 30th day the Employee shall have resuneéuthtime performance of his duties. The faillmethe Employee or the Company to set
forth in the Notice of Termination any fact or aimstance which contributes to a showing of Caussghility or Good Reason shall not waive
any right of the Employee or the Company, respebtivhereunder or preclude the Employee or the Gomprespectively, from asserting such
fact or circumstance in enforcing the Employee’sher Company’s rights hereunder.

(d) SixMonth Delay for Specified EmployeesNotwithstanding any other provision hereof, payits hereunder which
constitute deferred compensation under Code Se466A and the Treasury Regulations thereunder dridhaare not exempt from coverage by
Code Section 409A and the Treasury Regulationetimeter shall commence, if Employee is then a SipelcEmployee and payment is triggered
by his Separation from Service, on the first dayhef seventh month following the date of the SpediEmployee’s Separation from Service, or, if
earlier, the date of death of the Specified Empdoy®n the first day of such seventh month or efitist day of the month following the earlier
death of the Specified Employee, the Specified Byg® or his estate or spouse, as the case maldlehs paid in a lump sum the amount that
the Specified Employee would have been paid hemuonker the preceding six months (or, if earlibe inonths preceding the date of death) but
for the fact that he was a Specified Employee. eveless, for all other purposes of this Agreeimtiiet payments shall be deemed to have
commenced on the date they would have had the Bmploot been a Specified Employee, and paymentyofemnaining benefits shall be made
as otherwise scheduled hereun:




3.4 Accrued Obligations and Other Benefits. It is the intent of this Agreement that upon teration of employment for any
reason following a Change of Control the Employehis legal representatives be entitled to recpioenptly, and in addition to any other bene
specifically provided, (a) the Employee’s Base Batarough the date of termination to the extertttheretofore paid, (b) any accrued vacation
pay, to the extent not theretofore paid, and (g)@her amounts or benefits required to be paidrovided or which the Employee or his legal
representatives are entitled to receive under &y, program, policy, practice or agreement ofCloenpany.

3.5 Stock Options and Other Incentives. The foregoing benefits provided for in this Akéidll are intended to be in addition to
the value or benefit of any stock options, restdcstock, restricted stock units, performance sharsimilar awards, the exercisability, vesting or
payment of which is accelerated or otherwise enbdmpon a Change of Control pursuant to the tefrasip stock option, incentive or other
similar plan or agreement heretofore or hereafiepted by the Company or the Post-Transaction Cagmpa

3.6 Conditional Payment Reductions.

@) Notwithstanding any other contrarg\psions in any plan, program or policy of the Canp, if all or any portion of
the benefits payable under this Agreement, eittwreaor together with other payments and bendfis the Employee receives or is entitled to
receive from the Company, would constitute a “phawae paymentWithin the meaning of Section 280G of the Code,Gloenpany shall reduce t
Employee’s payments and benefits payable undeAtlisement to the extent necessary so that nogoattiereof shall be subject to the excise tax
imposed by Section 4999 of the Code, but onlyyifrdason of such reduction, the net after-tax beskéll exceed the net after-tax benefit if such
reduction were not made. “Net after-tax benefit” these purposes shall mean (i) the sum of tla antount payable to Employee under the
Agreement, plusll other payments and benefits which Employeeiveseor is then entitled to receive from the Comptrat, alone or in
combination with the payments and benefits payahtéer the Agreement, would constitute a “paracpatament” within the meaning of Section
280G of the Code (each such benefit hereinaftermed to as an “ Additional Parachute Paynigriess(ii) the amount of federal income taxes
payable with respect to the foregoing calculateth@tmaximum marginal income tax rate for each yrarhich the foregoing shall be paid to the
Employee (based upon the rate in effect for sueln g set forth in the Code at the time of the payminder the Agreement), lg§§ the amount
of excise taxes imposed with respect to the paysnemd benefits described in (i) above by Sectidd®4¥ the Code. The parachute payments
reduced under this section shall be those thaEthgloyee determines provide the Employee the lmstamnic benefit and, to the extent any
parachute payments are economically equivalent @atth other, each shall be reduced pro ptajided, however, that the Employee may elect
to have the non-cash payments and benefits duentimoyee reduced or eliminated prior to any redurctf the cash payments due under this
Agreement.

(b) All determinations required to be readhder this Section 3.6 shall be made by the adtocmufirm that was the
Company’s independent auditor prior to the Charfgéamtrol or any other third party mutually accedpéato the Employee and the Company (the
“ Accounting Firm”). The Accounting Firm shall provide detailed popting calculations both to the Company and thelegee. All fees and
expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be bornelgdle the Company. Absent manifest error, any aeteation by the Accounting Firm shall be
binding upon the Company and the Employee.

(c) For purposes of determining whethet the extent to which any payments would congtitutparachute payment” (i)
no portion of any payments or benefits that the Byge shall have waived at such time and in suchmaaas not to constitute a “payment”
within the meaning of section 280G(b) of the Coldallsbe taken into account, (ii) no portion of fieeyments shall be taken into account which, in
the opinion of tax counsel (“* Tax Counsgteasonably acceptable to the Employee and saldny the Accounting Firm, does not constitute a
“parachute payment” within the meaning of secti8@@(b)(2) of the Code (including by reason of sec80G(b)(4)(A) of the Code) and, in
calculating the excise tax, no portion of such pagta shall be taken into account which, in the iopimf Tax Counsel, constitutes reasonable
compensation for services actually rendered, with@ameaning of section 280G(b)(4)(B) of the Cadexcess of the “base amount” (within the
meaning set forth in section 280G(b)(3) of the Qadmcable to such reasonable compensation, @hthé value of any non-cash benefit or any
deferred payment or benefit included in the paymehtll be determined by the Accounting Firm inoadance with the principles of sections
280G(d)(3) and (4) of the Code.

3.7 Legal Fees. The Company agrees to reimburse the Employealiftegal fees and other expenses which the Employay
reasonably incur as a result of any contest byCihmpany or the Post-Transaction Company of theliglor enforceability of, or liability under,
any provision of this Agreement, but only if, whamnd to the extent the Employee prevails with resfesuch contest.

3.8 Set-Off; Mitigation. After a Change of Control, the obligations of @@mpany and its Affiliates to make the payments
provided for in this Agreement and otherwise tofqn its obligations hereunder shall not be affddig any set-off, counterclaim, recoupment,
defense or other claim, right or action which tr@r@any or its Affiliates may have against the Ergpkor others, other than as expressly
provided to the contrary in Section 3.3(a)(iv), &t 3.10 or Section 4.3. ltis the intent of tAigreement that in no event shall the Employee be
obligated to seek other employment or take anyratbton to mitigate the amounts or benefits pagablthe Employee under any of the
provisions of this Agreement.

3.9 Certain Pre-Change-of-Control Terminations. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agmeent, the Employee’s
employment shall be deemed to have been termitfialedving a Change of Control by the Company with@ause (and the Employee shall be
entitled to receive all payments and benefits daset therewith) if the Employee’s employment isrtmated by the Company or any of its
Affiliates without Cause prior to a Change of Coh{whether or not a Change of Control actuallyuwst and such termination (i) was at the
request or direction of a third party who has tagtps designed to effect a Change of Controllmratise arose in connection with or in
anticipation of a Change of Control or (ii) occuti@ter discussions with a third party regardingpasible Change of Control transaction
commenced and such discussions produced (whetf@el® after such termination) either a prelimjnar definitive agreement with respect to
such a transaction or a public announcement gpémeling transaction (whether or not a Change oftt@bactually occurs.

3.10 Other Severance Plans. If the Employee becomes entitled to receive ssaver benefits under this Article Ill, the Company
shall not be required to pay the Employee any atdit severance payment under any other severarsaayy continuation policy, pla



agreement or arrangement maintained by the Comgaity Affiliates unless such other policy, plagr@ement or arrangement expressly
provides to the contrary.

ARTICLE IV
NONDISCLOSURE, NONCOMPETITION AND NONSOLICITATION

4.1 Nondisclosure of Confidential Information. The Employee acknowledges and agrees that ioatese of the Employee’s
employment the Employee has been in a positiomte laccess to and develop Confidential Informatma, will continue to be in position to
receive and develop Confidential Information durihg Employee’s tenure as an employee of the Comnpaany of its Affiliates. As long as the
Employee is an employee of the Company or anysohffiliates, the Employee shall hold in a fidugiarapacity for the benefit of the Company
Confidential Information which the Employee obtairsuring the Employee’s employment (whether prioot after the Agreement Date) and
shall use such Confidential Information solelyhe good faith performance of his duties for the @any and its Affiliates. If the employment of
the Employee is terminated for any reason, themngencing with the termination date and continuinglthe fifth anniversary of such date, the
Employee shall (a) not communicate, divulge or maka&lable to any Person (other than the CompadyitarAffiliates) any such Confidential
Information, except with the prior written consefithe Company or as may be required by law orllpgacess, and (b) deliver promptly to the
Company upon its written request any Confidenti@imation in his possession, including any dupésahereof and any notes or other records
the Employee has prepared with respect theretejged that Employee need not deliver to the Companyg may retain, one copy of any
personal diaries, calendars, or personal notesroéspondence. If the provisions of any applicddoleor the order of any court would require the
Employee to disclose or otherwise make available@onfidential Information to a governmental auttyoor to any other third party, the
Employee shall give the Company, unless it is ufudte do so, prompt prior written notice of su@ayquired disclosure and an opportunity to
contest the requirement of such disclosure or afgplg protective order with respect to such Caoatfiiial Information by appropriate proceedings.

4.2 Noncompetition; Nonsolicitation; Nondisparagement (a) The Employee agrees that, during the tarthis Agreement
and for a period following the termination datewb years if the Employee’s employment is termidaig the Company for Cause or by the
Employee without Good Reason or one year if the leyge’s employment is terminated for any other oeashe Employee will not, directly or
indirectly, in any capacity whatsoever, either be Employee’s own behalf or on behalf of any ofherson with whom the Employee may be
employed or otherwise associated:

0] engage or invest in, own, manage rafee finance, control, acquire an interest inetmployed by, render
services to, act as an agent on behalf of, or wikerin any way participate in, associate with liove his skill, knowledge, experience or
reputation to be used by (whether as a proprigtmtner, stockholder, member, director, officerptyee, joint venturer, investor,
consultant, agent, sales representative, brokether participant) any Person engaged in or plaptirbecome engaged in the Business
within any of the jurisdictions listed olyppendix Aattached heretgrovided, howeverthat the Employee may own passive investments
in not more than 1% of the outstanding securitfeany Person engaged in such Business (but withingrwise participating in such
similar business) if such securities are registemedker Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Ad984, as amended,;

(ii) contact any customer of the Companits Affiliates to solicit, divert or entice awdlye business of such
customer, or otherwise disrupt the relationshipveen such customer and the Company or its Affdiate

(iii) solicit, induce, influence or attgtnto influence any supplier, lessor, lessee, Boenpartner, joint venturer,
potential acquiree or any other person who hassmbss relationship with the Company or its Affitig, or who on the termination dat:
engaged in discussions or negotiations to enterariusiness relationship with the Company or ffdidtes, to discontinue, reduce or
limit the extent of such relationship with the Caanp or any of its Affiliates;

(iv) make contact with any employee af @ompany or its Affiliates for the purpose of sitihg such employee
for hire, whether as an employee, independent aotdr, consultant or otherwise, or otherwise disngpsuch employee’s relationship
with the Company or its Affiliates; or

(v) make any statement or disclose afgrimation to any customers, suppliers, lendersdes licensees, other
employees of the Company or its Affiliates or othtrat is defamatory or derogatory with respethébusiness, operations, manager
or other employees of the Company or its Affiliatesstake any other action (excluding making truthhon-defamatory statements in
good faith that do not violate any other provisafrihis Agreement) that could reasonably be exgktiénjure the Company in its
business relationships with any of the foregoingdiea or result in any other detrimental effecttbea Company or its Affiliates.

(b) The Employee agrees that: (i) theezmnts and agreements set forth in this Articled® reasonable both in scope of
geographical area and duration, (ii) the Companyld/aot have entered into this Agreement but fahstovenants of the Employee, (iii) such
covenants have been made as a result of arm-leaggaining in order to induce the Company to eintier this Agreement, and (iv) such
covenants and agreements are reasonable and ngdesshe protection of the Confidential Informani, assets, goodwill and business of the
Company. To the extent permitted by applicable e Employee covenants and agrees not to institodintain, prosecute or in any way aid in
the institution, maintenance or prosecution of Eysuit, action, claim, arbitration or other prode®y against the Company or any of its Affilia
with respect to the enforceability of the covenamustained in this Article IV and the Employee HBrérevocably waives all defenses otherwise
available to the Employee with respect to the s&iforcement of such covenants and agreementsb@ampany.

4.3 Injunctive Relief; Forfeiture of Future Payments and Benefits; Other Remedies The Employee acknowledges that a
breach by the Employee of Sections 4.1 or 4.2 heveuld cause immediate and irreparable harm t&€thmapany for which an adequate mone
remedy does not exist; hence, the Employee agheésin the event of a breach or threatened brbathe Employee of the provisions of Secti
4.1 or 4.2 herein during or after the effectiveedaft the Employee’s termination, the Company sbaléntitled to injunctive relief restraining the
Employee from such violation without the necessitproof of actual damage or the posting of anydy@xcept as required by non-waivable,
applicable law. Nothing herein, however, shaltbastrued as prohibiting the Company from pursaing other remedy at law or in equity



which the Company may be entitled under applictMein the event of a breach or threatened bre&thi©Agreement by the
Employee, including without limitation the recoverfydamages, costs or expenses, such as reasattabteeys’ fees, incurred by the Company as
a result of any such breach or threatened brebchddition to the foregoing remedies, the Compstmgil have the right upon the occurrence of
any breach of any nondisclosure, noncompetitiomomsolicitation covenant contained in this Artitle to cancel any unpaid severance paymt
salary, bonus, commissions or reimbursements othergutstanding at the termination date, includimgsuspension, reduction or elimination of
payments and benefits under Article Ill. The Enypl® acknowledges that any such suspension, redumtielimination of payments would not
constitute, and should not be characterized asidiged damages.

4.4 Governing Law of this Article IV; Consent to Jurisdiction . Any dispute regarding the reasonableness ofdlkenants and
agreements set forth in this Article IV or the itmial scope or duration thereof or the remedieailable to the Company upon any breach of such
covenants and agreements, shall be governed bintmgdreted in accordance with the laws of theeStdtLouisiana. The parties agree that it is
their mutual intent that the provisions of this Agment be enforced to the fullest extent permitteder applicable law, whether now or hereafter
in effect, and, to the extent permitted by appliedaw, the parties waive any provision of appliealaw that would render any provision of Arti
IV invalid or unenforceable.

ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOUS
5.1 Binding Effect; Successors
(a) This Agreement shall be binding upod inure to the benefit of the Company and it€sssors or assigns, but the

Company may assign this Agreement only (i) to afiliafe or (ii) pursuant to a merger or consolidatin which the Company is not the
continuing entity, or the sale or liquidation of @l substantially all of the assets of the Compammgvided that the assignee or transferee is the
successor to all or substantially all of the aseéthe Company and such assignee or transfereenassthe liabilities, obligations and duties of the
Company under this Agreement, either contractuallyhe terms specified below or as a matter of law.

(b) This Agreement is personal to the Exyge and shall not be assignable by the Employt®ut the consent of the
Company (there being no obligation to give suchseai) other than such rights or benefits as ansfieared by will or the laws of descent and
distribution, which shall inure to the benefit bEtEmployee’s legal representatives.

(c) The Company shall require any suamessor assignee of (whether direct or indiregtplirchase, share exchange,
merger, consolidation or otherwise) all or subs#dlgtall of the assets or businesses of the Comano assume unconditionally and expressly
this Agreement and (ii) to agree to perform ordase to be performed all of the obligations undir Agreement in the same manner and to the
same extent as would have been required of the @oynipad no assignment or succession occurred.

(d) The Company shall also require atltezs that control or that after the transactiati @ontrol (directly or indirectly)
the Company or any such successor or assigneede tigcause to be performed all of the obligatiomder this Agreement.

(e) The obligations of the Company arelEmployee which by their nature may require eifiatial or total performance
after the expiration of the term of the Agreemdratissurvive such expiration.

5.2 Notices. All notices hereunder must be in writing and sballdeemed to have been given upon receipt of dglbae (a) hanc
(against a receipt therefor), (b) certified or stgied mail, postage prepaid, return receipt redqdegc) a nationally recognized overnight courier
service or (d) telecopy transmission with confirimatof delivery. All such notices must be addrelsas follows:

If to the Company, to:

CenturyLink, Inc.

100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203
Attn: General Counsel

If to the Employee, to:

Glen F. Post, llI

c/o CenturyLink, Inc.

100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203

or such other address as to which any party henegohave notified the other in writing.

5.3 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforceddoraance with and governed by the internal lanthef
State of Louisiana without regard to principle<ohflict of laws.

5.4 Withholding. The Employee agrees that the Company has thetdghithhold, from the amounts payable pursuanhtis t
Agreement, all amounts required to be withheld urghplicable income or employment tax laws, orthevise stated in documents granting
rights that are affected by this Agreement.



5.5 Amendment and Compliance with Law. No provision of this Agreement may be modifiedaatended except by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties. Nithstanding any other provision of this Agreeméirit the intention of the parties to this
Agreement that no payment or entittement pursuattis Agreement will give rise to any adversetarsequences to the Employee under Code
Section 409A and Treasury Regulations and otherpnetive guidance issued thereunder, includingdhissued after the date hereof (collectively,
“ Section 409A"). This Agreement and any amendments hereto blealiterpreted and administered to that end antb()e maximum extent
permitted by law, no effect shall be given to angvision herein, any amendment hereto or any a¢tikan hereunder in a manner that reasonably
could be expected to give rise to adverse tax cpreseces under Section 409A and (3) the parties tstkal any corrective action reasonably wit
their control that are necessary to avoid such s@vix consequences.

5.6 Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or thygplication thereof to any person or circumstasball at any
time or to any extent be invalid, illegal or unemfeable in any respect as written, the Employeetl@dCompany intend for any court construing
this Agreement to modify or limit such provision@®to render it valid and enforceable to the #tiltxtent allowed by law. Any such provision
that is not susceptible of such reformation shalignored so as to not affect any other term ovipion hereof, and the remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such term or pBimri to persons or circumstances other than these \&hich it is held invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby aall bk valid and enforced to the fullest extentpittied by law.

5.7 Waiver of Breach. Except as expressly provided herein to the contthgyfailure by any party to enforce any of itghtis
hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver ¢f sghts, unless such waiver is an express writtaiver. The waiver by either party of a bre
of any provision of this Agreement shall not operat be construed as a waiver of any subsequeatHtaereof.

5.8 Remedies Not Exclusive.No remedy specified herein shall be deemed to bl party’s exclusive remedy, and accordingly,
in addition to all of the rights and remedies pd&d for in this Agreement, the parties shall hdlether rights and remedies provided to them by
applicable law, rule or regulation, including wititdimitation the right to claim interest with resg to any payment not timely made hereunder.

5.9 Company’s Reservation of Rights. The Employee acknowledges and understands thae(EEmployee is employed at will
by either the Company or one of its Affiliates (thEmployer”), (ii) the Employee serves at the pleasure ofttbard of directors of the Employer,
and (iii) the Employer has the right at any timeédoninate the Employee’s status as an employee, drange or diminish his status during the
Employment Term, subject to the rights of the Emgpto claim the benefits conferred by this AgreeméNotwithstanding any other provisions
of this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreemédnatllsnot entitle the Employee or his legal représtves to any severance or other benefits of
any kind prior to a Change of Control or to anylsbenefits if Employee is not employed by the Conypar one of its Affiliates on the date of a
Change of Control, except in each case for thagegiafforded under Section 3.9.

5.10 Non-exclusivity of Rights. Subject to Section 5.9, nothing in this Agreensh#ll prevent or limit the Employee’s
continuing or future participation in any plan, gram, policy or practice provided by the Companyy of its Affiliates and for which the
Employee may qualify, nor shall anything hereinitior otherwise restrict such rights as the Empéogeay have under any contract or agreement
with the Company or any of its Affiliates.

5.11 Demand for Benefits. Unless otherwise provided herein, the payment gmgeits due hereunder shall be paid to the
Employee without the need for demand, and to afiieaey upon the receipt of the beneficiary’s adstrand social security number. In all such
cases, the Employee or beneficiary shall provitleeglired tax withholding information or forms upthe Company’s request. Nevertheless, the
Employee or a Person claiming to be a beneficidrg wlaims entittement to a benefit can file a cléddmbenefits hereunder with the
Company. Unless otherwise provided herein, the @y shall accept or reject the claim within tesibess days of its receipt. If the claim is
denied, the Company shall give the reason for dl@m@written notice that refers to the provisigithis Agreement that forms the basis of the
denial. If any additional information or materialnecessary to perfect the claim, the Companyidelhtify these items in writing and explain w
such additional information is necessary.

5.12 Authority. The Company represents and warrants that @xigsution and delivery of this Agreement has bady d
authorized by the Board and (ii) no other corpopatzeedings are necessary to authorize the Corgpexgcution, delivery and performance
of this Agreement.

5.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more eopatts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original but all of which together shall constitutee and the same instrument.

5.14 Interpretation. Any reference to any section of the Code or trea3ury Regulations shall be deemed to also refany
successor provisions thereto.

5.15 The Employee’s Acknowledgment The Employee represents to the Company thabbkedad and understands, and agrees
to be bound by, each of the terms of this Agreemiraluding Article IV.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Employeeeltaused this Change of Control Agreement to kewrd as of the
Agreement Date.

CENTURYLINK, INC.

By: /s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office




EMPLOYEE:

/sl Glen F. Post, Il

Glen F. Post, Il



PROHIBITED TERRITORIES

Appendix A

1. The following parishes in the statd_ofiisiana:

Acadia Madison
Allen Morehouse
Ascensior Natchitoche:
Assumption Orleans
Avoyelles Ouachita
Beauregar Plaguemine:
Bienville Pointe Coupe
Bossier Rapides
Caddo Red River
Calcasiel Richland
Caldwell Sabine
Cameror St. Bernarc
Catahoule St. Charles
Claiborne St. Helene
Concordia St. Jame:
DeSoto St. John the Bapti
East Baton Roug St. Landry
East Carrol St. Martin
East Felician: St. Mary
Evangeline St. Tammany
Franklin Tangipahoz
Grant Tensas

Iberia Terrebonne
Iberville Union
Jacksor Vermillion
Jeffersor Vernon
Jefferson Davi Washingtor
Lafayette Webstel
Lafourche West Baton Roug
LaSalle West Carroll
Lincoln West Felician:
Livingston winn

2. Each other state and each foreign country iichylas of the applicable date, the Company orddritg Affiliates is licensed to provide

communications services or to own and operateiti@silproviding such service



EXHIBIT 10.12

[Form of ]
CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT
(For Executive Officers, other than the CEO}

CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement), effective as of January 1, 2011 (the “ Agreetrigate”), between
CenturyLink, Inc., a Louisiana corporation (the §r@pany”), and (the * Employee

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS , on December 31, 2010, the change of control ageaeebetween the Company and the Employee (thedd@essor
Agreement) lapsed;

WHEREAS , the Board of Directors of the Company (the “ Bbgrhas determined that it is in the best intere$tthe Company and its
shareholders to enter into a replacement changertfol agreement providing the Employee with bigsaiubstantially comparable to those
previously afforded to the Employee under the Retedsor Agreement, subject to a reduction of theuatnof cash severance payments payable
under certain circumstances following a changeootrol of the Company, a reduction of the periodimf during which the Employee will hold
contingent severance rights following a changeooftml of the Company, the elimination of certaan tgross-up” rights, the elimination of
certain events or conditions triggering the paynodrseverance benefits, the addition of certaitridie covenants applicable to the Employee,
and certain other changes curtailing the Employeglds to receive severance benefits upon a chahgentrol of the Company, each on the
terms and conditions provided below; and

WHEREAS , the Board believes that this Agreement is readslgriesigned to retain the services of the Empl@mato assure the full
dedication of the Employee, free from personalrdition, in the event of an actual or pending cleamigcontrol of the Company;

NOW , THEREFORE , the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

1.1 Affiliate. “Affiliate” (and variants thereof) shall mean arBon that controls, or is controlled by, or is @ndommon control
with, another specified Person, either directlynalirectly.

1.2 Beneficial Owner. “Beneficial Owner” (and variants thereof), withispect to a security, shall mean a Person whathjirer
indirectly (through any contract, understandingatienship or otherwise), has or shares (i) the grow vote, or direct the voting of, the security,
or (i) the power to dispose of, or direct the disition of, the security.

1 The form of agreement for Legacy CenturyLink exaag with predecessor agreements with CenturyLiakies slightly from the form
agreement for Legacy Embarq executives. See Artidielow.



1.3 Business. “Business” shall mean, as of any particular gitte business of (i) providing local or long diste voice, network
access, Internet access, data or video servigeselling communications products in connectiothwiroviding such services or (iii) providing
any other material services or selling any othetenia products then performed or sold by the Comypar its Affiliates.

14 Cause. (a) “Cause” shall mean the Employee’s (i) willfweach of Section 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreemeiitconviction of, or
plea of guilty omolo contender¢o, a felony or other crime involving dishonestynooral turpitude; (iii) workplace conduct resultiimgthe
payment of civil monetary penalties or the incucef civil non-monetary penalties that will magdisi restrict or prevent the Employee from
discharging his obligations to the Company; (ivbihaal intoxication during working hours or habitaduse of or addiction to a controlled
substance; (v) material breach of the Companyisiémdrading, corporate ethics and compliance pgiand programs or any other Boadbptec
policies applicable to management conduct; (vijipigation in the public reporting of any informei contained in any report filed by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commigbiathwas impacted by the Employg&howing or intentional fraudulent or illegal corod,
or (vii) substantial, willful and repeated failuie perform duties as instructed by or on behathefBoard in writing.

(b) The Employee’s employment shall nedeemed terminated for Cause unless the Compaitiyhsive delivered to the
Employee a termination notice with a copy of a heson adopted by the affirmative vote of not Iéisan three-quarters of the entire Board at a
meeting called partly or wholly for such purposteareasonable notice is provided to the Emplayee the Employee has had an opportunity,
with counsel, to be heard by the Board) finding tha Employee should be terminated for Cause padifying in reasonable detail the grounds
therefor.

(©) No action or inaction shall be deertteglbasis for Cause unless the Employee is tetedrtherefor prior to the first
anniversary of the date on which such action orssian is first known to the Chief Executive Offiadrthe Company.

15 Change of Control. “Change of Control” shall mean:

(a) the acquisition by any Person of Biered Ownership of 30% or more of the outstandgires of the Company’s
Common Stock, $1.00 par value per share (the “ Com8tock’), or 30% or more of the combined voting powetle Company’s then
outstanding securities entitled to vote generailthie election of directorgrovided, howevethat for purposes of this subsection (a), the foithg
acquisitions shall not constitute a Change of Gontr

0] any acquisition (other than a Busey€ mbination which constitutes a Change of Contnaler Section 1.5(c)
hereof) of Common Stock directly from the Company,

(ii) any acquisition of Common Stock wetCompany or its subsidiaries,

(iii) any acquisition of Common Stock &gy employee benefit plan (or related trust) spmor maintained by
the Company or any corporation controlled by thenpany, or

(iv) any acquisition of Common Stock byantity pursuant to a Business Combination tloaischot constitute a
Change of Control under Section 1.5(c) hereof; or

(b) individuals who, as of the AgreemBate, constitute the Board (the “ Incumbent Bdarckase for any reason to
constitute at least a majority of the Bogpdpvided, howevethat any individual becoming a director subseqoetihe Agreement Date whose
election, or nomination for election by the Compgarshareholders, was approved by a vote of at teasthirds of the directors then comprising
the Incumbent Board shall be considered a membtreofincumbent Board, unless such individual’sahissumption of office occurs as a result
of an actual or threatened election contest witipeet to the election or removal of directors dreotactual or threatened solicitation of proxies or
consents by or on behalf of a Person other thainthenbent Board; or

(c) consummation of a reorganizationyshexchange, merger or consolidation (including sugh transaction involving
any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Comparmy)sale or other disposition of all or substanyialll of the assets of the Company (a “ Business
Combination”); provided, howevethat in no such case shall any such transactiostitote a Change of Control if immediately followisuch
Business Combination, constitute a Change of Cbiftimmediately following such Business Combinatjo

0] the individuals and entities who wéhe Beneficial Owners of the Company’s outstanadiogimon stock and
the Company’s voting securities entitled to voteeagally in the election of directors immediatelyoprto such Business Combination
have direct or indirect Beneficial Ownership, repely, of more than 50% of the then outstandihgres of common stock, and more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the thetstanding voting securities entitled to vote gatigiin the election of directors, of
the Post-Transaction Company (as defined in Sedtibd hereof), and

(i) except to the extent that such oveh@r existed prior to the Business CombinationPeason (excluding the
Post-Transaction Company and any employee benefitqr related trust of the Company, the Post-Taatisn Company or any
subsidiary of either corporation) Beneficially Owdgrectly or indirectly, 20% or more of the themtstanding shares of common stock of
the corporation resulting from such Business Cotidm or 20% or more of the combined voting powfathe then outstanding voting
securities of such corporation, and

(iii) at least a majority of the membefghe board of directors of the Post-Transactiom@any were members
of the Incumbent Board at the time of the executibthe initial agreement, or of the action of Beard, providing for such Business
Combination; ol



(d) approval by the shareholders of thenBany of a complete liquidation or dissolutiortted Company.
1.6 Code. “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code 861@as amended from time to time.

1.7 Confidential Information . “Confidential Information” shall mean any infoation, knowledge or data of any nature and in
any form (including information that is electrorligaransmitted or stored on any form of magneti@ctronic storage media) that directly or
indirectly relates to the past, current or prosipedbusiness of the Company and its Affiliates, thiee generated by the Company, any of its
Affiliates, or any of their respective employeefficers, directors, representatives, consultargenss or independent contractors, and whether or
not marked confidential, including without limitati information relating to operations, productsy&es, assets, liabilities, franchises, customers,
financial condition, results of operations, finascprospects, strategies, business plans, budgejsctions, pricing information, business
acquisitions, joint ventures, processes, researdtdavelopment ideas, trade secrets, supplier $sfplier information, distribution and sales d
consultants’ reports, marketing strategies, pra@ryecomputer software, and internal notes and mmanta relating to any of the foregoing;
provided, however, that “Confidential Information” shall not includay information that (i) is or becomes generallgiable to the public other
than as a result of a breach of this Agreemenj)as or becomes available to the Employee oma-confidential basis from a source other than
the Company, its Affiliates or their respective negentatives, provided that such source is not knmythe Employee to have violated any
confidentiality agreement with the Company in castims with such disclosure.

1.8 Company. “Company” shall mean CenturyLink, Inc. and shadllide any successor to or assignee of (whethectdire
indirect, by purchase, share exchange, mergerptidation or otherwise) all or substantially alltble assets or business of the Company that
assumes and agrees to perform this Agreement batige of law or otherwise.

1.9 Disability. “Disability” shall mean a condition that would etfgithe Employee to receive benefits under the t@nm
disability insurance policy applicable to the Comya officers at the time because the Employeetally disabled or partially disabled, as such
terms are defined in the policy then in effectthé Company has no long-term disability plan fieet “Disability” shall occur if (a) the Employe
is rendered incapable because of physical or méimas of satisfactorily discharging his dutieslaesponsibilities to the Company for a period
of 90 consecutive days, (b) a duly qualified phiggicchosen by the Company and acceptable to thddyagor his legal representatives so
certifies in writing, and (c) the Board determirteat the Employee has become disabled.

1.10 Employment Term. “Employment Term” shall mean the period commegan the date of a Change of Control and ending
on the 18-month anniversary of such date.

1.11 Good Reason. “Good Reasonshall mean any of the following events or condisiaiescribed in this Section 1.11, but on
the Employee shall have provided written noticéh®® Company within 90 days of the initial existeloceccurrence of such event or condition
the Company shall have failed to cure such evenbodition within 30 days of its receipt of sucHhine:

@) Any failure of the Company or its iifftes to provide the Employee with a positiontheity, duties and
responsibilities at least commensurate in all niteespects with the most significant of thosedhelkercised and assigned at any time during the
180-day period immediately preceding the Changéaftrol. The Employee’s position, authority, datand responsibilities after a Change of
Control shall not be considered commensurate imaterial respects with the Employee’s positiorthatity, duties and responsibilities prior to a
Change of Control unless after the Change of CbtiteoEmployee holds an equivalent position withg @xercises substantially equivalent
authority, duties and responsibilities on behalfeither the Post-Transaction Company or the Comipan

(b) The assignment to the Employee ofd@utjes inconsistent in any material respect with Employee’s position
(including status, offices, titles and reportingugements), authority, duties or responsibilitesscontemplated by Section 3.1(b) of this
Agreement, or any other action that results inmaiwlition in any material respect in such positamthority, duties or responsibilities;

(c) A reduction of the Employee’s basksain effect as of the date of the Change of @mwithout the Employee’s
consent, except for across-the-board salary rezha8imilarly affecting all or substantially alhsiarly-situated officers of the Company and the
Post-Transaction Company;

(d) The Employee is advised of, manifestawareness of, or becomes aware of facts thativeause a reasonable per
to inquire into any failure in any material respbgtthe Company or its Affiliates to comply withyaaf the provisions of this Agreement; or

(e) Any directive requiring the Employteebe based at any office or location other thaprasided in Section 3.1(b)(ii)
hereof or requiring the Employee to travel on basto a substantially greater extent than requinegediately prior to the Change of Control.

1.12 Person. “Person” shall mean a natural person or entitig, shall also mean the group or syndicate createshwwo or more
Persons act as a syndicate or other group (inaydiithout limitation, a partnership or limited pa&rship) for the purpose of acquiring, holding,
or disposing of a security, except that “Persordlistot include an underwriter temporarily holdiagecurity pursuant to an offering of the
security.

1.13 Post-Transaction Company. Unless a Change of Control results from a Busir@@smbination (as defined in Section 1.5(c)
hereof), “Post-Transaction Company” shall meanGbenpany after the Change of Control. If a Charfigéanmtrol results from a Business
Combination, “Post-Transaction Compargfiall mean the corporation or other entity resglfiom the Business Combination unless, as a ref
such Business Combination, an ultimate parentyeotihtrols such resulting entity, the Company dpakubstantially all of the Company’s assets
either directly or indirectly, in which case “PoBtansaction Company” shall mean such ultimate garetity.

1.14 Specified Employee. ‘Specified Employee” shall mean the Employee ifEngployee is a key employee under Treasury
Regulations Section 1.40-1(i) because of final and binding action taken ey Board or its Compensation Committee, or by dperaf law or



such regulation.

ARTICLE Il
STATUS OF CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENTS

[This Agreement supersedes the Predecessor Agreame@ny and all other prior agreements or arnaeges between the Company
and the Employee that provide for severance beniefithe event of a Change of Control of the Comgpas defined therein, and is effective as of
the Agreement Date for any Change of Control ofGoenpany occurring after such dapepvided, howeverthat the Employee shall continue to
be entitled to severance benefits, if any, payabtbe Employee under the Predecessor Agreemeartyoother prior agreements or arrangements
between the Employee and the Company in connewgtittnthe change of control of the Company as alt@slits business combination with
Embarq Corporation effected on July 1, 2009 (sulifpeny waiver of benefits under such agreemengrangements furnished in writing by the
Employee to the Company).] [PARAGRAPH ApplicableLiegacy CenturyLink Executives]

[This Agreement supersedes any and all prior ageeésror arrangements between the Company and tpéoiee that provide for
severance benefits in the event of a Change ofrGlasftthe Company, as defined therein, and iscotiffe as of the Agreement Date for any
Change of Control of the Company occurring aftexhsdate provided, howeverthat the Employee shall continue to be entittedeverance
benefits, if any, payable to the Employee under@igr agreements or arrangements between the Bepland either the Company or Embarq
Corporation in connection with the change of cdntifeeither such company as a result of their bessncombination effected on July 1, 2009
(subject to (i) any waiver of benefits under sugheements or arrangements furnished in writinghgyEmployee to the Company or Embarq
Corporation and (ii) the understanding that in werg shall the Employee be entitled to receive s benefits from both the Company and
Embarq Corporation with respect to such businessbawation).] [ALTERNATIVE PARAGRAPH Applicable to égacy Embarq Executives]

ARTICLE Il
CHANGE OF CONTROL BENEFITS

3.1 Terms of Employment after Change of Control. (a) This Agreement shall commence on the Agregmate and continue
in effect through December 31, 2032¢ovided, howeverthat, commencing on January 1, 2013 and eactadaiithereafter, the term of this
Agreement shall automatically be extended for afditeonal year unless, not later than June 30 eftteceding year, the Company or the
Employee shall have given written notice that iesloot wish to extend this Agreememtpvided, furtherthat, notwithstanding any such non-
extension notice by the Company, if a Change oft@bof the Company shall have occurred duringdhiginal or extended term of this
Agreement, this Agreement shall continue in effaobugh the 18-month anniversary of the Changearft®l, subject to any earlier termination
of the Employee’s status as an employee pursughtis@greementprovided, further, that in no event shall any termination of thisrdgment
result in any forfeiture of rights that accruedoptio the date of termination.

(b) During the Employment Term, the Comphereby agrees to continue the Employee in ifgsleyn subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. During the Emplent Term, (i) the Employee’s position (includistgtus, offices, titles and reporting
requirements), authority, duties and responsibgishall be at least commensurate in all matergdects with the most significant of those held,
exercised and assigned at any time during the &§Qpdriod immediately preceding the Change of Gbrtnd (ii) the Employee’s services shall
be performed during normal business hours at tbatilon of the Company’s principal executive offatethe time of the Change of Control, or the
office or location where the Employee was emploiyeahediately preceding the Change of Control or matgcation of any such site to a location
that is not more than 50 miles from its locationhet time of the Change of Control. The Emplogg@dsition, authority, duties and responsibili
after a Change of Control shall not be considemdrnensurate in all material respects with the Eggsds position, authority, duties and
responsibilities prior to a Change of Control uslefter the Change of Control the Employee holdsdrivalent position with, and exercises
substantially equivalent authority, duties and oesgibilities on behalf of, either the Post-TrangacttCompany or the Company.

3.2 Compensation and Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Employee shalébgtled to the following compensation
and benefits:

@) Base SalaryThe Employee shall receive an annual base s@él&gse Salary), which shall be paid in at least
monthly installments. The Base Salary shall illitibe equal to 12 times the highest monthly badarg that was paid or is payable to the
Employee, including any base salary which has leeened but deferred by the Employee, by the Companits Affiliates with respect to any
month in the 12-month period ending with the mahtit immediately precedes the month in which thar@e of Control occurs. During the
Employment Term, the Employee’s Base Salary steatieviewed at such time as the Company undertakekey review of his peer employees
(but at least annually), and, to the extent thitrgancreases are granted to his peer employettedompany (or have been granted during the
immediately preceding 12-month period to his peepleyees of any Affiliate of the Company), the Eoy#te shall be granted a salary increase
commensurate with any increase granted to hisgrapltoyees of the Company and its Affiliates. Angrease in Base Salary shall not serve to
limit or reduce any other obligation to the Empleyender this Agreement. Base Salary shall noeteaed during the Employment Term
(whether or not any increase in Base Salary ocaumd) if any increase in Base Salary occurs, ttre Base Salary as utilized in this Agreement
shall refer to Base Salary as so increased from toriime.

(b) Annual Bonus In addition to Base Salary, the Employee shalbarded, for each fiscal year ending during the
Employment Term, an annual cash bonus (the “ Boniimsan amount at least equal to the average ®ftimual bonuses paid to the Employee
with respect to the three fiscal years that immietifgprecede the year in which the Change of Cdwoirours under the Company’s annual bonus
plan, or any comparable bonus under a successurplavided, howevethat if the Company has never paid an annual béorus full year to the
Employee, the Employee shall be awarded a Bonas @mount at least equal to the target bonus fichthe Employee is eligible for the fiscal
year in which the Change of Control occurs, assgrathievement at the target level of the objeqtedormance goals established with respe
such bonus and achievement of 100% of any subgpvformance goals or criteria otherwise applieatith respect to such bonus. Each such
Bonus shall be paid after the end of the fiscal weal no later than the #&day of the third month of the fiscal year nextdeling the fiscal year
for which the Bonus is awarded, unless the Emplayedl timely elect to defer the receipt of sucmB® pursuant to the CenturyLink, Inc.
Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan. For purposeetrmining the value of any annual bonuses paitlé Employee in any year preceding



year in which the Change of Control occurs, alhcasd stock bonuses earned by the Employee shadilbed as of the date of
the grant.

(c) Fringe Benefits The Employee shall be entitled to fringe besefimmensurate with those provided to his peer
employees of the Company and its Affiliates, buhinevent shall such fringe benefits be less fehlerthan the most favorable of those provided
by the Company and its Affiliates for the Employeny time during the one-year period immediapebceding the Change of Control or, if
more favorable to the Employee, those provided galyeat any time after the Change of Control te péer employees of the Company and its
Affiliates.

(d) Expenses The Employee shall be entitled to receive proreghbursement for all reasonable expenses incinyed
the Employee in accordance with the most favoragleements, policies, practices and procedurdseafbmpany and its Affiliates in effect for
the Employee at any time during the one-year parodediately preceding the Change of Control omdfre favorable to the Employee, as in
effect generally at any time thereafter with respedis peer employees of the Company and itdiAféis.

(e) Benefit Plans (i) The Employee shall be entitled to particépat all incentive, savings and retirement plamacpces
policies and programs applicable generally to keisrmployees of the Company and its Affiliateg,ibuno event shall such plans, practices,
policies and programs provide the Employee witleiritve opportunities (measured with respect to begular and special incentive opportuni
to the extent that any such distinction is appliegtsavings opportunities and retirement bengffiartunities, in each case, less favorable than the
most favorable of those provided by the CompanyitnAéffiliates for the Employee under any agreetseplans, practices, policies and progr:
as in effect at any time during the one-year pemagiediately preceding the Change of Control omdre favorable to the Employee, those
provided generally at any time after the Chang€aftrol to his peer employees of the Company anAffiliates.

(i) The Employee and his family shall &aible for participation in and shall receivé la¢nefits under welfare
benefit plans, practices, policies and programsigenl by the Company and its Affiliates (includingthout limitation, medical,
prescription drug, dental, disability, salary contince, employee life, group life, accidental deatth travel accident insurance plans and
programs) to the extent applicable generally tqoleisr employees of the Company and its Affiliabed,in no event shall such plans,
practices, policies and programs provide the Emgaagnd his family with benefits, in each case, fagsrable than the most favorable of
those agreements, plans, practices, policies avgtgms in effect for the Employee and his familpiay time during the one-year period
immediately preceding the Change of Control omdfre favorable to the Employee and his family, ¢hpsovided generally at any time
after the Change of Control to his peer employdeéseoCompany and its Affiliates.

(iii) Without limiting the generality dhe Company’s obligations under this subsectiontfe) Company shall
comply with all of its obligations under the bengfians, practices, policies and programs of then@any and its Affiliates that arise in
connection with a Change of Control of the Compangluding without limitation all obligations thatquire the Company to (A) fully
vest participants under the Company’s qualifiedan-qualified retirement plans and (B) extend thedjits described in Section 3.5.

® Office and Support Staff The Employee shall be entitled to an office fiices of a size and with furnishings ¢
other appointments, and to secretarial and othestasce, commensurate with those provided to ée&r pmployees of the Company anc
Affiliates.

(9) Vacation The Employee shall be entitled to paid vacatioaccordance with the most favorable agreemetass
policies, programs and practices of the Companyitanéiffiliates as in effect for the Employee atydime during the ongear period immediate
preceding the Change of Control or, if more favtgaio the Employee, as in effect generally at ametthereafter with respect to his
employees of the Company and its Affiliates.

(h) Indemnification If, in connection with any agreement relate@ toansaction that will result in a Change of Cohntf
the Company, an undertaking is made to provideBibard with rights to indemnification from the Conmya(or from any other party to st
agreement), the Employee shall, by virtue of thige®ement, be entitled to the same rights to indfoation as are provided to the Board purs
to such agreement. Otherwise, the Employee sleabriitled to indemnification rights on terms nesldavorable to the Employee than tt
available under any Company indemnification agregmer the articles of incorporation, bylaws orolaions of the Company at any time a
the Change of Control to his peer employees ofGbmpany. Such indemnification rights shall be wigéspect to all claims, actions, suits
proceedings to which the Employee is or is threzdeio be made a party that arise out of or are exted to his services at any time prior tc
termination of his employment, without regard toetfter such claims, actions, suits or proceedingsreade, asserted or arise during or afte
Employment Term.

® Directors and Officers Insurancdf, in connection with any agreement relatedattransaction that will result in
Change of Control of the Company, an undertakingasle to provide the Board with continued coverfajjewing the Change of Control unc
one or more directors and officers liability insoca policies, then the Employee shall, by virtu¢hid Agreement, be entitled to the same righ
continued coverage under such directors and offiiability insurance policies as are providedhe Board, and the Company shall take any
necessary to give effect to this provision. Othisewthe Company shall agree to cover the Emplayeter any directors and officers liabi
insurance policies as are provided generally attiamg after the Change of Control to his peer eiygds of the Company.

3.3 Obligations upon Termination after a Change of Contol .

(@) Termination by Company for Reasadeothan Death, Disability or Cause or by the Eogee for Good Reasanlf, after a
Change of Control and during the Employment Tehm,Gompany or any of its Affiliates terminates Eraployee’s employment, as defined in
Treasury Regulations 1.409A-1(h)(1)_(“ Separatiamf Service’), other than for Cause, death or Disability, lve Employee terminates
employment for Good Reason, subject to Sectiord3&{d Section 3.6, if applicable:

0] the Company shall pay to the Employea lump sum in cash within five business daythefdate o



termination an amount equal to two times the suifi)dhe amount of Base Salary in effect pursuaréction 3.2(a)
hereof at the date of termination plus (ii) therage of the annual bonuses paid or to be paidet&thployee with respect to the
immediately preceding three fiscal yegrmvided, howevethat, if the Employee has in effect a deferral #becwith respect to any
percentage of the annual bonus which would othervé&zome payable with respect to the fiscal yeariich termination occurs, such
lump sum payment shall be reduced by an amount émsach percentage times the bonus componehedfimp sum payment (which
reduction amount shall be deferred in accordande svich election);

(i) the Company shall pay to the Empleye a lump sum in cash, as promptly as practichbten no case later
than the 18 day of the third month following the end of thech$ year of the Company in which the terminatioows, apro rata
performance bonus, the amount of which shall berdghed by multiplying the annual bonus that thepleimee would have earned with
respect to the entire fiscal year in which the faation occurs, assuming that the Employee hadesfiar the entire fiscal year and
calculated by the Company in good faith to excltideeffects of the Change of Control on the apple@erformance metrics used to
calculate such bonus (including without limitatiexcluding the effects of any non-recurring tranigactosts or any changes in overhead,
interest, tax, intercompany or other expensesnarisut of such transaction), by the fraction otediby dividing the number of days in
such year through the date of termination by 386yided, howevethat, if the Employee has in effect a deferral gbecwith respect to
any percentage of the annual bonus which wouldraike become payable with respect to the fiscat yreavhich termination occurs,
such lump sum payment shall be reduced by an anegural to such percentage times the lump sum payfwich reduction amount
shall be deferred in accordance with such electiamd,further provided, that if the bonus performance period in effedhatdate of
termination is less than a year, then the foregperggraph will apply with respect to such shorteperformance period and all
references to an annual period or 365 days shalhrttee applicable shortened period or shortenederunf days to the extent the
context requires;

(iii) if, at the date of termination, t@@mpany shall not yet have paid to the Employe@éderred in accordance
with any effective deferral election by the Empleyan annual bonus with respect to a fully compléitcal year, the Company shall pay
to the Employee in a lump sum in cash within fiussiness days of the date of termination but inaseafter the 18 day of the third
month following the end of the fiscal year of then@pany in which the termination occurs, an amowté¢dnined as follows: (i) if the
Board (acting directly or indirectly through anynemittee or subcommittee) shall have already detegththe amount of such annual
bonus, such amount shall be paid, and (ii) if thaf® shall not have already determined the amdusuah annual bonus, the amount to
be paid shall be the greater of the amount provideter Section 3.2(b) hereof or the annual bonasttte Employee would have earned
with respect to such completed fiscal year, basélysupon the actual level of achievement of thgective performance goals
established with respect to such bonus and assutméngchievement of 100% of any subjective perfarteagoals or criteria otherwise
applicable with respect to such bonpsvided, howevethat, if the Employee has in effect a deferral #becwith respect to any
percentage of the annual bonus which would othervé&come payable with respect to such completedlfigar, such lump sum
payment shall be reduced by an amount equal to peidentage times the lump sum payment (which tégtuamount shall be deferred
in accordance with such electiopypvided, furtherthat any payment under this subsection (iii) (or payment under any other
provision of this Agreement calculated by referetprior or target bonus amounts) shall be payabteithstanding any provision to
the contrary set forth in any bonus plan or progodithe Company;

(iv) for a period of two years followirige date of termination of employment, or such mngeriod as may be
provided by the terms of the appropriate plan, pog practice or policy (the * Continuation Perigdthe Company shall at its expense
continue on behalf of the Employee and his depetsdiamd beneficiaries the life insurance, disahilitedical, dental and hospitalization
benefits (including any benefit under any individbanefit arrangement that covers medical, denthbgpitalization expenses not
otherwise covered under any general Company plaviged (x) to the Employee at any time during dine-year period prior to the
Change in Control or at any time thereafter ort¢ydpther similarly-situated employees who contimuthe employ of the Company or its
Affiliates during the Continuation Period. If tRenployee is a Specified Employee governed by Se&i8(d), to the extent that any
benefits provided to the Employee under this Secdi@(a)(iv) are taxable to the Employee, thenhwhie exception of medical insurance
benefits, the value of the aggregate amount of sacdble benefits provided to the Employee purstattiis Section 3.3(a)(iv) during tl
six-month period following the date of terminatisimall be limited to the amount specified by Codeti®a 402(g)(1)(B) for the year in
which the termination occurred. The Employee spajl the cost of any benefits that exceed the atrgpetified in the previous sentel
during the six-month period following the date efrhination, and shall be reimbursed in full by @@mpany during the seventh month
after the date of termination. The coverage amgkfis (including deductibles and costs) providedhis Section 3.3(a)(iv) during the
Continuation Period shall be no less favorabld&BEmployee and his dependents and beneficiaresttie most favorable of such
coverages and benefits during any of the periofgsregl to in clauses (x) or (y) aboy@pvided, howeveiin the event of the Disability of
the Employee during the Continuation Period, diggtienefits shall, to the maximum extent possilolet be paid for the Continuation
Period but shall instead commence immediately ¥ahg the end of the Continuation Period. The Conyfsobligation hereunder with
respect to the foregoing benefits shall be limitethe extent that the Employee obtains any suadkfits pursuant to a subsequent
employer’s benefit plans, in which case the Compaay reduce the coverage of any benefits it isireduo provide the Employee
hereunder as long as the aggregate coverages nefitbef the combined benefit plans is no lesefable to the Employee than the
coverages and benefits required to be provideduneler. At the end of the Continuation Period, Engployee shall have assigned to
him, at no cost and with no apportionment of prégaemiums, any assignable insurance owned by dnep@ny that relates specifically
to the Employee unless such assignment is incemsigtith the terms of any split dollar arrangemeith the Employee. The Employee
will be eligible for coverage under the Consolida@mnibus Budget Reconciliation Act at the endhef €Continuation Period or earlier
cessation of the Compamsyodbligation under the foregoing provisions of tBection 3.3(a)(iv) (or, if the Employee shall betso eligible
for any reason, the Company will provide equivalemterage);

v) the Company at its cost shall providé¢he Employee outplacement assistance by aablautirm specializing
in such services for the period beginning withtégrenination of employment and ending one year jated

(vi) the Company shall discharge its gations under all other applicable sections of griscle 111, including
Sections 3.4, 3.5,3.6 and 3



To the extent that the amounts payable under Se8ti(a)(iv), Section 3.3(a)(v), or Section 3.7 deemed to be reimbursements and other
separation payments under Treasury RegulationsoBetd09A-1(b)(9)(v), they shall not be deemegtovide for the deferral of compensation
governed by Code Section 409A. If they do contgitleferral of compensation governed by Code Sedtd®A, they shall be deemed to be
reimbursements or in-kind benefits governed by JueaRegulations Section 1.409A-3(i)(1)(iv). Ietprevious sentence applies, (i) the amount
of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kirehéfits provided during the Employee’s taxable yawall not affect the expenses eligible for
reimbursement or in-kind benefits in any other tdeaear, (ii) the reimbursement of an eligible exge must be made on or before the last day of
the Employee's taxable year following the taxatdanin which the expense was incurred and (iii)ritet to reimbursement or in-kind benefits
shall not be subject to liquidation or exchangedioother benefit.

The payments and benefits provided in this Se@i8(a) and under all of the Company’s employee fiezed compensation plans shall be
without regard to any plan amendment made afteiGlrgnge of Control that adversely affects in anynes the computation of payments and
benefits due the Employee under such plan or the tir manner of payment of such payments and lisneficluding plan amendments that the
Company is required by law to implement. Aftert@a8ge of Control no discretionary power of the Bloar any committee thereof shall be used
in a way (and no ambiguity in any such plan shaltbnstrued in a way) which adversely affects ymanner any right or benefit of the
Employee under any such plan.

(b) Death; Disability; Termination fomGse; or Voluntary Terminatianlf, after a Change of Control and during the
Employment Term, the Employee’s status as an emeglég/terminated (i) by reason of the Emplogetgath or Disability, (ii) by the Company
Cause or (iii) voluntarily by the Employee otheamhfor Good Reason, this Agreement shall termingteout further obligation to the Employee
or the Employee’s legal representatives (other thartimely payment or provision of those alreadgraed to the Employee, imposed by law or
imposed pursuant to employee benefit or compensatans, programs, practices, policies or agreesnaaintained by the Company or its
Affiliates).

() Notice of Termination Any termination by the Company for Cause or é&gson of the Employee’s Disability, or by
the Employee for Good Reason, shall be communidatealNotice of Termination to the other party give accordance with Section 5.2 of this
Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, a ‘idéadf Terminatiof means a written notice which (i) indicates thedfic termination
provision in this Agreement relied upon, (ii) teetbxtent applicable, sets forth in reasonable Idbiifacts and circumstances claimed to provide a
basis for termination of the Employee’s employmaemder the provision so indicated and (iii) if tiféeetive date of the termination is other than
the date of receipt of such notice, specifies gmmination date (which date shall be not more B@days after the giving of such notice), provi
that the effective date for any termination by ceasf the Employee’s Disability shall be the 308y dfter the giving of such notice, unless prior
to such 30th day the Employee shall have resuneéuthtime performance of his duties. The faillethe Employee or the Company to set
forth in the Notice of Termination any fact or aimstance which contributes to a showing of Caussghility or Good Reason shall not waive
any right of the Employee or the Company, respebtivhereunder or preclude the Employee or the Gomprespectively, from asserting such
fact or circumstance in enforcing the Employee’sher Company’s rights hereunder.

(d) SixMonth Delay for Specified EmployeesNotwithstanding any other provision hereof, payits hereunder which
constitute deferred compensation under Code Se408A and the Treasury Regulations thereunder dridhaare not exempt from coverage by
Code Section 409A and the Treasury Regulationgtimeter shall commence, if Employee is then a SipelcEmployee and payment is triggered
by his Separation from Service, on the first dayhef seventh month following the date of the SpediEmployee’s Separation from Service, or, if
earlier, the date of death of the Specified Empdoy®n the first day of such seventh month or efitist day of the month following the earlier
death of the Specified Employee, the Specified Byg® or his estate or spouse, as the case malgdiehs paid in a lump sum the amount that
the Specified Employee would have been paid hemuoxker the preceding six months (or, if earlibe inonths preceding the date of death) but
for the fact that he was a Specified Employee. evtheless, for all other purposes of this Agreenthet payments shall be deemed to have
commenced on the date they would have had the Bmploot been a Specified Employee, and paymentyofemnaining benefits shall be made
as otherwise scheduled hereunder.

3.4 Accrued Obligations and Other Benefits. It is the intent of this Agreement that upon teration of employment for any
reason following a Change of Control the Employehis legal representatives be entitled to recpioenptly, and in addition to any other bene
specifically provided, (a) the Employee’s Base Batarough the date of termination to the extertttheretofore paid, (b) any accrued vacation
pay, to the extent not theretofore paid, and (g)@her amounts or benefits required to be paidrovided or which the Employee or his legal
representatives are entitled to receive under &y, program, policy, practice or agreement ofGloenpany.

3.5 Stock Options and Other Incentives. The foregoing benefits provided for in this Aktidll are intended to be in addition to
the value or benefit of any stock options, restdcstock, restricted stock units, performance sharsimilar awards, the exercisability, vesting or
payment of which is accelerated or otherwise enbadmpon a Change of Control pursuant to the tefrasy stock option, incentive or other
similar plan or agreement heretofore or hereafiepted by the Company or the Post-Transaction Cagmpa

3.6 Conditional Payment Reductions.

@) Notwithstanding any other contrarg\psions in any plan, program or policy of the Canp, if all or any portion of
the benefits payable under this Agreement, eittwreaor together with other payments and bendfis the Employee receives or is entitled to
receive from the Company, would constitute a “phawae paymentWithin the meaning of Section 280G of the Code,Gloenpany shall reduce t
Employee’s payments and benefits payable undeAtiisement to the extent necessary so that nogoattiereof shall be subject to the excise tax
imposed by Section 4999 of the Code, but onlyyifréason of such reduction, the net after-tax beskéll exceed the net after-tax benefit if such
reduction were not made. “Net after-tax benefit” these purposes shall mean (i) the sum of tla antount payable to Employee under the
Agreement, plusll other payments and benefits which Employeeiveseor is then entitled to receive from the Comptrat, alone or in
combination with the payments and benefits payahtéer the Agreement, would constitute a “paracpatament” within the meaning of Section
280G of the Code (each such benefit hereinaftermed to as an “ Additional Parachute Paynigriess(ii) the amount of federal income taxes
payable with respect to the foregoing calculateth@tmaximum marginal income tax rate for each yearhich the foregoing shall be paid to !




Employee (based upon the rate in effect for sueln g8 set forth in the Code at the time of the payminder the Agreement),
less(iii) the amount of excise taxes imposed with respe the payments and benefits described in (valby Section 4999 of the Code. The
parachute payments reduced under this sectiontshdftiose that the Employee determines provid&thployee the best economic benefit and, to
the extent any parachute payments are economigllivalent with each other, each shall be reducedaia;provided, however, that the
Employee may elect to have the non-cash paymedtbamefits due the Employee reduced or eliminated o any reduction of the cash
payments due under this Agreement.

(b) All determinations required to be readhder this Section 3.6 shall be made by the adtocmufirm that was the
Company’s independent auditor prior to the Charfgéamtrol or any other third party mutually accepéato the Employee and the Company (the
“ Accounting Firm”). The Accounting Firm shall provide detailed popting calculations both to the Company and thelegee. All fees and
expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be bornelptle the Company. Absent manifest error, any cheteation by the Accounting Firm shall be
binding upon the Company and the Employee.

(c) For purposes of determining whethet the extent to which any payments would congtitutparachute payment” (i)
no portion of any payments or benefits that the Byge shall have waived at such time and in suchmaaas not to constitute a “payment”
within the meaning of section 280G(b) of the Coldallsbe taken into account, (ii) no portion of fleeyments shall be taken into account which, in
the opinion of tax counsel (* Tax Coun8gteasonably acceptable to the Employee and saldny the Accounting Firm, does not constitute a
“parachute payment” within the meaning of secti8@@(b)(2) of the Code (including by reason of sec80G(b)(4)(A) of the Code) and, in
calculating the excise tax, no portion of such pagta shall be taken into account which, in the igpirof Tax Counsel, constitutes reasonable
compensation for services actually rendered, with@ameaning of section 280G(b)(4)(B) of the Cadexcess of the “base amount” (within the
meaning set forth in section 280G(b)(3) of the Qadmcable to such reasonable compensation, @hthé value of any non-cash benefit or any
deferred payment or benefit included in the paymehtll be determined by the Accounting Firm inoadance with the principles of sections
280G(d)(3) and (4) of the Code.

3.7 Legal Fees. The Company agrees to reimburse the Employealiftagal fees and other expenses which the Employay
reasonably incur as a result of any contest byCthmpany or the Post-Transaction Company of theliglor enforceability of, or liability under,
any provision of this Agreement, but only if, whamnd to the extent the Employee prevails with resfgesuch contest.

3.8 Set-Off; Mitigation. After a Change of Control, the obligations of @@mpany and its Affiliates to make the payments
provided for in this Agreement and otherwise tofqn its obligations hereunder shall not be affddig any set-off, counterclaim, recoupment,
defense or other claim, right or action which tr@r@any or its Affiliates may have against the Ergpkor others, other than as expressly
provided to the contrary in Section 3.3(a)(iv), &t 3.10 or Section 4.3. It is the intent of tAigreement that in no event shall the Employee be
obligated to seek other employment or take anyratbton to mitigate the amounts or benefits pagablthe Employee under any of the
provisions of this Agreement.

3.9 Certain Pre-Change-of-Control Terminations. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agmeent, the Employee’s
employment shall be deemed to have been termitfialedving a Change of Control by the Company with@ause (and the Employee shall be
entitled to receive all payments and benefits daset therewith) if the Employee’s employment isrtmated by the Company or any of its
Affiliates without Cause prior to a Change of Coh{whether or not a Change of Control actuallyuwst and such termination (i) was at the
request or direction of a third party who has tageps designed to effect a Change of Controltogratise arose in connection with or in
anticipation of a Change of Control or (ii) occuti@ter discussions with a third party regardirmgpasible Change of Control transaction
commenced and such discussions produced (whetfael® after such termination) either a preliminar definitive agreement with respect to
such a transaction or a public announcement gpémeling transaction (whether or not a Change oft@bactually occurs.

3.10 Other Severance Plans. If the Employee becomes entitled to receive ssaver benefits under this Article Ill, the Company
shall not be required to pay the Employee any aitit severance payment under any other severarsaary continuation policy, plan,
agreement or arrangement maintained by the Comgaity Affiliates unless such other policy, plagreement or arrangement expressly prov
to the contrary.

ARTICLE IV
NONDISCLOSURE, NONCOMPETITION AND NONSOLICITATION

4.1 Nondisclosure of Confidential Information. The Employee acknowledges and agrees that iodiese of the Employee’s
employment the Employee has been in a positiomte laccess to and develop Confidential Informatmad, will continue to be in position to
receive and develop Confidential Information durihg Employee’s tenure as an employee of the Compaany of its Affiliates. As long as the
Employee is an employee of the Company or anysohffiliates, the Employee shall hold in a fidugiarapacity for the benefit of the Company
Confidential Information which the Employee obtairduring the Employee’s employment (whether prioot after the Agreement Date) and
shall use such Confidential Information solelyhe good faith performance of his duties for the @any and its Affiliates. If the employment of
the Employee is terminated for any reason, themngencing with the termination date and continuinglthe fifth anniversary of such date, the
Employee shall (a) not communicate, divulge or maka&lable to any Person (other than the Compadyitariffiliates) any such Confidential
Information, except with the prior written consefithe Company or as may be required by law orllpgaess, and (b) deliver promptly to the
Company upon its written request any Confidenti@imation in his possession, including any dupésahereof and any notes or other records
the Employee has prepared with respect theretejged that Employee need not deliver to the Companyg may retain, one copy of any
personal diaries, calendars, or personal notesroéspondence. If the provisions of any applicddoleor the order of any court would require the
Employee to disclose or otherwise make available@onfidential Information to a governmental auttyoor to any other third party, the
Employee shall give the Company, unless it is ufudto do so, prompt prior written notice of suayquired disclosure and an opportunity to
contest the requirement of such disclosure or afgplg protective order with respect to such Caoatfiiial Information by appropriate proceedings.

4.2 Noncompetition; Nonsolicitation; Nondisparagement (a) The Employee agrees that, during the tdrthis Agreement an



for a period following the termination date of twears if the Employee’s employment is terminatedigyCompany for Cause or by the
Employee without Good Reason or one year if the leyge’s employment is terminated for any other o@ashe Employee will not, directly or
indirectly, in any capacity whatsoever, either be Employee’s own behalf or on behalf of any ofherson with whom the Employee may be
employed or otherwise associated:

0] engage or invest in, own, manage rafge finance, control, acquire an interest inetmployed by, render
services to, act as an agent on behalf of, or wikerin any way patrticipate in, associate with liove his skill, knowledge, experience or
reputation to be used by (whether as a proprigtmtner, stockholder, member, director, officerptyee, joint venturer, investor,
consultant, agent, sales representative, brokether participant) any Person engaged in or plantdirbecome engaged in the Business
within any of the jurisdictions listed olyppendix Aattached heretgrovided, howeverthat the Employee may own passive investments
in not more than 1% of the outstanding securitfesny Person engaged in such Business (but withthatrwise participating in such
similar business) if such securities are registemedker Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Ad984, as amended,;

(ii) contact any customer of the Companits Affiliates to solicit, divert or entice awdlye business of such
customer, or otherwise disrupt the relationshipveen such customer and the Company or its Affdiate

(i) solicit, induce, influence or attgtto influence any supplier, lessor, lessee, Boenpartner, joint venturer,
potential acquiree or any other person who hassmbss relationship with the Company or its Affiig, or who on the termination datt
engaged in discussions or negotiations to enterartiusiness relationship with the Company or ffdidtes, to discontinue, reduce or
limit the extent of such relationship with the Caanp or any of its Affiliates;

(iv) make contact with any employee af @ompany or its Affiliates for the purpose of sitihg such employee
for hire, whether as an employee, independent aotar, consultant or otherwise, or otherwise disngpsuch employee’s relationship
with the Company or its Affiliates; or

(v) make any statement or disclose afgrimation to any customers, suppliers, lendersdes licensees, other
employees of the Company or its Affiliates or othtirat is defamatory or derogatory with respethébusiness, operations, manager
or other employees of the Company or its Affiliatesstake any other action (excluding making truthhon-defamatory statements in
good faith that do not violate any other provisairihis Agreement) that could reasonably be exgktiénjure the Company in its
business relationships with any of the foregoingdiea or result in any other detrimental effecttbea Company or its Affiliates.

(b) The Employee agrees that: (i) theecmnts and agreements set forth in this Articled® reasonable both in scope of
geographical area and duration, (ii) the Companyld/aot have entered into this Agreement but fahstovenants of the Employee, (iii) such
covenants have been made as a result of arm-leaggaining in order to induce the Company to eintier this Agreement, and (iv) such
covenants and agreements are reasonable and ngdesshe protection of the Confidential Informani, assets, goodwill and business of the
Company. To the extent permitted by applicable line Employee covenants and agrees not to iretitodintain, prosecute or in any way aid in
the institution, maintenance or prosecution of Emwysuit, action, claim, arbitration or other prode®y against the Company or any of its Affilia
with respect to the enforceability of the covenamstained in this Article IV and the Employee hBrérrevocably waives all defenses otherwise
available to the Employee with respect to the s&iforcement of such covenants and agreementsb@ampany.

4.3 Injunctive Relief; Forfeiture of Future Payments and Benefits; Other Remedies The Employee acknowledges that a
breach by the Employee of Sections 4.1 or 4.2 heweuld cause immediate and irreparable harm t&€tmpany for which an adequate mone
remedy does not exist; hence, the Employee agheésin the event of a breach or threatened brbathe Employee of the provisions of Secti
4.1 or 4.2 herein during or after the effectiveedaft the Employee’s termination, the Company sbaléntitled to injunctive relief restraining the
Employee from such violation without the necessitproof of actual damage or the posting of anydy@xcept as required by non-waivable,
applicable law. Nothing herein, however, shalcbastrued as prohibiting the Company from pursaing other remedy at law or in equity to
which the Company may be entitled under applici&bein the event of a breach or threatened bre&thisAgreement by the Employee,
including without limitation the recovery of damageosts or expenses, such as reasonable attofaegsincurred by the Company as a result of
any such breach or threatened breach. In addititime foregoing remedies, the Company shall hageight upon the occurrence of any breac
any nondisclosure, noncompetition or nonsolicitatovenant contained in this Article IV, to canasl unpaid severance payments, salary,
bonus, commissions or reimbursements otherwisdaoutimg at the termination date, including the susjon, reduction or elimination of
payments and benefits under Article Ill. The Enypl® acknowledges that any such suspension, redumtielimination of payments would not
constitute, and should not be characterized asidiged damages.

4.4 Governing Law of this Article IV; Consent to Jurisdiction . Any dispute regarding the reasonableness ofdkenants and
agreements set forth in this Article IV or the tmial scope or duration thereof or the remedieailable to the Company upon any breach of such
covenants and agreements, shall be governed bintmgdreted in accordance with the laws of theeStdtLouisiana. The parties agree that it is
their mutual intent that the provisions of this Agment be enforced to the fullest extent permitteder applicable law, whether now or hereafter
in effect, and, to the extent permitted by appliedaw, the parties waive any provision of appliealaw that would render any provision of Arti
IV invalid or unenforceable.

ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOUS
5.1 Binding Effect; Successors
(a) This Agreement shall be binding upad inure to the benefit of the Company and it€sssors or assigns, but the

Company may assign this Agreement only (i) to afiliafe or (i) pursuant to a merger or consolidatin which the Company is not the
continuing entity, or the sale or liquidation of @l substantially all of the assets of the Compammgvided that the assignee or transferee is the
successor to all or substantially all of the aseéthe Company and such assignee or transfereenassthe liabilities, obligations and duties of



Company under this Agreement, either contractuallyhe terms specified below or as a matter of law.

(b) This Agreement is personal to the Exyge and shall not be assignable by the Employt®ut the consent of the
Company (there being no obligation to give suchseai) other than such rights or benefits as ansfieared by will or the laws of descent and
distribution, which shall inure to the benefit betEmployee’s legal representatives.

(c) The Company shall require any suamessor assignee of (whether direct or indiregtplirchase, share exchange,
merger, consolidation or otherwise) all or subs#dlgtall of the assets or businesses of the Comao assume unconditionally and expressly
this Agreement and (ii) to agree to perform ordase to be performed all of the obligations untisr Agreement in the same manner and to the
same extent as would have been required of the @oynipad no assignment or succession occurred.

(d) The Company shall also require afltexs that control or that after the transactiati @ontrol (directly or indirectly)
the Company or any such successor or assigneede tigcause to be performed all of the obligatiomder this Agreement.

(e) The obligations of the Company arelEmployee which by their nature may require eitfagtial or total performance
after the expiration of the term of the Agreemdnmatissurvive such expiration.

5.2 Notices. All notices hereunder must be in writing and sballdeemed to have been given upon receipt of dglbae (a) hanc
(against a receipt therefor), (b) certified or stgied mail, postage prepaid, return receipt reqdeéc) a nationally recognized overnight courier
service or (d) telecopy transmission with confirimatof delivery. All such notices must be addrelsas follows:

If to the Company, to:

CenturyLink, Inc.

100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203
Attn: General Counsel

If to the Employee, to:
{Insert name and address}
or such other address as to which any party henatphave notified the other in writing.

5.3 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforceddéoralance with and governed by the internal lawthef
State of Louisiana without regard to principlecohflict of laws.

5.4 Withholding. The Employee agrees that the Company has thetdghithhold, from the amounts payable pursuanhis t
Agreement, all amounts required to be withheld urgplicable income or employment tax laws, ortheavise stated in documents granting
rights that are affected by this Agreement.

5.5 Amendment and Compliance with Law. No provision of this Agreement may be modifiedaatended except by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties. Nighstanding any other provision of this Agreemdni the intention of the parties to this
Agreement that no payment or entittement pursuattiis Agreement will give rise to any adversetarsequences to the Employee under Code
Section 409A and Treasury Regulations and otherpnétive guidance issued thereunder, includingdtissued after the date hereof (collectively,
“ Section 409A"). This Agreement and any amendments hereto blealiterpreted and administered to that end antd (He maximum extent
permitted by law, no effect shall be given to angvision herein, any amendment hereto or any a¢tiken hereunder in a manner that reasonably
could be expected to give rise to adverse tax cpreseces under Section 409A and (ii) the partiel &tle any corrective action reasonably wit
their control that are necessary to avoid such @&@viax consequences.

5.6 Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or tiygplication thereof to any person or circumstasbell at any
time or to any extent be invalid, illegal or unemfable in any respect as written, the Employeetl@edCompany intend for any court construing
this Agreement to modify or limit such provisiona®to render it valid and enforceable to the &tléxtent allowed by law. Any such provision
that is not susceptible of such reformation shalignored so as to not affect any other term ovipion hereof, and the remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such term or Bimri to persons or circumstances other than these ahich it is held invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby aall bk valid and enforced to the fullest extentnpittied by law.

5.7 Waiver of Breach. Except as expressly provided herein to the contthgyfailure by any party to enforce any of itghtis
hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver &f sghts, unless such waiver is an express writtaiver. The waiver by either party of a bre
of any provision of this Agreement shall not operat be construed as a waiver of any subsequeatHtaereof.

5.8 Remedies Not Exclusive.No remedy specified herein shall be deemed to bl party’s exclusive remedy, and accordingly,
in addition to all of the rights and remedies pd=d for in this Agreement, the parties shall hdlether rights and remedies provided to them by
applicable law, rule or regulation, including wititdimitation the right to claim interest with resg to any payment not timely made hereunder.

5.9 Company’s Reservation of Rights. The Employee acknowledges and understands the(EEmployee is employed at will
by either the Company or one of its Affiliates (thEmployer”), (ii) the Employee serves at the pleasure ofttbard of directors of the Employer,
and (iii) the Employer has the right at any timeédoninate the Employee’s status as an employee, drange or diminish his status during the
Employment Term, subject to the rights of the Emgpoto claim the benefits conferred by this AgreemdNotwithstanding any other provisio



of this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreemédralisnot entitle the Employee or his legal repréatves to any severance or other
benefits of any kind prior to a Change of Contnotmany such benefits if Employee is not emploggdhe Company or one of its Affiliates on
date of a Change of Control, except in each casthése rights afforded under Section 3.9.

5.10 Non-exclusivity of Rights. Subject to Section 5.9, nothing in this Agreensdll prevent or limit the Employee’s
continuing or future participation in any plan, gram, policy or practice provided by the Companyy of its Affiliates and for which the
Employee may qualify, nor shall anything hereinitior otherwise restrict such rights as the Empéogeay have under any contract or agreement
with the Company or any of its Affiliates.

5.11 Demand for Benefits. Unless otherwise provided herein, the payment gmgeaits due hereunder shall be paid to the
Employee without the need for demand, and to afiiaey upon the receipt of the beneficiary’s adstrand social security number. In all such
cases, the Employee or beneficiary shall provitleeglired tax withholding information or forms upthe Company’s request. Nevertheless, the
Employee or a Person claiming to be a beneficidrg slaims entitliement to a benefit can file a cléddmbenefits hereunder with the
Company. Unless otherwise provided herein, the @y shall accept or reject the claim within tesibess days of its receipt. If the claim is
denied, the Company shall give the reason for di@mewritten notice that refers to the provisimfthis Agreement that forms the basis of the
denial. If any additional information or materialnecessary to perfect the claim, the Companyidelhtify these items in writing and explain w
such additional information is necessary.

5.12 Authority. The Company represents and warrants that @xiggution and delivery of this Agreement has baéy d
authorized by the Board and (ii) no other corpopatzeedings are necessary to authorize the Cortgpexgcution, delivery and performance
of this Agreement.

5.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more eopatts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original but all of which together shall constitutee and the same instrument.

5.14 Interpretation. Any reference to any section of the Code or trea3ury Regulations shall be deemed to also refany
successor provisions thereto.

5.15 The Employee’s Acknowledgment The Employee represents to the Company thabbkedad and understands, and agrees
to be bound by, each of the terms of this Agreemiraluding Article IV.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Employeelaused this Change of Control Agreement to keewrd as of the
Agreement Date.

CENTURYLINK, INC.
By:

Glen E. Post, I
President and Chief Executive Offit

EMPLOYEE:

{insert nam



1. The following parishes in the state of Louisia

PROHIBITED TERRITORIES

Appendix A

Acadia Madison
Allen Morehouse
Ascensior Natchitoches
Assumption Orleans
Avoyelles Quachita
Beauregar Plaguemine:
Bienville Pointe Coupe
Bossier Rapides
Caddo Red River
Calcasiel Richland
Caldwell Sabine
Cameror St. Bernarc
Catahoule St. Charles
Claiborne St. Helene
Concordia St. Jame:
DeSoto St. John the Baptit
East Baton Roug St. Landry
East Carrol St. Martin
East Felician: St. Mary
Evangeline St. Tammany
Franklin Tangipahoz
Grant Tensas

Iberia Terrebonne
Iberville Union
Jacksor Vermillion
Jeffersor Vernon
Jefferson Davi Washingtor
Lafayette Webster
Lafourche West Baton Roug
LaSalle West Carroll
Lincoln West Felician:
Livingston winn

2. Each other state and each foreign country iichylas of the applicable date, the Company orddritg Affiliates is licensed to provide

communications services or to own and operateitiasilproviding such service



Exhibit 10.14(d
December 15, 2010

Glen F. Post, Il

Chief Executive Officer
CenturyLink, Inc.

100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, LA 71203

RE: Employment Agreement dated March 3, 2008 betmieEmbarqg Corporation (“Embarq”) and Thomas A. @dfExecutive”),as amende
October 26, 2008 by Amendment to Employment Agregnf®Amendment No. 1"Jamong Embarq, Executive and CenturyTel,
(“CenturyLink”), as amended December 20, 2008 byeAirment 200&- to the Employment Agreement between Embarq aretive
(collectively the*Employment Agreeme”)

Dear Glen,

On July 22, 2010, | notified you that December 2010 would be my last date of employment under fmmplByment Agreement. F
the tax and other reasons we have discussed dirae iy last date of employment will be December 20B.0. This letter agreement, wk
supersedes our July 22, 2010 letter agreemerg entirety, sets forth our agreement regardindetraination of my services.

We agree as follows:

1. December 15, 2010 will serve as (i) the Tieation Date under my Employment Agreemdii},my last day of employment for a
payments under my Employment Agreement or any gihegrams or plans of CenturyLink or its subsidiarthat are governed
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 @i) my last day as a member of the Board of Directér€enturyLink.
will not perform any services on behalf of Centuni or its subsidiaries after the Termination Daléis letter agreeme
constitutes timely Notice of the CIC Good Reasomtemplated by Section 3 of Amendment Na

2. In exchange for agreeing to change my TerminatiateDyou agree that between December 16, 2012 endniber 31, 2012, | w
receive, as additional severance pay, all paymehn® C Benefits as described in Section 4.02 of Bmyployment Agreement tha
would have received if | remained an executiveceiffiof CenturyLink through December 31, 2010, &Wbich will be paid in th
same amounts, at the same times and in the sameemas would have applied if | remained employed Bmn office througl
December 31, 201!

3. Except as otherwise provided in Section dvabforpurposes of determining my annual bonus, my tenfiservice as an employ
or director, the vesting of my equity grants, amidother benefits, accruals or payments under theelit plans and programs
CenturyLink and its whollyowned subsidiaries applicable to me as of Deceriber2010, | will be deemed to have remaine
executive officer and director of CenturyLink thghuDecember 31, 2010. Thus, for example, my anbpo@ls for the portion of n
severance period beginning on December 16, 201@adithg on December 31, 2010, will be calculatethasagh | had remained
employee and executive officer of CenturyLink dgrthat time, rather than calculated at the “Cappedntive Payouttate specifie
in my Employment Agreemer

| agree to provide to you the release of claimst@woplated by Section 4.04(b) of my Employment Agreat within the time fran
specified in such section. In addition, we eacteadhat reasonably promptly following December 2®10, we each will execute and delive
the other (i) any other releases or documents reduinder the Employment Agreement, and (ii) suttteroinstruments as may reasonabl'
requested by the other.

Please sign below, acknowledging the adequacy isfitistrument under the Employment Agreement andmutual agreement f
December 15, 2010 to serve as the Termination thateunder on the terms and subject to the comdipecified above.

Very trouly yours,

/sl Tom Gerke
Tom Gerke

Agreed and accepted as of the
date of this letter agreement:

CENTURYLINK, INC.

By: /s/ Glen F. Post, llI
Glen F. Post, Il
Chief Executive Officer and President

EMBARQ CORPORATION



By: /s/ Glen F. Post, Ill
Glen F. Post, Il
Chief Executive Officer and President




Exhibit 10.14(0)
FIRST AMENDMENT TO
THE EMBARQ SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE
RETIREMENT PLAN

WHEREAS , Embarq Corporation (the “Company”) maintains Embarg Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan“@ten”), which
was most recently restated effective January 19200

WHEREAS , the Company desires to freeze the Plan effedtwary 1, 2011 in connection with the amendmetited=mbarq
Retirement Pension Plan (the “Retirement Pensian”Pfreezing the benefit accruals thereunder @3esfember 31, 2010;

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRI&ction 8.9 of the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE , the Plan is amended effective as of the datesfigmbbelow, as follows:

Effective January 1, 2010, the definition of “Comniitee” in Section 2.1, Definitions, is amended to read as follows:

“Committee” means the CenturyLink Retirement Committee.

Il.
Effective January 1, 2011, Section 3, Participationis amended by adding a new sentence at the encakthof to read as follows:
Notwithstanding the foregoing, effective Januarg@11, no employee shall become a covered emplyéearticipate in the Plan if his
employment with the Employer began after Decemiie810.

Il

Effective January 1, 2011, Section 4.1, Computatioof Benefit, is amended by adding a new paragraph at the enthéreof to read
as follows:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and in accordancth \Biection 3.12 of the Retirement Pension Plans{ant to which the Retirement
Allowance under the Retirement Pension Plan isginczs of December 31, 2010), the benefits unddrldme including any Enhanced
Benefit, shall be frozen at the level accrued aBedember 31, 2010, and shall not increase aftdr date. Accordingly, any service,
compensation, or severance pay after December0dD, 2hall be disregarded when computing a Paatitip benefit under this Section
4.1, or any Enhanced Benefit. However, servicdl sbatinue to be counted for the purpose of deteimy vesting or eligibility for
retirement, early retirement, and other featuredeuthe Plan or the Retirement Pension Plan, th#ability of which are dependent on a
Participant’s service.

V.
Effective January 1, 2010, Sections 7.1 and 7.2tbe Plan are amended and restated to read as follew
7.1 Amendmen. The Board shall have the authority to amendtartdrminate the Plau
7.2 Administration and InterpretationThe Plan shall be administered by the CommitfEge Committee shall have full power and
authority to interpret and administer the Plan audbject to the provisions herein set forth, tespribe, amend and rescind rules
and regulations and make all other determinati@tessary or desirable for the administration ofRtae. The decision of the

Committee relating to any question concerning woiwing the interpretation or administration of thk&n shall be final and
conclusive.

V.

Effective January 1, 2010, Sections 7.3 through Qre deleted, and the remaining Sections 7.11 thugh 7.13 are renumbered
accordingly.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onTttisday of December, 2010.

EMBARQ CORPORATION

By :/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J
Name: R. Stewart Ewing, Ji




Title: EVP, CFO and Assistant Secret:




CenturyLink, Inc.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STK DIVIDENDS

(UNAUDITED)

Net income before extraordinary ite
Income taxes

Pre-tax income before extraordinary ite

Adjustments to earning
Fixed charge
Preferred stock dividen
Gross earnings from unconsolidated cellp&tnershig
Distributed earnings from unconsolidateliutar partnership

Earnings, as adjusted

Fixed charges
Interest expen:
Preferred stock dividends (pre-tax)

Total fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferredkstividends

Year ended December &

Exhibit 12

2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

$ 947,70! 511,25: 365,73:
582,95: 301,88: 194,35
1,530,65! 813,13! 560,08¢
557,49 370,43: 202,46
(19 (19 (24¢€)
(16,369 (19,087 (12,045
16,02¢ 20,10( 15,96(
$ 2,087,79 1,184,56. 766,22:
$ 557,47¢ 370,41 202,21°
19 19 24€
$ 557,49 370,43: 202,46:
3.74 3.2C 3.7¢




CENTURYLINK, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 201C

State of

incorporatior
Subsidiary or formation
Actel, LLC Delaware
Carolina Telephone and Telegraph Company | North Caroling
Centel Capital Corporatic Delaware
Centel Corporatiol Kansas
Centel Directories LL( Delaware
Centel SPE LLC Delaware
Cente-Texas, Inc Texas
Central Telephone Compal Delaware
Central Telephone Company of Te» Texas
Central Telephone Company of Virgir Virginia
CenturyLink Sales Solutions, In Delaware
Century Marketing Solutions, LL: Louisiana
CenturyTel Acquisitions, LL( Louisiana
CenturyTel Arkansas Holdings, Ir Arkansas
CenturyTel Broadband Services, LI Louisiana
CenturyTel Broadband Wireless, L1 Louisiana
CenturyTel Fiber Company I, LL! Louisiana
CenturyTel Holdings Alabama, In Alabama
CenturyTel Holdings Missouri, In Missouri
CenturyTel Holdings, Inc Louisiana
CenturyTel Investments of Texas, |i Delaware
CenturyTel Investments, LL Louisiana
CenturyTel Long Distance, LL Louisiana
CenturyTel Midwes- Michigan, Inc. Michigan
CenturyTel of Adamsville, Inc Tennesse
CenturyTel of Alabama, LL( Louisiana
CenturyTel of Arkansas, In Arkansas
CenturyTel of Central Arkansas, LL Arkansas
CenturyTel of Central Indiana, In Indiana
CenturyTel of Central Louisiana, LL Louisiana
CenturyTel of Central Wisconsin, LL Delaware
CenturyTel of Chatham, LL! Louisiana
CenturyTel of Chester, In lowa
CenturyTel of Claiborne, Inc Tennesse
CenturyTel of Colorado, Int Colorado
CenturyTel of Cowiche, In¢ Washingtor
CenturyTel of Eagle, Inc Colorado
CenturyTel of East Louisiana, LL Louisiana
CenturyTel of Eastern Oregon, I Oregon
CenturyTel of Evangeline, LL! Louisiana
CenturyTel of Fairwat-Brandor-Alto, LLC Delaware
CenturyTel of Forestville, LL( Delaware
CenturyTel of Idaho, Inc Delaware
CenturyTel of Inter Island, Int Washingtor
CenturyTel of Lake Dallas, In Texas
CenturyTel of Larse-Readfield, LLC Delaware
CenturyTel of Michigan, Inc Michigan
CenturyTel of Minnesota, Ini Minnesota
CenturyTel of Missouri, LLC Louisiana
CenturyTel of Monroe County, LL! Wisconsin
CenturyTel of Montana, Int Oregon
CenturyTel of Mountain Home, In Arkansas
CenturyTel of North Louisiana, LL! Louisiana
CenturyTel of North Mississippi, In Mississippi
CenturyTel of Northern Michigan, In Michigan
CenturyTel of Northern Wisconsin, LL Delaware
CenturyTel of Northwest Arkansas, LL Delaware
CenturyTel of Northwest Louisiana, Ir Louisiana
CenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin, LL Delaware
CenturyTel of Odon, Inc Indiana
CenturyTel of Ohio, Inc Ohio
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CenturyTel of Ooltewe-Collegedale, Inc
CenturyTel of Oregon, In¢

CenturyTel of Port Aransas, In
CenturyTel of Postville, Inc

CenturyTel of Redfield, Inc

CenturyTel of Ringgold, LLC
CenturyTel of San Marcos, In
CenturyTel of South Arkansas, Ir
CenturyTel of Southeast Louisiana, LI
CenturyTel of Southern Wisconsin, LL
CenturyTel of Southwest Louisiana, L1
CenturyTel of the Gem State, Ir
CenturyTel of the Midwe-Kendall, LLC
CenturyTel of the Midwe-Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of the Northwest, In
CenturyTel of the Southwest, Ir
CenturyTel of Upper Michigan, In
CenturyTel of Washington, In
CenturyTel of Wisconsin, LL(
CenturyTel of Wyoming, Inc
CenturyTel Security Systems Holding Company, L
CenturyTel Service Group, LL
CenturyTel Solutions, LL(

CenturyTel Supply Group, In
CenturyTel TeleVideo, Inc
CenturyTel/Teleview of Wisconsin, In
Coastal Long Distance Services, L|
Coastal Utilities, Inc

Embarq Capital Corporatic

Embargq Communications of Virginia, Ir
Embarq Communications, In

Embarq Corporatio

Embarq Directory Trademark Company, LI
Embarq Florida, Inc

Embarq Holdings Company LL
Embarq Interactive Holdings LL
Embarq Interactive Markets LL
Embarq Management Compa

Embarq Mic-Atlantic Management Services Compe
Embarg Midwest Management Services Comg
Embarg Minnesota, In

Embarq Missouri, Inc

Embarq Network Company LL

Embarqg Payphone Services, |

Embarq Risk (Bermuda) Limite
Embarq, Inc

EQ Central Texas Equipment LL

EQ Equipment Leasing, Inc

EQ Management Equipment |

EQ United Texas Equipment LL
Gallatin River Communications, LL
Gulf Communications, LL(

Gulf Long Distance, LLC

Gulf Telephone Compar

Madison River Communications Col
Madison River Communications, LL
Madison River Long Distance Solutions, LI
Mebtel Long Distance Solutions, LL
Mebtel, Inc.

NOCUTS, Inc.

Perry Protection Services, Ir

SC Eight Compan

SC Five Compan

SC Four Compan

SC One Compan

SC Seven Compar

SC Six Compan'

SC Three Compan

SC Two Compan

Spectra Communications Group, LI

Tennesse
Oregon
Texas
lowa
Arkansas
Louisiana
Texas
Arkansas
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Idaho
Delaware
Delaware
Washingtor
New Mexico
Michigan
Washingtor
Louisiana
Wyoming
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Wisconsin
Georgia
Georgia
Delaware
Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
North Caroline
Kansas
Minnesota
Missouri
Delaware
Florida
Bermuda
Kansas
Texas
Delaware
Nevada
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Alabama
Alabama
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
North Caroline
North Caroline
Pennsylvanii
Florida
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Delaware



Telcon, Inc. Texas

Telephone USA of Wisconsin, LL Delaware
The Winter Park Telephone Compe Florida
United Telephone Company of Eastern Kar Delaware
United Telephone Company of Flori Florida
United Telephone Company of Indiana, | Indiana
United Telephone Company of Kan Kansas
United Telephone Company of New Jersey, New Jerse
United Telephone Company of Ot Ohio

United Telephone Company of Pennsylvania LLC, Pennsylvanii
United Telephone Company of Southcentral Kal Arkansas
United Telephone Company of Texas, | Texas
United Telephone Company of the Carolinas L South Caroliné
United Telephone Company of the Northw Oregon
United Telephone Company of the W Delaware
United Telephone Southeast LI Virginia
United Teleservices, In Kansas
Valley Network Partnershi Virginia
Vista-United Telecommunicatior Florida

Certain of the Company's smaller subsididngage been intentionally omitted from this exh
pursuant to rules and regulations of the SecurtresExchange Commissic
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We consent to incorporation by reference in theiRemgion Statements (No. 333-165607 and No. 338L&88) on Form S-3, the Registration
Statements (No. 33-60061, No. 333-160391, No. 38138, No. 333-60806, No. 333-150157, No. 333-1248%dNo. 333-150188) on Form&s-
and the Registration Statements (No. 33-48956 388-17015, No. 333-167339 and No. 333-155521) amF®-4 of CenturyLink, Inc. of our
reports dated March 1, 2011, with respect to thesalidated balance sheets of CenturyLink, Inc. sufskidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the related consolidated statementsofie, comprehensive income, cash flows, and stéd&hs equity for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2010, antkdefimancial statement schedule, and the effeséigs of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2010, which reporfgeapin the December 31, 2010 annual report on Adrd of CenturyLink, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

March 1, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Glen F. Post, Ill, Chief Executive Officer anceBident, certify that:

1

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CenturyLink, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténgtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as aefil in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15¢15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoegedo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over finanoéglorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardeng the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsattisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntbd report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in #gigtrant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrantos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter of 2010) that has materially affectadsaeasonably likely to materially
affect, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial reporting,
to the registrar’'s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakresses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regis’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpuancial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who have disar role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 1, 201 /s/ Glen F. Post, Il

Glen F. Post, Il
Chief Executive Office
and Presider



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., Executive Vice Presidamd Chief Financial Officer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CenturyLink, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@émnstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e))iar@dnal control over financial reporting (as defil in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15¢15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoegedo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over finah@porting, or caused such internal control owearficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardeng the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsattisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntbd report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in ggigtrant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrantos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter of 2010) that has materially affectedsaeasonably likely to materially
affect, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial reporting,
to the reqistrar’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regis’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpuancial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who have disagn role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 1, 201 /s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CenturyLink, Inc.

March 1, 2011

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20549

Re: CenturyLink, Inc.
Certification of Contents of Form 10-K for the yearding December 31, 2010
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned, acting in their capacities asCthief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial ioéf of CenturyLink, Inc. (the
“Company”), certify that the Form 10-K for the yearded December 31, 2010 of the Company fully ca@aplith the requirements of Section 13
(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and tie information contained in the Form 10-K faigsesents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations & @ompany as of the dates and for the periods edusy such report.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyéll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@uwgnmission or its staff upon request.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Glen F. Post, Il /s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Glen F. Post, Il R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Chief Executive Office Executive Vice President ai

and Presider Chief Financial Office



